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OFFICE OF SENATOR GEORGE McGOVERN
WEDNESDAY, June 7, 1972,

NutRITION COMMITTEE CHARGES USDA RETURNING NEARLY HALF BILLION IN
Foop STAMP FUNDS TO TREASURY

Senator George McGovern (D-SD), Chairman of the Select Comumittee on
Nutrition and Human Needs, today announced hearings on funds being returned
or withheld out of the Food Stamnp Program, and the program intended to provide
food service to needy preschoolchildren in Day Care-type settings. Senator Charles
H. Percy (R-IIL) will chair Wednesday’s hearing on the food stamp funds. Ad-
ministration witnesses will appear at the opening of the hearings to present a
statement, and again at the conclusion of the hearings to respond to questions.

Coming under scrutiny in these hearings are the funds for the Food Stamp
Program, and for Section 13 of the National School Lunch Act (the Special Food
Service Program for Children).

1. In the current fiscal year the Department of Agriculture had some $2.3
billion available for the Food Stamp Program. However, the Departinent has
kept such a close check on spending in all of the food assistance programs that
the actual cost of the Food Stamp Program will be between $1.8 and $1.9 billion.

Despite the Department’s long awareness that a “surplus” would be occurring
in the program:

¢ Regulations were imposed—without any such direction from Congress—

which force recipients out of the Food Stamp Program if they participate
in work, training, or educction programs designed to make them self-
sufficient ;

¢ Raised the food stamp allotment as required by law. but by only $4 per

household, regardless of whether 1, 3. or even 6 persons are in the family
(only households of 7 and 8 persons will receive more than $4) despite the
dramatic increase in the cost of fool ;

¢ Increased the price of the food stamps so that the “bonus stamps” have be-
come an increasingly smaller proportion of the program; and
Denied the State of Michigan (which had raised its share of matching funds)
the Federal share of costs for the outreach programs mandated in the 1971
amendments, on the basis that funds were not available.

2. Section 13 of the National School Lunch Act was established in 1968, to make
food service available to needy children in nonprofit, nonresidential, nonschool
settings such as day care programs, summer recreation sites, and settlemert
houses. That program. which spent only about $3 million in its first year of im-
plemnentation, has grown rapidly in response to increasing needs in day care and
summer feeding.

Since early in this fiscal year, the Child Nutrition Division of the FNS at
USDA has imposed a freeze on funds uunder Section 13. Yet States and cities
across the Nation have reported that they desperately need funds for food service
in day care. Head Start, and special summer programs not easily served under
existing regulations. This year the Department has had approximately $49 million
available in appropriated funds, and Congressional authority to spend up to

* $135 million in additional funds out of Section 32. Despite that, spending under

Section 13 will only reach approximately $36 million, with $13 million carried
over into the coming fiscal year as provided by law.
The question, as Senator Percy puts it in his opening remarks, is this:

Are the existing food assistance programs being implemented in a way
to achieve our national goal of adequate nutrition for all Americans at
the earliest possible date?

The hearings will begin in Room 1318, New Senate Office Bldg., starting
at 10:00 a.m,, Wednesday, June 7, 1972.
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UNUSED FOOD ASSISTANCE FUNDS: FOOD STAMPS

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 7, 1972

U.S. SExATE
SeLect CoMMITTEE ON
NurriTioN axp Houmax NEEps
Washington, D.C.

The Select Committee met at 10 a.m., pursuant to call. in room 1318
of the New Senate Office Building. the Honorable Charles H. Percy
presiding.

Present: Senator Charles H. Percy.

Staff members present: Nancy Amidei, professional staff member;
Vernon M. Goetcheus, senior minority professional staff; and Eliza-
beth P. Hottell, minority professional staff.

OPENING STATEMENT 5Y SENATOR PERCY, PRESIDING

Senator Percy. I call to order this hearing of the Senate Select.
Committee on Nutrition and Human Needs. )

I want to begin this mnorning by stressing the bipartisan nature of
our national commitment to close the hunger gap.

This is reflected no better than in President Nixon’s statement when
he transmitted his widely applauded child nutrition proposals to the
Congress last month.

I would like to quote his own words, because I don’t think we could
improve on the goal he established.

President Nixon said:

It was just 3 yvears ago, on May ¢, 1969, that I sent to the Congress my first
message on hunger and malnutrition.

I noted in that message that America has long shared its bounty with hungry
peoples in all parts of the globe, but that now ‘“the moment is at hand to put an
end to hunger in America itself, for ali time.”

In the last 3 years, with the cooperation of the Congress, we have made im-
mense strides toward reaching this goal.

For example, the budget I proposed last January allocated nine times as much
money for food stamps and seven times as much money for school lunches for
needy children as was allocated in fiscal year 1969.

There is no doubt in my mind that the Congress is as fully com-
mitted to wiping out hunger and malnutrition in this Nation as is
the Nixon sdministration and that we see the food stamp program as
the major vehicle for accomplishing this objective.

The question we want to address this morning is this: Are the exist-
ing food assistance fprogmms being implemented n a way to achieve
our national goal of adequate nutrition for all Americans at the ecar-
liest possible time?

(617)




618

If the answer to this question is “No,” then we must find out why.

Is the authorizing legislation fauity? .

Are the funds Congress has appropriated insufficient to accomplish
the task ¢

Is the administration of the program at the Federal, State, and
local levels lagging ?

Where do the problems lie and how can we rectify them ?

I know all our witnesses this morning will cooperate fully with this
committee to find the answers to these questions, and certainly there
is no question, inasmuch as this is a totally nonpartisan, bipartisan
issue of disagreement between the executive and legislative branch in

oals.
& The executive branch has made it eminently clear we are going to
close the hunger gap, this is a matter of highest priority.

In no area has the Congress backed up the administration with
greater enthusiasm and more overwhelming votes than in this partic-
nlar area.

There can be legitimate differences of opinion on how we implement
these goals, and whether we have implemented them with the speed
and dispatch that we all feel should be exercised.

I would at this time like to read a statement from Senator Mc-
Govern. He is necessarily absent, this morning. I would like to say
that we are all indebted to Senator McGovern for the leadership pro-
vided to this committee, and what has been accomplished working with
the executive branch of Government to implement our goals.

PREPARED STATEMENT OF SENATOR GEORGE McGOVERN

T would like to make only a brief comment.

First, I want to publicly thank Senator Percy for chairing this
hearing in my absence. His active participation in the Select Com-
mittee has helped to make the committee, and the hunger issue,
truly bipartisan efforts.

The lllearing this morning makes us witness to a sorry and confusing
spectacle.

On the one hand, we have the President of the United States, just 1
month ago, reaffirming his commitment, . . . to put an end to hunger
in America itself for all time.”

On the other hand, we have an executive agency withholding a sub-
stantial proportion of the funds available to improve the diets of the
needy poor.

Caught between is the Congress, which has long been aware of the
tragic human toll that hunger takes. It is nearly 5 years since we heard
testimony from the Field Fonndation doctors, who said :

* % * the boys and girls we saw were hungry—weak, in
pain, sick; * * *. They are suffering from hnnger and dis-
ease and directly or indirectly they are dying from them—
which is exactly what starvation means.

It is only a little more than 8 years since Dr. Schaefer reported to
us from the Nutional Nutrition Survey :

It is * * * shocking to realize that the problems in the
poverty groups in the United States seem to be very similar
to those we have encountered in the developing countries.




Lo T et A ke A ittt e e A i oA AR 4 e

619

Today we learn from the Department of Agriculture that some $400
million of the funds so desperately needed by America’s hungry poor
will be returned to the Treasury.

It is a sud commentary on our national conscience that we cannot or
will not meet the basic hnman needs of our society and %eople.

400-million food stamp dollars can be returned to the Treasury only
one way—-at the expense of tli¢ poor they were intended to serve.

Senator Prrcy. That was a statement by Senator McGovern, and
on that unifying note, we ask the Assistant Secretary of Agriculture,
Secretary Lyng, to lead off.

As I understand it, Secretary Lyng, you will be back, having had
by then the benefit of the testimony of these hearings so that you can
comment on that.

STATEMENT OF HON. RICHARD LYNG, ASSISTANT SECRETARY,
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

We welcome you this morning,.

Mr. Ly~e. Mr. Chairman and merbers of the committee. It is, once
again, a pleasure to have the opportunity to report to this committee
upon the progress we are making in our efforts to eliminate poverty-
caused hunger and malnutrition.

In response to the request from the chairman, 1 will, today, briefly
discuss our estimates of this year's spending on Food étamps and on
the Special Food Service Programs under Section 13 of the National
School Lunch Act.

The chairman’s letter asks that I testify on “the withholding of
funds” from these programs.

It should be made absolutely clear at the outset that there has been
no withholding of funds from either the Food Stamp Program or the
Special Food Service Programs.

The Food Stam]p Program is our major means for reaching needy
people with food help. The record* here is something of \\'hici all of
us can, I believe, be proud. During April of this year, 11.5 million

eople were participating in the Food Stamp Program. This is 1 mil-
ion more than during April of 1971, and over 3.5 times as many as
during the peak month 4 years ago.

The increase in spenging has been even more significant. It has
leaped from 3250 million in fiscai year 1969 to $1.9 billion during
fiscal 1972.

Our apgropriation for fiscal 1972 for food stamps is $2.289 billion.
Our spending will, we estimate, be $389 million less than that. This is,
I understand, what the committee wishes to discuss.

“QOpeN-END” Prooram

The Food Stamp Program is a program which guarantees to the
2,100 counties yhich have chosen to operate the program that all eligi-
ble individuals and families will receive the fu'l benefits of food assist-
ance—all eligible, regardless of how many that might be. There are
no constraints on total numbers of dollars or total numbers of needy
people a county or a State may serve. The Food Stamp Program is

*See Appendix, pp. 693, 694.
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not a Federal grant program under which specific sums of money are
budgeted and allocated to States or counties for specific projects,

Because of the “open-end” nature of such a national rogram, it is
difficult to estimate funding needs. One must estimate, f? , the num-
ber of people that may take part in the program. Changing economic
conditions can have a major impact on this, of course. It is also neces-
sary to forecast the participation by household size and income levels
because these factors significantly affect the bonus costs, which is the
major expenditure.

Additionally, once designated, new areas are authorized to begin
operating as rapidly as local arrangements can be made; thus, the
same kinds of funding uncertainties for these designated areas must
be-worked into the total projections.

The past 12 months have been a period of great change in the Food
Stamp Program, New regulations have been promulgated to imple-
mert the provisions of Public Law 91-671, which include umiform
national eligibility standards and expanded outrench activity. These
new provisions are designed to bring many new participants’into the
program. Their implementation has involved considerable effort for
participating States and counties. As a resnlt, implementation of these
new regulations has been much slower than we had anticipated.

During fiscal 1972, the States did not bring newly designated coun-
ties into the program as rapidly as in the past. They preferred to con-
tinue them on the Fond Distribution Program rather than bring them
in under the old food stamp regulations and then face the imminent
task of reeducating workers and participants to the new rules. As a
result. of the 278 counties desienated since May of 1971, a total of 189
were 1ot vet in operation as of Mav 1 of this year.

Tt shonld he noted that. as the Food Stamn Prosram has continued
its rapid expansion we have made strenuous efforts to see to it that
abuses of the program be eliminated. We have been determined that
those who are not deseryving be purged from the program. This effort
has been successful.

At the same time. we have encouraged the States and counties to
improve their adrainistrative services and their ontreach activities to
give greater opportunities for participation to those who really need
food stamps.

I want to compliment the thousands of neople in the State agencies
and local comnumities. who, as well as USDA’s Food and Nutrition
Service, have worked so hard in this extremely difficult year of transi-
tion and change in the Food Stamp Program.

The growth and expansion of the Food Stamp Program didn’t “just
happen.” Through the years. the Food and Nutrition Service and the
States huve actively engaged in outreach efforts to let notentially eli-
gible people know about this gnarantee to needy people by the Fed-
eral Government.

T have some of the informational and educational materials—some
of it in two or more languages—that are used in these efforts, and
will make them available to the committee.

Secrion 13 Founpixe

The committee also requested a remort on the funding sitnation
under Section 13 of the National School Lunch Act,
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This concerns the special—the nonschools—feeding program.

The Special Food Service Program was funded at $49 million for
fiseal 1972: $28.2 million of this was earmarked to supplement the
approximately $5 million available to fund the special summer pro-
gram out of the regular fiscal 1972 appropriation of $20.8 million.

The Special Summer Feeding Program—which operates during the
4 months of June through oarf;' September~is funded out. of appro-
priations for 2 fiseal years. This summer, for example, June summer
operations will be funded out of our fiscal 1972 appropriation, and
the July-tlnrough-Se’Ftember phase will be funded out of our fiscal
1973 appropriation. Therefore, it was necessary throughout. this fiscal

year to reserve, out of this year's appropriation, the funds necessary
for this June's summer program.

This summer, following the Pregident’s May 6 request for an addi-
tional $25 million, we are proceeding with plans to operate n June-
September summer program totaling $50.5 inillion. We are able to pro-
ceed with these plans because we have approximately $10 million re-
served from our 1972 fiseal Year appropriation to fund the June phase

of the summer program—about 2 weeks out of the 10-week program.

This $10 million funding—together with the use of about $18 mil-
lion to fund the July-September phase of last year’s summer pro-
gram—means that a total of about $28 nillion of fiseal year 1972 funds
has been spent or is scheduled for the specinl summer phase of the
total nonschool program.

The 1972 funding of the year-round phase of the nonschool program
is complicated by the fact that the statutory apportionment formula
does uot reflect State-by-State differences in the way the total program
has developed.

This fiscal year the apportionment resulted in some States having
sufficient fiscal year 1972 funds to finance last year's July-September
summer program and expand the year-round phase of the program.
At the other extreme, in some States, the apportionment formula
left them short of funds to maintain their fiscal year 1972 year-round
program at the anmual rate they had achieved in the latter part of the
1971 fiseal year—even if all regularly appropriated funds had been
available for vear-round purposes.

We decided that the priority was to insure that the vear-round pro-
grams in any State would not have to be cut back. So. we authorized
all States to continue at the expenditure rate they had achieved in the
spring of 1971—indicating that the short States could count on the
additional funds required.

TraIRTY STATES RETURNING FUNDS

Projections on expected State-by-State use of funds for year-round
rograms in this fiscal year—based largely on their obligations through
Kl'urch—indicate that 30 States will be returning funds to UUSDA.
We could not anticipate—or count on—this back in Aneust or Sep-
tember. So. while some States will now be returning funds, other
States have been under a no-expansion policy.
We now estimate that possibly $4 million may remain at the end of
the fiscal year. And, if the June operations under the summer program
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are less than the $10 million available, the carryover of funds could
excced the $1 million ‘)rojection.

New legislation will be required to authorize the Special Food Serv-
ice Program beyond fiseal 1973, This was ot proposed in the admin-
istration’s bill to amend school feeding legislation. We believe that the
Congress will wish to consider substantive changes in the nonscliool
legrislation, and we wish to have the added experience of the 1973
summer program before we make our recommendations. Actually, I
am veferring to the fiscal 1973, which would be summer of 1972

We will be submitting nonschool legislative proposals early in the
next session of the Congress. In the meantime, we will be exploring
the possible advantages of scparating the appropriation suthorities for
the two phases of the program. .

In summary, there has heen no reduction or holdback of funding for
Food Stamp or Special Summer Food Programs. The administration
has repeatedly demonstrated a strong sense of commitment to Presi-
dent Nixon’s pledge 3 years ago to eliminate hunger in this land. As
the Food Stamp Program expanded we have not hesitated to re-
quest funding—from $250 niillion when we arrived in 1969 to our
budget request of $2.340 billion for fiscal 1973—a tenfold increase.

It is my understanding that the committee wishes to proceed now
with other witnesses and defer questions to me until after 1t has had an
opportunity to hear the others, I will be pleased to return to answer
whatever questions the conimittee may ask.

Senator Percy. Fine, Secretar: LynE.

The increase in expenditure from the time the administration took
office until now is dramatic. I do not imagine there is any other pro-
gram that even appronches this, except possibly environmental con-
trol. I am not sure even there the proportion would hold. .

The basic question that we wilrstnrt off with you would be—in light
of what the President said 3 years ago, the moment is at hand to put
an end to hunger in America itself for all time—in your judgment,
have v}vle glosed the hunger gap? Has hunger ended in America, and if
not, w

It yo{; would like to comment now, we would be perfectly happy to
hear you. If you would like to defer that, and have that as your open-
ing question later. you can doso.

fr. Lyxa. I would like to comment now, but I think I will restrain

myself, because I am supposed to be in two places at the same time, I

;\{m supposed to be the opening witness at another hearing over in the
ouse. :

If I may be excused, Mr. Chairman, I would appreciate it.

hSermtor Perey. We will wait with anticipation for your answer.
then.

Mr. Lyxe. Thank you.

Senator Percy. Thank you, very much indeed.

_The Chair calls our first two witnesses, Mr. John Kramer, executive
director, National Council on Hunger; and Mr. Arthur Schiff, assist-
ant administrator, Human Resources .A\dministration, New York City;
and both of them can come at once te the table.
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STATEMENT OF JOHN R. KRAMER, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR,
NATIONAL COUNCIL ON HUNGER, NEW YORK CITY

Myr. Kramer. Mr. Chairman, I am Mr. Kramer. I am also primarily a
professor of law at Georgetown University, but also executive direc-
tor on the Executive Council on Hunger, and have been since we
founded that in 1968. :

I would like to apologize for not having a prepared statement. The
reason for that is quite simple. I was called to testify on Monday and
to testify in response to a docunient that was just submitted about 10
minutes ago. But T am prepared to fully respond.

Senator Percy. You are very fortunate Senator Proxmire is not in
the. chair or he would declare you illegal as he did Mr. Nader for not
meeting the requirements of the Senate. But we are happy to have
vou here this morning.

Mr. Kramer. I have, however, distributed two separate little statisti-
cal documents.*

One is my version of, “Are we feeding everybody in America,”
coupled with a document that shows the difference, State by State,
between the number of public assistance recipients as of the end of
last year, which is the latest data we have—in fact, just yesterday the
statistics were released on January of 1972—compared to the number
of public assistance recipients on food stamps in April of 1972 which
the latest data—and I think if you will look at that chart, I will refer
to it during the course of my testimony and youn will see that we are
not in very good shape.

Let me start out with a simple overview and focus in on the particu-
lar issue today, which is the return of food stamp money.

In the 1970 census count, amended actually by the Office of Eco-
nomic Opportunity, the Bureau of Census started out with 25.5 mil-
lion people and OEO found 400,000 children who had been forgotten,
so it 1s now up to 25.9 million people.

Forry-Turee Percext oF Poor Recewe NotmiNe

Forty-four percent of the 11,461,000 were on food stamps in April
of 1972. Thirteen percent of them, 3.3 million, received commodities.
Forty-three percent of the poor were getting nothing at all.

I think perhaps that is as simple an answer to the question you
posed to Secretary Lyng as could be. We have reached the 57-percent
mark, and, of course, the question is what those 57 percent get, but 43
percent get nothing at all.

I think actually rather shocking in addition to that is a statement
made—and I think stiil subscribed to by the Department—in the
Senate appropriation hearings last year, in which Mr. Hecklin—who
was the head of the Food Nutrition Service—said. I think I have an
ext:;:t quote from those hearings. I can give it to you pretty much aghe
said it.

He said, “It is our considered judgment that when participation
reaches 16 million people, we may well be approaching the level of
potential participation.”

* See Appendix, p. 703.
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So, I suppose their defense might be something like. reaching 50
percent of the people or 60 percent is enough. But at any rate, that
is all they are reaching.

Now, what is the present situation in terins of numbers? I just
received their numbers this morning. They tally pretty much with the
ones that I have been compiling during the course of the year.

I think at the outset I should say that it is rather shocking—and I
should think it should be shocking to you—that it is June 7 when we
get this report. As a matter of law, in U.S. Code section 665—the
part of the code that governs appropriations and governs all of the
activities of the executive branch of the Office of Management
and Budget—there is a requirement of an early court review of
expenditures.

I think that requirement probably falls upon” Assistant Secretary
Lyng or upon Secretary Butz.

Apportionment should be reviewed at least four times each year.
And so certainly way before this, in accordance with the rules govern-
ing appropriations and the determination by the Department, they
wgltlt!d have known that they were returning what they say is $389
million.

Our guess is about $414 million, but we can split the difference and
round it off and call it $400 million. We will obviously not know until
sometime in August exactly how much is being sent back.

APPROPRIATION FOR NEED AND EXPANSION

As indicated, the actual appropriation was $2.289 billion. Mr. Win-
ton—when he moved the adoption of the conference report last July—
said this level. $2.289 billion, together with the carryover funds,should
be adequate to fully meet the needs for 1972 and provide some pro-
gram expansion.

Now, the expenditure rate as it now goes, seems to flow as follows:
The bonuses expected to be expended by the end of June will approxi-
mate $1.785 billion. That is just for bonuses.

If yon compare that—it should be $1,785—let’s see; I have an up-
side down number in my statistics. That leaves the shortfall of $414—
$2,875—that leaves a shortfall of about $500 million. But, in fact,
administrative costs are approximately $90 million. Now, I think —

Senator Percy. That accounts, then, for the difference in your fig-
ures and the USDA’s?

Mr. Kramer. It is only $25 million. It is just pure projection. This
always happens. Every time they issue a report—this is not the fault
of theirs; this is just normal accountirz—the next month they have
to correct the number of people on the program.

I think Mr. Schiff is one of their problems. He represents New
York and their million figures go up and down every month as they
£nally get the figures in. It is difficult to follow that.

On this basis, overall, 18 percent of the appropriation will be re-
turned. As far as people-money is concerned, they exgected to spend
about $2.219 billion and they will only spend $1.785. In other words,
of people-money they will be returning $434 million. This is the bonus
money, or 19 percent.
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However, on administrative costs, quite the other way. They had
asked Congress for $70 million; they will be spending $90 million,
which is 130-percent cost overrun for the bureaucrats, but for people,
it is $134 million.

Senator Prrcy. I am very sorry, We have no other Senators that T
can turn the chair over to for a few minutes. I have only a couple
minutes to get to the floor on a vote so we will recess these hearings
for about 7 minutes.

Thank you. Be right back.

Recess.] )

enator PErcY. Now that the 7 minutes are up, we will resume.
Sorry for the interruption. .
. Mr. Kraser, I would hike to just repeat very quickly two figures,
the two figures I am working on.

One is a people-return of something in the neighborhood of $434
million, but a bureaucrat overrun of $20 million on administration of
the program.

I would not mind going $100 million over on administration as long
as they spent the over-$300 million on the people.

Viernam OverrON 1IN BriLuions

Now, of course, yesterday Secretary Laird was worried about a $3- to
$5-billion overrun for Vietnam. I think this is a $430 million underrun
and it is quite a contrast.

Obviously ‘the first question that arises—one that is not easy to
answer—is : “Who is responsible for pickpocketing the indigent ?” Let
me say at the outset that the Congress is at fault in one major respect,
aPnd that is this— Let me start back with the history of the Food Stamp

rogram.

F%r many years—really since its inception, with the exception of 1
year—the program has returned money to the Treasury. Back in
1969—I went into Federal court in June of 1969, to stop the return of
$28 million that were going back from the fiscal 1969 budget.

Then, Secretary Lyng gave an affidavit in that court case, called
Corcoran v. U.S. Department of Agriculture, in which he said in all
the years but one, the expenditures were overestimated with the result
that an excess of funds remained after program obligations were met.

The one year which was an exception was 1968. We lost the lawsuit in
1969 ; $29 million went back to the Treasury. We are here at a 12 to 15
times magnitude of that. Now, why does that occur?

I mentioned that statute earlier, and that statute—which I do not
know how aware the Congress is of it—is really at fault. It is a con-
gressional statute, obviously. 31 U.S.C,, 665, creates bureaucratic ter-
ror—let me read a few phrases and you will see what I mean.

It says, “No officer or employee of the United States shall make or
authorize an expenditure from or create or authorize an obligation
under any appropriation in excess of the amount available therein.”

Now, that should seem obvious. But they go on to say that each of
these officers and employees is charged during the course of the year
with constantly reevaluating their expenditures, so that in Section 8,
“.. . no officer or employee shall authorize or create any obligation or
make any expenditure in excess of an apportionment or reapportion-
ment. )
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Now, that sounds simple enough, but there are criminal penalties
attached for other spending. If you overspend willfully, $5,000 and/or
2 years in jail. .

This is the in terrorum statute that prevents anvbody from projected
expenditures in excess. Now, of course, that does not seem to be a prob-
lem here, but as Secretary Lyng indicated, they are always worried,
because they do not know how many people are out there that are
going to come into the offices month by month, how much they are
going to spend. ~ s

The terror flowing from this statute—the 2 years and $5,000. al-
thongh I do not know how many prosecutions there have been; I do
not know of any—still stands.

AtTEMPTS To CoRRECT STATUTE

This was sought to be corrected in 1970 in part through the efforts
of this committee. Let me describe to you what is an instance of con-
gressional lawlessness in this case, )

In 1970, Senator Ellender’s Agriculture Committee wrote into the
Food Stamp Act the following phrase: “Sums appropriated under this
law.” notwithstanding any other nrovisions of law, “continue to re-
main available for the purposes of this act.”

In other words. the l%430 million that was not going to be expended
wonld have stayed over for fiscal 1973.

When Senator McGovern substituted his bill on the Senate floor for
Senator Ellender’s. that provision was there intact. in Section 16.

‘When Mr. Poe reported his bill out of the Agriculture Committee
that exact provision was in there. So that the $430 million would have
carried over. $389 million—whatever figure it was—wonld be avail-
able starting .July first, in addition to the appronriations for July first.

In the conference report of December 22. 1970, there is no reference
whatsoever to a provision that was in both the Fouse bill as passed and
the Senate bill as passed. The conference acted illegally in two respects.

One has already been corrected by the courts. As von are well aware,
the conference added a provision that was in neither bill. nder rule
27 of the Senate. section 2, “Conferees shall not insert in their report
matter not committed to them'by either house.”

The court did not strike it down on that basis: the conrt stated it was
a denial of equal protection last Monday, in a case called Moreno. “Nor
shall they strike from the bill matter agreed to by both houses—" the
second part of the bill.

This was done and because it was December 30th in the House and
December 31st in the Senate, no one—and we tried desperately—made
a point of order.

May I say quite frankly, this was done with the complete knowl-
edge of the Department of Agriculture; and without a word of pro-
test, so far as I am aware, from the Department of Agriculture.

So at least at that stage both the Congress and the Department are
responsible for acting against the laws of the Senate itself and of the
House as well.

Senator Percy. You are suggesting that the law be corrected ?
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Law Cuanee NEerpED

Mr. Kramer. Very much so.

Senator Percy. So that funds can be carried over and not “lost”?

Mr. KraMer. Yes. Exactly. It seems to me this was clearly the intent
of both bodies, although perhaps not of the conferees.

Senator Percy. We did have this year, of the $2.3 billion available,

$90 million that was carried over in previous funds.
_ Hasit been your experience that in Government agencies, when there
1s no carryover provision, that sometimes there is a tendency for waste,
and extravagant spending at the end of the fiscal year, to just get rid
of funds which otherwise are going to be lost? Isn’t there adequate
care given with those funds?

Mr. KraMer. That is always the case. And I think Secretary Lyng
made that distinction.

In the normal grantmaking programs, for instance, the Office of
Economic Opportunity, HUD, they have this June flurry, in which
they stay up all night to get the grants out.

That, of course. is not the case in welfare or food stamps, where
the moneys tend to flow evenly over the course of the months.

I would suggest, for example, that perhaps in the appropriations—
when the appropriations committee bill hits the floor this vear—that
perhaps this committee might be interested in workinge with the agri-
culture committee to reinsert the carrvover provision. T eather this
is why we have that $90 million this year. not 1n the authorization. but
in the appropriation.

Now. of course. the role of the courts in all of this ie verv minimal.

We tried in 1969. I am professor of law. and T think T wanld nrefer
to say that we could not win a court case trving to hold np that $400
million.

Mavor Alioto of San Francisco broneht a maior eonrt suit aeainst
the impounding; and. under the law it has not heen rennrted in the
press. Lawsnits are normal'v reported when they are brouaht, nnt when
thev are lost. He lost that suit.

Tt is probsble that the executive branch has +he nower ~af fa snend
the $400 million even though they have fouaht to use the discretion
the other way.

“A Borrie ofF Krromur”

What has the role of the executive been in this prosram? As I
indicated before. we have 44 percent of the paor peonle in this conntry
on food stamps. What is their bonus? Their bonus amounts to 14—
on the average. 14.7 cents a meal.

I looked in mv closet last nieht and mv ketchnn from the orocery
is 48 cents. That is a hottle of ketchup a day bonus. from the Federal
Government. That adds up to $13.45 a month. you figure about 91,
meals a month.

So, 14.7 cents a meal, that is obviously paltry on its face.

Senator Percy. If the Agriculture Department knew as early as
December that it was going to have a large surplus, then could they
logically have reduced the price of stamps?

Mr. Kramer. Yes. They could have either way. They could have
raised the bonus or lowered the price. I think both T and Mr. Schiff—
who will follow me—will focus much more on the price aspect be-
cause that is what keeps people from participating.

16-300 0—=72—pt. 3B~——2
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) B}xt focusing on allotment value itself, from January 1970. when they
instituted this $106 allotment, until today, we are at a'$108—Consumer
Price Index. relating only to the cost of food at home; I am not talking
about McDonald’s only at home—has gone up 7.6 percent.

Allotment value has gone up 1.9 percent. The difference is 500 per-
cent. The CPI has gone up four times or 500 percent as fast as the
allotment value.

Now they are going to change the allotment value to $112 in July
of this year, but that will still be a 240-percent greater rise for the
CPI than for allotment and, of course, as I indicated under law. they
were looking at this way back last September.

I am sure they had very good projections because most of ns have
been able to make those projections as we go along.

Their guess is really probably about as good as ours.

Now, what are some of the indicia of program failure?

I have submitted a chart* of the lack of public assistance partici-
pation. There is some disagreement—and, I gather, on this committee
very strong disagreement—with my position, which I have worked
very hard to have included in the welfare bill. Food stamps shoild be
cashed out because that is the only way that every welfare recipient
will get food stamps.

Although that is arguable, it is now clear that only 52 percent of
welfare recipients get food stamps.

If there is one class of people in this country who should auto-
matically get food stamps, it is welfare recipients. I think Mr. Schiff,
who is intimately involved in this, will probably indicate to you that
the price consideration is critical here; outreach, yes, everything else,
but price.

16 StaTes WrrH Less Foon StaMp PARTICIPANTS

Although it is true that over the past year 1 million people have
come into the program, it is shocking to me—I didn’t know this until
I checked it last night—to discover that 16 States had actually lost par-
ticipants over the past year.

And there is no pattern here. It covers Washington. Tennessee, Mis-
sissippi. Colorado, Alabama, Alaska, Iowa, Louisiana, Arkansas,
Kentucky, Nebraska, North Dakota, Minnesota, Wyoming, Massa-
chusetts, and Maine. It is countrywide. There is no southern pattern
nor northern pattern.

Now, the question that arises is, does the’ Department really care
about this? Are they concerned about meeting their goals?

Last year they told the Senate appropriations committee that by
Juae of this year, they expected to have 12.5 million people on the
program.

1t is clear they are going to be lucky to make 11.5 million. I think
tie one thing that disturbed me today about Secretary Lyng’s testi-
mony was the fact that he reeled the fizures off, dispassionately—not
really thinking what $400 million might mean to human beings in
terms of what they might get from it.

® See .Appendix, p. 704.
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QuEestions USDA ExXPLANATIONS

Now, the Department offers varying explanations, and I would like
to briefly discuss each of their explanations, and question them.

First of all, they talk a little bit about the improving economy ; and,
although I am not going to get into a song and dance on that, unem-
ployment is the same as it was a year ago. That is the major factor that
affects food stamp participation in terms of the economy—according
to them, not just according to me.

They say that the new programs have opened slowly, and I think
that is correct. But, accepting their figures, they say that they expected
1.1 million people to come in on these new programs during the course
of the year and only a half million have.

Even if those 600,000 missing people had been on since last January,
getting that same 14.7 cents a meal. that would have only accounted
for an expenditure of $£2 million.

That would have been still $360 million short.

They talk about the delayed impact of the regulations. Well, the
regulations have been in effect in 22 States for half of the fiscal year,
and in 44 States for a fourth of a fiscal year. Although the Department
promised, when they promulgated the regulations last April, that 11.7
million new participants would come on, we have far less than 300,000
or 400,000.

I think the Department. what it has done, has failed to realize the
full impact of the regulation. Mr. Schiff will talk about that.

They stressed that this morning—entting abuses. Cutting abuses
also means not bringing people into the program, because soinetimes
the abuse side sweeps far beyond the people wlo are really abusing
the program.

Now, what can be done? What could come out of this hearing ¢

REevise APPROPRIATIONS BirL

First of all, 7 do indeed suggest that the appropriations bill be
revised.

I know how difficult it is after history. We will have to get back
probably, by the way, to revising the food stamp bill—if the welfare
reform bill does not do it—because it will die as of June 30, 1970. At
any rate, even before that, the appropriations bill should be revised
to permit the carryover so we wiﬁ not have to face this situation.

Now, what would that $400 million have meant this year. had it been
exgvended?

he average participation every month has been about 11 million.
Had that $400 million been spent, every person would have had a $3.13
increase & month and that 14.7 cents a meal would have gone to 18.1
cents, which is quite substantial.

Now, two things could have been done.

One 1s, they could have added $12.50 to the allotment value of every
four-person household. Interestingly enough, that would have made
the allotment $20.50—which was the allotinent suggested by the House
in the bill that the administration rejected.

Or I think much more preferably, they could have lowered prices
across the board. That is rather complex. It isn’t easy to lower prices
$12.50 for everybody because most of the upper-income poor pay very
much more than the lower-income poor.
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Although the bill says you shall not spend more than 30 percent for
food stamps, in fact, most of the upper-income poor have to spend,
under this regulation, between 27 and 28 percent of their income for
food at home. The average American expenditure for food at home in
the first quarter—again I am not telking abont McDonald’s—of dis-
posable income was 12.5 percent. It is, overall, 15.8 percent. That is
including McDonald’s.

But 12.5 percent of everybody’s, the average American’s disposable
income, went into food.

Senator Peroy. That is the lowest figure I have heard.

Mr. Kramer. It has gone down. The cost of food is 15.8 percent,
generally, that is inciuding food away from home.

Senator Percy. Including whatt

Mr. Kramer. Generally 15.8 percent is for food, including eating
out, which these people simply cannot do.

Senator Percy. I see.

Mr. Krayex. Food at home is 12.5 percent. That is for the first
quarter of 1972. Pretty reasonable as opposed to the fact that when
you have over $150 of income for a family of four, you have to spend
at least 27.3 percent of your income on food stamps.

So it is almost two and a third times the factor of forced contribu-
tions to the Food Stamp Program.

So I would sugzest :

1. Revisine the annranriations hill: snd

2, Tn the nheence of heina able to really redo the authorization
rogram, to bring whatever political pressure can be brought to
ecar to make the program reduce its prices.

Here I think we are talkine ahout the reverse twist of political
economv which seems to be making poor people pay two and a third
as much as rich people.

I think we need to put that $400 million back into the program.
Unfortunately it is too late to do it this year, unless the appropria-
tions bill is changed.

But, certainlv as of July or September. the Department could make
all the rectifications necessary to lower the purchase price.

Senator Prrcy, Mr. Kramer. this would be the easiest thing to do
administrativelv. T presume. but from a standnoint of real need and
priorities, wouldn’t it be better, rather than helping those who are
alreadv getting assistance and help, to 2o after the 11.1 million people
who get nothing? They are the poor, they live below the poverty line?

Mr. Kraxer. Yes.

Senator Peacy. And presumably are malnourished.

PurcHase Price Necates Usre

Mr. KraMER. Really, there are only two ways to do that, as T see it.

One of them, of course, is not to have food stamps but to give dollar
value so people would get that on their welfare check.

The other way is to lower the purchase price. It is the purchase price
that keeps some of those 11 million people out.
. We do not know how many. One of the problems with the figures
in this program is: We reallv have no idea who those 11 million are,
the slderly, the young, the black, the white, the Chicano—we have
no idea.

v
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The Department doesn’t really know. If we did, we probably could
project a program. . )

In fact, that might be an interesting request from this committee,
if the Department could come up with a projection of the cross-section
of this 11 million people. Perhaps some sort. of percentage calculation
as to their reasons for not participating in the food programs that are
now in existence where they live, that would be an interesting request.

Senator Percy. All right.

I would like to start now with Mr. Schiff, but we will have to recess
for another 7 minutes.

We have a vote on the floor on the Sudden Infant Death Syndscine
bill. T will be back just as quickly as I can; the recess will be
temporary.

g ecess. |

enator Prrcy. I am happy to say there is not another roll call vote
until 2:30, so we will have no more interruptions fora time.

Mr. Arthur Schiff, if you would go right ahead.

STATEMENT OF ARTHUR SCHIFF, ASSISTANT ADMINISTRATOR,
HUMAN RESOURCES ADMINISTRATION, NEW YORK CITY

Mr. Scuirr. Yes, sir.

Senator Percy. Weare delighted to have you here.

Mr. Scurrr. You have a copy of my statement in front of you, I
believe.

Senator Percy. Yes.

Mr. Scuirr. The fact that in excess of $400 million in food stamp
funds will be left unspent by USDA at the end of fiscal year 1972 is
indicative of their failure to reasonably anticipate the expenditure
rate of the [Eogmm. A shortcoming which is either a planning failure,
which Mr. Kramer has commented on, or a darker, more suspicious
(flecision to deliberately starve the Food Stamzp Program of adequate

unds.

USDA could have done any combination of three things with the
leftover money :

1. Reduced the cost of food stamps to all participants;

2. Increased the food stamp allotments sufficiently to buy a nu-
tritionally adequate diet; and,

3. Rrouoht more neonle into the Food Stamn Prooram.

Instead, they chose a fourth course: One in which people pay more
for the:r food stamps: fail to achieve a nutritional diet with stamps
and will probably withdraw from the program entirely because o
complicated changes in the regulations.

Last April 1971 USDA published proposed regulations for the Food
Stamp Program which were sharply attacked by Members of Con-
gress, the lunger lobby, and program administrators like myself.

In July 1971, when the final regulations were announced with only a
few important changes, a storm of protest began to arise throughout
the country.

In January 1972 the just-confirmed Secretary Butz, succumbed to
the intense pressure of a coalition—Congressmen, welfare clients,
other low-income peonle. Governors, many of them Republican, and
bureaucrats, like myself—and rescinded the regulations which prom-
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ised to hurt so many people by increasing the cost’ of food stamps
beyond reason.

I would like also to submit into the record* at some point today the
statement by Secretary Butz in which he promised that no partici-
{mr}ts in the food program would lose benefits as a result of new regu-
atlons.

This was the press release of January 1972, when he announced
the decision of instituting the new tables.

It appeared we had won a significant battle.

It now appears weare about to lose the war.

USDA, throngh the interpretation of new regulations and the issu-
ance of new food stamp tables, is now accomplishing in a piecemeal
fashion what they conld not do—because of public outery—in one fell
swoop earlier this year.

Let me dociunent my statement.

First, USDA is passing along the cost of increased food stamp
allotments to the consumer, neatly imitating the retail food industry.

Mandated by law, USDA increased the food stamp allotment to
reflect higher food costs. This goes in effect as of July 1.

For the four-person family, the allotment went from $108 to $112
a month. For the welfare family in New York City, this increase in
the allotment of 4 percent was exceeded by the 5-percent increase in
the purchase price of stamps—the cost of stamps went from $78 to
$82 a month.

As yon can see from the following table and chart, with the excep-
tion of honsehold sizes 1 and 3. all families on welfare in New York
City will pay a greater percentage increase in the cost of stamps than
they will receive in stamp allotments.

® See Appendix, p. 705.

PERCENT INCREASE IN PURCHASE PRICE AND FOOD STAMP COUPON VALUE, FROM MAY TO JULY 1972 FOR PUBLIC
ASSISTANCE RECIPIENTS, NEW YORK CITY

Purchase Coupon
price value
Household size:

l...... eeee e eeane ecceccetaaecctaccatactenceans s eeseccceececactan snn None 13
e et ee et e e e m e e e e e e e e o et oo ot 10 7
3. None S
A 5 4
T AN 4 3
6. 4 3
R 7 H
. S S 10 1
ettt e e e e e e e oo 9 6
10 e e e e e e e e e 9 6
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You can see that this increase beyond the allotment levels goes all
the way up to 10 percent, as compared to the increase in the coupon
value of the stamps of 7 percent. They have, in fact, passed along any
potential costs in the program to the consumer.

Welfare clients have received no additional funds-in their grant
to pay the increased cost.

Fewer, not more, welfare clients will participate in the program.

USDA has not increased the bonus in increasing the allotment.

Rut any potential increase in GSDA cost causeg by the increased
allotment is more than passed along to the beleagured Food Stamp
Program participant.

As I said, with the exception of one- and three-person households,
public assistance recipients now pay more for their stamps. You can
see from the following table and chart nearly 38 pecent of the non-
public-assistance users will pay more; ranging from a high of 81.7
percent of the nine-person houscholds, to more than a 25 percent of the
three-person houscholds. As the average indicates, nearly 50 percent
of the four-person households pay more since the new regulations.

Percent of nonpublic assistance houscholds paying morc for food stamps as of
July 1. 1972

Percent pay- Percent peoy.
ing more for ing more for
Household size: Jood atamps Household size—Cont. food atamps
1 87 8 - 74.6
2 34.5 9 81.7
8 ceme 28.6 10 w—ne 0.8
4 __. e 48.9 11 and up 78.0
5 50 —
] 50.2 Total all families......_... 37.8
7 81.6
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And this will be the second increase in 60 days. On Mav 1, 1972, just
last month, the food stamp purchase cost was rised for all mublic
assistance recinients and nearly all nonpublic assistance participants.
The tables T refer to taday go into effect on July 1, 1972,

In January, when Secretary Butz rescinded his proposed regula-
tions. he_promised that no one in the Food Stamp Program would
be hurt. He has not kept that pledge: and. based an our foeent experi-
ence. it is impossible to predict what outrage USDA will impose an
hungry Americans next.

Urnax “Urrrr-IncoMr” Poor Horr

T hone T have made that clear, Senstor. that what we face in New
York is a_preater percentage increase in the cost of stamps than we
are receiving in the total coupon allotments for ahnost all the house-
holds in New York City. I daresay, that for the higher-income poor
throughout the Nation. the same is true.

USDA continues to defend their actions with statements implying
that additional assistance to the lower-income poor, mostly located in
the south and southwest regions of the country, balances the effect of
the damage done to the upper-income poor in the urban States.

This is a battle we fought enrlier this vear which caused such an
outery by’ a good many Republican governors. among others. that the
Secretary of Agricultnre was forced to rescind the entire set of pro-
posed regulntions.

You will reeall the testimony that this committee took last April
on those regulations, which caused such au outerv. At that time,
Senator, we were very much concerned with the whole issue of the
coupon allotment schedule, because there were twae ways in shich food
stamp clients really get hurt.

First, they pay too much for stamps. as Mr. Kramer indicated—
upwards of 28-29 percent of their net incomes: and second, they are
not getting enough stampsto purchase nutritional diets.

New York City. along with individual plaintiffs. the Common-
wenlth of Pennsylvania. and the National Welfare Rights Organiza-
tion, recently instituted a lnwsuit to require USDA to live up to its
congressional mandate of providing through food stamps “a nutri-
tionally adequate dict.”

This was a matter of great concern and discussion during the food
stamp dcbates in Congress last year. Congress finally came out saying
that they must be able to purchase nutritional adequacy with foog
stamp allotments.

USDA’'s EcoxoMy DiEr Pranx DEFICIENT

This suit. joining the city as it did with another State and NWRO,
is unprecedented. But it seems the only way of making USDA act in
? liuvful manner. A hearing on the suit will be held in June or early
July.

“’;e have established the following through pretrial depositions, and
statements made by the USDA : The Economy Diet Pllan. on which
USDA bases its food stamp allotments, is deficient in four nutrients
as delineated by the National Academy of Sciences as part of its recom-
mended dictary allowances to insure nutritional adequacy. They are
vitamins B-6, B-12, folic acid, and magnesium.
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Therefore, it is incontestable that the Economy Diet Plan is not
nutritionally adequate.

Second. the Economy Diet Plan is recommended only for moderately
active people. not for adults engaged in hand-working labor nor for
youngsters who exercise frequentiy.

Third, according to a survey done by the USDA. less than 10 per-
cent of the households, spending at the level of the Economy Diet Plan,
are able to obtain the recommended dietary allowances. Less than 50
percent of those spending at that level obtained only two-thirds of
the recommended dietary allowances.

Fourth, by agreement, the Economy Diet Plan is recommended for
temporary use. not prolonged use, by low-income families in especially
difficult situations.

Fifth. USDA recommends that more money be spent on food than
the Economy Diet Plan calls for. The exact statement made by USDA
in one of their publications. which is in the record of the deposition of
Dr. Robert Rizek, of the Department of Agriculture. is to this effect.

“Studies show that few families spending at the level of the economy
plan select foods that provide nutritionally adequate diets. The cost
of this plan is not a reasonable measure of basic money needs for a good
diet. T'he public assistance agencies, that recognize the limitations of
its clientele and is interested in their nutritional well being will rec-
ommend a money allowance for food considerably higher than the cost
of the Economy Diet Plan.

“Many welfare agencies base their food costs on the TSDA food
plan, swhich costs about 25 percent more than the Economy Diet Plan.”

Thet would generally be considered a low-cost diet plan. So, USDA
admits, itself, that it requires more money than the Economy Diet
Plan calls for to get real nutritional adequacy.

Sixth, USDA cannot specify, at this time, what the exact cost
is of providing nutritional adequacy—which would include, of course,
the four nutrients missing from the Economy Diet Plan,

Now, we get to an area which is a little complicated, and I will try
to discuss it as simply as possible. The cost of the Economy Diet Plan.
which—as USDA sets out for the Nation—now will be $112 on July 1,
is based on a hypothetical family. It consists of a mother, a father,
ages 20 to 35, a son, age 9 to 12, and a child age 6 to 9. Costs for dif-
ferent family configurations are considerably higher.

‘What USDA has done, very simply, is to generalize from its hypo-
thetical family to the entire Nation for the 4-person household. Then
say that family represents the Economy Diet Plan, 2nd the allocated
moneys based on it should be based on this model.

The reason it is complicated is that the USDA, as you probably
know, publishes data showing the cost of achieving the low-cost diet
for all kinas of different sex and age breakdowns—older children,
younger children, 4-person households with three teenaged sons—and
ghese are much more costly than hypothetical 4-person household calls

or.

Younger mothers eat more than older mothers, younger children eat
more than older children. They have set this out in detail, and they
he.ve agreed and acknowledged that the dietary requirements for dif-
ferent configurations of families—let us say a not untypical welfare
family in Ncgaw York, might be 2 mother and three teenaged children,
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or two teenaged children, plus one infant child—they agreed that it
cost more to feed this household than it does to feed this 4-person
family which they also represent as hypothetical.

Seventh, the allotment. schedule then is based on national average
¢osts for purchasing the Economy Diet Plan for that 4-person family.
They agree that costs in the Northeast, and especially in New York
City, are higher than the national average.

- Expenses Hicaer 1x NEw York City

By their own figures, New York City is 6.5 percent higher than the
national average. Our figures, done in New York City—by the volun-
tary agencies, which do purchasing for consumer expenditures—show
it to be about 12 percent higher than the national average.

New York City clients and other urban areas’ clients are hurt two
ways:

? 1. they are not the hypothetical family, but they are restrained

by the costs for the hypothetical family.
2. they do not live in the national average center of the United

States, they live either above or below it.

Consequently, they are unable to purchase the Economy Diet Plan,
either because it is madequate for their particular kind of family, or
the money is not adequate for the cost of the area in which they live.

On the basis of those facts, and our understanding of the law which
calls for nutritional adequacy, we are gowg to court. Senator Miller
of Towa said, in discussing the conference report of the House-Senate
conferees on the Food Stamp Act of 1971, that it was his understand-
ing the USDA must provide the cost of a nutritionally adequate diet,
whatever that may be.

That is in the record and I can submit it for the record here. We
believe him. We think the courts will believe him. And we think the
suit has an outstanding chance of succeeding. What it will make USDA
do, if it is successful, is simply to obey the law. Obey the figures pro-
vided by the Bureau of Labor Statistics, which they must, to obey the
economy dietary plan; or the low-cost diet plan requirements, and
provide nutritional adequacy.

We understand that nutritional adequacy remains a matter of dif-
ference and controversy among different people and groups. Never-
theless, it is not at all rational to say that one figure for one type of
family represents all families in all parts of the Nation.

It simply does not. I know for a f‘z)lct, that the cost of food in New
York City 1s high. I live in the city, and it is impossible to feed a fam-
ily adequately on the $112 a month provided by the USDA. That is
not nutritional adequacy.

Last, I want to give you a glimpse into the future of yet another
battle that we face with USDA in New York.

As yon may recall from testimony last year, I said that welfare
clients in New York State get an allowance for food. clothing and irci-
dental expenses, and a separate allowance for rent. This rentzl allow-
ance equals the exact amount of the rent, while the food and clothing
expenses are based on family size.

Thus. one 4-person family may get a grant of $358 a month, while
another family gets a grant of $308 a month. Of these amounts, cach
has only $208 a month to spend on nonrent items. One pays rent of
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$100 and the other pays rent of $150. Both have only $208 to spend
for all their other needs.

Rext Status CrEaTEs PryaLTy

On January 1, 1973, USDA will implement on ‘he third part of their
action program. They insist that the family which pays the higher
rent has more money to spend on food and will be charged more for

food stamps. The truth is that both have the same exact amount of .

money for food. The difference in the grants goes directly to the
landlord.

The idea of peralizing welfare clients who pay higher rents—and,
therefore, get higher grants—by making them pay more for food
stamps is simply outrageous. .

From September 1970 through today, the GUSDA hasagreed with our
position—that it is insane to make people pay more for food stamps
simely because they pay more for rent. However, in 6 months, insanity
will prevail unless something is done, and the program in New York
State will be irreparably damaged.

That is, we will have instances, where more than 50 percent of the
welfare clients in New York will be paying more for food stamps—
based solely on their rent.

It is probably closer to two-thirds of the public assistance house-
holds using food stamps that will be penalized because they pay the
exorbitant rents demanded by landlords in New York City—in a city
with a vacancy rate under 1 percent.

There will be no way to explain to welfare clients that because they
pay more rent, they will have to pay more for food. There would be
no way we could explain it to ourselves. either.

Turge the Senator and this committee to carefully reconsider some of
these regulations; they are depriving poor people of nutritional
adequac{.

It really gets down to facing people, in the cities and in the rural
areas of this Nation, and telling them the Food Stamp Program creates
a good many problems. It creates complexities which we cannot solve
as administrators. It created a program which is so niggardly—the
way 1t is administered, and which just continues to harass people and
push at them—that they finally find it useless to participate.

Now, in New York City with a program which costs $1 million to
administer; which pays $80 a transaction to the banks, we are averag-
u;gf bonuses of $8 a month a person. That amounts to $30 for a famiFy
of four.

I said last year, it is costing us 10, 15, to 20 percent to get that $30
out. The banks are becoming if not rich, at least not discontent, But the
people are getting very little for all the time and effort they have to
put in—not to mention the time and effort of the city government
which has to administer the program, and the great cost to the State

overnment which has to pay the cost of the freight in New York City,
in New York State.

X urge you to act and act with compassion on this problem. Thank
you.

Senator Percy. Mr. Schiff, could you explain for the committee
what 1t will mean to New York City if all welfare grantees must have
their food stamp benefits individually determined ¢
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“AN ADMINISTRATIVE CATASTROPHE”

Mr. Scurrr. Well, it will be an administrative catastrophe. It will
mean that. in addition to deciding on the grants for public assistance,
i'; sepf:'lmte calculation will have to be made to arrive at the food stamp

eneft.,

According to USDA, most of the items that are considered for non-
public assistance people, the regular low-income poor, will have to be
considered in calculating the PA purchase requirement for the welfare
family. Administratively, it means oing through a caseload of, in
NewlYork City, in excess of 500,00[67 cases, representing 1.2 million
people,

us we must go through a caseload of 500.000 cases; compute a
budget ; then a food stamp requirement for each one, and then make
them pay more—in most instances—because most of our clients will not
have other sources of income. As you know, Senator, because of rent
control Jaws in New York, it is quite possible in a single building to
pay much more rent because of the number of tenant turnovers, It
means telling one of them you have to pay more for food stamps be-
cause of the rental situation.

Senator Percy. When you say it would be a catastrophe, is your ex-
perience likely to be any different from other major areas in this re-
gard where the same situation might exist ?

Would that same situation exist in other areas?

Mr. Scmrrr. New York City tends to be a little different than other
urban areas. USDA in 1970, when we were negotiating with the Food
Stamp Program coming to the city, agreed with us that pandemonium
would be the result of implementing the program along the procedures
that T have just suggested they are requiring us to do. They agreed
with us in September 1970, they agreed a year later. they agreed with
us as recently as 2 or 3 months ago when we were implementing the
May 1 regulation changes.

Now they have decided that presituation budgeting, as they call it,
is a requirement. They know the problems it will cause because they
have agreed with us that we don’t have to do it for over 2 years.

Now, I can only conclude, from their insistence that they know it
will result in administrative difficulties on the one hand. but even more
importantly, it will result in decreased participation, because of the
fact that two-thirds of the households will be paying more for food
stamps. Every time the price of food stamps goes up, people drop out
of the program. They just don’t have the money to pay for the in-
crease. So with smaller bonuses. increased purchase prices. this equals
less participation. That. they know, will be the result of doing this
presituation budgeting in New York.

I should say that in most States in the Union, rent is figured on a
flat basis for welfare households. That is, you get a flat rate for rent
based on your family size. So that it is easy to calculate what the cost
would be for all families. All four-person families would pay the
same amount of money. If they need more money for rent, they would
have to get the difference from the food money.

New York continues, because of the tight housing market, to give
the client the exact amount of money he needs for rent. So every client
pays different, every four-person household pays different. That is why
we haven't given a flat grant in the past, and why we haven’t been
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forced to. Senator Javits was furious, about 6 months ago. when he
thought the flat grant was going to be implemented in New York.
They said we didn’t have to go it then. and now they are asking us to
do 1%) on January 1, 1973, knowing full well that it will hurt us
terribly.

Senator Percy. Can you tell usin just a few words whether it would
be possible to estimate the difference in cost to the program if food
stamps continue to be available in New York at a flat rate?

Mr. Scuirr, You mean what I consider the reduced cost to the Fed-
eral Government would be if we have to budget for each client?

Senator Percy. Yes.

Estivates A 50-PercexT DroroUT

Mr. Scurrr. I estimated, a year ago, that 50 percent of the affected
households will drop out of the program in New York City. I have no
way of telling you empirically if that is right. I noticed that Senator
McGovern asked Mr. Liyng about a year ago, when those figures first
came out, if he thought they were correct. He said he didn’t know on
what I had based my figures, but that he had no figures to present to
the contrary. So, we don’t know for sure, but we do know it would
result in a net savingsto the Federal Government.

Senator Prroy. Mr. Kramer, as a last question to you, how long has
it been apparent to you that there might be a surplus of the funds avail-
able to the Food Stamp Program?

Mr. Kraser. I think the hunger lobby, as such, recognized this just
by projecting the monthly figures. Starting last March. the program
had a stasis period of about 8 or 9 months in which it didn’t vary
very much in participation or expenditures. Thus. we were pretty cer-
tain that this was going to be a shortfall of $300.or $400 million.

¢ Senator Prrcy. When you say “last March,” do you mean this
March?

s Mr. Krayrr. March of 1971. There was an 8-month period through

. September when the program didn’t move at all. That was why last

¥ January, when there was talk of withholding of $200 million—I don’t

know if you remember that—1I was a little bit troubled by talk of $200
million withholding since it was clear they weren’t going ’o spend $t
to $5 million. They weren’t withholding anything, they just weren’t
spending.

Senator Prrcy. Do you feel the Department reasonably was aware
of these trends?

Mr. KraMer. Yes, I think they were. They would testify they were.
It is bureaucratic caution. that statute overriding Office of Manage-
ment and Budget overriding, yes, very clearly. Obviously if they had
come here and told you this in April you would have had time to act.
They have you now with your back against the door.

Senator Prrcy. I appreciate very much your being here. You have
pointed out some critical areas here. and that is why yon were invited,
of course, to point out how we can improve the programs in the future,
and how we can learn from some mistakes of the past.

Senator McGovern has been quite gracions in some of the comments
he has made about the progress that has been made in the Congress
and executive branch in the last 3 years. The figure has been given
that we have increased food expenditures 9 to 10 times.

PR L S

RIS

P

AR A R ® i o Ee o werh RAA

§
{
3
t
1
J
H
H




642

Would you feel that, though there are areas for improvement, that
increase is an indication that progress has been made and that we are
on the right track? . .

Mr. Scurrr. The program is very popular in New York City. More
than three-fourths of a million {:eo le use food stamps every month.
I consider it more a testimony to hig prices ihan I do to the efficacy of
the Food Stamp Program effort. It is a helpful program, and we are
pleased to have it in the city, but it isa constant source of anguish that
we have to keep fighting to maintain it at its present level. That is the
aggravating fight. We are not talking about expansion, but holding
the line.

Mr. KraMer. My answer, just referring to the people problems, 4
years ago, as you well know, when the poor people’s campaign started
this, it didn’t strike any bells in the countryside at all. Very few peo-
ple, almost no one, was getting food stamps. Quite a few were getting
commodities but nowhere near this number. . )

Now when the program starts to tighten up; when things do not im-
prove; when, as in New York from a people’s point of view, 500,000
families may in fact lose; it looks like we are getting worse. Clearly, in
the macroeconomic sense, or the big numbers, there is a ninefold in-
crease. I think, when you are talking about hurting 500,000 families;
You have to balance that off against the kind of outrage and anger in
the countryside that will occur as these regulations bite deeper and
deeper into what people have had in the past.

Senator Percy. Thank you both, very much, for being with us.

I would like to call Dorothy Cain, program trainee and food stamp
recipient, and Dr. Richard Byerly.

STATEMENT OF DR. RICHARD BYERLY, MANPOWER PLANNING
COUNCIL, DES MOINES

Senator Percy. Dr. Byerly, I think you will be leading off, will you?

Dr. Byeruy. Fine.

Senator Peroy. We are pleased to have both of you here.

Dr. Byervy. Senator, Fwant to thank you on behalf of the Des
Moines Area Manpower Planning Council.

This council, as you know, was formerly called the Camps Commit-
ge, be.il’ore the regulation IC~72-1 changed our name to the MAPS

ouncil.

This council is comprised of labor, education, business, management,
and client groups. It was formed to coordinate the manpower pro-
grams that we have in our Des Moines area. ‘
. We have an active MAPS Council that serves an eight-county area
In south central Iowa. One year ago we started to expand some of our
functions, since so many issues were coming in to us that were of a
legislative nature.

At that time we founded and formed what we call a legislative, ad
hoc committee. I serve on that committee.

I also serve on the Manpower Council as a representative from the
Des Moines Area Community College.

About 3 months ago, a problem came to us that, frankly, stumped
us for awhile. That was the problem where a number of WIN clients
that were complaining about the fact that the new food stamp regula-
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tion was imposing a hardship on them and thus reducing the incen-
tive for them to continue with their education.

Through our Manpower Council, and then channeled into the leg-
islative ad hoe group. we have begun to explore the problem.

1 would like to commend particularly the diligent worlk of Mr. Mike
ITogan. of the City Manpower's Otlice, who is also a member of that
legislative ad hoc committee. Tfe researched and helped ns to dvaft
the docurent which we would like to submit to you to be included in
the record.* N

The members of that committee and the people who helped us work
on this particular problem were Mr. Clark Rasmussen. of Senator
ITughes” stafl'; Mr. Don Rowan, who is with the AFL-CIO South Cen-
tral Federation of Labor; Mr. Mike Hogan, whom I have mentioned
previously; myself; and also many other people that we have called
i to work on particular parts of the report that we put together and
matled to our Congressmen and Senators.

USD.A Regrrations Crirre INCENTIVE

Our concern, to sum it up very quickly for you—as a manpower
council, and my primary concern as a community college administra-
tor—is focused on the faci that by imposing the regulations given to
us by the USDA on Thursday, July 29, 1971, in Section 271.3'i, what
we have in effect done by placing these educational benefits as income
for those pecple and thus reducing the amount of food stamnps they
are eligible for, is we have severely and very, very critically impeded
the incentive for those people to continue with their educational
programs.

Let me reiterate that this regulation has done tremendous damage to
those individuals who feel education is one route to remove themselves
from the welfare rolls permanently.

Polk County in Towa was the first to implement the regulation, and
that is why I feel that we were probably the first to see the effects of
it in Towa.

The other outlying areas of the State will be implementing this very
soon, and I am sure they are going through the same thing now.

I do not want to belabor the point, but I do want to mention that we
found from the report the following things:

1. That the new regulations have removed the incentive from
many manpower recipients, not only WIN clients, but also many
other manpower recipients in our area who are also on food
stamps, to get the necessary training that will permanently re-
move them from the welfare rolls.

2. That the new food stamp regulations have implications far
removed from just the WIN program, and would influence many
other programs in manpower that we deal with in the Des Moines
area.

3. That the implementation of the new program actually costs
more to implement, and we are actually serving fewer clients
with a longer waiting period.

4. By removing the incentive for these manpower clients, we
will be losing tax revenues in the future.

*See Appendix, p. 706.
76-300—72—pt. 3B-—3
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Again, on behalf of the Manpower Committee, I want to thank you
for the opportunity to speak to you, and I, as a community college
administrator in what I consider the most vital educational movement
in the country, seek your assistance in correcting this inequity which
now exists.

Telp us to keep in school those individuals that we have worked so
hard to serve. Thank you.

Senator Percy. Thank vou, very much, indeed. I think we will go
right into your testimony Mrs. Cain and later question both of you.

STATEMENT OF MRS. DOROTHY CAIN, TRAINEE AND FOOD
STAMP RECIPIENT, DES MOINES, IOWA

Mrs. Carx, Senator Percy, I want to thank you for the opportunity
to appear before this committee.

T am a student and a recipient of aid to dependent children,

For the present at least, I am also a participant in the Food Stamp
Program.

When I began working in January 1970, I found I was unable to
fully support myself and my two children, and I applied for, and first
received, food stamps, at that time.

In September of 1970, I was given an opportunity to join the work
incentive program, which is operated by the Polk County Department
gf Social Services, and the local Employment Security Offices in Des
Moines.

For me the WIN program meant an opportunity to improve my
chances to become fully self-supporting by completing my education.
For myself and my children, WIN meant the difference between years
of pertial dependence on welfare or total self-sufficiency. I wanted
to take that chance.

At that time, my income was increased by the amount of the work
incentive payment and totaled about $273 a month.

Food stamps then cost $30; and, for that amount I received $84
worth of food stamps.

Pays $34 More MoNTHLY

That was my situation until March of 1972. Then the new regula-
tions went into effect. I still have the same amount of income available
to meet my expenses, but now I must pay $64 for $88 worth of food
stamps.

Thri)it has happened because the expenses I have for getting to school
and staying there are now counted in my income. That means my
tuition that’s paid directly to the school, the book fees that are paid
directly to the school, my child care, which is paid directly to the

babysitter, are counted as my actual income. i
Once again, Senator, just as in September of 1970, I have a choice—

only this time the choice is more difficult. Now I must choose between
feeding my children or staying in school. Of course, there is no ques-
tion in my mind which choice I must make. )

Senator Percy. Could you comment on whether or not your situa-
tion is unusual? Is this an unusual case? Are there others that you
know of that are in the samesituation ¢
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Mrs. Carx. I cannot give you an exact number of the people in Towa
that this has affected. but I will get that for you* I know that every
WIN participant is affected the same way:.

Dr. Byervy. Senator, may I mention, we have on our main campus
area 80 to 85 WIN enrollees presently involved in educational pro-
grams. We had around 100 that were on programs last fall.

We also have a downtown center in Des Moines where we provided
many other types of educational services and serve about 100 to 125
WIN enrollees there each year.

0, in terms of numbers, there are many in a very similar state to
what this young lady is.

Senator Prncy. You are faced, then, with a dilemma and a decision
as to whether you have to choose between education and training or
feeding your children.

Mrs. CaiN. That is right.

Senator Prrcy. It is »~»lly, as you say, a total disincentive to accom-
Elish the purpose of the program, which is the only hope for you to

ecome self-sufficient and to support yourself and your children.

Murs. Carx. It seems like we are being punished for trying to get off
the welfare rolls.

If I stayed at home, raised my children, and did not try to go to work
or did not try to get any training, I would have to pay $27 a month for
the snine amount of food stamps. It seems like the incentive is working
in reverse.

Senator Peroy. It isa disincentive, then.

“A DounLe-Epcep Swonn”

Mrs. Can. Yes. The children are the ones who are losing under the
WIN program.

If I quit school and stay home, they will be condemned to a life of
poverty on the welfare rolls. If I continue to go to school, they will be
without the nutritional needs that food stamnps have provided for them
in the past. It isa double-edged sword.

Senator Percy. You have how many children?

Mrs. Carx. Thave two preschool children, ages 5 and 215,

Senator Percy. What is it you are training fo become?

Mrs. Caiv. I plan to teach English in secondary schools.

Senator Percy. And how much longer do you have to go in that
program ?

Mrs. Caix. I am just starting as a junior, so I have 2 more years to
complete. :

Senator Percy. You have a 2-year program ahead of you?

Mrs, Cain. Yes, I do.

Senator Percy. And if you can complete that program, what as-
surance then do you have that you will be able to get a teaching job
and what salary would you potentially be able to earn?

Mrs. Carx. WIN does try to help with placement. The sta rting salary
in Jowa for teachers is $7,300.

That would mean tripiing my present income. It would mean that
I would no longer be eligible for ADC.

*See Appendix, p, 711.
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Senator Percy. With the number of exemptions you have, your
problem would be how much income tax you would be paying on é7,300.

Wonldn't it appear as though, in your case, it is .{))solutely certain
that the investment of 2 years in this program to keep you in this pro-
gram, would be very modest indeed, and the return on investment for
the U.S. )Govemment, would be very high for a potential lifetime of
cainings?

Mls.g Carx. That is true. One of the other women who is on the work
incentive program, Susan Bickford, has drawn up a chart, showing
exactly how much she will pay in taxes if she finishes SCIlOOi, and the
difference between how much the Federal Government will have ¢2
pay her until her children reach the age of 18.

Senator Prrcy. Dr. Byerly, your perspective is one that does not
always get heard on the question of food stamps.

Is it fair to say that these regulations that you have been discussing
are, in yonr judgment, bad business?

Dr. Byeeny. The very case that she mentions is in the report we
snbmitted. And we have also tried to project other things we felt were
important in terms of cost reimbursement—pay back to the Govern-
ment—and in terms of tax revennes later on.

It was the consensus of opinion of our entire groap that this was
one problem which was going to actually add more to our national
deficit, by not amending these regulations.

Students ave definitely going to be impeded by this. It is a bad busi-
ness venture.

Senator Perey. Speaking as an educater, now, how do you feel
about this regulation?

Dr. Byeruy. I know of the involvement that you have had in
linois, because I know some of the community college people at
Malcolm X. T know that you had an intern in your office last year
and I know you are acquamted with many of the programs that are
eoing on throughout the community college movement.

We feel, without n doubt, that this is one conduit, one cheap edu-
cational conduit, which people have to get off of the welfare rolls. And
we us community colleges, are serving a tremendous number of low-
income students across the country.

So. we feel, without a doubt, that from an edueational standpoint
we hiu'e to rectify this sitnation in order for us to better serve these

eople.
: S!mmtor Prxcy. Do you have any feelings at all if Congress ever in-
tendgd that working people and trainees be actually penalized in this
way ?

Not IxTENT OF CoONGRESS

Dr. Byeery. T am certain they did not, after reading the Congres-
sional Record on these issues. I frankly do not think that the langnage
reflected this at all. '

I think this is merely a matter of oversight on some people’s part,
and I know, for example, the State people who regulate this program
are extremely concerned. But they feel it is their job to conduct the
mandate given to them by their superiors.

So, it has forced everyone into a rather unfortunate dilemma.

Senator Percy. I have always felt that some of the problems of gov-
ernment are inconsistency of policy. It is difficult to get consistency.
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I know in the case of tobacco that is probably the best example—
one department pays out funds to stoch it and store it and then an-
other department tells you not to smoke it because of injurious health,

And we try to help people abroad improve their health standards
and then we spend money advertising American tobaceo abroad to get
rid of the surplus. ’

You could not have anything mors confusing than that.

‘There seems to be o universal belief now that we ought to junk our
resent welfare programs. They are not working, We ought to bite the
ullet and spend the moneys necessary now, which admittedly are

more to begin with, to invest in programs that will help people help
themselves,

And certainly we could not have a finer example than we have
here. And as I understand it, you do not think You are untypical;
your experiences are possibly typical of many kinds of experiences
that people are now having.

But the whole idea of welfare reforms is that, in principle, we want
the opportunity available to people to work, and ne dismeentives to
going to work. Yet today, in the implementation of these regulations.
vou are testifying that we are doing exactly the opposite of what the

>resident and the Congress have set about to do. ‘knd here are pro-
grams in being which are actually working in reverse to anticipations.

I thank you, very much, for being here. I appreciate your testimony
very much indeed.

Senator lughes would have liked very much to have been here to
have introduced you; but regretfully, he is tied np in his committees
elsewhere,

We will sce that the record is kept open so that hie may insert what-
ever comments he might wish to make along with your own testimony.

(The statement follows.)

PREPARED STATEMENT FOR THE RECORD BY SENATOR IIAnoLd E. llvcies
(D.~lowa)

I wish to commend the Select Committee on Nutrition and Human Needs for
conducting these oversight hearings on the operations of the Food Stamp Pro-
wram, and I am pleased to have the opportunity to submit for the record a state-
ment in support of the position so ably presented by Dorothy Cafu of Norwalk,
Iwa, with regard to the effect the new food stawp regulations have had on
WIN recipients. While I shati confine my remarks to the participants fu the WIN
pragram in Iowa, I am aware of tie deleterious effects of the new regulations on
other food stamp recipients as well. The regulations seem to be well designed to
return money to the U.S. Lreasury while doing nothing to add to the nutritional
well-being of our poor.

Earlier this ycar I begun to recelve letters from “WIN mothers.” as most of
them ealled themselves, pleading for help heenuse they were faced with o rise in
thelir eost for food stamps even though their actual income had not been in.
creased, It.soon became evident that the culprit was the food stamp regulations
prommlgated by the Department of Agriculture and scheduled to take effect in
March of this year,

I'he new regulations required. among other things, that the benefits of the WIN
program—school costs, baby-sitting expenses, training allowances, ete.—were to
be commted as income, even though they represented not one peuny of actual addi.
tionai money to the recipient, The eash fncentive was usnally barely enough to
cover the extra costs involved by virtue of being in school or in training. The
result waos that beenuse of the way food stamp allotients are calenlates. ench
of the recipients found herself in a higher income bracket and thus foreed to pay
more for her food stamps. The sums involved would not be considered critical
for most of us, but for those who are living at or below the poverty line and have
young children to feed, each dollar becomes vitally important.




648

11 xeemed ineredible to me that the Department of Agriculture should, through
reguliation. and not by the direction of Congress, take action that conld destroy
the effectiveness of the WIN program—a program specifically desizned to help
thase with initiative to get out of the welfare eyele and become self-supporting,
tux-paying ecitizens.

I therefore wrote Seerotary Intz on March 10, 1972, urging him to amend the
regulations. omitting the new income computation requirements. The reply 1
received from the DPepartutent of Agriculture maintained that such a change
would not he fair to those not participatinzg in WIN programs, Such a policy
means that an ADC mother who does not make the extra cflort it takes to get
off welfare is better off in terms of the food she can buy for her family than the
mother who miakes the considerable saerifices involved in becoming a self-
respecting member of our society. Such a palicy {s sclf-defeating and economne
feally unsound.

Because of my strong feelings on the matter, I called the attention of the
Senate to the problem in a statement on the Senate floor on April 11 of this
vear, and I ask that that statement be included at this point in the record of
these hearings.

TENT OF HUGHES' MESSAGE TO THE SENATE, AI'RIL 11, 1972

Before long the Scnate will be considering legislation which is intended to
reform our present hodge-pedge, inequitable, and inadequate welfare system.
One of the nims of the reform §s to cstablish a means whereby more people can
set out of the welfare cycle into the productive wage-enrning mainstream of
society. President Nixon has stressed this aspect of his proposal over and over
again’ whenever the troublesome problems involved with welfare have been
raised. And If we can succeed in enacting such a program, the benefits will be
felt by every man, woman, and child in our country.

1 subuiit. however, that such o program is doomed to fajlure if governmental
agencies work at cross purposes—if one department helps while another denies.
Yot this is exactly the simmation that has arisen with respect to the work incen.
tive program and the food stamp program as they operate in Iowa,

Town has developed a work incentive program of which it is justifiably proud.
Its success rate is 51%—the highest in the nation. It presently cnrolls over
1,300 participants—persons who now sce some hope for the future for them-
selves and their dependents. .

But as a result of food stamp regulations which went into effect on March 1,
1972, most of these participants now sce their hopes and dreams falling by the
wayside, The new regulations require that payments recefved from government-
spousored programs such as the Work Incentive Programn must he counted as
income in the computation of food stamps, and the result is that they must
pay maore for thefr food stainps than previously.

The old regulation stated:

“The amount of jncentive payments and training allowances made to en-
rohiees under the second priority of the Work Incentive Program, i.c., enrollees
fn Institutional or work-experience training, shall be disregarded to determine
eligibility and the basis of coupon jssuance under the Food Stamp Program.”

The new regulntions which are being protested state that in defining incmne,
the following must be considered ;

“Payments reccived from government.sponsored programs such as Agricul-
fural Stabilization and Conservation Service programs, the Work Incentive Pro-
gram, or Manpower ‘I'raining Program.”

On March 10, 1972, I wrote to Secretary of Agrienlture Butz urging an immedi-
ate revision of the new regulations. Some 19 days later—almost three weeks—I
recelved a reply, not fromm Sceretary Butz, Imt from his assistant, Mr. Lyng,
contending that a disregard of WIN benefits would he unfair to participants
in the Foold Stamp Program who are not participating in the WIN program.

The Department of Agricnlture seems to be working nnder the theory that
work incentive allowances and payments amonnt to real income. The fact is
that they wonld not be made unless one was enrolled in the WIN program and
they are designed specifically to take care of necessary expenses incurred hecause
of such enrcllment. The actual “incentive’ bonus amounts to about $6 a week.
and most of this is also being used to defray necessary expenses and not for any
extra or luxury items.
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A letter I have received from the Polk County Departinent of Social Servieces
states s “ADC grants which are barely sufficient to cover the costs of basle needs
at home cannot pay transportation costs and daily personal expenses at school
or on work experience sites. With the above-mentioned WIN payments con-
sldered as income, the WIN enrollee loses more than he gains. Thus his plan
for becoming employable and hence self-supporting is thwarted.”

‘Fhe truth of the above statement is borne out over and over again in the letters
I have received from the WIN participants themselves, They have told ihe of the
hlgh hopes they had when they enrolled in the progran, of how they had reg:ined
pride aml selferespeet, of how cagerly they were looking forward to the tiine when
they wonld noe longer he welfare recipients, And they have told me how. with one
stroke of the pen. the Departinent of Agrieulture hag dashed those hopes by tell-
inz them that the one very hasic need of us all—foad—would no longer be avail-
able as before, Beeause of this, many have told me that they fear they will have
to drop out of the program because thiey will not deny foad to thelr dependents,

The Department of Agriculture’s new regulations conld easily wreek the Work
Incentive I'rogram in Towa, Moreover, they represent to my mind a direcet denial
of the Adninistration’s professed commitinent to helping people get off the wel-
fare rolls. Rimple aritlanetic will show the Department what is happening as
a result of the new regulations, And a simple revision can correet the lepart-
l;n;m's error, 1 urge In the strongest possible terms that this be done without
delity.

In aadition, I would ke to urge this Committee, with its over-riding concern
for the nutritional well-belitzr of our poor, to fnvestizate thoronghly what wiil
happen under the present food st:imp regulations when the work Incentive mneid.
wments sty passed last December become effective on July 1, 1952, Phese amend
moents require WIN partieipation by thousands upon thonsitiuds of persosts wder
the ADC program wherens previous participatlon had been roluntary. 1f the
present food stamp regnlations stand, the experfonces of the relatively few pres-
ent participants will he multfplied many thnes, We will be telling a lirge sog-
tment of our poor.—mostly ADC mothers with schaoolsge children—that ot only
must they leave home for work or tralning but that one of the eonsequences of
dolng <o will he that the food they need to feed thely children Will cost more
even though they may not realize any actual income gain,

The Food Stamp Program can be one of our most effective weapons in our
fi<ht agalnst poverty, The person that Is adequately fed at least has a ehanece
to attain a decent standard of §ving, T think we must make sure that the regula-
tions governing its operation bring encourngentent to our poor: they mwust fn ho
wiy be used to discournge efforts to join the mainstreamn of soclety, The present
rexnlations ean only result in discouragement and dismay-—they should be
changed without delny,

Dr. Byery. Thank you.

Mrs. Carx, Thank you.

Senator Prney. Our last witnesses are Mus. Roy, Mrs. Brown, and
Mrs, Chapman.

We are very happy to hiave residents of the District of Columbia
with us. T always find it very helpful. whencver looking at programs
that we want to institute or programs that we are studying for the
future, to just sometimes go within six blocks of the Capitol and
look at the implementation of these programs. I have done it on hons-
ing programs. I have done it on feeding programs, law enforcement
programs. We have a wonderful laboratory right here, We don’t have
to go back. always, to Illinois. or Towa. or California. We can find right
lnur(i a microcosm of America and how some of these programs are
working.

I understand that you do not have a prepared statement, so I
would very much appreciate your response to these questions.
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STATEMENTS OF MRS. ROY, MRS. BROWN. AND MRS. CHAPMAN OF
WASEINGION, D.C.

Senator Percy. As I understand it, both of you use food stamps, is
that correct ? ’

Mr. Rov, Yes.

Senator Percy. Could you tell us how much you have to pay for
your stamps. and how much yvour stamps are worth?

Mrs. Rov. I pay $20 for $32 worth of stamps.

Senator Prrcy. You are getting a $12 advantage, then.

Mrs. Rov. Yes.

Senator Perey. You are payving the sune muount. Mrs. Brown?

Mbrs. Browx. I pay $§20 for £32 worth of stamps.

Senator Peroy, Is §32 worth of food stamps enough for you to buy
the food you need?

Mus. Roy, No. it isn't,

Mrs. Browy. No, it isn't,

Senator Pency. It is not. Could you tell us why it is not enough?

Mrs. Roy. Well, just because weare on diets. We have sugar diabetes.
high blood pressure, and you have to buy food for those kinds of things
that you have to have. You can’t eat anything and everything. And the
prices are very high on that diabetic food. i

Senutor Percy. Do you find diabetic foods are more expensive?

Mrs. Browx. Yes.

Senator Prrcy. Do you have to be more selective?

Mzrs. Roy. Some of it is.

Mrs. Browx. All of that is for the sugar that we have. we are
diabetic.

Senator Percy. The welfare agency knows about your condition?

Mrs. Roy. I am not on welfare. Iam on Social Sceurity.

Mrs. Browy. I am on retirement.

Senator Percy. You do get Social Security?

Mrs. Roy. Yes.

Senator Percy. And you have notified the appropriate officials that
You are receiving inadequate food allowances in the food stamps; is
that right?

Mrs. Browy. Yes. But I wanted to know why, I want to know why I
pay someone for food stamps when I don’t get just a little bit of money.
when sgme get the same amount and they pay less money for food
stamps?

Se?nator Percy. How much do you have to spend on food each month
now

Mzrs. Browx. On food?

Senator Percy. Yes, how much would you need to spend on food to
have an adequate diet?

Foop Stayes Last Oxe-Tump or Moxti

Mis. Browx. Well, the stam{)s that I get, they run me up to just
about a week and a half. Then I huve to have money to go to the store
for the rest of the month. The food is just so high that the doctor
ordered me to eat. I can't eat fresh meats, and I can eat beef and
clluckcn and fish like that, but that is real high. So my stamps don't do
that.
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Senator Percy. Can you give us some idea as to what you buy now
with the food stamps that you have, and as to how you plan your daily
input of food? What selections do you have available to you? If you
do not have adequate funds, what do you get? Does it literally leave
you hungry ?

Mrs. Browx. No.

Senator Percy. Is it just that yon are not getting some of the foods
yon need ?

Mrs. Browx. I am supposed to eat three meals a day, but I don’t
eat three meals a day every day because it takes more than my stamps
toeat three thmes a day. I just eat two mealsa day.

Senator Percy. You try to get by on two meals a day. What time of
day de yon have yonr evening supper?

Mrs. Browx. Aronnd 6 p.m. or sometimes before.

Senator Percy. And then yon are staying with chicken. fish?

Mrs, Browx. Yes.

Senator Precy. What other special foods do you need to purchase
for yonrzelf?

Mrs. Brows. Vegetables, for one thing. I like vegetables and fruit.
And I like other meat, but not fresh meat.

Senator Percy. And you simply are not able to buy it?

Mrs. Browx. No. Idon’t have

Senator Percy. The food is preseribed for yon?

Mrs. Browx. I don't have the money. The stamps—I pay so much
for stamps. Maybe I wonld have the money, but I pay so much for
stamps and they don’t run me for a whole month. so I have to just—I
would have some money from them stamps to buy food.

Senator Percy. What would be necessary for you to have an ade-
qnate allowance for food? I am not talking abont extravagant foods
or high cost foods, but an adequate dict, adeguate allowanee for your
food budget?

. Mrs. Browx. I guess—I get 832 a year.

Mrs. Criraraan. Could I answer that, Senator?

S(;ll:lfOl' Prrcy. Yes, Mrs. Chapnan. Take the microphone. won't
yon?

Costs Rerirep ProrLr Morg -

Mrs, Ciiaraan. I think Mrs, Brown is a little bit confused. With the
smali amount they get it just isn't possible to obtain an adequate diet.
I believe that if the food staxips were increased to allow her to bny the
foods that she needs, it wonld give her an adequate diet. and also Ms.
Roy. Iler income is retivement. and it is such a small mmount that she
aets from her retirement. Since the new regulations went into effect.
both of these persons™ payment for food stunps has been increased.
The Dbonus that they zre receiving is such a little bit. and there is
noallowance made for persons on special diets, such as heart conditions.
and heart tronbles. et cetera.

And even though the food stamnp office knows this, there is 1o con-
sideration given.

Senator PErcy. Well, certainly under our Medicare problem, if you
are hospitalized—if yon get sick enough so that yon are put in a hos-
pital, you have prescribed for you whatever is required, regardless
of your income. .
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Mrs. Cuaryax. Right.

Senator Prrcy. Now, is it your experience that if a person who is
a diabetic, who is over 65, who has greater health problems. many
times, than those of younger years—that if they have inadequate
food. and an inadequate diet, or the wrong dict, that they inay end
up to be hospital cases ?

Mrs. Craraax. Absolutely.

Day Feprnrar, Cost—13 Cexts to $80

Senator Prrey. So then all of a sudden, the cost may be $50, $60,
$70 or $80 a day for an indefinite period of time, paid for fully by the
Government on Medicare.

Mis. Crararaxn. Absolutely.

Senator Percy. But what you want to do is have an incentive to stay
ont of the hospital.

Myrs. Criararax. Right,

Senator Prrey. What von are saying is that for the lack of a
modest amonnt of additional food—adequate for diabetes, for in-
stance. in this case—yon may endanger the possibility of remaining
ont of the hospital.

Mrs. Crrarymax. Yes.

Senator Percy. So there is a real incentive to be sick enough to go
to the hospital, then. automatically, you will get a regular diet that
the hospital would preseribe and adequate food allowance. And it is
better for yon, but far worse for society and the Government, and
worse for you as a total person, to have to go to a hospital. Everyone
dreads that experience.

Mrs, Craryax. That's right.

Mis. Roy. That’s right.

Senator Perey. But this is really what we might be doing.

Now, Mrs. Chapman, these two cases of Mrs. Roy and Mrs. Brown,
are these untypical?

Mrs. Craryax. No.

Senator Prrey. Would you say they are typical?

Mrs. Crararax. These two cases are just a sample of what is hap-
pening here in the District of Columbia.

Senator Percy. What is your relationship with Project LINK in
Friendship House?

Mrs. Crapyay. I am a neighborhood worker. and also the director

f of Allen Wilson’s Senior Citizen’s Center, located at 727 Tth St. SE..
: just a short distance away from here. 1
i These are just two cases that I have handled concerning the Food
Stamp Program. Many other cases that I have tell of the same story.
and the same plight of these two persons here. Maybe in some cases
it is worse. And I would say that I would like to see the day when
this city government would do something on the preventive side to
keep these people in their homes, instead of putting them in
institutions.

Senator Prrcy. Of course. that is the purpose of our nutritional
feeding program for the elderly, which includes Meals on Wheels.* Do

WA e aane v s

*Sre Appendix, p, 698,

T Sl s e U
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you have such a program in Friendship ITouse? ) .

Mrs, CuarMax. No, sir; we do not have a program at the Friendship
IHouse pertaining to Meals on Wheels. ) .

Senator Percy. Is there one anywhere in the community within
commuting distance ?

Mys, Craryax. Well, I know a church right a few blocks from here,
they have imstituted Meals on Wheels. But that is for the shut-in
person.

Senator Prrey. Yes, that’s right.

Mrs. Crraryaxn. And they have a certain amount of money per week
to pay for these meals. I t%link it is two cold meals and one hot, per
day.

Senator Prrey. Right.

Mrs. Ciraryax. Five days per week.

Senator Prrcy. I certainly feel that these feeding programs for the
senior citizens, if we can encourage older people who have inadequate
allowances for food to use those programs, we gain many advantages.
The cost is, of course, very low, 25 cents a meal. And perhaps the
spread of *hose programs will help in this particular case.

But - 10w of no such program that is available to Mis, Roy or
Mrs. biown in their community now ?

Mrs. Cinarxan. We have a program at the Salvation Army. which
is only 2 days a week, Tuesday and Thursday, from 10 to 2, at which
time there is a hot meal served.

Senator Percy. TTow many daysa week ?

Myrs. Craryax. Two days.

Senator Prrcy. Two days?

Mrs, Crraryax, Yes, -

Senator Prrcy. What do you do the other five?

Mis. Cizaraax. Well, they come to Allen Wilson Center.

Senator Prrcy. I want to thank you very much indeed for being
here. We very much appreciate it. And, Mrs. Chapman, is there any-
thing clse that you would like to say?

Mis. Roy ?

Tur Crrizens’ QuestioN

Mis. Roy. Yes. I would like to say, “Why is it that they take the
money and put it back into the Treasury when they could be helpful
to the senior citizens to get more food stamps and pay less?” You pay
more and get less stamps and they don't last. So T would like to know
why would they want to put the money back in the Treasury when it
could be needed out here, it conld be very well used out here.

Senator Percy. Well, I think that is the $64 question that I promised
Secretary Lyng that T would ask him when he returns to these hearings.
And I will just pick out of the record your own phraseology. I will put
that question to him in your name.

Mis. Rov. Thank vou very much.

Senator Prrcy. Thank you for heing here. I know vour presence
here will help many, many other people. because I think vou are
speaking on behalf of many, many who are in exactly the same condi-
tion you are in.

Py gy A
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Mrs. Rox. That’s true.

. Senator Percy. As a country, we seem to have no problem of feed-
Ing our Army every place they are in the world. They get three square
meals a day, and if they don’t get them, you sure %ear about it, no
matter where they are, all over the world. We certainly have been
ingenious in feeding people in other countriés in times of need, which
as 2 humanitarian Nation, we should.

But I think our problem has been to find ways we can solve our
problem right here at home.

Mrs. Rorv. Right.

Senator Prrcy. And you are within a couple—

Mrs. Crzaryax. Right down on 7th St SE.

Senator Percy. Within 1 mile of the Capitol.

Mrs. Browx. Down by the Navy Yard.

Senator Percy. Here you are, within a mile of the Capitol, and you
have a problem that is not being met. And it is our job to see that we
meet that kind of problem.

Thank you for being herc.

Mrs. Crzaryax. Thank you.

Mirs. Roy, Thank vou, very much.

Senator Percy. The committee is in recess, to reconvene on Wednes-
day. June 21, .

(Whereupon, at 12:10 p.m., the Select Committee was recessed, to re-
couvene at 10 a.m., on Wednesday, June 21, 1972, in room 1202 of the
New Senate Office Building. )

Nore: Testimony pertinent to the subject of this hearing (June 7, 1972) was
resumed on Thursday, June 22, 1972 in Roam 6202 of the New Senate Office
Building.

el




OFFICE OF SENATOR GEORGE M¢GOVERN

MoNvay, June 19, 1932,

NurrITION CoMmMITTEE RErORT CItes $700 MILLION IN UNSPENT Foob ASSISTANCE
KFuxnps

Senator George McGovern (D-SD), Chairman of the Select Committee on
Nutrition and Human Needs, released a staff report today showiug about $700
willion in unused funds for all food assistance programs adminisiered by the
U.S. Departent of Agriculture. In releasing the report, McGovern said @

“The President recently repeated his pledge: ‘to end hunger in Awerica itself
for all time.” The Congress has responded by making funds available so that that
commitiment might become a reality. Only the USDA seems not to have gotten
the message.”

McGovern asked his staff to prepare the report after a day of lhearings that
revealed the USDA would be returning to the Tregsury some $400 million of the
funds appropriated for the food stamp program.

Two additional days of hearings are scheduled for June 21 and June 22, to
cousider the freeze imposed on funds for food service in day care and other non-
school settings, and to provide an opportunity for Administration spokesmen
to respoud to guestions. (The USDA submitted its prepared statement at the
hearing conducted on June 7, 1972.)

The staff report, “Half a Loaf: Food Assistance in FY *72,” details the approx-
imately $700 million in funds made available by Congress for seven food assist-
ance programs, which remain unused at the close of the curreut fiscal year,

The full text of McGovern’s statement follows:

On June 7, 1972, a hearing of the Select Committee on Nutrition and Human
Needs offered a rare opportunity. In place of the more common story of budget
over-runs, or funds exhausted before the end of a fiscal year, a Federal agency
was discovered to have accumulated a surplus of approximately $400 million, or
nearly 20% of the funds appropriated by the Congress for a single program.

Saving money is hardly a vice; a surplus of funds would norwmally be an
occasion for praise. But this particular surplus is made less praiseworthy by its
source : the USDA has “saved” $400 million of the money intended for food stamps
for th,e Door. This was accomplished, as one witness put it, by “pickpocketing the
poor.”

With fewer than half of the poor participating in the food stmmp program.
with long knowledge that a large surplus would be occurring in the program, and
despite a pledge from Secretary Earl Butz that recipients wonld not find their
benefits reduced as a result of new food stamp regulations, the USDA has pur-
sued policies which have : limited participation, increased the size of the surplus.
and very definitely reduced beuefits to large numbers of those participating in the
program,

The Food and Nutrition Service of USDA, the agency responsible for the
program, had clear choices available to it. Food Stamp Amendmen.s passed in
1971 require that the food stamp program provide a “nutritionally ade juate diet,”
and that the value of the food stamps be raised each year to reflect increases
in the cost of living. However, in the June 7 hearing it was revealed that the
USDA has recently acknowledged in a legal deposition that the Economny ¥oo«d
Plan (used by the Department to determine the size of the food stamp benefits)
is deficient in four nutrients: Vitamins B6, B12, folic acid and magnesium.

At the same tine, it was established that the Economy diet plan is not recom-
mended for people engaged in hard labor or frequent exercise, that fewer than
509% spending at the level of that plan will obtain even two-thirds of the Rec-
omuended Dietary Allowances, that it is recommended only for temporary use
and that the Department it¢elf recommends “a money allowance for food consid-
erably higher than the cost of the Economy Diet Plan.”

With a surplus of $400 million, the Department could have raised the value
of the food stamp allotinent, to provide the nutritionally adequate diet required
by the law.
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Instead, USDA responded to the requirement that food stamps be raised by
giving all famulies—whether of 1, 3, 5, or 6 persons—exactly $4 more per month
(7 and 8 person houscholds were inereased by $8 and $12 respectively). That $4
represents 5009% less than the increase in the Cost of Food at Howme.

Despite the surpius developing in the program, the GSDA weut a step farther.
A new parchase schednle has been released whieh will pass the cost of that %t
increase on to food stamp recipients. The law required that the food stamp allot-
ment be raised : USDA decided that the poor shonld pay for it.

A new regalation governing the way inconie is figured has had a devastating
effect on tood stamp recipients who participate in work, training, or edncation
programs intended to matke them self-suflicient. In the past, income that was
not available for food aund that went directly to meet the expenses of going to
school or to work, were not counted as part of a poor family’s income.

For exawmple. money that goes directly to a babysitter, or to transportation.
was not eonnted as money available for food. Now that wmoney is conmted, and
the result is that many recipients snddenly find themselves paying £20 and $30
more per month for their food stamps although their income has not increased
at all.

The regulation was not requested by the Congress during the eourse of the
debate on the food stamp amendwents of 1971, There is no legislative history
suggesting that the Cougress intended that the food stamp progriun be operited
in a way that penalizes poor persons who try to become self-snfficient throngh
work or training. ‘The regulation does limit participation in the food stamp pro-
gram: in one eight-coomty area of Iowa alone 5,000 have dropped ont of the
program since this new regnlation went into effect.

With a surplus of $400 million, there was no need for a regulation to severely
limit program participation in ways the Congress did not intend.

Many of the one- and two-person hounseholds participating in the food stamp
program are elderly people with all of the physical complaints that accompany
old age. Many of them are diabetic, have heart conditions, or have high blood
pressure. Most of them require special diets, and most of the special diets are
costly. For them. the food stamp program is an aid, but it falls far short of
providing all their food requirements. Their food stamps rmm out half-way
throngh the month, or else they live on diets that they know are bad for them.

With a $400 million surplus in the food stamp program, it wonld have heen
possible to increase the amount of food stamps available to the elderly. All of
this informnation was set out in the June 7 hearing. It raises serious questions
about the operation of the other food assistance programs operated by the USD.A.

As the attached report reveals, the record in the other programs is no more
praiseworthy than in the food stamp program. In some of the programs, most
notably National School Lunch and the Donated Foods program, the amount of
unused funds is ouly about 109, and taken alone wonld perhaps not invite atten-
tion. However, in other programs, the amount of unused funds is dramatic. and
the policies of the USDA with respect to those programs is even more dramatie,

In School Breakfast, in Supplemental Foods, in the Special Food Service P’ro-
gram for Children, a “freeze” has long been in effect. Countless applicants for
these programs from all across the country have been told that they cannot par-
ticipate in the programs because there are no funds available. Day Care and
Head Start programs, programs giving milk and other protein foods to pregnant
women and new infants, schools desiring to operate a breakfast program, all
of these have been denied.

Yet the funds have been made available by the Congress. and the surplus
accmnulating in these programs has long been known to the Food and Nutrition
Service of the USDA. Taken together, the Food and Nutrition Service will have
unspent, at the close of this fiscal year, some $700 million in funds intended by
the Congress to alleviate hunger and malnutrition among the nation’s poor.

The President recently repeated his pledge : “to end hunger in America iteelf
for all tiine.” The Congress has responded by making funds available so that that
commitment might become a reality, Only the USDA seems not to have gotten
the message.
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UNUSED FOOD ASSISTANCE FUNDS:
ADMINISTRATION WITNESSES

THURSDAY, JUNE 22, 1972

U.S. SexaTe
SzLect COMMITTEE ON
NurrrrioN axp Huaax Neens
Washington, D.C.

The Select Committee met at 10:05 a.un., pursuant to call, in room
6202_? the New Senate Office Building, the Honorable Alan Cranston
vresiding.

Present : Senators Alan Cranston, Charles H. Percy and Edward M.
Kennedy.

Staff members present : Kenneth Schlossberg, staff director; Nancy
Amidei, professional staff member; Vernon M. Goetcheus, senior
minority professional staff; and Elizabeth P. Hottell, minority pro-
fessional staff.

Senator Cransrox. The hearing will please come to order.

OPENING STATEMENT BY SENATOR CRANSTON, PRESIDING

Senator Cranstox. I was delighted to accept the invitation of the
chairman, Senator McGovern, to chair this hearing of the Senate
select Committee on Nutrition and Human Needs.

Our purpose this morning is to seek answers to a number of serious
questions raised at 2 previous days of hearings regarding the avail-
ability of funds for food assistance programs. These questions center
around the fact that the Department of %.griculture has not used some
$700 million in funds Congress appropriated for the various food
assistance programs for the current fiscal year.

In the Food Stamp Program alone, nearly $400 million will be
returned to the Treasury unused, despite the fact that some 44 percent
of 26 million eligible for it in America are now receiving food stamps.
And, despite the 244 counties across the Nation which have requested
or have been designated for, participation, but which have not yet been
able to implement programs.

Issurs Berore CodrdarTeE ARE NONPARTISAN

I want to be emphatic about one point : The issues before this com-
mittee this morning are not partisan issues. We are not talking about
Republican or Democratic dollars. We are talking about dollars the
Congress appropriated for food assistance programs, but which the
administration has not used. We are talking about dollars that could
have been used to ease the gnawing pangs of hunger. We want to find
out why that money has not been spent.
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I would like to say I have been impressed by the very close coopera-
tion between the majority and minority members of the committee.
I trust and hope this cooperation will continue,

Regardless of the party in the White House, the Select Committee
has a responsibility to the citizens of the United States to investigate
problems relating to hunger in America.

On June 7 this committee heard from witnesses concerned about the
$400 million of food stamp funds about to be returned to the Treasury
unused. Several witnesses raised serious questions about certain depart-
mental policies which have contributed to the size of this funding “sur-
plus,” such as decisions affecting the amount of food stamps poor peo-
ple can buy; how much they have to pay for them; whether or not to
count work-related expenses as disposable income ; and, the rate of ex-
pansion into new counties.

Yesterday, the committee heard from individuals concerned about
funds for the year-round portion of the Special Food Services Pro-
gram for Children—Section 13 of the National School Lunch Act. We
were advised that funds available for that program were not being
spent despite the fact that significant amounts of Day Care and Iead
Start programs across the country were denied adequate funds for
food services on the grounds that funds had veen exhausted. In par-
ticular, witnesses at yesterday’s hearing raised the question of the
arbitrary administration decision to deny Section 13 funds to Head
Start programs applying after November 1969.

These, then, are the issues before the committee this morning. We
are pleased to have with us three officials of the U.S. Department, of
Agriculture: Assistant Secretary Richard Lyng, of the USDA. Mr.
James Kocher, director of the Food Stamp Program, USDA, and Mr.
Herbert Rorex, chief, Child Nutrition Division. USDA.

Before proceeding, I want to see if Senator Percy has anything to
say at this point.

Senator Percy. I will withhold my statement until I hear the
testimony.

Senator CrangTox. Mr. Lyng, we welcome you, and I understand
you do have an opening statement.

STATEMENT OF ASSISTANT SECRETARY RICHARD LYNG, U.S. DE-
PARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE; ACCOMPANIED BY JAMES
KOCHER, DIRECTOR, FOOD STAMP DIVISION, FOOD NUTRITION
SERVICE, USDA; HERBERT ROREX, DIRECTOR, CHILD NUTRI-
TION DIVISION, FOOD NUTRITION SERVICE, USDA; AND PRO-
FESSIONAL STAFF MEMBERS MESSRS. OLSSON, DAVIS, AND
SPRINGFIELD

Mr, Lyne. Thank you, ir. Chairman, and members of the commit-
tee, for again giving me an opportunity to appear before the
committee.

I presented testimony on the Food Stamp and the Special Food Serv-
ices Programs on June 7 I will not repeat that testimony this morning.

I Wpqu, however, like to take this opportunity to discuss briefly a
gigmmlltgt?g Jeport entitled “Half a Loaf: Food Assistance in Fiscal

ear .
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Mr. Chairman, as has already been pointed out by members of the
minority of this committee, that report is inaccurate and misleading.

I understand that the report has been withdrawn from circulation
pending the correction of tactual errors and a review of some of the
report’s unjustified inferences. Unfortunntehy, the damnage has already
been done—the study has already circulated and been released to the
press. For that reason, I would particularly like to comment on one
of the report’s charges—the allegation that $135 million has been with-
held from the nonsclfxool feeding program.

The report states that :

Congress made a total of $184 million available for this program [nonschool
feeding] in fiscal yeur 1972, ($135 million of that amount is available from Sec-
tion 32 funds.)

This allegation apparently refers to the $135 million made available
for free and reduced-price meals in Public Law 92-32,! money which
was primarily intended to provide added support for the School Lunch
Program. The same legislation—Public Law 92-32—extended the non-
school feeding program, but limited the authorization for appropria-
tions for nonschool feeding to $32 million.

At the same tine, a separate picce of legislation, Public Law 92-35.2
made available an additional $17 million for the summer nonschool
program. The intention to provide a totel of $49 million for the non-
school program was confirmed in the Senate Appropriations report 2
dated ﬁlly 14, 1971, which provided a total ofp 549 1million for non-
school feeding—$15.9 million of that specifically for year-round pro-
grams. That was the $49 million tlmtII) discussed in my testimony 2
weeks ago. I cannot resist observing that the way this is describedy in
“Half a Loaf” appears to be something less than half a truth.

Iam chased that, even at this late date, the committee has with-
drawn this report from circulation. We will be pleased to cooperate
with the committee and the committee staff in developing more aceu-
rate evaluation of the current state of food assistance. I must confess,
Mr. Chairman, that the majority staff of this committee seems ex-

cessively reluctant to present the facts or to give us an opportunity
to assist them in doing so.

“ .. Have We Crosep Huxcer Gar . . .9

.. When I concluded my testimony on June 7, Senator Percy asked me
if I would return to respond to the committee’s questions and asked
me if T would answer the question: “ . . have we closed the hunger
gap ¢ ilas hunger ended in America, and if not, why ¢”

The committee has been furnished with volumes of statistics which
show the very substantial growth in both program participation and
program cost. The food assistance program of the Department of
Agriculture, which expended just over a billion dollars in fiscal 1969.
will account for more than $4 billion in fiscal 1973—a tremendous
4-year record of growth. Food assistance is now bigger than the space
program—it was a fraction of that size 4 years ago.

Senator Cranston, I have a chart with me which I presented to the
committee before. It graphically illustrates the changes that have taken

1 See Part 3A, Appendix 1, pp. 587.
3 See Appendl'x, P 751, rp
3 See Appendix, p. 752.
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place in the last 3 years compared with fiscal 1969, This figure for fiseal
1973 in terms of food stamps and food stamp participation will, of
course, even be higher,

I can say without question that we have substantially completed the
job we set out to do. The gap is closed. At the same time, if I were
to say that there is no longer any hunger in this country, I know T
would be challenged, and ]n'oporfy so. Dut, it is a fact that theve is
little excuse today for any family in the United States to he witheut
the resources for suflicient food. Yet, there are families that de not
have suflicient resources because of a number of conditions. Among
them are:

L. There are five small counties. out of the 3.129 in the Nation
that have never requested food ussistance. They are very small
and very seattered. but they exist. When we arrived at the Depanrt-
ment of Agriculture theve were nearly 500 such counties.

2. There are an additional three counties that have dropped out
of food assistance programs. These are slso small counties.

3. Soie counties and some States do not administer food pro-
grams as skillfully as we would like to see. We continue to work
on that.

4. There are still schools that do not have a School Lunch Pro-
gram. We are accelerating cur already vigorous program to cor-
rect that.

With these exceptions, Mr. Chairman, the job is completed—in an
overall sense it has been substantially accomplished. Whether or not
this Nation eliminates poverty-caused hunger is no longer in doubt.
The coinmitment of the administration and the Congress is clear on
that. More vemains to be done, but it will be done, as quickly as we
know how. We can take pride, today, in the great progress which has
been made. What remains to be done should be far easier to complete
than what has already been accomplished. )

‘That concludes my L)re})m'cd statement, Mr. Chairman. My, Kocher
and Mr. Rorex—Mr. Kocher on my right, and Mr. Rorex on my left—
and I will be pleased to try to answer any questions that you mnay have.

Senator Craxsrox. Fine. I thank you very much. I want to make
plain that there is disagreement over certain facts, apparently. in the
staff veport. Senator McGovern made very plain in a letter that
he wrote to members of this conunittee that, because of controversy
surrounding the report, he decided to suspend the circulation. Be-
cause of inaccuracies that can be found and any additional views
that members of the committee may wish to make.

Senator Percy. Senator Cranston, I have not received such a letter.
Is theresuch a letter?

Senator Cranstox. Yes, there is.

Senator Percy. It has not been sent to me. I understand it was sent
vesterday afternoon. I haven’t received the letter yet.

" Senmator Craxsrox. I don’t know when it was sent. I have a copy
of it.

He stated that he wanted to emphasize that he has carefully re-
viewed the facts contained in the report and he believes them to be
fully accurate. He states that he has already instructed majority staff
to take care that time is taken, in the future, for minority siaff to
review the report.
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LRIC

alhontatmetn.

661

I would like to start asking some questions about food stamps and
direet them to Mr. Kocher or to Mr. Lyng, whichever of you is ap-
propriate to answer as we go along.

FFirst. how longr did you know there wonld be a surplus?

Mr. Lyxe. The monthly figures come in to us 6 weeks or so after
the month is past. T think it began to be agpzu’ent in, perhaps, Novem-
her or December that participation wag beginning to fall below our
estimates, By Jannary we were beginning to see that the implemen-
tation of the new regulations was going to, perhaps, take longer than
we had anticipated.

Also the counties that we had designated for food stamps were
slower in implementing the programs than we had anticipated. With
the combination of alﬁthese things, we could begin to see that the
amount. in the appropriation was larger than probably would be
needed.

Iowever. we can never be really sure because the participant load
can vary and change very rapidly. It is only in the last month or two
that we have been able to come as close as we have in terms of the
total figure. and even that is still an estimate, of course.

Dors Resvramox ITandr Serr-I1Inne Prograys?

Senator Craxsrox. As T understand it, the regulation was changed
to make a computation of income, in effect. seem to work against any-
one in work training or edueation programs. Could you explain theé
computation of whether or not that is a proper interpretation?

Mr. Lyxa. I will ask Mr. Kocher to do this. This is very complex.
'The whole computations tend to be complex.

Mr. Kocnzr. The Food Stamp Act amendments were passed by
Congrress o vear ago mandating national eligibility standards and
requiring the Department of Agriculture to set 2 method of comput-
ing income which wonld apply in every State.

Previously, the manner in which this was done varied from State
to State and was primarily based on local welfare practices.

In dinawing these regulations, the Department’s primary goal was
to make sure that owr nonpublic assistance cases, those that are work-
ing for their income. were treated exactly the snme way as those re-
ceiving their income from public assistance.

In a few States, there had been substantial amounts of exempt in-
come that hadn’t been counted for public assistance cases. The Depart-
ment, however, in the new regulations, does allow, and has always
allowed the deduction of educational expenses and child care in these
programs.

Senator CranstoN. Was it your understanding that Congress in-
tended that people in work or training have to pay more, or to be penal-
ized in some way ?

Mr. Kocurn. Senator, they are not. A mother who is working as a
waitress and has her child in child eare gets to deduct her child care
expenses. If she is in a work training program, she gets to deduet her
child ca:e expenses. In all cases, the income and the deductions are the
same for the working poor as they are for the welfare poor.

Senator Craxsrox. AsI understand it—I have not seen the reports—
reports have come in from Montana, Iowa, Michigan, Kentucky, and
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other States, indicating that there is some change in the schedule when
somebody goes to work or is in a training or education program.*

Mr. Lyxe. 1t is very diflicult for me to mderstand, Senator, hecanse
we would almost have to be considering the income from these as dif-
ferent from other income. But if we could have those reports, we woukd
be pleased to reply for the record. And, if this is in fact the case, we
would surely agree that that is wrong, because the food stamp income
characteristics should not serve as a disincentive for people to get in-
come, whether it be from work or from WIN programs.

Senator Craxsroxn. I am glad we agree on that point, because that
is the important thing to establish, agreement on the objectives.

I believe, Mr. Kocher, you were present on June 7 when there was
testimony from people from Iowa on this point.

Mr. Kocuer. Yes, I was present.

Senator Prrcy. I have i front of me Mrs. Cain's situation, and it
presented a problem because it seemed to be contrary to what we ave
trying to accomplish. She testified, then, that her expenses for going
to school under the WIN program—mnoney she never sees—is counted
as income. She says she now must pay more for food stamps. She said,
“I must choose between feeding my children and staying in school, and,
of course, there is no question about which choice I must take.” Why
are we building such a great disincentive for people to prepare themn-
selves for productive careers?

That was the question left unanswered at the time of her testimony.

DirricorTies 1x SoME LoCATIONS

Mr. Kocsrn. Iowa is one of the places we are having difficulty, be-
cause they had previously exem te(i) a substantial chunk of income. As
a result, in Mrs. Cain’s case, her basie grant is $199, her shelter that she
is obligated for is almost $170. This meant that out of her basic income,
she is obligated for all except about $20 or $30 for her shelter.

‘These situations are extremely difficult to work out.

Senator Percy. Could we at this snme time, Mr. Chairman, raise the
question that was raised in New York, where a welfare client who pays
higher rent and who gets, thus, a higher grant specifically to cover
rent, is made to ‘my more for food stamps? I understand this is an in-
centive to find cheaper apartments to stop rewarding those who pay
high rents. But the problems in areas such as New York, this is almost
an unrealistic goal, when there is only a 1-percent vacancy in the city.
They simply have no place to go.

I have been with welfare recipients who pay what I considered to
be high rents in certain parts of Chicago, and they simply said, “Go
around and try to find an apartment that has two or three bedrooms
for fess than $110 2 month. You can’t find one any place.”

In situations of critical housing shortages like that—where there is
no glnce to get a cheaper apartment—why, then, should they be penal-
ized by paying more for food stamps? That is a question, again, that
was raised last time and that was left unanswered.

Mr. Kocnier. First of all, it was testified that the Department has
given an ultimatum to the State of New York. This was incorrect.
Our basic agreement with New York is that they will continue to work

* See Appendix, p. 729,
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toward full implementation of the regulations. The date of January 1
was set: by New York City as an estimate of when their computer sys-
tem would be geared up to handle this.

I think the basic point here is that it is valid as long as the city
doesn't. in fact, pay 100-percent rent. In other words. if any house-
hold does not get 100 percent and they are not entitled to a hardship
dednction, they can end np. very casily, withont the money to pay the
1;nrclmse requirements for food stanps. They have already spent it on
tho rent,

Senator Cranstow. T understand that one of the tables available to
ns shows that—in regard to allotments and prices—where the allot-
ment was raised 7 percent. the price went up 10 percent. In the face of
a large snrplis, I wonder why that is necessary : and, I wonder if yon
can explain why the food stamp purchase schedule was drafted, as it
was, \Q\'ith a participant having to pay for the increase in the allot-
ment ¢

Mr. Tyxa. The change that was made in allotments was made in
July of 1971. There has been no change made during this fiscal year.
We did. however. announee a change that will be effective on July 1.
1972, which increases the amount. of the allotment for a family of
fonr, for example. from $108 to §112,

I"1e bonus at the npper-income levels remains the same. Thas, this
does have the effect. among those people who are at the upper-income
level. to iave them pay more to see the snme amount of bonns.

At the lower-income levels. however., this is not the case. There is an
inerease in the amonnt of bonns. Those people that. have little or no
income. of conrse, pay nothing: so there is no increase in what they
pey. This has been feathered ont so that it does give what we consider
to he inereasingly equitable treatment to the poorest of the poor on this
schednle. Bnt T think this is anrelated to our expenditures during this
fiscal vear.

Scurpvey: Increases ONLY 1.9 PERCENT

Senator Craxston. But the fact renmins that the poor do pay for
the increase in their stamps and so are paying proportionally more.
Yow. a5 T understand. the schednle raises all families, with up to six
peaple in the family. by the same amount, $4. Only familics of seven
or eight members receive more, and that represents an increase of
only about 1.9 percent althongh the cos: of food over this period rose
abont 7.9 percent.

Was there any attempt to more nearly or more fairly raise the food
stamp allotment in the new schedule ?

Mr. Kocnrn. Did von say the npper end was only raised by $47 Tha:
is not correct, Senator,

Qenator Craxstoy. Except for the seven- and eight-member families.
From one up to six, it was just $4, right ?

Mr. Kocnier. The reason that the lower honseholds. the one- and
two-person honseholds. were raised by $1 is because of the requirement
for variable purchase. Statistically, they should not have heen raised
that much., but in order to divide our conpon allotments at the coupon
office. we have to have a multiple divisible by four. So those smaller
houscholds received more than they were statistically entitled.
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Senator Craxsrox. As I mnderstand it, high-cost States are com-
pelled to pay for the small increase for all the recipients by the
higher pnrehase prices. Isn't.that true?

Mr. Lyva T didn't inderstand the gnestion.

Senator (ransrox. The high-cost States are made to pay for the
small inerease for the recipients.

Mr. Ly~a. No. that isn't correct.

Senator Craxsrox, Becanse the purchase price went up only to the
people in the higher brackets.

Mr. Lyxa, It went np. I think that is correct, that the increase in
the pnrchase price went up to individuals in the higher bracket, but
there is 2 miform program nationwide. There is no difference in the
States,

Senator Craxsrox. As a practical matter. those “higher bracket™
individuals ave all in the same States. and those are all States wh.re
the cost. of living is highs ¢, That is just another way of saving that
higher benefits in Mississippi are being paid for ont of the pockets of
the New York poor.

In the face of the large surplus. was any considaration given to
making the food stamp allotment consistent with the Low-Cost. rather
than the KEconomy Food Plan?

Mr. Ly~a. No, Senator: we couldn’t consider making that kind of
a madification for a period of perhaps 3 months, First of all, it takes
mneh longer than that, as I explained in my testimony, for connties
to implement these. One of the advantages, T suppose, in administering
these programs to 15 million people was the nse of compnters. Put,
one of the disadvantages to the nse of computers is that it takes a
little while to reprogram, it scems. and get these things implemented.
So. for that veason alone, youn ean’t have a variable amount. Tt takes
ynite n long time to change.

Second. if we had determined in Jhe last quarter of this year that
we had an extri $400 million and decided to merease the payment on
the amomt of bonns or the mmomnt of stamps, we wonld have been
faced then with a decision as to whether to rednee it as of July 1, or
to_come to the Congress and ask for £1 billion additional for the
subsequent fiseal 1973 year.

The issue of the low-cost diet was debated in the Congress at the
time of the 1971 act. and it was gnite clear that. lthongh the Senate
voted for the higher allowance. the Honse voted for a lower fignre,
and that was determined in conference to he—we interpreted that to
mean—the cconomy diet,

The cost differential, Senator. is very great. It gets into hillions.

Senator Craxsrox. Did yon request or receive permission from thy
Congress to earry over that $100 million?

Esrtiyarep Snonrace Insriap or Seeenes

Mr. Ly~e. No. We haven't requested that it be carried over, We
have vesponded. in testimony before the Senate Appropriations Sub-
committee. chaired by Senator McGoe. on onr fiscal 1973 budget. The
Senator asked if we thonght that our budget reguest was adegnate, We
pointed ont to him that we had grave reservations abont that. inns-
much as we had to make several madifieations since the budget was
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submitted. We estimated that we might be as much as $100 million er
$450 million short and indicated that we wounld not hesitate to come
in and ask for a supplemental, if that be the case.

We have done that in the prsc. and we have never restricted the
Food Stamp Program for budgetary reasons.

Senator Craxsrox. Yet you just answered that you caunot use the
Low Cost Food Plan for budgetary reasons, Why conldir’t you use the
so-called low-cost program all the time?

Myr. Lyxc. I have tried to explain. Mr. Chairman. that we believe
© we are carrving out the intent of Congress. Fwithermore. the costs of
the low-cost dict. the total cost to the program would be in the billions
more than the present program.

Senator Craxstox. That is just my point. One of the questions is
whether the so-called economy plan is nutritionally adequate for all
recipients. For example, we had testimony on June 7 from elderly
people that food stamps are exhausted in about 2 weeks because they
have to buy veal and other meats not provided for in the food stamp
allotment.

Was any consideration given to raising the allotment for one- and
two-person honscholds to reflect the fact that mest of them are elderly
people with health problems and a need for a special diet 2

Mr. Ly~xc. We work these out. our Agricultural Research Sevvice
people work ont the economy dict. and the allowance is adeguate to
provide a nutritionally adequate diet. It is not an easy thing to do.
and T think it wonld be difticult for us to build into a Food Stamp
Program an allowance that wonld take care of any kind of special
leaith problems. Tt would seem to me that it would be nuich better to
try to take care of this under a health situation.

"Thes: are resources for millions of people. We have over 11 million
people on the Food Stamp Program, and a lot of them being depend-
ent upon health and dietary problems wonld seem to me.to make tie
administrative costs just unbearable.

Senator Craxstox. I believe that on June 7 there was testimony that
USDA recognized the economy food plan does not provide a nutri-
tionally adequate diet. al.iough that is required by the newest amend-
ments regarding food stamps. It is particularly lacking in some nu-
trients. such as vitamin B-6. B-12. aud folic acid. I think you should
take a look at that to he sure the enrrent law is heing complied with.

Mr. Ly~e. We have, Mr. Chairman; and there is absolutely no ques-
tion in my mind that the U.S. Department of Agriculture helieves that
the amount of our allowance will provide nutritionally adequate dicts.
The testimony to the contrary is inaccurate, .

Senator Craxstox. Mr. Rizek of your department testified that it
does not o so. T think we have conflicting test nmony.

Mr. Lyxc. Is e a representative of the .S, Department of
Aerienlture?

Senator Craxstox. Yes. he ix.* Senator Perey. T have used move than
10 minutes.

Senator Percy. No problem at all.

I wonld hike—because I was anxions to hear the response of the
Seeretary—first, to indicate that I did have the pleasure of chairing
the first day of learings on June 7 which focused on unexpended funds

* See Mppemdix, p. 761
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in the Food Stamp Program. I regret that yesterday's hearings on
the SALT talk before the Foreign Relations Committee kept me away
from vesterday’ session on the snrplus in Section 13 programs—the
Special Food Service Program for preschool children.

The response, however, to these hearings, if editorial comment is
any indication, shows that the kearings have struck a responsive chord
i the American conscience as we address the question of whether we
have closed the hunger gap in the country. The response to the very
challenging statement made by Secretary Lyng this morning that we
have closed it, I would have to say I think we are closing it. But cer-
tainly there is no question that we have made tremendous progress,
and I am sure that there will be further indications coming of places
tllmt we haven't, and that will help us, then, clcse those portions of
the gap.

i Presipext Coxytrrrep To Wire Oor HuNcer

A\ comment was made on the partisan nature of the conduct of the
committee. Certainly this issue, we all agree, is not a partisan issue.
The President is, clearly, on record as to being committed to wipe out
hunger and malmitrition in the country, and it has been raised to the
higrhest priority by the administration.

The Department of Agriculture, certainly as a Department, and as
individuals, is committed to this goal, and so are the memtzrs of this
committee on both sides of the aisle. Congress has gone on record again
and again in support of far-reaching legislation in this field. Congress
and the’ administration, together, have written a record of great ac-
complishment over the past 4 years and our very able chairman was the
first to publicly proclaim and acknowledge that .this had been
accomplished.

If there is anything I am saying that wonld not correspond with
the feelings of the majority. I wonld appreciate hearing from them.

This is why I regret. and I know Senator McGovern regrets any
deviation from the committee’s traditional nonpartisan approach to
the question of Lunger and malnutrition in the United States. T spoke
to Senator McGevern and have had a long talk with him on tw- occa-
sions now since the publication of this pamphlet that has been under
discussion. I believe this is why both Senator McGovern, as chairman,
aud I kave in recent days reinforced the principle to the staff of the
committee of avoiding any activities which might jeopardize the
credibility of the committee’s efforts to achieve our basic goals.

I am pleased that, in this spirit, Senator McGovern has ordered a
temporary sisspension of the circulation of the report prepared by
the majority staff. This will afford us an opportunity to carefully and
thought fully evalnate the report’s findings in a reasonable way and
perhaps to add some supplementary views.

Let me say also that T anticipate the leadership of the Department
of Aericulture—charged as it is with the main burden of carrying ont
President Nixon's oft-repeated pledge—will cooperate with the mem-
bers of the stafl and committee in every possible way. Only then can we
achieve the goal to whick we areall dedicated.

I don’t think there is any question but what every member of this
committee respects the right and the duty and the dedication of the
Department of Agriculture to carry on this program as efficiently as
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possible. Certainly, we support this goal, and I have repeated many
thnes my desive and intention to support such legitimate activities of
the Department. But, of course, what we are trying to get at is what
has caused this $100 million surplus under discussion, and whether or
not new procedures can be followed in the future so that the Depart-
ment and the Congress are closer together in what is authorized.
appropriated. and what we anticipate to he expended.

I would like to ask a question with respect, to a question on June 7,
the difficulties that were cited at this time in estimating total needs
for food stamnps in drawing up the food stamp budget. I wonder if, in
your calculations, vou make any allowance for national disasters. such
as Rapid City. and the current flooding in our area? Ifow do yvou pro-
gram in advance for these situations? Conld you use some of your
surplus in this sort of situation? What has been done in terms of the
emergency food relief for the residents of Rapid City?

Senator Craxsrox. Let me first say that you and I are in full accord,
and Istated that in iny opening remarks, and the need to keep partisan-
ship out of our efforts to work together, regardless of party titles and
so forth, to wipe out hunger in Amevica. You and I have worked to-
gether in this field in many ways. Senator MeGovern has, also.

Senator Percy. He has absolutely reaffirmed that to me, and I ac-
cepted it, Senator. Thank you very much.

USDA Assists Exrreexcy AcTioN AT DisasTrns

* Mr. Lyxe. In the question of disasters. natural disasters, it is an
unfortunate fact that we seem to have natural disasters of one kind or
another nearly every vear. We do, in our calculations, allow for some
bulge to take care of these. Most recently. in Rapid City, of course. we
were doing business here with a community of 45.000 people, I believe.
So it isn’t & huge amount in total dollars in relation to the multibillion
dollar budget. But we moved in on Saturday. the day of that flood.
with commodities for emergency feeding at shelters, and on Sunday
morning announced the implementation of a free disaster Food Stamp
Program. )

In that particular situation, there were grocery stores on the high
ground, so food stamps were available. Perhaps Mr. Kocher can give
vou some cstimates of the figures there. It was in the hnndreds of
thousands.

Mr. Kocurr. By the evening of the third day. we had distribuced
léotter than $0.25 million of free food stamps to the victims of the flood,

enator.

Mr. Ly~e. This type of action does not distort our budget estimates
as much as you might think, becanse we are spending so much money
in this program.

Senator PErcy. Yes.

M. Lyne. The whole question of estimates is a diflicult one. We ave
now beginning to build our estimates on the budget for fiscal 1974.
starting July 1, for next year. These will be submitted to the Office of
Management and Budget within a few months. and will be submitted
by the President, of course, in January. A good many things can
change in a program of this size, particularly the economy, and this
is one of the things—the improvements in the economy—have reduee:d
the money we have actually expended in the last few months.

e
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Senator Percy. I would like to ask about an area of the country
where we have not had a natural disaster, but a congressionally im-
posed disaster by a cutback in space programs and a cutback in the
military as well as a decline in commercial aireraft purchases, and that
is Seattle.?

Senator Magnuson and Senator Jackson have, of course, been deeply
interested in this area. My son and daughter-in-law live out there. and
I'have been keeping in touch with them as to the employment situation.
Senator Magnuson has sent the committee a communication on this
matter and I will see that it is printed in the hearing record.?

Do Huxcer ProprEsts Now ExisT 1N SEATTLE AREA?

Do you happen to know of any malnutrition or hunger problems that
now exist in the Seattle area because of widespread unemployment? I
know that both Senators were decply concerned at some time in the
past when Japan was offering food parcels for Seattle. They thought
it quite disgraceful.

Can you state that there is a dramatic improvement in that situa-
tion, that there is no hunger or malnutrition m Seattle now because of
unemployiment ?

Mr. Ly~a. I personally made a visit to Seattle. and there has been
a great hue and outery abont the economic problems in that area. T
think that they arve perhaps unique among the larger cities in the
United States 1 that we have in Seattle what could be termed a large
volume of the “new poor.” These would be people who had above-
average income and were snddenly unemployed in an area of wide-
spread and persistent unemployment. They had commitments for
honse payments, for life insuranee payments, for other types of pay-
ments thm made it extremely diflienlt for them, and they felt they had
no money available, if they lived up to these other commitments, for
food.

T fact. T suspeet in some households who were receiving normal wel-
fare payments or normal unemployment insurance checks. we were
finding some instances of outright hunger because these people were
nnable to allocate any of that money for food.

It ereated great problems—and with the Governor’s and the connty
exeentive’s cooperation——the Food Stamp Program worked as well in
King County and in the State of Washington asany place in the United
States. The amount of money we are putting out there is huge.

But we have people who were not eligible for food stamps. even
though their income was very low, beeause their assets were high. and
there was generated in Seattle a program called “Neighhors in Need.”
whieh was probably the outstanding vohnteer program in the United
States in terms of trying to help neighbors, But it was not—it was very
modust in comparison to the Food Stamp Program.

As a result of court action.® we permitted the State to institute a
simultaneous distribution of commodities to needy families along with
food stamps. not to the same families, but giving each family an op-

1 8o Seattle : Unemployment, the New Poor, and Innger, with <upnlement—Decem-
ber 1971+ committee nrint of the Select Committee on Nutritfon and Human Needs
2 8ee Appendix, p, 723,
. “01 See Seattle : “Unemployment, the New Poor, and Hunger,” with supplement-—pp.
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tion. The participation in that has not been as high as had been earlier
anticipated, becanse the qualifications remain the same.

We are currently completing a study of that dual system and within
the next month or so we should have a report on the cffects of the
system. But you are absolutely correct, Senator, the problem was se-
vere. We have evidence that the unemployment has improved and par-
ticipation in both programs hasbegun to fall off.

This would, however, normally take place at this time of year, when
people can move out into the forests and into lumbering and those
industries.

Senator Percy. I know that Senator Cranston has asked a question
along the lines that Mrs. Roy asked on June 7. And I do know that it is
always possible to find someone who says you need to do more, but I
think Mrs. Roy’s question was general enough, and there have been
enough similar inquiries of the committee that wonld really warrant
stating it just exactly as she stated it, because it scems to sum up how
some people feel, and I would like to give you an opportunity to
respondto it.

She said :

Iwould like to say why is it that they take the money and put it back into the
'L‘reﬂygy when they could be helpful to the semnior citizens to get more food
stamps and pay less?

Mrs. Roy was the woman who lives within a mile or a mile and a
half of the Capitol, in her 70's. and is a diabetic. She also said:

You pay more and get less stamps, and they don't last. So I would like to
know, why would they want to put money back in the Treasury when it is
needed out here? It could be very well used out here.

I promised Ler Twould ask that question of you in the opening ques-
tion, and I neglected to ask it as the first question. but as the third
one, T still askit.

Ecoxoxty Digr ALLOWANCE ADEQUATE. Bt MiNnran

My, Lyxa, Well, T think you are correct when yon sav we could al-
ways give more. Our goals in this program. the goal of this committee.
reallyv. has heen to eliminate hunger. We have gone a long way in pro-
viding the vesonrcesto do just that.

Obviously. the levels at which we are giving resources—whether it
bein terms of food stamps or in terms of welfare or in rent subsidies—
all of these do not take people out of the “poverty” classification. So
that the people wonld like to have more. They would have to budget
very, very carefully. Senator Perey. on these diets. economy diets, as
we call them. There is just no question of that. We think it is adequate.
but it is minimal.

Senator Prrey. She maintains it is simplv not adequate. She has
certain things she can and cannot eat. and they are more costly. and
she is out of her stamps in a week and a half. .

My, Lyxa. T would think that we have dieticians that conld assist
her on this: hut. perhaps. if she has a special health problem. it is
madequate.

The fact 1s that we are not retnrning to the Treasnry £400 million.
This is an appropriation ficure which we simplv are not drawing out.
and it is an open-end program. If participation were higher. we would
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be spending money. There has been no limit on the numbers of people
thatcould participate.

Now. the question of whether we have money left over or not is not
reallv related to the amount we give per person. You could say in this
particular instance that we should have expended it. You can’t do
that in a program of this size—increase and then. conversely. decrease
it if the amount of money appears inadequate. I think the two ques-
tions need to be discussed separately. We are always going to have to
have enongh money in our appropriations to take care of our antici-
pated needs. or else we are going to have to come in for a supple-
mental. Coneress has indicated that the economy diet that we are using
is a figure that thev believe correct. That was our recommendation,
because of the severe cost involved in the more expensive diet.

As a matter of fact. we believe that in most instances, when we
stndy the budgets of these people, their problems are very often re-
lated to other expenditures. and that if there were an adequate amount
of monev for rent or for other expenditures under welfare. that they
would concede that the food problem isn't that great.

But the big problem in this country today is that food is the “aive”
point among poor people. It is the one flexible point that they have.
As vou point out. rent is not flexible.

Senator Perey. T am serving on the Special Committee on Aainge.
and T have spent a lot of time visiting in nursing homes, and T will
be visiting them again this weckend. Every weekend T try to go to
nursing homes to understand how we are caring for the elderly. and
tlmgcost., once a person gets in a nursing home, is very great: $450
or {500,

One home T was in. in Sprinefield. T11.. had 44 patients. and 43 were
on public aid. So the Federal Treasury is paying for virtually all that
cost,

T visited a lot of people. and T visited the Meals on Wheels and de-
livered some of them last month. T went into homes of people who
were trying desperately to stay out of a nursing home. To them that
was the end of the road. a warchouse for the dying, they conldn't
stand the thought. Yet they get one meal a day delivered to them
by the Meals on Wheels, 5 days a week. There was enongh in these
casesthat T visited to keep them out of the nursing home. It cost $1.75
plus the delivery service, very low when compared to the cost of the
nursing homes,

These-two women that were here were not only diabetics. but they
had heart problems. Thev don’t want to go to a hospital. If thev go
to a hosnital. all of a sudden. what is the cost to maintain them in a
hospital? It is very, very high, and we pick up 100 percent of the tab.

Erperry Gary Werenr 13 Hoserrars

If thev are over 65. we pay for it. Thev are trving to stav out. Pro-
fessor Mayer* testified at our hearings that clderlv people are the
only people that gain weight when thev oo to a hospital. the only
group that gain weight. They gain weight hecaunse they get three
good meals a dav, and they apparently need that food. and the body
absorbs that food.

*See Part 2, pp. 254-206.
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So what I am trying to figure out is how do you get away from a
system which provides a reward to be hospitahzed. The elderly are
well taken cave of in hospitals or they may enter a nursing home. They
never have to worry the rest of their lives about where a meal comes
from.

But these people, and there are millions of them, or at least hundreds
of thousands, ave trying to hang onto their own home, wherever they
may be, and stay somehow with the aid of a feeding program that 1s
very low cost. It is pennies compared to a hospital or the nursmi; hoine,
and they are a public charge the rest of their lives and they live an-
other 10 or 15 years.

So how do we justify that we are not gensrous when we are dealing
with very small amounts as against the “sky is the limit” over there
on the other end? We will take care of them forever, no matter what
that cost is, then, once they are indigent and old and hospitalized.

What we are really trying to do 1s to justify the fact that you are
making an investment in people that is far less costly to the public
than if they become a case for HEW.,

Mr. Lyxe. I really think, too, Senator, that 1 would have to agree
with you. I think that the family feeding program of food stamps
which was generated to actually allocate a portion of resources to
foods, rather than give cash, is probably not as appropriate for aged
people. They don’t have the chil(lmn to care for. 1t seems to me that we
might be wise, as a Nation, to perhaps eliminate the high administra-
tive costs of the Food Stamp Program in terms of elderly people. Of
course, the administration has been trying to move in this direction in
terms of HL.R. 1 for families as well; but, particularly for elderly
people, there seems to me to be justification for a cash allowance to
give them flexibility touse that cash in many ways.

Senator Percy. Mr. Chairman, I have some other questions, but I
would like to alternate with you, and I will come back, then.

Lawsuvir To Estannisii NUtRITIONALLY ADEQUATE DirTs

Senator Craxstox. Fine,

I want to just clarify why I indicated that there was evidence that
the Department itself had concern about the economy diet for older
people. At the June 7 hearing, Arthur Schiff of New York was testi-
fying. He spoke about the lawsuit where New York City, along with
the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and the National Welfare Rights

Organization sued the USDA to provide free food stamps. He said
the following:

A hearing on the snit will be held in June or early July. We have established

the following through pretrial depositions and statements made by Agriculture:
The economy diet plan on which USDA bases its food stamp allotment is de-
ficient in four nutrients.
And he goes on to say that it is incontestible that the economy diet plan
is not nutritionally adequate. He says that USDA recommends that
more money be spent on the food than the economy diet plan calls for.
The exact statement made by UUSDA, is in the record of the depo-
sition of Dr. Robert Rizek of the Department of Agriculture, and he is
in the Agricultural Research Service, as I understand it. It says that
studies show that few families spending at the level of the economy
plan select foods that provide nutritionally adequate diets, and so
forth.
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Many welfare agencies base their food costs on the USD.A food
plan which costs about 235 percent more than the economy plan.

Then the witness testified that that would generally be considered
the low-cost diet plan, so USDA admits itself that it requires more
Inoney than the economy diet plan calls for to get nutritional ade-
qlu_acy. That is where we have corflicting testimony from USDA on
this point,

Mr. Lyxa. I haven’t seen the depositions, and apparently the at-
torneys for the plaintiffs in this case gave this to Dr. Schiff, who js a
plaintiff, Well, there is a pamphlet that has been circulating for some
time which seemns similar to the one you quoted, in which one person
some years ago made this kind of comment. But the official position of
the Department and of the Agricultural Research Service is that
the economy diet will provide an adequate nutrition diet and meet the
terms of the food stamp legislation.*

This is, as you say, Mr. Chairman, a matter that is currently being
litigated, and if our interpretation of the law is incorrect, I presume
that the courts will so indicate.

Senator Cransrox. Fine.

I have one more question on the food stamps. and it relates to yonr
opening statement about the number of counties. You narrowed it
down to eight that are not actively participating, but as I under-
stand it, there are 244 counties that have been designated for or re-
quested food stamps, but don’t yet have their programs actually
in operation, Is that the case ?

Mr. Ly~e. There are a number of counties—I am not sure whether
that is the accurate number, I am told it is 971.

There are 133 counties among those that have been designated that
have not yet implemented the program. It takes an astonishingly
long time for the counties to move in that direction. Most of these
counties, or all of these counties, would now have a food distribution
program.

Senator Craxsrox. Apart from the eight, there are only 133 that are
not participating ?

Mr. Ly~a. No, Senator. I had better straighten out this confusion.
We have about 3,100 counties and approximately 2,100 of those have
food stamps. About 1,000 of them have commodities. So that, in all,
but for a very few counties, there js either a commodity program
available to families, or a Food Stamp Program.

Senator Cranstox. In addition to the 133 counties that have been
designated, how many others have been designated ?

Mr. Lyxe. I don’t think there are any. We designated all that were
pending a couple of weeks ago.

Heap Starr Excrusion Froat Secrion 18 Funbps

Senator Craxsrox. Thank you very much. I want to switch now to
some _questions about Head Start, Could Mr. Rorex explain the ra-
tionale for the November 1969 decision to exclude Head Start pro-
grams from eligibility for Section 13 food assistance funds?

Mr. Rorex, At that date, Senator, the Head Start program, of course.
was already a viable program, and on the books and budgeted, and
the OEO budget requests were in their appropriation,

* See Appendix, pp. 759, 761,
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The funds were runnir g rather short and the ITead Start were buy-
ing from both programs. We, in the division, met with the appropriate
people in OEO and came to an administrative decision—trying to
straighten out the administrative channels so that the sponsors at the
State and local level wounld have some understanding of where they
should go for assistance. At that time we arrived at the policy position
that on-going IHead Start programs would continue to be funded by
Iead Start, and those new ones that had no food assistance funds
would apply to the Departient.

Senator Craxstox. Senator Percy, becanse of your time problems,
I yield to you.

Senator I’krcy. Secretary Lyng, I told Senator Cranston that we
had an important board meeting at the Kennedy Center, and I repre-
sent the Senate on that board, and 1 will have to go over there. So
I will try to finish iy questions as quickly as possible.

I would appreciate your comments on Mr. Kramer’s testimony at
the June 7 {learing. Ile said there are 25.9 million poor people in
America. 44 percent of 11.5 million are receiving food stamps, 3.3 mil-
lion receive comnodities. In other words, 57 percent of the poor receive
food assistance, 43 percent, in Mr. Kramer’s words, “nothing at all.”

I have three questions based on these data. Are these data correct?
If so, is 57 percent of the poor a good record in your opinion? And,
why 1s it that 43 percent of the poor are getting nothing at all in the
way of nutritional services?

Mr. Ly~a. The statistics in a sense compare apples and oranges, but
that, again, would be an oversimplification. The census figures of those
who are below the poverty level relate to income. Eligibility for food
stamps relates to both income and assets, so that some of those among
that 24 million perhaps would not be eligible, certainly would not be
eligible for food stamps, because their assets would exceed, and I am
thmking in terms of many farmers, for example, who might in a
given year have no income, but have substantial assets. That is the
reason for having an asset qualification.

But they are st1}l considered poor in that census.

Senator Percy. They are considered among the poor?

Mr. Lyxg. They are, yes, because that is an 1income classification,
only income, no relationship to assets.

Second, it implies that the 15 million, or nearly 15 million partici-
pants in the food programns is a static popuiation, whereas some
studies* that we have made, in one connty, particularly in South Caro-
lina, indicated that in the course of a year the total number of par-
ticipants was 165 percent of the average caseload, so that there is a
movement within that number. The people come mn and drop out as
they get income, seasonally employm{) people, and this sort of thing,
are ncluded. So that we think we are serving a substantially greater
percentage than 57 percent of the census poor.

I would point out that this exceeds the number of people on public
assistance, in federally aided public assistance in this country. We
have more people in the family programs than are in that.

This is not to say that we are reaching everyone that we should.
As I pointed out in my comments today, there are many counties and

* See Appendix, p. 757.
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~oille States that are not doing as good a job in terms of administering
the program that we would like to have.

The Federal availability of the programs is there. Qur efforts to
stimulate these counties and States continue ever more vigorously in
terms of outreach, in terms of adiministrative skills, in terms of making
the programs available, but I don't think—-

Senator Percy. You do not feel that there is a great problem or
ignorance of the existence of the program, and that is weventing a
person from requesting or attaining help, Lecause they ({on’t know it
exists ?

Aware or Ixistine Procrams

Mr. Lyyxe. No. Perhaps the biggest impediment to members of that
24 or 25 million })eople participating is that, at the upper-income levels
within this whole field, the bonus is relatively small. As we move into
variable purchase, it will inake it possible for the people to participate.
When they have other very pressing needs, many times i the past,
particularly they have had trouble getting enough of their cash to-
gether to make a food stamp purchase, even though it would make
good sense for them to do it, but it becomes a burdensome problem.
Non:etimes they will drop out of the progran.

Senator Prxcy. The figure was given that 52 percent of those on pub-
lic assistance do not receive food stamps. Thesv are, of course, not
people who have a lot of assets. Is this figure correct in your judgment,
and why is this the case?

Mr. Ly~e. T am not familiar with that.

Mr. Kociier. That was included as part of Mr, Kramer's testimony.
He included States and counties where the food program is the com-
modity program rather than food stamps. He did not count in that
analysis the participants in that family feeding program as part of his
percentage.

As near as we can put the figures back together, including the gen-
eral assistance, which he also left out of his analysis, we are reaching
approximately 60 percent of the total public assistance case load with
one of our two family feeding programs. In a study done by Pro-
fessor Don F. Hadwiger out in Towa about 3 years ago, he found that
there was a substantial percentage in Towa, roughly 30 percent, that
lived in homes where the primary source of income was not ublic
assistance; or who were in nursing homes, hos itals or otherwise in-
eligible for the food stamps. So what we are talking about is approxi-
mately 10 percent that are cligible, on a nationwide basis, of the public
assistance case load that are not participating in the program.

Senator Prrcy. T have used the comparison that any place in the
world, it doesn’t matter where our troops happen to be, we are able to
feed them three square meals a day. Certainly we know everythin
about our people in the service, millions of people, and in Vorl
War II it was 10 or 11 million people. Right now we _analyze their
urine pretty carefully for drugs and so forth. There is nothing we
don’t know about these people. Yet Mr. Kramer pointed out that 43
percent of the total nunber of poor people—that is, the 11 million
boor people—iere not receiving food assistance. He said, “We really
have no idea who those 11 million are, the elderly, young, black, white,
chicano, we have no idea.”
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Would it be desirable for us to know more about the poor in the
comntry, and would the Department benefit by having more knowl-
edge of the characteristics of those who are not participating® Isn’t
this crucial data that we need in order to estimate the amount of hun-
ger and malnutrition ¢

Mr. Ly~e. Yes; I suppose, Senator, that it will always be desirable
if we have more facts, because we get into the kind of conjecture that
perhaps both Mr. Kramer and I are guilty. I will deny that he is cor-
rect when he said that 43 percent do not participate. This, as I pointed
out, would indicate a static situation.

On the other hand, T have no hard evidence to show what percent-
age, of this 11 million he is referring to, do receive these programs
at times.

Stunies Must BE ApsoLuTery OQnyective

On the other hand, too, we know in talking to the poor that most
of them say they have been studied to death. The numbers of studies
that have geen made for poor people have been very frustrating to
poor people. We ask all kinds of questions and analyze them and so
forth, and many times if we don’t get from the study the answer we
are looking for—we disregard the study. So if we are going to make
studies of this kind, I would hope they would be made in absolute ob-
jectivity so that we are not prejudging before we even start as to what
the results should be.

Senator Peroy. Would you concur with nutrition experts though,
that now as we work toward a welfare reform program we are going
to have to know a lot more about why so many people do not have
gainful employment, lack of education, or whatever it may be? Lack
of nutrition, the sapping of strength in the body many times might
possibly be a reason for poor performance on the job, or for just the
lack of energy, the initiative. When you have the flu, you just don’t
like getting out of bed; and, sometimes I believe people in the con-
dition of malnutrition have a constant case of flu, insofar as its effect
on the human system is concerned. Now isn’t this an important part of
trying to figure out why we have as many incidents of unemployment
and therefore public assistance cases among our people. Wouldn’t
malnutrition ¥ossibly play arole in this?

Mr. Ly~e. I am sure there can be little question of that, but malnu-
trition can also be, as you pointed out, the result of poor health. In
many of the surveys we have done, we have found that, rezardless of
what we do in terms of food programs, we can’t solve a health problem.
I am referring particularly to the intestinal parasites.

Senator Prrcy. It is true that malnutrition leads to the health prob-
lems sometimes?

Mr. L~eg. Or the other way around. If an infant has intestinal para-
sites, it isalmost impossible to provide adequate nutrition.

Cax't Sorve Poverry ProsLeM sy Foop Oxry

So I believe you are perfectly correct when you think in terms of
this, when you think in a broad zociological sense. We in the Depart-
ment of Agriculture have tried as best we can to administer this pro-
gram in full cooperation with other agencies that are perhaps more
expert than we in this area—OEQ, HEW, and so on. But I think it is
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appropriate now—that as we have achieved at least a very definite nar-
rowing of this gap—that we begin to look at the whole problem of
poverty and not try to solve that problem by simply adding more funds
to the feeding programs.

Senator PErcy. Senator Cranston, I would like to follow up on your
question and pin it down a little more as to the time frame in which
USDA discovered they were going to have a surplus. But if you intend
to do that——

Senator Cranstoxn. You go ahead.

Senator Percy. If T understand the thrust of the June 7 statement,
the basic reason for the surplus in the Food Stamp Program this year
is the estimate about participation and expansion of the program,
made as @ &mrt of the planning and budgeting cycle. was not actually
borne out. I state this because we are going to face this situation again
a year from now and, I hope we don’t have to hold similar hearings.
In what months were the original estimates actually made, and were
theestimatesever revised ?

Mr. Ly~e. Our original estimates—I am guessing now—were prob-
ably finally made in October of 1970—that is for this fiscal year. Per-
haps it was November. The official transmission of those to the Con-
gress was made in January of 1971. in the President’s hudget.

Our estimates were not revised. The Congress, the appropriations
committees, after our testimony, did add $200 million finally to the
Department of Agriculture appropriation bill over and above our
original request. So to that extent, the origina® fizures were revised.

This, plus money that was put in as carryover from the preceding
year, was done by the Congress with a request that we expand the
Erogmm to those counties that had applied for the grogmm, but that

ad not been designated. Subsequent to that, we did designate, and our
estimates—which I get every month—first of all. I get them from
the Food and Nutrition Service. I get a figure of monthly vxpendi-
tures on food stamps, nearly 2 months after the fact, because the
figures comeir from the States.

During the early part of the fiscal year. there was no apparent
change in onr estimates. It wasn’t until we began to see that there was
going to be a delay in implementation of the new regulations, which
we felt would have the effect of increasing costs and participation,
that we began to see that we would have a fairly sizable surplus. Even
then we conldn’t estimate it.

ExpECTED ProoraM INCREASE DIDN'T MATERIALIZE

I can recall a reporter from the New York Times asking me about
this when he noticed that we were spending—I forget the exact
figure—about $150 million in the month of December, I think. or per-
haps January, and he multiplied that out. and he said that didn’t come
out to the amount you have in the appropriation.

I said, “I know, but we expect a substantial bulge in this program
as we move into the spring.” It didn’t develop.

Senator Percy. Was the prospect of a surplus ever reported to
Congress? . .

Mr. Lyne. I don’t know that it was, officially. I am riot quite sure
whether we were aware of it whollv at the time we spoke to the ap-
propriations committees. I can’t recail.
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Senator Percy. Was there any internal discussion as to whether
there should not be a liberalization of the program; as long as it was
known the funds were available, and there was a need for certain
liberalizations § ) ) )

Mr. Lrxe. We couldn’t do that, Senator. We didn't give that serious
consideration because it is not a practical alternative, As I had ex-
plained, if we had determined to get rid of the money, the counties
simply would not have been able to do it. If we did that, we would
then be forced to make the decisions as to whether you continue to do
that after July 1, or come to the Congress and asked for a whopping
increase in the budget. Obviously, we did not want to do thet.

Senator Percy. Mr. Kramer made a point for liberalization. His
point was that the consumer price index had risen faster than the
allotment value of stamps. And even taking into account the schedule
which goes into effect on July 1, the consumer price index will have
gone uﬂ 240 g‘ercent higlier than will have the allotment value,

Mr. Lyne. Those figures are grossly inadequate, or inaccurate. They
are simply not true.

The Agricultural Research Service calculates the cost of the econ-
omy diet, and that is the thing that determines the figure we use. Itis
a market-basket approach, and we have not had that kind of increase
in the cost of the price of food.* We moved $58 to $62 in 1970 to
$106 in 1969—and we modified that based upon the change in the
cost of food to $108; and, more recently, we have announced that it
will be $112.

These reflect changes in the cost of food since we established the
$106 figure, that is, $106 for a family of four.

Senator Percy. I quote another witness, Mr. Schiff, who makes a
statement comparable to letters we have reccived from California,
IMinois, Indiana, and Florida—all over the country. He said, “All
families on welfare in New York City will fmy a greater percentage
mcrease in the cost of stamps than tKe will receive in stamp allot-
ments.” In other words, his question is, ﬁ’ow can this be justified given
the surplus in food stamp budgets in this fiscal year.

Mr. Lyna. I repeat, Senator, we made no change after July 1 of
last year. The change that we made becomes effective on July 1 of
this year. It has nothing whatsoever to do with the surplus during this
year. >
Senator Cranston. There is 2 rolleall. Senator Percy will preside
while I am gone. But just one brief comment. The increases in the food
stamp allotment only reflects increases in the foods in the hypothetical
Economy Food Plan. Things like rice and beans, that do not change
in price. Unfortunately, most poor people are not professional nu-
tritionists. They want meat occasionally, and they do not know pre-
cisely what is in that food plan. For them, as for all consumers, Mr.
Kramer's figures are correct: The cost of food has gone up 200% or
more than the vaiue of food stamps.

Senator Percy (presiding). Mr. Kramer made the point that, on the
average, people pay 12.5 percent of their disposable income for food.
Certsinly Secretary Butz has made a very strong case for this to the
public, as aguinst 8 much higher proportion 2 decades ago.

But Mr. Kramer makes this point, that a family of four with an in-
come of $150 a month will have to spend at least 27.5 percent of its in-

® See Appendix, pp. 771, 177,
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come on food stamps. The question is, why should we not reduce the
price of stamps? According to Mr. Kramer, this would bring in many
people not covered by the program. The question is, would this be a
wise expenditure of funds?

Poor Srexp Hiemer PErcExTAGE FOR Foob

Mr. Livxo. Well, you are getting into a question that has some great
fiscal implications, and would be very exTnsive. We have been trying
to set up the food stamp schedules on a basis that no one would pay
more than 30 percent of their income for food. Most pay a good deal
less than that, and it is arranged so that the poorest of the poor pay
far less, and some of them pay nothing. But there is no question about
it, that the average rate of expenditure for food by lower income peo-
ple, whether they are recipients of food stamps or aot, is a higher per-
centase of income. To the extent you try to equalize that, I think that
should be taken up, as I said before, in the total context of what the
Government is doing for needy people, in terms of all of the other as-
sistance projects. But if we put the kinds of funds into the food pro-
gram that Mr. Kramer would suggest, it would make the program, in
my opinion, far too expensive. The poor would be better off if addi-
tionxl funds were z;pent in some other way.

Senaicr Perey. T would like to give you an o’p];:)rtunity, Mr. Secre-
tary, to refer to tne publication, “Half a Loaf,” that was put out; and
if we do not have time before I go over to vote, then T will submit them
for the record.

This report, “Half a Loaf,” states, on page 1,.that the surplus oc-
curring in most of the programs has been known to USDA officials
since October or Novemger of 1971. Is that true?

Mr. Liy~e. It is not true. . )

Senator Percy. It states, “The USDA pursues policies that limits

articipation in programs by writing restrictive regulations and deny-
ing applications for new or expanded programs.” Is that true?

Mr. Ly~a. That is not true.

Senator PrrcY. On page 2 it states, “Secretary Butz pledged in Jan-
uary that no recipients of food stamps would lose benefits because of
new regulations.” Is this true? If so, why this contradiction ?

Mr. Ly~a. The regulations put out pursuant to Secretary Butz ful-
filled precisely— .

Senator Percy. He pledged no recipient would lose benefits. Th « re-
port states, “Regulations were implgﬁed which reduced benefits.”

Mr. Ly~o. That is incorrect. There were no regulations imposed
which reduced benefits.

Senator Percy. So his pledge was fulfilled? )

Majority staff indicated that this is contrary to testimony that Mrs.
Cain offered, for instance; and, I believe her testimony was that she
had actually been reduced in benefits.

1 would suggest in this particular instance that we leave that part of
the testimony open.* .

Is it true that 244 counties have either requested or been designated
for the Food Stamp Program, but do not yet have a program n
operation ?

¢ See Appendix, p. 729,
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Mr. Lyxe. That is incorrect. The figure I gave earlier of 133 coun-
ties, they have been designated for food stamps, but have not imple-
mented the program. It should be noted, however, that all of those
counties have a family distribution program.

Senator Percy. The question is, is the 244 figure correct?

Mr. Ly~e. No; it isinaccurate.

Senator Percy. Majority staff maintain they receivad that figure
from the Department itself. I think there has to be a clarification. We
will hold the record open. Try to clear up this contradiction.

(The TUSDA furnished theg)llowing:)

FROM THE USDA

As of February 18, 1972, there were 244 project areas designated for the Food
Stamp Program. However, since that date 111 project areas have actually begun

operating the program, so 133 counties which bhad been designated have not as
yet implemented the program.

STAFF COMMEN"

The 244 county figure was obtained from USDA by telephone, apparently {rom
USDA staff who did not have access to the material submnitted for this hearing
record. In any case, the remaining 133 counties requesting, but stili without

programs, represent moie than a year’s delay in implementation—the point
made in the report.

Senator Percy. Does a surplus of $136 million exist in the budget
for donated foods?

Mr. Ly~Ne. That figure is still imprecise. We, just yesterday, an-
nounced the purchase of a couple of million dollars in eggs. We con-
tinue to buy commodities. There probably will be a surplus in donated
foods for needy families, but very recently it has come to my atten-
tion we have gone over our budget in terms of donated foods to
schools. One of the reasons for tlis is that we have—

Senator Prrcy. Mr. Secretary, I will have to regretfully recess
until Senator Cranston returns. That is my final call on the vote.

Recess.]
enator Kex~NEdy (presiding). We will come to order. I want to
reopen this nearing with a question raised yesterday.

Could you elaborate briefly as to whether there was any legislative
history that led you to expect that the exclusion of Head Start from
eligibility of Section 13 funds was intended by the Congress?

Mr. Lyxe. T will ask Mr. Rorex to respond to that.

Senator Kexxepy. Fine.

DeparT™MENT Drcistoxy oy Heap Starr Excrustoy

Mr. Rorex. Senator. at-the time Section 13 of the National School
Lunch Act went on the books as an amendment to the National School
Lunch Act. Head Start was an ongoing program at that time. They
had a very good budget. ench Head Start had a nutritional food as-
sistance component already included in the budget. Section 13 was
put on the books as a pilot program with a very small budget. and at
the time that the next budget was presented there were meetings be-
tween the officials of the two agencies and the OMB and it was de-
cided that Head Start or OEO would continue to request funding for
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the ongoing Head Start program, and Section 13 funds would be for
those child care centers that were not Head Start and had no food
assistance.

That is not necessarily the legislative history that I am quoting,
but that was the background that led to the continued separate fund-
ing of the two programs.

Senator Kexxepy. Where in the legislation do you see that, could
youtellus?

Mr. Lyxe. T don’t believe, Senator. that it is in the legislation. It
was actually done in the appropriations actions. ’

Senator Kex~epy. What do you follow, the law, or the appropri-
ations? I mean, what governs? As a member of two authorizing com-
mittees. do we have any function up here? .

Mr. Ly~e. Of course. In this particular case, both agencies ap-
parently had authority for carrving out the food programs under
Head Start. Inasmuch as OEO had that authority and had the budget.
we in the Department of Agriculture allowed them to continue the
program.

Senator Kex~roy. Didn’t HEW agree not to apply for the USDA
funds in 1969 for Head Start?

Mr. Ly~e. T think it was OEO.

Senator Kex~Nepy. Could you comment on that?

Mr. Rorex. It was OEO at that time, Senator. but they did agree
not to apply because their program was already funded.

Senator Kex~eoy. Then what happened? What was the policy of
!:he]_U%I])A then? As T understand, they declared all the Head Starts
ineligrible. ]

Mr. Rorex. The policy of the USDA was to direct Section 13 funds
to child care centers which had no nutritional comgonent funding from
any other source. That continued until we had the meeting with the
OEO people in November of 1969 when their funds began to run
short, and we reached the administrative agreement that OEO would
continue to request budgets for and fund ongoing Head Start pro-
grams and new ones could and would apply to USDA.

Senator Kenxepy. Isn't that different from making them ineligible
for the funds?

Mr. Lyne. It wasa change.

Mr. Rorex. It was a change, yes.

Maxy Fuxps Evrminatepr From NEeoY CuroreN PrOGRAMS

Senator Kex~eoy. What was the result of the change? Asa result of
the change. there were a lot of funds that didn’t go into programs for
needy children.

Mr. Rorex. Senator. the result of the change was that OEO continued
to fund the ongsing Head Start programs that they had and they
continued to have a nutritional program.

USDA used available funds for non-Head Start programs which
had no other Federal assistance for their nutritional programs, and the
funds have been pretty much used up to the level of the authorized
appropriation.

. Senator Kexneoy. Have you reviewed or had the opportunity to re-
view Congressman Vanik’s testimony, as the author of the legislution,
as to what he intended? Does that carry any weight?
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Mr. Rorex. Yes, sir; I have read Congressman Vanik's testimony,
and it does carry weight. The testimony did not indicate that Con-
gressman Vanik wanted the Section 13 money to replace Head Start
support for nutritional assistance. Therefore, the administrative agree-
ment that they would continue with the ongoing program and we
would consider the child care centers who had no nutritional funding
at that time was reached.

Senator Kexnepy. Given your interpretation of the authority, you
must be aware that there are scores of Head Start programs anxious
to receive funds under Section 13, are there not ?

Mr. Rorex. I am aware there are several programs that have re-
ported not receiving funds under Section 13.

Senator Kexxepy. Or that they desire to receive funds?

Mr. Rorex. Yes.

Senator Kexxeoy. How do you respond to that? What do you do
about that?

Mr. Rorex. The way we respond to that, Senator, is to point out the
authorizing legislation and the positioning of the funds and the ap-

ortionment formula on a State basis; that some States, based on the
evel of program operations, are short of funds and others have excess
funds; and we expect to try to recapture some of the unneeded funds
from the long States anc. get them to the short States as early in the
year as we can. We do that usually in the beginning of the fourth
quarter of the year; and we have done it this year. We try to make
maximum use of the funds available under the existing legislation.

Senator Kex~epy. Then is it the cungressional, or the fault of
Congress, for some way drafting legislation that prohibits funds from
going into the areas of the greatest need, or what?

Mr. Lyne. Senator, this has been a very fast changing program and
an ~xpanding program, and as many of our food programs were, they
we.e grant-in-aid funds to the States on a formula allocation basis.
Once allocated, it becomes difficult for us.to reallocate to those States
where the program is expanding, or to get the money back from those
States where they are not using it.

More recently, in this last year, we have changed the School Lunch
Program, a much larger program, into a performance basis, an output
basts, rather than on a State allotment basis.

This, perhaps, would be an approach that would permit its use in
both of these programs. On the 7th of June, we reviewed all the non-
school feeding areas—I reported this on June 7—and presented to
Congress our recommendations as to legislation to continue it, because
it is apparent that legis!gtion is essential. The authority runs out next
year anyway. -

Departuent RUte Crzatep INELIGIBILITY

Senator Kexneoy. Congressman Vanik testified yesterday, “As I
state in the beginning of my testimony, Section 13 was specifically
designed to use the expirtness and resources of the Department of
Agriculture to help make programs like sTead Start a success. Yet
against the direct will of Congr-ss on ¥ovember 12, 1969, the Depart-
ment of Agriculture issued a ruling declaring that Head Start pro-

ams not funded Lefore November 1 are ineligit': to participate in

ection 13.” That is what he says in his statement. What does that
mean to you?
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Mr. Lyne. As T understand and recall it, at that time OEO had
about $40 million in their budget for funding the feeding programs of
the Head Starts. We had in our total nonschool feeding program about
$5 million that year. It made good sense for us to restrict the use of
that $5 million to see that it was not a movement away from the OEQ
appropriation toward ours.

But in contrast to what you have just read, we did offer consider-
able technical assistance to Head Start people, and expertise, even
though we did not fund the programs.

Senator Kennepy. Has HEW ever approached the USDA about
having Head Start feedin g assumed under Section 13?

Mr. Liyxe. They haven’t talked to me about it. Perhaps they have
with Mr. Rorex.

Mr. Rorex. Yes, sir; Senator, we have been a proached by the OCD
people to take over the funding of Head Start. but no offer to transfer
any of the funds that are now being used for nutrition support in Head
Start programs to the Department.

Senator KexxEpy. Did you agree at that meeting to write them into
the regulations? Rather, into the budget request for 197317

Mr. Rorex. Representatives of the agency. with me »t that meeting.
agreed to see what could be done about including Head Start in
future budgets of the Department; * and, at my level, that was started
and when it renched the final level it was still not in the agency Ludget.
but was continued in OCD’s budget.

Senator KexNEpY. When it reached what level 2

Mr. Rorex. When it reached higher levels; that is, OMB and the
Secretary’s level.

Senator KEXNEDY. You mean OMB struck that down ?

Mr. Rorex. I would have to let someone else answer that. Senator.

Senator KexNeEvy. But it was requested. Just because we don’t want
to put vou in a spot, we had the testimony this was agreed on. and we
find OMB doing it to us all the time. It doesn’t make us any happier.
So we want to try and find out where the problem is. but as T under-
stan(zi it, you included it in your recommendation. Am I correct in
that

“ExcLupe” Decision Mave ar Hieuer Lever

Mr. Rorex. When the budget material left my level. it had two
figures, one including Head Start and one not including Head Start,
and the decision was made at a higher level to delete the Head Start
request.

Senator Kexnrpy. Mr. Lyng. could vou tell us at all about that?

Mr. Lirxe. I guess I am a higher level, Senator, but I don’t recall
participating in that decision.

Senator Kexxepy. Where did it go? Did it get lost some place be-
tween you two? .

Mr, Liyne. I am afraid my memory fails me if T was involved in it.
Whether it was done at the departmental level or done at the OMB,
I simply don’t know. .

Senator Kennepy. If it had been drawn to your attention, would
you have supported it ?

* See Appendix, p. 788.
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Mr. Lyng. I really would want to look into it even more today to
determine that. I am not just as familiar with this whole question of
Head Start funding as I might be. T have great respect for Mr.
Rorex’s expertise. If he believes that it should be funded by the De-
partment of Agriculture, I would be inclined, generally, to go along
with his recommendation.

Senator Kexnepy. Well, are you going to look into that now?
Mr. Lywne. Yes, . ]
Senator Kennepy. Would you write to our chairman, and I will

make the request on behalf of the chairman, so we find out what your
determination is?

Mr. Ly~e. Fine
Regarding this request, no information was supplied.

Senator KexNepy. Is the Department of Agriculture aware of the
need and the request for additional funds for year-round Section 13
programs other than Head Start?

Mr. Ly~g. Yes.

Senator Kex~Nepy. What can you tell us about that? How big is the
need? What have you been impressed by and how strongly do you
feel about the need ? Tell usabout that.

Mr. Ly~c. I don’t have the figures on the growth in these programs
before me.

Senator Ken~NEepy. The estimate has been that the programs have -

doubled, as a round figure.

Mr. Ly~Ne. We have expanded our budget on this. I gave some figures
on that both in my testimony of last week and again today. As we
look ahead to fiscal 1973, there is a further expansion in the Presi-
dent’s budget, as I recall, but not as great as it has been.

Senator Kenxepy. As I understand it, there is no expansion for
Section 13. Do you know if there is?

Mr. Ly~c. Referring to the total ¢

Senator Ken~epy. Referring to Section 13.

Mr. Rorex. The answer is that there is an expansion in the total
Section 13 program.

Senator KexNepy. Isn’t that the Summer Lunch Program?

Mr. Rorex. The great proportion of that is for the summer feeding
program.

Senator Kex~Nepy. What about the rest of the yenr?

ANTICIPATES 40-PERCENT INCREASE For StvMMErR Luncu

Mr. Rorex. The funds we have in the carryover from this year’s
funds and the budget request for next year, we anticipate we have
enough funds for about a 40-percent increase over this year’s operations.

Senator Kexneoy. Those carry-overs. As one who has just served
about 10 years in the Senate under both Democrats and Republicans,
to me, it is really one of the most sinister aspects of the whole legisla-
tive process—because we see the carryovers are used. You rarely get it
when it comes to DOD or any of the other programs, but we get carry-
overs. We see the fact that the administrations, and I include that of
my own party as well as the present, that they discourage applications,
reduce the kinds of requests and sort of dampen all of this down. Then

ey
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we are put in the perplexing position of hearing, you know, the cry of
people who are working in these programs for increased demands. Just
yesterday we heard from the directors of both the New York programs
and my own State of Massachusetts, and Congressman Vanik—who
included in his testimeny the responses of some 19 different States
which are seeking additional funss. He indicated that—I think, if
you have reviewed that testimony—they thought a doubling would be
a reasonable expectation to be able to cope with the problem.

I would think that, given the kind of urgency that the President has
talked about on this program—nhis statements and comments—given
the fact that this program, unlike many others, has the infrastructure
of bills and the reviews made, and when they made those applications
in terms of total needs of hungry children, that we could do getter than
the 40 Ipercent just for summer programs.

As I say, just the request for the increase for the summer months is
not really for the cther programs. The year-round programs remain
frozen.

This is only a statement of mine, you don’t have to comment on it
unless you would like to; however, I wish you would.

Mr. Liyne. Senator, I would comment that we have expanded this
program rather substantially. It is still one that needs to be kept in the
context of the total effort that is being made in terms of proviging nu-
tritional resources to needy families.

We have been talking a good deal earlier this morning about food
stamps, our major program in terms of the need. This 1s a program
that has expanded very rapidly—and will in the next year—and has
gone up tenfold in the 4 years we have been here.

At the same time, our commodity program has remained almost con-
stant with total participation in families reaching record heights by
far over anything that had ever been done before.

With the child nutrition program also focusing heavily on the
School Lunch Program and over $1 billion in Federal funds moving
over to that program and feeding more needy children than ever,
don’t think we can be accused of being derelict in taking care of needy
children.

These specialized nonschool feeding programs are important and
we have been expanding them; but it is a relatively minor part of the
total over-$4 billion budget in this area. .

. .. THE PoInt oF Unmer Neen”

Senator Kenxepy. I think we can obviously commend the expan-
sion of the program. I suppose what we are looking at is perhaps at a
somewhat different level. Maybe at one point you are looking at the
very sizable expansion that has been achieved over the past 4 years,
and T think you are to be commended for it. I sunpose we are lookin
at it from the point of unmet need, which I think has been dramatize
and I think we have all been made aware of more particularly in the
recent years. I know it is almost like a bottomless pit, the more that
you get into these prorrams, the more that vou are finding out about
the need for them. I think correspondingly the more important ques-

tion of the programs, really, is what they are going to do for the
children.
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The problem that many of us have is that when we see through
the administrative bureaucracy we find returns of these funds, and
the failure to really have the kind of expansion that is needed for the
programs. It is very frustrating.

Congressman Vanik said States indicated they had money, but only
because they had been instructed by the Department to limit the ac-
ceptance of applications. Do you know anything about that?

Mr. Rorex. I think what Congressman Vanik was referring to was
the short States that had applications on hand. But, through the proc-
ess of the apportionment formula, the funds we were able to direct to
them were not sufficient to carry ongoing programs for the entire year.
This is a supposition. T do not know just exactly to what he was
referring.

Senator KENNEDY. Do you know whether States were told they were
going to get more money? We were told to the contrary, that they
weren’t going to get more.

Mr. Rorex. All States were told the available money would be ap-
portioned under the apportionment formula for the vear-round pro-
grams after the summer programs had been funded with the specially
appropriated funds: that that was the level of expenditure that could
be carried nationwide; and. that the long States would be expected
to release some if they had it toward the end of the year—to carry the
program through the year.

Senator Kenxepy. Could you find out whether the regional offices
instructed the States not to accept any more applications? Could you
let us know that ?

Mr. Rorex. I will supply that for the record.

(The USDA fumisll)med the following:)

FROM THE USDA

Instructions issued to States by Regional FNS offices were consistent with the
above-described funding situation. In a total of 34 States, the fiseal year 1972
funds available for the year-round phase of the Special Food Service Program
were not sufficient to permit these States to expand their year-round activities,
and in Some cases the funds were not sufficient to finance—for the full 1972 fiscal
year—the annual rate of expenditure the States had achieved by the Spring of
1971. These “short” States were told that FNS would be able to reposition funds
among the States later on in the 1972 fiscal year in a manner that would assure
them sufficient 1972 funds to maintain their spring 1971 expenditure rate. These
States, therefore, were operating under a no-ezpansion policy in Nscal 1972.

(Italics added.)

Senator Ken~Eepy. Could you tell us what the monthly spending rate
for the nart of the $20.775 million program was?

Mr. Lne. Senator, I wonder if I might beg your forgiveness and
leave, and I will ask my deputy, Mr. Olsson, to take over for me, if he
can be of any assistance.

Senator Kexx¥py. 1 only have several more questions. You have
indicated to us that you had an appointment. and it has been our
schedule here with the voting. But I will have you out in about 6 or 7
minutes, if that is all right.

Mr. Lyne. Fine. .

Mr. Rorex. Would you repeat that question?

Senator KexyEpy. Yes. about the monthly spending rate for the
$20.755 million. What has been the spending rate ¢

Mr. Rorex. What has been the expenditure rate?
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Senator Kennepy. Yes, per month.

Mr. Rorex. Based on this year, it looks like it would be about $1.2
million.

Senator KExNEpY. What will that come out to for a year? It will
come out to about $14.4 million. o )

Mr. Rorex. I am a little bit low there. OQur projections are a little
over $16 million. )

Senator KENNEpY. What is going to happen to the rest? At $1.2 mil-
lion per month you come out at $14.4 million for the year. But you
have $20.7 million. Are we going to hear that the rest of that money
is not going to be used? . .

Mr. Lyno. Senator, I don’t have it before me, but it was explained
in detail in the testimony that I gave on the seventh. If it isn’t ade-
quate to satisfy the question to the staff, we would be happy to try to

answer.
WaNT ExPENDITUR:E ASSURANCES

Senator KEx~EDY. You see the point we are trying to drive at, Mr.
Lyng. As I understand it, the monthly expenditure level is at $1.2 mil-
lion, and projected over the year it would be approximately $14 mil-
lion. You have $20.7 million to expend, and we want assurances from
you about the expenditures.

Mr. Lyne. I think we pointed out there would be so much left over.
Simply because under the statutory formula there are some States that
just don’t use the money. We have tried to reallocate that; but ther»
are problems, and there will be some left ove . That will be used, then,
in the summer feeding program.

The Vanik law has a special carryover provision which is unique,
really, among Department of Agriculture appropriations. We have a

ri(;)d of some months beyond the end of the fiscal year to use these

unds,

Senator KENNEDY. It just seems to me that, given the rate of ex-
penditures, you are going to have a surplus which will be used to
fund the accelerated program for the summer. But, you are really tak-
ing it out of one mouth to put it in another.

r. LyNe. This is the weakness, really, I think, or one weakness of
the statutory formula. which has some of this effect. We were having
the snme kinds of trouble, as I pointed out earlier, with school lunches.

Senator Kennepy. Tell me what you want for a formula ?

Mr. Ly~e. I am not prepared today, Senator, to give you that.

Senator Kexnepy. When can you be prepared ?

T am a member of the Labor Committee, and we just passed a Nutri-
tion Program for the Elderly, and we considered the various State
formulas. There is some boilerplate language about no State getting
more than another. We have made progress in going to the members
and saying, “Let’s put these funds where the elderly people are the
most hungry and the most needy.” We passed that formula.

. You can give us a formula to provide the greatest amount of nutri-
tional aid to children in the most diffienlt circumstances. Then we can
try and do something about it. But it doesn’t do ns. mnch good if you
say, “Congressman, you have scrambled this program up because of
the formula. and that is the diffieulty.” But then you don’t give us a
formula and tell us how we can do it better. '
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Mr. Ly~e. We intend to do that.
Senator Kennepy. All right.

INSTEAD oF SuPPLYING THE FoRMULA, AS DIRECTED, THE USDA PROVIDED THE
FoLrowiNg AbbpITIoNAL COMMENT:

The formula now prescribed in Section 13 of the National School Lunch Act
covers the distribution of funds among the States and Territories for both the
vear-round and special summer feeding phase of the Special Food Service Pro-
gram. These two phases of the program have very different patterns of program
growth among the various States, and it is doubtful if a single statistical measure
can be developed that would be equally applicable to both phases of the program.
We, therefore, are exploring the advantages of separating both the appropria-
tion authority and fund allocation formulas for each phase of the program. We
need to obtain information on actual obligations by States for the fiscal year
1972 vear-round program, and for calendar year 1972 summer program before
we can make any Departmentat recommendations on specific fund allocation
procedures.

Se;xator Kennepy. Could you include that in the letter to the chair-
man ?

Mr. Ly~e. No, Senator, we would like to have more time than that
on this particular recommendation. We would also like to have the ex-
perience of this year's summer feeding program. because this is all

art of the same legislation, and we would propose that we would, early
in the next Congress, submit that.

Senator KexNepy. What does that have to do with the formula?

Mr. Ly~e. Thisis part of the legislation.

Senator KExNEDY. You have enough experience on how the formula
works. You don't really need another summer program to fizure that
out, do you? You see, I don’t know what to tell the people in my State.
I gf;y, “The formula isn’t right,” and they say, “Why don’t you change
it?

What am I going to say, “We have to go through another summer
feeding program to fizure it ont”?

Mr. Ly~e. We think it would be helpful.

Senator Kennepy. Why?

Mr. Lyxc. Well, these programs have been fast expanding, and
given that—

Senator KExNEDY. Excuse me. Why couldn’t vou get an interim for-
mula now. based upon 1970 fieures? Why wonldn’ that be better? The
current formula uses 1960 figures. It is badly out of date, and better
information is already available.

Mr. Lyxa. I think what you are referring to now is an expansion
of the total funding as opposed to the concept of a formula. We just
don’t think we know the answers to this.

Senator KENNEDY. Just one final area. then: This is a nuestion of the
relationship of the $135 million that is available under Section 32.
under Public Law 92-32. Do you want to restate briefly your posi-
tion on that?

IxTERPRETS SECTION 32 FUunps For Scroor LuNcn Proeray

Mr. Lyxe. Yes; T had criticized earlier todat the allezation con-
tained in the committee’s preliminary report which said that we had
$135 million available from Section 32 funds.

Actually, it is our interpretation that this was provided to add sup-
port to the School Lunch Program, and in the same legislation it
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limited the authorization for appropriations to nonschool feeding to
$32 million.

In a separate law, P.L. 92-35, there was an additional $17 million
made available which made the $49 million that I referred to in my
testimony. This was confirmed in the Senate Appropriations Com-
mittee report of July 14, 1971, which also specified $49 million for
nonschoo feeding, $15.9 million of that specifically for year-round
programs, and this is the way we interpret the total legislative pack-
age. It was not our understanding that the $135 million relate spe-
cifically in any way to the nonschool feeding programs.

Senator KeNNEDY. You don’t believe the provision of the act making
$100 million available for this act, plus ¥35 million from the year
before? Well, Section 13 is in his act, and Section 15 of P.L. 92-32
contains the authorization. It says:

Not to exceed $100 million in funds from such Section 32 to carry out the pro-
visions of this act relating to the service of free and reduced-price meals to needy
children in schools and service institutions.

You don’t think that gives you the authority ¢

Mr. Ly~6. That would describe the School Lunch Program, Senator.

Senator KeNNEpY. What is “service institutions”? The law reads:

- -« The term “service institutions” means private, nonprofit institutions or
public institutions, such as child day-care centers, settlement houses, or recre-
ation centers . . . ,

Mr. Lyxe. It mcludes them, too, but it is not specifically focused
upon the nonschool feeding program.

Senator KENNEDY. So you would agree that “service institutions”
means day care and other non-school rograms made eligible under
Section 13. But you want us to velieve there is anyone in the Congress
who would complain to you that you have exceeded your legislative
authority if you provided the funds authorized under this act, and
got the food on out into those day care and preschool programs? Do
youreally think anyone would complain about it ¢

Mr. Ly~a. I suspect that some members of the Appropriations Com-
mittee would complain unless we were to more clearly define these.
As T pointed out, in the Senate Appropriations report, it provided
$49 million in nonschool feeding programs.

Senator KexNepy. So we are saying that, because of your fear
about the Appropriations Committee on this, even though 1t is quite
clear in terms of the authorization——

Mr. Lywe. I am not suggesting that there was any desire on our
part to do this, or reluctance on our part to do it for fear of the Con-
gress. I thought that we had communications with the Congress on
the budgeted amount for fiscal 1972. We do have to have some sort of
fiscal responsibility in terms of working with the Appropriations
Committees and planning budgets for—

INTERPRETATION OF AUTHORIZATION DispuTED

Senator KenNEpY. Excuse me. When we pass the authorization and
appropriations, we think it is going to do the job. Then you don’t
because you think you haven’t the authority, even though—as I under-
stand from the staff—that thisis a standing authority.

Mr. Lyne. We disagree with the staff in terms of their interpreta-
tions.
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Senator KEnNeDY. Qur legislative council is better than yours.

[Laughter.]

Mr. Ly~e. Senator, I would like to quote from the report of the
Committee on Appropriations. It says:

The committee has carefully considered the needs for the nonschool food
programs, especially the Summer Child Feeding Program. The Department has
announced that $33.1 million i{s being made available for the summer pro-
gram this year. While this bill carries a total of $32 million specifically for this

overall purpose, the bill makes possible a total nonschool program of approxi-
mately $49 million, as follows

and then it lists it. It seems to us that this is quite clear as the intent
of the Appropriations Committee. This is on page 49 of the report?
of July 14, 1971. ) o

Senator Kexnepy. Well, it certainly seems to me that the legislative
authority and the standing authority is sufficient under this. Quite
clearly, the author of the legislation, and those who have been the
most active and interested in it believe it to be I think, quite frankly,
in your pursuit of—maybe it is fiscal responsibility—that you are
putting a stricture and a restriction on the legislation which is un-
warranted. The point which I think is most distressing to me is that
you say that you are limited by this authority and you are ruwilling
to give us a recommendation on how to do the job better. Moreover,
you have failed to request the authority you seem to think you need,
to meet the expanded need that you conceded earlier exists.

_Mr. Ly~e. We will give recommendations, Senator. If we have any
disagreement on this at this peint, it is a question of timing. I qug‘l.y
said I couldn't be prepared to do it as a part of the testimony in this
hearing.

Senator KennNepy. I have a comment, a brief comment, of Senator
Cranston that reflects, I think, probably the sense of frustration that
many of us on this committee feel about the continued need for these
wograms and the general inadequacy of the response. I think it goes

v all of us in the Congress and the Executive, to really meet the
problem. He said it extremely well and eloquently here and takes
issue with, as I am sure you are aware from the earlier part of the
hearing, with your statement, and I would like to make it a part of
the record, and will.

(Senator Cranston’s statement follows:)

I want to add just a brief, final comment. In his prepared statement, Mr. Lyng
expressed the view of the Department of Agriculture that, “. . . we have sub-
stantially completed the job we set out to do. The gap is closed.”

Without wishing to be argumentative, I am reluctant to simply let that asser-
tion stand.

The question of how far we have come in closing the hunger gap is a lot like
describing half a glass of water. The Department of Agriculture looked at the
gln88 and told us today that it is (half) full. But to the poor who must depend
on what is in that glass, it remains half empty. We have heard why the USDA
feels the job is done. I want to mention a few of the reasons why America’s poor
might not agree.

—Close to half the poor do not get either food stamps or donated surplus foods.

—18,000 schools have no cafeteria equipment, and therefore no school lunch

program.

—5 million poor school cl:ildren still fail to receive a free or reduced price

Tunch.

1Sce Part 3A. Appendix 1, p. 582.
z See Appendix, p. 755.
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FOOD HELP FOR MIGRANTS

The U.S. Department of Agriculture can help meet the food necds of migrant
workers.

To provide nusritlous food for migrant children, USDA‘'s Food and Nutritlon
Service offers:

Natlonal School Lunch Program
School Breakfast Program

Speclal Food Service Program for Children
Speclal Mlik Program

Non-food Asslstance Program

FNS also offers these food prograas for low-income needy families:

O Food Stamp Prosram
O Commodity Distribution Program

Here are the details of the programs avallable:

CHILD NUTRITION PROGRAMS

National School Lunch Program -- Provides Federal cash and cos.odity
asslstance to schools agreelng to operate a nonprofit lunch program,
serve a Type-A lunch, and provide lunches free or at a reduced price ro
needy children. M!grant chlldren enrolled In particlpating schools
during the regular school term can recelve nutritious Type-A lunches
that fumish one-third of the chlld’s dally nutritive requirements.
School lunch progran beneflts arc also available to children attending
special algrant schools enrolled In the program.

School Breakfast Program -- Helps provide needy children, or those
who have traveled a long distance to school, with a nutritious breakfast.
Tezaed up with school lunches, school breakfasts provide the chiidren
a larger share of thelr nucritive necds--theredy promoting thelr health,

and chelr abillity to learn.

Federal cash and commodity assistance is available to schools which
operate a breakfast program. Meals are served at a nominal charge,

usually 5 or 10 cents, or free to needy children.

Unlited States Department of Agriculture- Food and Nutrition Service- April 1971
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,

Speclal Food Service Program for Children -- Helps States and local
sponsoring agencies to develop fond service pmsrn's for migrant children in
pudblic and nonprofit private institutions, such as day-care centers,
settlement houses and recreatinual centers. The program helps meet the
nutritional needs of children from low-income areas, or areas where many of
the mothers work. Cash and foods are available to provide nutritious food
service at breakfast, lunch, pper and bet al snacks.

Special Milk Program -- E ages the ptlon of fiuid whole milk
by children. All public and nonprofit private schools an¢d nonprofit
institutions, such as child-care centers, settlement houses and summer
camps (other than those in the Special Food Service Program for Children)
aay participate.

Non-food Assistance Program -- Reimbursement of up to 75 percent is
available to cover the cost of equipment (other than laad or buildings)
purchased to establish, maintain, or expand school food service programs.
The remainder of the funds must come from State or local sources. 1his
program helps o:der schools, or those in low-income areas--where food
Scivice facilities and cquipment are inadequate or nonexistent. This

Fenran can be & real help to persons who want to establish or expand a
fcod service program for migrants® children.

For further inforeation on the USDA child nutrition programs, contact the
appropriate State education agency. State education agencies do not
administer the programs in s.1 States, but they will refer inquiries to
tne proper agency.

FAMILY FOOD ASSISTANCE PROGRANS

In addition to these chilc-feeding programs, FNS has the following
prograas to help migrant zam.lies:

Food Stasp Program -- Federal food stasps significantly boost the food
buying power of participants. These stamps are provided at a low cost to
eligible families. Bonus stamps are given participants, so every family
has enough to purchase the Department’s economy level diet.

Commodity Distribution Program -- Provides fo: the direct donation of
foods for needy families. If distributed and used at recommei.ded rates, the
foods can meet virtually all of a family's minimum daily nutritional
requirements.

One or the other of these food programs {s available to needy people in
fanily units in almost every county and city in the country. Pamilies {n need
of food assistance may get in touch with their local welfare department.

OTHER MIGRANT PROGRAMS 2

Federal assistance is available from the Department of Health, Education,
and Welfare Migrant Programs for goods aiwd services related to food services
for children of migrants from Title I funds authorized by the Elementary
and Secondary Education Act of 1965,

Information on HEW programs and assistance is avallable from Title 1
coordinators at State educational agencies in the 50 Stat.s.
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FROM JOHN R. KRAMER

A Statisticar OVERVIEW oF Foop PrograM DEFICIENCIES

A. Who is served?

There were 25.9 million poor persons in the 1970 Census count :

249, or 11,461,000 of the poor received food stamps in April 1972.
13% or 3,300,000 received commodities. .
439 or 11,100,000 got nothing.

B. What benefits do they receivef

Yood stamps: The average bonus per person is 14.7 cents per meal or one
bottle of ketchup a day.

From January, 1970 through April, 1972 the consumer price index for food
consumed ut home rose at a rate 5009 greater than the rise in the food stamp
allotment, giving poor people even less food purchasing power,

Cominodities: Less than 74% of the 37 pounds of food per person per month
supposedly available is actually delivered, guaranteeing that no recipient can get
more than three-fourths of needed vitamins, proteins and calories.

C. What has happened to food stamp appropriations?

Bonuses: Fiscal year 1972 funds available, $2,289,000,000; Fiscal year 1972
funds to be actually spent (USDA) est.), $1,875,000,000.

Returned to Treasury (189 of appropriation), $414,000,000.

Lost value per poor person, $3.13 per month.

Administrative costs: Fiscal year 1972 funds requested—each, $70,000,000;
Fiscal year 1932 funds to be actually spent (USDA est.), $90.000,000.

Cost overrun for bureaucracy (130% of appropriation), $80,000,000.

D. How satisfactory are participation rates?

Participation by Public Assistance Recipients—Only 529 of welfare recipients
get food stamps. In 23 states less than 509 of welfare recipients participate.

Participation Decreases from April, 1971 to April 1972, In 16 states (Wash-
ington, T'ennessee, Mississippi, Colcrado, Alabama, Minnesota, Alaska, Towa,
Louisiana, Arkansas, Connecticut, Nebraska, North Dakota, Wyoming, Massa-

chusetts, and Maine) the number of food stamp recipients has declined during
the past year.
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CHART ON LACK OF PUBLIC ASSISTANCE

Persons Pubhic Parcent
receiving assistance public
public  recipients on assistance
assistance, food stamps, recipients on
December Apnl food
19711 19 22 stamps
Alabama_ oo 181,060
, 000
Anzona. . , 000
Arkansa_s 145, 000
California 2, 040, 000
Colorado._ 147, 000
Connectic ) 125, 000
Delaware. . 35,000
- 101, 000
. 4, 000
444,000
44,000
27,000
787,000
7,000
109, 000
, 000
Kentucky. 220.000
Louisiana. 381,000
77,000
219, 000
Mich 38 000
ichigan...
Minnesota. 149, 000
Mississipp 262, 000
334, 000
Montana. 26, 000
Nebraska. 54, 000
Nevada. _.. 19, 000
New Hampshlre 24, 000
New Jersey. . 425, 000
New Mexico_ 75, 000
New York. . 1, 531, 000
North Caroiina. 238, 000
North Dakota 21, 000
Ohio. .. 529, 000
Oklahoma 206, 000
Oregon.. . 111, 000
Pennsylvan, 758, 000 60
Rhode island 59, 000 58, 100 9%
South Carolm 122, 000 91, 500 15
South Dakota 26, 000 11,700 45
Tennessee 267, 000 125, 000 47
Texas... 656, 000 141, 600 22
Utah. ... 50, 000 35,000 70
Vermont 23, 000 13,600 59
Virginia. 171, 000 65, 300 38
Washington_ _ 192, 000 140, 000 73
West Virginia 112, 000 125, 200 ()
isconsin. 149, 000 65, 700 4
Wyoming..... , 000 5., 300 59
Totel oo 13, 823, 000 7,176, 800 52
1 Based on Pubhc AuImnca Smimn December 1971, DHEW National Center for Social Statistics Report
A-2 (D 971 ssistance).

2 Based on Food Shmp Program sn" tical S y of Operati April 1972 USDA Food snd Nutrition
Service,

3 Not avajlable.
4 Unknowa.
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FROM ARTHUR SCHIFF

SEORETARY BUTZ TAKES ACTION T0 GUARD AGAINST Loss oF Foop STAMP BENEFITS

Washington, Jan, 16—Secretary of Agriculture Earl L. Butz announced today
that he h.s or.ered actions to essure that no eligible participants in the Food
Stamp Program will lose benefits as a resuit of new regulations that are now being
implemented by the States,

The Secretary said he had taken this action after consulting with Governors of
several States now in the process of implementing the new regulations.

“The Governors asked me to review the impact of the new regulations on the
people in their States,” Secretary Butz said. “I have determined that the changes
being ordered today are necessary to prevent any hardship to food stamp
participants.”

These new regulations are necessary to implement basic reforms in the food
stamp program, supported by the Administration and enacted by the Congress in
January 1971. These reforms bring the food ~tamp program into closer conformity
with the Administration’s overall income strategy and increase benefits to the
neediest participants by :

—establishing uniform national eligibility standards,

—ensuring an allotment for every family sufficient to purchase a nutritionally
adequate diet at a cost »n more than 80 percent of recipient’s income and free to
those with the least income,

—requiring employable recipients to register for work.

“1 have ordered the Food and Nutrition Service—the agency which administers

the food stamp program—to modify the regulations so that the benefits available
to each household are as high or higher than they were under the old regulations,”
the Secretary said.

The Secretary stressed that modifications to the income standards will allow
all households who meet other eligibility requirements to ¢ontinue their participa-
tion in the program.

Secretary Butz said that he will continue to make available to any State that
desires it, technical assistance to minimize any dificulty related to implementing
the new regulations. .

“These changes will be effective in all States,” the Secretary said. “Our goal
gemains the same—to have a uational program with equitable benefits in every

tate,

“While benefits paid are expaciod to increase as a result of these modifications
to the regulations, the funds alre:dy appropriated by the Congress should be
sufficient to cover total progr.m osts in fiscal year 1972 Secretary Butz
concluded.
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REPORT SUBMITTED BY DR. RICHARD BYERLY

LETTER TO SENATOR HUGHES FROM Des MoINES AREA MANPOWER COUNCIL

Jour 1, 1972,

DEeAR SENAToR HUGHES: The Des Moines Area Manpower Council (an eight
county co-ordinating council serving central Iowe), was recently confronted
with the effects of the amended regulations concerning the Food Stamp Pro-
gram administered by the United States Department of Agriculture.

Our principal concern focuses on the loss of educational incentive of Man-
power program-enrollees who are students participating in employment pro-
grams with WIN, CEP, Veteran educational programs, etc. It is with regard to
these clients that the Manpower Council is acting.

WIN participants in Polk County are finding it eXtremely difficult to con-
tinue tneir training with any part of their WIN benefits cancelled out by the
increase In Food Stamp purchase price. Actually the loss of funds ranges roughly
from $6.00 to $46.00.

WIN benefits do include Day Care for the participant’s children paid directly
to the sitter or day care center by vendor payment, other vendor payments to
the school or training facility, to the book store or equipment source. However,
the only WIN benefit that comes to the individual in cash is the $74.00 intended
to cover the dally expenses of transportation to and from school (usually drop-
ping children off at the day care facility), lunches at school, pencils, paper. and
other school supplies, and the better clothing she necessarfly wears to attend
school or work (as opposed to a worn T-shirt and jeans acceptable to the chil-
dren if she were staying at home). For the familv of three it brings the cost to
$70.00 with a bonus of $18.00 for a total of $88.00 face value of food stamps.
See the comparative cost exhibit attached.

For a family of four, it brings the cost to $74.00 for a total of $108.00 food
stamps with a bonus of $34.00 as compared with a cost of $59.00 for like amount
under the original regulations, See the comparative cost exhibit attached.

But the actuality is worse yet. Although one section of the February 2 regula-
tions reads “These items shall not be considered as income ... any benefits
that are received in money, e.g. the free use of a house,” all vendor payments
are being counted as income putting nearly all WIN people at a false income
level and forcing them to pay the top purchase price for Food Stamps. Many
are being forced to drop out of school and abandon their ¢fforts to go off the
welfare rolls and become taxpayers.

WIN enrollees are not taking this sitting down they have written to their
congressmen and senators, three of their letters to the editor have been printed
in the Des Moines Register, and they had a permit to march to the Capitol on
Saturday, April 22. They have cnlisted friends, teachers and professors in a
letter-writing campaign. It is honed that members of NVASI will inin in on
effort to have the December 28, 1971, amendment repealed, and the Department
of Agriculture regulations of February 2, 1972, altered to remove these punitive
measures. WIN people are also including in their goal removal of regmlations
that are hampering the educational efforts of their fellow students under other
Federal programs such as MDTA, GI Bill of Rights and various loans and
grants. They also wish to see the income tax regulation removed. as it cquses
undue h:rdship to young families by making them ineligible for Food Ktamps,
They niso vejoice that a court decision on April 10, 1972, cancelled the Food
Stamp ruling of ineligible unrelated persons residing in the same honsehold.
It gives tFem hape that justice will prevail when thefr own eanse reaches the
courts ax their Yegal Aid advisere assure them it wi'l. Administrative actons
have failed to adjust their additional hardship for manpower program enronllees.
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We have completed a survey which enables us to determine the cost of admin-
Istration of the Food Stamp Act applying both the original Act and the Awend-
ments. The results are as follows for Des Moines and Polk County :

Bela:e Alter
1. Employees to administet. ooy ......,.. e vbees smenes 7 7
2. Applications processed daily. ... . 90 40-50
3. Time lag {or clients 1o obtain stamps.. e 10-10 32-3
4. Extra part-time help:
Numbet,....... ere ereanentnnirenn 0 3
3 NV o errrre mvrrrensensnenn o ereersniiormnniran 0 382,000
1 Days. N
3 Weeks.

3Per tonth,

We have a very successful WIN program in the State of Iown which shows
that the current enrollee total is 331 as of May 1, 1972 for Polk County and
Area X1 The state wide active enroliment is 1382, therefore, the Des Moines
and Polk County aren serves approximately 23.95 percent of total active WIN
enrollment. Approximntely 33 percent of our WIN clients are engaged in college
training programs whose food stamp bonus I8 affected by the new regulations.
Attachied are actual cases of the computation of Food Stamp for ADC WIN
participunts under the original act and the new regulations as well as prejection
of the effeet on the economic community if these students do not complete their
training progrums. The State of Iown has been considered very successful with
our progrm holding the first place in the nation.

The manpower programs and related persons quallfied us food stamp partici.
pants have been surveyed for our aren. The total recipients of food stamps s
comprised of approximutely 44 percent manpower clients and veterans totuling
8795 for the nctive program of April 30, 1972,

Even though the unemployment rate hns incrensed dnring the first part of
1972, the persons actually participating in this food stamp program have de-
crensed. It is indieated that Iack of participation may be due to the new inter-
pretation of the Food Stamp Rule.

‘The nttachments are enclosed to provide:

Item No, 1—Computation of the number of Manpower programs participants
and related social welfnre nprograms provides a reasonnble estimate of tke
nnmber of known persons who ceuid be affected by the new interpretation of
the Food Stamp Regulutions. The families of these persons counted will further
increase the number of persons affected with less nutrition und food needs.

Item No, 2'—Actual case for a WIN-clientanother of three children, It exem-
plifies the loss of tax dollurs and income for Polk County and vielnity of Des
Moines if a WIN enrollee chooses to quit the program because of food needs
for family.

Item No. 3.—An abbreviated hypothetical case to illustrate the loss of stamp
purchase for g WIN enrollee with children and normal incrensed cost while in
schiool.

Item No. j—An actual ense study to show the gross economic loss for a WIN
client if a specinl education tencher choose to quit.

{tem No. 5—A two part exhibit which illustrates controlied expense to reflect
the net loss of purchase power for food stamps relating to a family of three or
four, respectively.

Item No, 6.—Data for Polk County ¥®ood cost and number of recipients hene-
fiting from the programs for the period heginning 1-1-69 through April of 1972.
Bothi cost and nmnber of reclpients increased at a traceable rate but declined
with the inception of the new rales.

Item No. 7~An Interpretation cf the new regulations currently used by the
administering agent, Polk County weifare department to: (1) determine and
adjust income and (2) prohibit the dependents of persons who have seeked food
siamps from securine ...oox <tamps if clnimed on prior year return of parents.

Ttem No. 8.~A ¥ _ of persons who receised a copy of this letter.

1In Interpreting attachment 2, E.en though the courts have provided that a WIN
reciplent may secure a Righer degree thin a bachelor, we be'leve this degree 13 more realistic.
The income §s projected with & hachelo. ‘s degree.

76-300—72—pt. 3B——17
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SUMMARY

We are cognizant that the new regulations have certainly strengthened many

aspects of the program. For these points commendations are in order.

However, it is hoped that our comments will assist in devising procedures
which will allow for educationnl progression for clients. With these points in
mind we strongly urge :

1. That the regulations (91-671) as amended 2-1-72 be changed to eliminate
the inelusion from income those items which are termed education services such
as tuition, child care. cte.

2. “The dependency regulation be omitted from the regulations as the fact that
a person is claimed for tax purposes in prior year is irrelevant if hunger exists
the following year.

We feel that the incentive for recipients will be restored and a greater num-
ber of these clients will become sclf-sufficient citizens, thereby eliminating their
names from the welfare payroll.

Respectively submitted,

MAX ALLENDER,
Chairman, Des Moinecs MIAPC/Des Moines Areu AMPB.

COMPUTATION OF NUMBER OF PROGRAM PARTICIPANTS
MANPOWER PROGRA! ENROLLEES USE OF FOOO STAMPS AS OF MAY 1, 1972—(POLK COUNTY ANO 7 OTHER

COUNTIES) :
Acuive  Enroliers
1973 enroliment  receiving
slotleve] 1972 Ma; 1, food
Program, agency (projected)  slotievel 19721 stamps Rematks

NAB-)08S 1970 NAB S 188 121 293 293
CEP—Cily of O2s Moines........ 409 3 301
New careers— GO (OMPS for |3 SN eeemeemanans -
fiscal year 1973).
Oeg 3&:&5 shill cenler (1DTA) 730 700 174 174 1.S. referrals—162, VIN—12.
0)T—lcwaState employment  ....... eeeen 100 41 41
service. X
WIN-ISES......... O, 659 293 3 319 Earollees lechnically feave
he Wil p:ogram for
wrainirg, the 12 enrollees
not covered urder WIN are
coveced by skill center
while in raimng but
covered by Witl after
compleung wraining.
Job Corps —ISES. ... cveee .. 3 50 55 S
NYC and NYC I1—G:eater ... a3 250 250 Excess over slot level was
oppostumues. made possibie because
many enrcliees were
X pantume.
0 Beration mainstream—GO... 20 15 15
OUP—CEP._....uouseeaan 144 193 193
Career opporlunity—OMPS. ... 65 S5 S5
Chess (OMACC, Orake & 318 86 86 Total year o date.
Grandview) Oes area con-
sorum for higher education
New hor 2ons—0MPS. 1,000 1,000

. 159 159
Open Open 5,109 5,109 All5,109 aiso receive Govern-
ment pension.

Veteran's Administratio:

Oes Moines Area Communily

1,624 1.624 Primarily commodities for
expectant mothers. )
121 121 Only ADC mothess recewing
training from ORES.
Tolale e veeenns reeveeeseennns eeeeeseneennarenan e 8,806 8.795

1 Some cf these totals are the active edroliment as of May 1 and the totals reflect enrollees 1hat have served since the
begsnning of the year,

Eftects of food stamp program on manp and manpower related programs: Totai persons served by food stamps—
19,6513 manpower program enrollees served by food stamps—8,795; percentage of food stamp recipients in manpower
pro rams—agpro_x@ately 44 parcent. .

¢y to Abbreviations: CEP—Concentrated Employment Program: NAB—National Alliance of Businessmen: J0B5—
Jobs in the Business Sector: GO—Greater Opportunilies Inc. (Commumity Action Project OED); OMPS—0Oes Moines
Public Schools; OMACC—0es Moines Area Commumity College; 0)T—On the Job Training; WIN—Work Incentive Program;
ISES—lowa State Employment Service; NYC—Neighborhood Youth Corps; OUP—Occy ational Upmdmf Program;
(E:gsss—c%nssomum for Higher Education and Special Services; DRES—State of fowa, Oivision of Rehabilitation and
ucauonal Services.
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COMPUTATION OF RUMBER OF PROGRAM PARTICIPANTS —Continued

MAKPOV. ER PROGRAM ENROLLEES USE OF FOOD STAMPS AS OF MAY 1, 1972—(POLK COUNTY AND 7 OTHER
COUNTIES)

TOTAL FAMILIES AND PERSONS SERVED BY FOOD STAMPS MAY 1, 1972

County Families Persons

CORRESPONDENCE RELATED TO IOWA REPORT

DEPARTMENT 0OF AGRICULTURE,
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY,

Washington, D.C., March 29, 1972.
Hon. 11avown E. Hucnes,

U.y, Scnate.

DEAR SENaToR HUGHES : Secretary Butz has asked me to *hank you for your
letter concerning the treatment of income received fron. - e Work Incentive
Program under the revised regulations of the Food Stamp Progran.

The Food Stamp Program is designed to increase food purchasing power
beyond the amonnt normally available to low-income families. Because of this,
the family’s actual purchasing power must be considered when determining the
purchase price of stamps. The fact remains that the WIN payment does increase
the family's ability to purchase food and, as you state, is partially intended to
purchase food. The payment must, therefore, be counted as inconie,

As a partial compensation for monies received in WIN type programs. our
new regulations were written to allow a deduction of 10 percent of the income
up to $30 to defray costs inenrred in traveling to and from the training site and
for other incidental expenses. Moreover, the Food Stamp Program allows dedue-
tions for expenses snch as excessive shelter costs (inchiding all utilities) and
medical and dental expenses of more than $10 a month when figuring the honse-
hold’s purchase price.

In the end. the primary question is one of fairness. If we allowed a total dis-
regard of WIN bonuses, the households participating in this program would
receive benefits not available to other low-income families who are also partici-
pating in the Fend Stamp Program and trying to improve their existence.

If we can be of further assistance, please let us know.

Sincerely,
Riciarp LyNe,
Assistant Scerctary.

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE,
Foop Axnp NUTRITION SERVICE,
Washington, D.C., May 11. 19732.
Mr. GEORGE SHOVE,
Dircctor, Food Programs, Dcpartment of Social Scrvices, Lucas Statc Ofice
Building, Des Moincs, Iowa.

Dear Mr. Snove: Secretary Butz has asked me to thank you for your April 13,
1972 letter which made specific comments with regard to the WIN Program and
its relationship to the Food $Stamp Program.

Your letter correctly notes that there has beeh a change in the regnlations
surrounding the handling of WIN income. Prior to this time the WIN incentive
payment and training allowance for Priority II training categories were disre-
garded. With the amending of the Food $tamp Act and the cmphasis on nation-
wide eligibility standards it was felt that a change should be made which wonld
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equalize the treatment of low-income working families and recipients of public
assistance. It is uow our intention to handle income, from whatever sonrce. in
the same way for all participating households since similar size families have
similar food needs and if both fammilies Lkave shmilar purchasing power, they
should pay the same amount for stamps.

Within this framework. we specitied what kinds of things increase a family’'s
]’)!ll‘(h.l\lllg power. Section 271.3. Part (c) (if). of the regulations, to which you
refer in your letter, states that income which is not given in money is exempted.
What is meant are 1,r-ltmt1es such as the free use of a house. gifts of clothing,
food aund the like. Section 271.3, Part (2) (i) describes payments that are made
on Lehalf of a household by someone other than a honsehold member. Payments
made for chilld care. tuition and mandatory fees fall into this category of
vendor payments. If. however. a service is provided with a non-identifiable cost
for a particular hounsehold, then this should not be considered a Dpayment on
behalf of the household.

Our uew regulations provide a deduction of ten percent. up to $30 per month
per household. of monies received from WIN as well as from a regular job. This
was done to allow for work or training-related expenses that a low-incowe family
might have.

Thus. a WIN family wonld be able to deduct ten perceut of the total of its
WIN training allowanee plus any vendor payments. This mmonut is then deducted
from the family's total income from all sources. Fiually. the child care and tuition
expenses are deducted from this. in addition to any other allowable deductions.

We are particelarly anxious that smme of the difienlties experienced recently in
Iowa with regqrd to WIN and its relatiouship to the Food Stainp Program be
resolved. It is gratifying that the WIN Program is so successful in the State
and we trust that the above explanation has clarified our policy on the treat-
ment of such payments.

Sincerely,
HowaArbp P. Davis,
Deputy Administrator.

Mayx 26, 1972,
Mr. George W. SHOVE,
Dircctor. Food Programs. Department of Sociel Scrrices, Lucas State Office
Building, Dcs Moincs, Iowa.

Dear Mg Smove: Thank you for your letter and enclosure concerning the
operation of the food stamp progrian in Towa.

I note that participation in the program dropped during the month of March
by over 5,000 individuals and a decline in total issuance of coupons by over
$35,000.00. Yonr sumnary, however, makes no analysis of what caused the de-
cline. I would be interested to know whether the decline was caused by an im-
provement in the economic well being of the individnals involved or whether the
new;bfood stamp regulations caused persons to be dropped who formerly were
eligible.

Any information you can provide in this regard would be most helpful as Con-
gress continnes its oversight of the food stamp program.

With sincere best wishes,
HaAroLp E, HIUGHES,

JowA DEPARTMENT OF SOCTAL SERVICES,
Des Moinces, Iowa, May 10, 1972,
IIon, I1ARoLd E. HUGHES,
Senate Office Building,
Washington, D.C.

Dear Sexaror ITucHEs: Attached is a wmonthly report of participation in the
Food Stamp Program in the State of Yowa. We wonld like to call your attention
to the amount of bonns stnmps that are provided for participants in the State of
Iowa, which of course represents an amount of stamps furnished as the cost to
the Departinent of Agriculture only.

In the future we will continue to send these reports to you and perhaps with-
out a cover letter unless there 1s something in particular we may wish to call to
Your attention.

Very truly yours,
GEORGE W, SHOVE,
Direetor, Food Programs.



FROM MRS. DOROTHY CAIN

As of May 30, 1972, there are 1,415 Jowa participants in the Work Incentive
Program (WIN).

Approzimate cost of Govcrnment support of my family from June 1, 1972 through
April, 1988—(Three children—Ages 8, 5, and 2)

Based on the premise that (1) A.D.C. grant, food stamp bonus (on pre-March 1,
1972 basis) and federal incoine tax rates remain at the present levels. (2) Each
child lenves home on his 18th birthday. (3) I commence working at a projected
income '* of $12,000 a year and never receive a sulary increase. This schedule
excludes the cast of medical care and the cost of administration of the four
programs involved at present.

Aid to dependent children: In dollars
June 1, 1972 thru May, 1982, 120 months at $243.00 oo --_ £29, 160. 00
June 1, 1952 thru Nov., 1984, 30 months at 199.00 e ccceeeaeen 5, 970. 00
Dec. 1, 1984 thru April, 1988, 41 months at 151.00- oo oo cceeo 6,191. 00

Total ——- 41, 321. 00

Food stamps (Bonus only) :

June 1, 1972 thru May, 1982, 120 months at $61.00- oo e oo 7, 320. 00
June 1, 1982 thru Nov., 1984, 30 months at 42.00_ oo oo 1, 260. 00
Dee. 1, 1984 thru April, 1988, 41 months at 20.00_ oo oo 820. 00

Total - 9,400.00

Actual moneys expended by WIN through Spring quarter, 1972
Tuition -— 929, 00
Books . - 227. 38
Child care - 2,000.00
Transportation allowance & incentive o oo oo .. 1, 554. 00

b . SRV 4,71C. 38

Income (1976-1988) :

1976 thrz 1982 (4 eXeMPHONS) m o oo ooe oo 54, 600. 00
1983 thru 1984 (3 exemptions) - ceee 18,200, GO
1985 thru 1988 (2 exemptions) 36, 400. 00
Total 109, 200. 00

Income tax dollars jost (1976-1988) :
1976 thru 1982 (4 exemptions), ¢ years at $1.436.00___ . ____ ], 616, 00
1983 thru 1984 (8 exemptions), 2 years at 1,580.25 oo 3,178.50
1985 thru 1988 (2 exemptions), 4 years at 1744500 coeeemeeeeo 6, U718, 00
Total __. 18. 772. 50
ADC _. em- 41,821.00
Food stamnp bonus - - 9,400. 00
Total - ~—-- 00, 721. 00

10 Se-¢ projected income, p. 712,
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Income tax dollars lost (1967-1978) —Continned In dollmx
Moneys expended to May, 1972 4, 710. 38
Tax Q011ars 10Steeeeeccccccccccccccccccccammmemceemeeeea= 18,772.50
Total - 74,203.88

Projected income

Based upon data from Occupational Outiooks Handbook, 1968 :
Psychologist :

With Master of Science degree (male) ... rm——————— - $9,100

With Ph. D. (male) (female—a few hundred dollars lower)_.___._-_ 12, 800
Median salary:

With M.S_ . 12,200

With Ph, D___________ rememmcccmmcccmcc—c—m————— 14, 500
Graduate departments:

Assistant professorship. 9, 700

Faull professorship - - 16, 000
Statistical abstract, 1970 : Median salary - 15, 000
Psychologist (no breakdown by education) :

Male (Mean, 1969) 17, 000

Female (Mean, 1969) --- 16,234

The figure of $12,000 is a very conservative estimate in view of the constantly
spiralling wage levels. -

COrRResroNDENCE Froat USDA Re TeESTIMONY oF Mrs. Caiy

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE,
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY,
Washington, D.C., July 26, 1972.
Hon. CirarLrs Percy,
U.S. Seaate. T

Dear SexATor PERCY : In respouse to testimony provided by Mrs. Dorothy Cain
and Dr. Richard Byerly at the Senate Select Committee on Nutrition and Human
Needs, we have reevaluated our procedures on the handling of ineome in the
Food Stamp Program. We are publishing a proposed rule making in the Federal
Register* for publie connuent which revires the manner in which the shelier hard-
ship adjustment is computed.

Our regulations were written to consider income from any source in the deter-
mination of a fmmily’s purchas - requirement. Because the income calcnlation
shows how nuch the family will pay for its stamps, deductions are nade for
mandatory expenses such as taxes. Deductions are also permitted for such items
as excessive shelter, child care and medical costs. Actual tuition costs for stu-
dents or WIN recipients are additionally deducted. The net food stamp income
after these deductions is designed to be an accurate base from which to deter-
wmine food stap purchase price.

While we think it critical that we retain our “ircome is income” philosophy. we
now believe that the technical way in which we calculate some of these adjust-
ments, specifically the shelter hardship deduction, is not equitable. We are propos-
ing that the shelter adjustment be calculated on the basis of incoine remaining
after all other allowable deductions instead of our current procedure which uses
total income, less mandatory fees such as taxes, as the basis of determining a
shelter hardship. We expect this change to have a favorable impact on WIN par-
ticipants who have high tuition and child care costs but for whom this money may
not actually be available. However. for those households which, under the old
regulations were permitted a total disregard of WIN income, we anticipate that
there will still be a slight upward revision in their purchase requirement over
that under the old program.

In Mrs. Cain’s case, the method of calculating her purchase requirement low-
ers it from $64 to either $40 or $46 since her adjusted income is on the borderline
of our tables. AS you can see, this is significant difference and one which we feel
will prove beneficial to Mrs. Cain.

Your concern and interest in this matter are appreciated. If you have any fur-
tlier questions or comments, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Sincerely,
RicuaARD LYNG, Assistant Secretary.

—n

*Sce pp. 713-715.




ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

A

713

[From the Federal Register, July 18, 1972]
Foop AND NUTRITION SERVICE
{7 CFR, Part 271}
Foob StaMP DPROGRAM
COMPUTATION OF HARDSHIP ALLOWANCE

Pursuant to the authority contained in the Food Stamp Act of 1964, as
amended (78 Stat. 703, as amended; 7 U.S.C. 2011-2023), notice is hereby given
that the Food and Nutrition Service, Department of Agriculture proposes to
amend the regulations governing the Food Stam Program to provide that the
shelter hardship allowanee be computed on the basis of income remaining after
the deduction of ali other allowable expenses.

Interested persons may submit written comnients, suggestions, or objections,
regarding the proposed amendment to James II. Kocher, Director, Food Stamp
Division, Food and XNutrition Service, U.S. Department of Agriculture, Wash-
ington. D.C. 20250, so as to be received not later than the 30th day following the
date of the publication of this notice in the. Federal Register. Comments, sng-
gestions, or objections will be open to public inspection pursuant to 7 CFR 1.27 (b)
at the Office of the Director, during regular business hours (8:30 n,.m.-3:00 p.m.).

It is proposed to revise § 721.3(c) (1) by deleting subdivisions (iii) (b), by
relettering subdivisions (iii) (c), (d), (e), and (f) as subdivisions (iii) (b),
(¢), (d). and (e), respectively, and by adding a new subdivision (iii) (f). As
revised. §$271.3(c) (1) (iii) would read as follows:

§ 271.3 Houschold eligibility.

(¢) Income und resource cligibility standards of other houscholds. * * *

(1) Definition of income. * * *

(iii) Deductions for the following household expenses shall be made :

(¢) Mandatory deductions from earned income which are not elective at the
option of the employee such as local, State, and Federal income taxes, social
security taxes under FICA. and union dues;

(D) Payments for medical expenses, exclusive of special diets, when the costs
exceed $10 per month per household ;

(¢) The payments for the carve of a child or other persons when necessary for
a houschiold member to accept or eontinue employment ;

(d) Unusual cxpenses incurred due to an individual household’s disaster or
casualty losxes which could not be reasonably anticipated by the household ;

(e) Educational expenses which are for tuition and mandatory school fees,
including such expenses which are covered by scholarships, educational grants,
loans, fellowships, and veterans' educational benefits ; and

(f) Shelter costs in exeess of 30 per centum of the household’s income after
the above deductions.

* * * * * * E 4
(78 Stat. 703, as amended ; 7 U.S.C. 2011-2025)
Ricuarp Lyxg,
Assistant Sceretary.
Juny 14, 1972,
[FR Doc. 72-11103 Filed 7-17-72; 8:52 am]

[From the Federal Register, July 21, 1972}
Foop ANp NUTRITION SERVICE
{7 CFR Part 2711
Foon STAMP PROGRAM
COMPUTATION OF IIARDSHIP ALLOWANCE
Correction

The third paragraph of F.R. Doc. 72-11103 appearing at page 14236 of the
issue for Tuesday, July 18, 1972, should read as follows :

“It Is proposed to revise §271.3(c) (1) by deleting subdivision (ifi) (b), by
relettering subdivisions (iif) (e¢), (d), (¢), and (f) as subdivisions (ifi) (D),
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(¢), (d), and (e), respectively, and by adding a new subdivision (iii) (7). As
revised, § 271.3(c¢) (1) (iii) would read as follows:

[From the Federal Register, August 25, 1972]
Foop AND NUTRITION SERVICE
[7 CFR Parts 270, 271, 272
Foop StaMP PROGRAM
NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE MAKING

Pursuant to the authority contained in the Food Stamp Act of 1964, as amended
(7S Stat. 703, as amended: 7 U.S.C. 2011-2025), notice is hereby given that
the Food and Nutrition Service, Department of Agriculture, proposes to amend
the regulations governing the food stamp program to provide that the salary
and travel costs of the person who prepares the official record of hearings held
at the request of households may, in part, be paid to the State agency by the
Food and Nutrition Service: allow State agencies to make direct refunds to
any recipients overcharged for their coupon allotment; allow State agencies
to cooperate with Federal, State, and local investigative agencies which are
investigating suspected violations of the Food Stamp Act or program regulations:
and provide that conrt-ordered support and alimony payments will be deducted
from income in determining eligibility and basis of issuance.

Interested persons may submit written comments, suggestions, or objections,
regarding the propesed amendments to James 1. Kocher. Director. Food Stamp
Division, Food and Nutrition Service, U.S. Department of Agriculture, Wash-
ington, D.C. 20250, so as to be received not later than the 30th day following
the date of publication of thiis notice in the FEpERAL RecISTER. Comments, sug-
gestiony, or objections will be open to public inspection pursuant to 7 CFR
1.27(b) at the Office of the Direqtor, during regular business hours (S:30-5 p.m.).

The proposed revisions are:

1. In § 270.2, paragraph (ii) is revised to read as follows:

§270.2 Definitions.

* * * * L ] * *

(ii) “Hearing Official” means a person or persons designated by the Agency to
act in its behalf in the conducting of hearings under § 271.1(o) of this subehapter.
Such persons shall not have been involved in the action in question. Medically
qualified persons who make medical determinations or provide testimony on
medical issues in heariug proceedings and the person who preparcs the official
hearing record may also be considered heating officials.

* * * * * * *

2. In § 2711, paragraph (q) is revised to read as follows:

§271.1 General terms and conditions for State agencies.
* * * “ * * *

(q) Refunds to households. A household shall be entitled to a cash refund for
any amount that it has been overcharged for its coupon allotment as a result
of an error by the State agency in the administration of the food stamp prograw :
Provided, That, if the household owes a balance on a claim under § 271.7(d), the
State agency shall offset the amount due under this paragraph against such
balance, The State agency shall make such refunds from funds collected in pay-
ment of the purchase requirement or fromn its own funds or those of the project
area, or, if no such funds are available for this purpose, the State agency shall
request NS to make such refunds directly to the households. If State ageney or
project area funds are used to make refunds, FNS will credit or reimburse the
State ageney or project area therefor,

* * * * * * *

3. Section 271.3(c) (1) (iii) is amended by adding a new subdivision (g) to
read as follows :

§271.3 Household eligibility.
* * * * * * *
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(e) Income and resource cligibility standards of other houscholds.
(1) Decfinition of income, * * *
(iii) Dednetions for the following household expenses shall be made:

* * * * * * *
(g) Court-ordered support and alimony payments.
* * * * * * *

4. In § 272.5, the second sentence of paragraph (d) is revised and a new para-
graph (f) is added to read as follows:
$272.3 Darticipation of banks.
* * * -ox * x *

(d) * * * Such conupons which have been so issued and used, as well as any
coupous which have been issned nnder paragraph (f) of this section, or which
FNS believes may have been issued, transferred, negotiated, used, or received in
violation of any provisions of this snbchapter or of any applicable statnte, shall
at the request of any person acting on behalf of FNS and on issnance of a receipt
therefor by snch person, be released and turned over to FNS by the bank receiv-
ing such conpons, or by any other person to whom such request is nddressed,
together with the certificate(s) of redemption accompanying such coupons, if
any. * * *

* * * * * * *

(f) Upon the written request of Federal, State, or local govermuental agencies
which bave anthority to investigate, and are investigating, suspected violations of
Federal or State statutes relating to the enforcement of the Food Stamp Act or
the regnlations issned thereunder, the State agencey may allow honseholds which
it believes are or way be ineligible for the program to continue program partici-
pation and to receive and use ATP cards and food conpouns. The State agency
may allow such honseholds to continue participation in the program until the
earlier of (1) expiration of the period of 90 days after such request is received
or of such longer period as FNS, upon request of the State agency, may for good
cause approve hn a particnlar case, or (2) receipt of notification from the investi-
gative agency that such participation may be terminated or that the investization
has been completed. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this subchapter, the
State agency shiall not be lable to FNS for the bonus value of any coupons issned
to households which the State agency allows to continue participation in the pro-
gram in conformity with the provisions of this paragraph.

(78 Stat. 703, as amended, 7 U.S.C. 2011-2025)
Ricniary Lyxe.
Assistant Scerctary.
Avcust 21, 1972,
[FR Doc. 72-14461 Filed 8-24-72;8:49 am]
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SELECTED NEWSPAPER ARTICLES ON UNUSED FOOD STAMP FUNDS

[From thic Washington Post, June 14, 1972)
THRIFT AT THE EXPENSE OoF THE lIUNGRY

Normlly, when we in this eountry hear that some ageney of the government
is turning money back to the I'reasury. we breathe a sigh of relief figuring that
some effective statesman-like government employees have given us a little good
government. And. normally, you’d think that the government ageney responsible
for sueh savings would he anxious to broadeast the story loud and elear, Well,
the other day. the Senate Seleet Committee on Nutrition and Fuman Needs had
virtually to drag from Department of Agriculture offieinls that they were turning
something like $400 million in food stamp funds baek to the Treasury this year.
Curfous,

But, as the faets dribble out. the strange reticence of the USDA on the subject
hecomes less mysterious. Last fall. it scemed that USDA was leaning townrd eut-
ting the program back by some $200 millions, but after outeries by ndvocates of
the poor and legislators on the hill, and amidst denials by USDW\ officials that they
were following a punitive and flinty-hearted poliey, the plan was scrapped—
apparently. At that point, the projeetions of the administration and the ndvocates
of the lnmgry alike were that by the end of the fisenl year, 12.5 million people
would le served by the program, Yet, as the fiscal year is ending and the admin-
istration is turning money bhaek to thie treasury, only 11.5 million people are
enrolled in the program,

Moreover, 1970 census figures show that some 25.9 million people are in poverty
in this eountry. These are the “nutritionally endangered”. in the language of the
Select Committee. About 449% of them (11.5 million) participate in the food
stamp program. 13¢, (3.3 million) receive surplus eommodities and 43¢ (10.8
million) receive nothing. So, neither in terms of its own projeetions nor in terms
of absolute human need enn it he argued that this bit of government thrift is the
resnlt of a job well, or eompletely done.

And there is also a question as to whether some of the returncd money eould
not have heen usefully spent for the three benefits of those U.S. millions currently
being served, The National Council on Hunger estimates that hetween January
1970 and April 1972 the eost of food consumed at home rose at n rate 500%
greater than the rise in the food stamp allotment. It is true that during the year,
the USDA did raise the allotment to reflect some rise in food priees but in many
instanees, it alvo raised the cost of the stamps., sometimes more than the increase
in the allotment. Some elderly recipients testified that hecause of their advanced
ages, specinl diets were required. In some instanees those diets are so eostly that
the elderly exhaust their food stamp benefits in the first two weeks of the month.

Thus. the Department of Agrienlture had at hand a number of ways in which
the $400 million “saving” eould have been expended to nlleviate human misery.
When it beeame fairly elear in late 1971 that the food stamp approprintion would
not lie spent at the then eurrent program level, USDA eounld have ehosen to provide
benefits to more hungry people, it could have enriched the benefits of the people
already enrolled in the program or it eould have provided richer allotments to
the elderly. As far as can be seen at this point, it ehose to do none of these.
Rather, it chose to “save” $400 million—at great human eost.

In a program that is designed to feed hungry Americans, all of that sounds
like bad and punitive government to us nnd leads us to repeat a question put to
Senator Perey, who was chairing the hearings., by an elderly food stamp recipi-
ent, “Senator, why are they going to give it back when I get so little?”

A good question, we think.

(716)
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[From the Little Rock, Ark.; Gazette, June &, 1972
FuNus AUTHORIZED FOR Foop STAMPS WoN'T B SPENT

WasnINGToN (AP).—The Agriculture Department told Congress Wednesday it
would spend $389 million less than authorized on food stamps.

However, it denied charges by Senutor George S. McGovern (Dem., S.D.) that
it purposely had withheld funds from the program, which is designed to help the
poor.

Assistant Agriculture Secretary Richard Lyng told the Senate Hunger Com-
mittee, It shouhl be made absolutely elear that there has been no withholding of
funds from either the food-stamp pregram or the special food serviee program.”

MeGovern, the Committee's ehairman, was in Californin. A statement from him
was read by Senator Charles Percy (Rep., 111.).

It is an ~sorry and confusiny spectaele,” 3icGovern said, to see the president
reaffirming his commitinent to feed the hungry when, on the other haml, "we
have an cxecutive agency witliholding a substantinl proportion of the funds
available to improve the diets of the needy poor.”

“Today we learn from the Department of Agriculture that some $400 million
of the fands so desperately needed by Amerien’s hungry poor will be returned to
the Treasury,” McGovern said in the statement.

Lyng sald the money was being returned, not because the progriam was un-
successful but because it was difficult to estimate in advance exactly what needs
will be.

IIUNGER EXPERT SEES TURNBACK

John R, Kramer, exceuntive direetor of the National Couneil on Hunger and
Malnutrition, said that while the Agriculture Depnrtment had $2.28 biltion avail-
able for food stamps this year, it would spend only $1.87 billion.

He sald $414 million would be returned to the Treasury,

Lyug said the program’s suceess in reaching the needy was indicated by a
ten-fold spending inercuse from the $250 million authorized for the entire pro-
gram in 1969,

Kramer said that of the 259 million poor persons in the 1970 census, only
44 pereent received food stamps in April 1972,

Ile said another 13 percent received commodities.

But 43 percent or 111 million got nothing, he said.

MceGovern sald regulutions were fmposed, with no direction from Congress,
which forced recipients out of the program if they participnted in work, train-
inz or educational programs designed to make them self-snfficient.

[From the Chicago Sun-Times, June 9, 1972}
Huxger StiLL Top PRIoRITY

Sen, Charles H. Perey (R-I1l.) is perfectly correct in his demunds that the
Nixon administraticn produce an adequate explanation of why it {s that some
$100 million in food stamp finds is being returned unspent to the U.S., Treasury.
In addition, some $4 million is being returned from a special programm under
which Hend Start and dny-care centers are provided with free lunches.
The discrepan:y came to light Wednesday at a meeting of the Senate Select
Committee on Nuirition and Fluman Needs. Perey, ranking Republican mem-
Lier, presided over the meeting in the absence of the chairman, Sen. George
MeGoverit (D-5.1).), who called the administration action “a sorry and cou-
fusing spectacle.”
. “We approprivted the money and authorized §t,” Perey told The Sun-Times
: Thursday. “The £resident’s gonl is to close the hunger gap. 1s there no more
hunger in America? Or has our delivery system broken down? We provide thiree
meals a day for every American soldier all over the world, and we should do the
same for hungry people here at home. What is of higher priority than food for
the hungry 7
Perey describes the issue fairly. There is always going to be some surplus in
the food-stamp program; Heaven forbid there should ever be n deficit. But if
cutting funds already authorized by Congress for food is being done as an econ-
omy measure, this should quiekly be ha’ted.
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{ From the Phitladelphia Trilune, June 17, 1972)
MiLiions Wit Nor Ger Foon Stamrs Tuis YEar
(By Louise 1. Wyche, National Black News Service)

washington— (NBNS)—>More than 1 miilion poor people have not participated
in the food stamp program for the needy hecanse the Nixon Administration has
falled to spend close to $400 lilion of the $2.3 hillion appropriated this year.

Sen. Charles Perey, Relil., the ranking minority member on a special Senate
connnittee fooking at the problem, was especially critieal of the muspent money
for the food stamp program. He expressed astonishment at food stamp reguin-
tions that penalize the poor If they sign up for work-training progrms.

Sen. George MeGovern, D-8.D, who is chalrman of the committee, was also
critieal, *It iz 2 sad copupentary on onr national conscience that we ennnot or
will not meet the hasle Tnman needs of our soclety nnd peopie,’ he said.

Althongh 11 milllon persons are now participating In the food stamp progeany,
more than 123 miflion were snpposed to be helped in the effort, If all of the
woney had heen spent.

John Krmmer, exceutive divector of the National Conuell of Maluntrition,
charged the administration with “plekpocketing the poor™ by uot ralsing benefits
and reaching more needy porsous with the program,

Under new reguiations governing the program. which wiil go into effect on
Juiy 1. bhenefits wili be redueed for mote than oue-third of the veciplents in
New York, while others will be foreed ont of the program altogether.

Agrienitnre Department offieinls admitted that 382 mililon fn ungpent funds
wonld go hack to the federal Preasury on July 1, the first day of the new fiscal
year.

Richard Lyng. assistapt secretary for agrieniture, told the Senate Select
Committee on Nutrition, that the department will gpend fess than the appro-
printed food stanp fuds becanse of misenleniations in the program’s growth,
slownexs by states in permitting new connties to onter the program and slowness
I fmplementing “ew reguiations,

“hore have boen no reduetions or holding hack of fands for the food stamp
program.” Tyng told the =enntors. “Ths adinistration hns repeatedly demon-.
strated n strong sense of commitient to President Nixon's pledge three years
ago to eliminate hunger in this land."”

“As the food stamp programn has expanded. we have not hesitated to request
funding. from 250 nillion when we arrived in 196% to onr tudget request of
£2.24 hiltion for fiseal 1973, a ten-fold increase.”

' One welfare mother from Des Molues, 24.year-0ld Dorothy Cain, told the com-
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mittee of her offorts for self-empioyment and work have resulted in lower food
stamn benefits. Mex, Cain. who has two children, gald she paid £30 wonthiy
for $84 worth of stamps hint now must pay S60 for £84 worth of stnmjps.

Weifare recipients with less than a poverty-level income, based on £4,00 for a
famliy of four, are eligible for varving henefits according to their income. A
family of four with no incone may receive $108 worth of free food stamps
wmonthiy. while a family with $200 monthly income can pay $60 to receive $108
worth of stamps.

{From the New York Timex, June 8, 19721
Nixox CRITICIZED oN UNAPENT FuNvs $400-MILLION Froy Foon Procuays Is
RETURNED
. (By Paul Delaney)

WasiIneToN, JUNE 7.—The Nixon Aduinistration was severely criticized today

for returning to the Treasury about $400-miilion from the food stamp prograul.

| Further, the Administration was accused of keepiug the matter secret untii it

| was too lnte to make use of the funds.

X The charges were made before the Senate Select Committee on Nutrition and
Human Needs, which called a serles of hearings to Investigate the accusations.

Desides the mones that was returned under the food stamp program, about

| $4-mlition will remain unused under the special food service program, which pro-

| ERJ
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vides free hunches for day care centers and Head Start projects. Thirty states
will be returning those funds te the Departnient of Agriculture.

The discovery that the funds were returned was accidental, and wax niade
after a suit was filed by New York City, Pennsylvania. and the National Weifare
Rights Organization.

‘The snit asked that the Agrienlture Department ine foreed to provide enough
food stamps for a nutritionally ndequate diet” as mandated by nw, Department
ofliclals made the disclosure of the return of the funds during pretrial testimony.

The committee’s chairman, Scnator George McGovern, Democrat of South
Dakota. called the hearings,

Mr. McGovern ternusd the Administration action “a serry and confusing spec-
tacie.” Other withesses, whe inclnded Arthur Schiff, assistant adminlstrator of
the New York City IInnmn Resonrces Administration, called the aeotion “pick-
pocketing the poor®” and “bareaueratic tervor,”

The charges were denied by Richard E. Lyng, Assistant Secretary of Agricnl-
ture, who defonded the food stamp action as the resnlt of diffiendty in estineting
funding neweds

Mr. Lyug reported that 30 states would be returning $4-523lon or more to the
departiient under the special food program. He sald this was o resalt of plans
to switch to year-round fanding rather than splitting it over two fiseal verjods,

The Agriculture Departient officinl maintained that $388-million wonld he re-
turned to the Treasnry, but said that the hanger needs of the poor were heing
met. The committee and some critics said the flre being returned was as high
s $H14-million,

1t should e made absolntely clear at the ontset that there has heen no with.
holding of fundx from clther the foxd stamp program or the specinl food service
progeams,” he asserted,

TO RETURN JUNE 15

Mr. Lyng wus not able to answer guestions after his testimony, and he is
scheduled to appear mgain June 15, Ile was diceetesd by Senator Charles 11,
'erey. Repnblican of Hlinofs, who presided in the absence of Mr. McGovern,
to explain fully why the SL3-billon §i food stnmp money was not spent.

Mr. Sehiff, along with John R. Kranter. executive director of the National
Counefl on Hunger, said the money could have heen used to reduce the cost
of stamps to ull recipients, to increase allotments or to bring more people Into the
program.

“Who's responsible for pickpocketing the poor?” Mr, Kramer asked.

He answered that besides the Administration, Congress was partly to bluame
for making it a crime to overspend funds for the program. He termed *Con.
gressionnl lnwlessness” a provision for returning unspent money to the Trensury
riather than earrying it over to the next year.

In 2 relnted matter, Mr. Schiff asked the commiitee to act to prevent imple-
mentation of a new Agrientture Department regulation, to go into effect next
January, that provides that families with higher rent payments pay more for
food stamps.

“Beeause of New York City's rent control law, zome families in the same
tailding pay different rents,” Mr, Schiff said. “And the department knows that
there woald be a decrense in participation because of the inerense in cost.”

He said that the food stamp program was popular in New York, with over
!(3100.000 eKartlclpxmm. There would be more if the cost of food stamps was lower,

e added.

In a statement read by Mr. Percy, Senator McGovern. the Democratie Presi-
dential frountrunner, charged that the Administration was withholding funds
from the needy poor only one month after President Nixon reaflirmed his com-
mitment to end hunger in America.

“Jt is a sad commentary on our national conscience that we cannot or will
not meet the hasic human needs of onr soclety and peopi2,” Mr. McGovern siid in
his statement,

Mr. Perey said that neither the Administration nor Congress disagreed with
the goal of ending hunger, but that there were “legitimate differences on how
to implement these goals.”
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{From the Washington Post. June 8, 1972]
SomE MoXNEY UNSPENT FoR Foop StaMPs
(By Nick Kotz)

The Nixon administration revealed yesterday that ic will not spend about $400
million of the $2.3 billion appropriated this gear for the food stamp program.

Agriculture Department officials ncknowledged that $382 million in unspent
funds will revert to the Treasury after June 39, the last day of the fiscal year.

The. department’s action was criticized at a hearing of the Senate Select
Committee on Nutrition, where witnesses also complained that various food
st:unp regulations will cause the poor to receive less food.

Richard Lyng, an assistant secretary of agriculture, told the committee that
USDA *ill spend less than the appropriated food stamp funds because of mis-
calculations in program growth, slowness in implementing new regulations, and
slowness by states in permitting new counties to enter the program.

“There has been no reduction or holding back of funds for the food stamp pro-
gram,” Lyug testified. “The administration has repeatedly demonstrated a strong
sense of commitment to President Nixon's pledge three years ago to eliminate
huunger in this lnnd. As the food stamp program has expanded, we have not
hesitated to request funding—from $250 million when we arrived in 1969 to our
budget request of $2.34 billion for fiscal 19:3—a ten-fold increase.”

Sen. Charles Percy (R-I1l.), ranking minority member of the committee who
presided in George McGovern’s absence, expressed astonishment at food stamp
regulations that penalize the poor if they sign up for work-training programs.

John Kramer, executive director of the National Council on Malnutrition, ac-
cused the administration of “pickpocketing the poor” by not raising benefits and
reaching more needy people with the program.

More than 11 million persons now participate. Welfare recipients and others
with less than a poverty level income ($4.000 n year for a family of four) are
aligible for varying benefits according to income. A family of four with no income
can receive $108 worth of free food stamps monthly, while a family with $200
monthly income can pay $60 to receive $108 worth of stamps.

Arthur Schiff administrator of the food stamp program in New York City,
said new regulations effective July 1 will reduce benefits for more than one-third
of recipients in New York and will force many of them out.

Dorothy Cain, 24, of Des Moines, a welfare recipient with two children, de-
seribed how her efforts for self-improvement and work have resulted in lower
food stamp henefits. Mrs. Cain paid $30 monthly for $84 worth of stamps but now
must pay $60 for $84 in stamps.

[(From the Washington News, June 7, 1972]
U.S. Foop StaMP MoNEY Is UNSPENT

(UPI)—A Senate committee asked the ndministration today to explain why it
is not using the full $2.3 billion available for food stamps to the poor.

Assistant Agriculture secretary Richard Lyng was called before the Senate
select committee on nutrition and needs to tell how a $400 million to $500 million
surplus had developed. The administration plans to return the money to the
Treasury instend of using it to help feed the poor.

Sen. Charles Percy, R-Ill, opened the hearing and said the key question was
whether food programs were “being implemented to achieve adequate nutrition
for all Americans at the earliest possible date.”

Despite the availability of $2.3 billion, committee members said department
regulations forced food stanps recipients out of the program if they take part
in training designed to make them self-sufficient.

[From the Washington Star, June 7, 1972]
SeExATE UxIT ProBES FooD STAMP SURPLUS

A Senate committee asked the Nixon administration today to explain why it
is not using the full $2.3 billion available for issuing food stamps to the poor.

Asst. Agriculture Secretary Richard Lyng was called before the Senate Select
Committee on Nutrition to tell how a “surplus” estimated at $400 million to $500
million has developed.
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Lyng was the first to testify as the committee opened two days of hearings on
the administration’s plan to return the money to the Treasury instead of using
it to help feed the poor. .

In the absence of the committee chairman, Sen. George McGovern, S.D,, the
opening hearing was chaired by Sen. Charles H. Percy; R-Ill. Percy said the key
question was whether food programs were “being implemented in a way to
achieve our national goal of adequate nutrition for all Americans at the earliest
possible date.”

Committee members said the reguiations imposed by the department would
force food stamp recipients out of the program if they participate in work, train-
ing or education programs designed to make them self-sufficient.

The department also was criticized for raising the monthly stamp allotment by
only $4 for a household and fur raising the price of the stamps for low-income
people.

[From the CNI Weekly Report]
USDA To ReTGRy $400 MirLiox IN StaMp FUNDS

USDA and its critics agreed last week that the Department will return about
$400 million in food stamp foods to the Treasury this year but disagreed over the
implications of the unexpended appropriation.

At special hearings called by the Senate Nutrition Committee, witnesses from
anti-hunger groups and fromn food stamnp project areas agreed with USDA spokes-
men that at least $390 million to as much as $420 million in food stamp funds
would o unspent in fiscal 1972,

Department spokesman Richard Lyng, Assistant Secretary, rejected impli-
cations that the GSDA had attempted to save food stamp fnnds and said “There
has been no reduction or holding back of funds for the food stamp program.”
He attributed the anticipated return of $3S9 million to problems in estimating
funding needs and delay in switching counties with surplus food distribution
to the food stamp program,

Other witnesses argued that USDA could have used its anticipated surplus
to henetit poor people. Speculating that had USDJA officials decided “to de-
liberately starve the food stamp program of adequate funds,” Arthur Schiff, ]
assistant welfare administrator for New York City, said USDA could have used
the leftover money to reduce the cost of food stamps to recipients, to increase
food stamp ailotments so as to provide a nutritionally adequate diet, or to bring
more families into the program.

Schiff charged that USDA, through the interpretation of new regulations and
the issuance of new allotment schedules, is “increasing the cost of food stamps
beyond reason.” He predicted that recent policy changes would reduce benefits
for more than one third of New York City’s food stamp recipients, fercing many
of them out of the program (see accompanying story).

John Kramer, executive director of the National Council on Hunger and Mal-
nutrition said that 43 percent of low-income persons in the nation do not par-
ticipate in either the food stminp or commodity distribution programs. Some

N 48 percent of all welfare recipients do not participate in the food stamp pro-
. gram where it is available, he said.
; Kramer also reported that food stamp participation declined in 16 states

from April 1971 to April this year. In contrast, he said, USDA spent $20 million
more for food stamp administrative costs than the $70 million it requested for
; this fiscal year, “a 30 percent cost overrun for the bureaucrats.”

Kramer said USDA should be allowed to carry over any surplus in food stamp
funds from one fiscal year to another. Both houses of Congress voted a carry over
provision as part of the Food Stamp Amendments of 1971, Kramer reported,
3 but a House-Senate conference on the bill struck it out with USDA'S concurrence.

“You're saying that funds should carry over from one year to another—
that was the intent of Congress,” said Senator Charles H. Percy (R-Il.), who
chaired the hearing.

“Yes, the money is wasted otherwise,” Kramer replied.

The comittee also henrd from Dorothy Cain, an Towa mother of two whose
food stamp bonus was reduced by $30 after she enrolled in a job training pro-
gram under the WIN (“work incentive”) program for welfare recipients. Since
her work-related expenses are considered income for food stamp eligibility pur-
poses, she said, she must choose bet'veen continuing training and feeding her
children.
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Percy commented that Ms. Cain’s testimony revealed an inconsisteney between
two federal programs. USDA's treating work-related expenses as income, he said,
is contrary to President Nixon's “workfare” policies and the intent of Congress.
(For further background on the WIN rule, see CNI Vol. II: 4)

Also testifying were two elderly District of Columbia residents who complained
that they conld not purchase an adequate diet using food stamps alone. One of
the two women, hoth of whom suffer from dinbetes. said she runs through her
monthly food stamp allotment in abont a week and a half.

“In other words, if you get sick enough, you will go to a hospital and get an
adequate diet.” Percy commented.

FOOD STAMP GROWTI{; GOING NOWHERE FAST

Food stamp participation, after growing dramatically in 1970. slowed appre-
ciably in 1971 and has failed thus far in 1972 to live up to expectations.

Since Janary 1970, the number of people using food stamps has grown by 7.7
million, rising from 3.8 million to nearly 11.5 million. Three-fourths of that
growth came in 1970, and 19 percent in 1971,

Abont 6 percent of the growth has been registered in the first fonr months of
1972, about the same annual rate of growth as in 1971.

Thaus, if the food stamp program expands at its current rate through the rest
of 1972, the total number of persons in the program may reach 12 million by
January 1973.

That, however. is not good enough, according to the USDA. The FY 1973
budget request of $2.3 billion is based on reaching an average of more than 13
million persons in fiscal 1973. This means the program would have to be serving
more than 12,5 million persons by January 1973.

Food stamp program specialists look to several program modifications. together
with the expansion of the program to new areas, to bring the rate of program
growth up to the expected level.

Recent changes in food stamp regulations are expected to make more pecople
eligible by broadening income eligibility levels and to encourage more participa-

* tion by increasing monthly allotments.

Income eligibility levels are heing made uniform throughout the nation, and
are being raised in a three stage step to about $403 per month for a four person
household by July. The monthly allotment also will be increased in July from
$108 per month to $112 for a four-person household. However, only two-thirds of
the program participants will benefit from the action. They will receive about
$1.10 more per person in mouthly bonuses. The other third will be required by
the USDA to pay $4 more per four-person household, but the bonus payment is
unchanged.

The impact of these changes i# unknown, but the accompanying chart of the
rate of change in monthly program participation indicates the program responds
primarily to expansion, to strikes, unemployment and sharply higher bonus
payments.

In February 1970 the average value of the food stamp bonns was doubled, and
in the next six months nearly 3.2 million persons jnined the program. In Septem-
ber, New York City came into the program, and 800.000) new participants were
added. Through October and November the General Motors strike bronght some
400,000 persons into the program, and accounted for a third of the total increase.

They left ‘the program in December and January after the strike ended, and -

program growth those months was greatly reduced.

Unemployment rose from 4.2 percent in January 1970 to 6.6 percent n year
later. Job losses were especially severe late in 1970, and the unemployed came
into the program heavily in February and March of 1971 after unemployment
compensation ran out. Unemployment has been about 6 percent since that time,
and seasonal influences through most of 1971 and 1972 account for many of the
monthly variations. The coal miners’ strike in the fall of 1971 added about
100.000 persons in November, and they left the program in January after settle-
ment of the strike.

Thus far, the new regiilations have had little positive impact. In the few states
which have put them into operation, participation has dropped more often than
it has grown.

In fact, participation in April would have declined nationally had not 65 new
areas been added to the program during March and April.

These figures, together with the more ominous fact that 18 states are showing
lower participation figures today than a year earlier, point to the probability
that more improvement will be needed if the food stamp program is to reach
more people, and live up to its projections for fiscal 1973.
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Material Submitted by Other Than Witnesses

FROM SENATOR WARREN G. MAGNUSON

U.S. SENATE,
CoMMITTEE 0N COMMERCE,
Washington, D.C., June 7, 1972.
Hon. CuariLes H. PErcY,
Select Committec on Nutrition and Human Needs,
U.S. Senate.

DEAR SENATOR PERCY @ I am extremel§ concerned regarding the apparent “freez-
ing of funds” for the food stamp program and I am also concerned about the
attitude of the Office of Management and Budget regarding the Emergency Food
and Medical Services Program. On January 26, 1972, I joined with you and forty
other Senators to urge the Administration to continue E.F.M.S. At that time,
O.M.B. argued that funds were not available in the F.Y. 72 0.E.O. budget for
I3.F.M.S, As Chairman of that Appropriations Subcommittee, I offered an amend-
ment to the Second Supplemental adding $20 million for E.F.)M.S, for F.Y. 72.
On May 30, 1972. I received a very negative sounding reply from Casper Wein-
berger, Deputy Director for 0.M.B., to my earlier letter urging the expenditure
of these funds. Because 42 United States Senators want this program continued,
I feel a duty to ask you to include a copy of that letter in your hearing record.

Regardless of Director Weinberger's assertion about the adequacy of eXisting
major Federal food programs—Food Stamp and Conunodities—30,000 citizens in
the Seattle/King County area are still relying on Neighbors in Need, a church-
sponsored voluntary feeding program, to meet their food needs. We need to keep
E.F.M.S. alive for emergency situations like this not cut it back from $42.4
million in F.Y. 71 to $3.5 million in F.Y. 72, and then refuse to spend $20 million
provided by Congress solely for the purpose of maintaining this program. I am
also attaching a news article from the Seattle Times, written by Mr. Ray Rup-
pert, which details the tragic financial conditions facing “Neighbors in Need”,

You have been extremely helpful in the past and I hope yon can again urge
the continuation of this vital program.

Sincerely,
WARREN G. MAGNUSON.

ExecuTivE OFFICE OF THE PRESIENT,
OFFICE OF MANAGEMEXNT AND BUDGET,
Washington, D.C., May 30, 1972.
Hon. Warrey G. MAGNUSON,
U.S. Scnate,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR SENATOR MAGNUSON ©

On hehalf of George Shultz, I am replying to your letter of May 17, 1972,
regarding the Emergency Food and Medical Services (EFMS) Program.

Your letter cites the $20 million for the EFMS program which Congress in-
cluded in the Second Supplemental Appropriations Bill (H.R. 14582). Any an-
nouncement regarding the utilization of these funds is somewhat premature since
the President has not yet signed the bill.

Yon indicate a desire that these funds be expended in areas suffering from
high rates of unemployment, such as Seattle. I am Sure that you are aware that
this would represent a major reorientation of the current program, which funds
only migrants and Indians, as well as n major restructuring nf the EFMS pro-
gram, as it was constituted prior to the President’s 1972 budget. The previous
program was intended to conform to the stipulations expressed in Section 222
(a) (5) which authorizes the EFMS programs “to counteract congditions of star-
vation or malnutrition among the poor.”

(723)
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In requesting a two-year extension of the Economic Opportunity Act, the
Administration has requested continued statutory authority for the EFMS pro-
gram. But whether EFMS projects, other than for Indians and wmigrants, should
be funded is dependent on whether the major Federal food programs—Food
Stamp and commodities—are meeting the criterin specified in the Economic
Opportunity Act.

That new EFMS projects would meet these statutory criteria in areas of hi gh
unemployment, such as Seattle, is not certain, particularly in view of the expan-
sion of the Food Stamp progrmn in Seattle as well as the liberalization of
benefits as a result of the revised Food Stamp Regulations which Jehn Ehrlich-
man outlined to you in his letter of February 29, 1972. The revised regulations
enable increased bonus values for lower income recipients, including free stamps
for the poorest.

In addition since last January, low-income people in the Seattle area have
heen able to obtain food commodities in lieu of Food Stamps, if they desire. The
simultaneous distribution of commodities in counties with a Food Stamp program
is mnique to King, Pierce, and Snohomish counties. Currently approximately
18.000 people are receiving these commodities. This is in addition to the approxi-
mately 118,000 who were receiving Food Stamps in March 1972

I am sorry that I caunot at this time give you specific information regarding
the $20 million which Coungress has appropriated for the EFMS program. After
the President has acted on the bill, however, I will be happy to discuss with you
the rationale for any decision that is reached.

Siuncerely,
CasPAR W. WEINBERGER,

Deputy Director.

U.S. SExaATE,

SeLECT CoMMITTEE 0N NUTRITION AND ITUMAN NEEDS,
Washington, D.C., January 26, 1972.

The PRESIDENT,
The White House,
Washington, D.C,
DeAR MR, PRESIDENT: We are writing to you once again out of a seuse of
deep concern that narrowly viewed budgetary questions are unwisely jeopardizing
our mutual efforts to end hunger in America. Specifically, we understand that
the Emergency Food and Medical Services program administered by the Office
of Economic Opportunity is being arbitrarily dissolved by the Office of Manage-
went and Budget in disregard of clear congressional intent.
All that would remain of the program would be $3.5 million for grants to
programs serving Indians and Migrauts, and even that represents a reduction
of $1.7 million from last year.
Twice in recent months the Congress indicated its firm intention that the
Emergency Food and Medical Services program be continued and supported
, with adequate financing. We direct your attention both to the Economic Oppor-
, tunity Act, and the Supplemental Appropriations Bill for 1972. In the first

instance, Congress earmarked $62.5 million for the brogram, authorizing in.
! creased funding for the present fiscal year over the fiscal vear past. In the
second instance, equally strong action was taken. Senate Report No. 92-549
contains the following :

“Accordingly, the Committee intends and directs that $52,700,000 (including
$20,000,000 previously enacted) of the appropriation provided be for the Emer-
gency Food and Medical Services. . . .”

Conferees subsequently reduced the actual dollar amount in deference to your
wishes representing total costs for the Office of Economic Opportunity.

At no point, Mr. President, did the members of the Congress indicate a willing-
ness to see the program dissolved. Our letter to you this morning represents
an attempt to reiterate in the strongest possible terms our wish to see the
program continued.

Mr, President, termination of this program would affect grantees in half this
nation’s comnties, Over 3,400 persons—many of them from among the poor—
are heing employed, and they, in turn, provide direct service to nearly three
to four million other poor Americans, Termination of the program would mean
even more than a dissolution of the jobs and services,

Termination of the Emergency Food Program would jeopardize the nutri-
tional status of a specially vulnerable group: pregnant women, new mothers
and young infants whose Supplemental Food Programs were being supported
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in 145 of the approximately 300 areas in which the program operated, in-

cluding St. Louis, Detroit, Los Angeles, Arkansas, Nortlr Carolina and

elsewhere ;

termination would affect experimental group feeding programs for the
elderly poor;

termination would eliminate research grants on subjects particularly
pertinent to poor Americans, such as the grant to the University of South

Carolina to study intestinal parasites:

termination would mean the end of the only extensive experimentation
underway in the uses of tha mass media to provide nutrition education,
now underway in New Mexico;

funds being mmade available in Massachusetts to transport food com-
modities to eligible but homebound elderly poor—another particularly vul-
nerable group—would no longer be avajlable;

the continuation of research on theé' national school lunch program now
being supported at Rutgers and North Carolina State Universities would be
endangered ; and

innovative programs to encourage self-lielp projects such as a Louisiana
cooperative to raise catfish, would be threatened.

Mr. President, the list could go on and on. In every state there are Emergency
Food and Medical Services grants being utilized to alleviate the most pressing
needs of poor people. By its support of innovative and experimental programs,
demoustrations not possible of support by any other federal agency are under-
way that affect the operation of all of the federal anti-hunger efforts. Indeed,
the Emergency Food and Medical Services program has been responsible for
much of the outreach, transportation, and more effective program administra-
tion that have enabled the food stamp and commodity distribution program to
reach more people.

The money at stake is relatively small. It is a credit to the program that
it has been used in ways that maximize their impact for all the hungry poor.
Recalling your pledge to bring an end to hunger in America for all time, it
is difficult*to imagine that this small sum may thoughtlessly be shifted from the
purposes which the Congress has intended.

We look forward to your prompt resolution of this matter.

Sincerely,

PrILie A. HART; GAYLORD NELSON; GEORGE MCGOVERN; WARREN G.
MaoNUsoN; BircH BayH; Lroyd BENTSEN; ALAN CRANSTON;
THoMAS F. EacLeroN; CHARLES H. PeErcY; MarLow W. CooK;
CLiFForp P. Case; CHARLES McC. MaTHIAS, Jr.; Epwarp W.
BrookE; Jacos K. Javirs; RoBERT TAFT, Jr.; MIKE GRAVEL;
Frep R. HaRRIS ; VANCE HARTKE ; ERNEST F. HoLLINGS ; HUBERT H.
HuMmpHEREY ; HAaroLD E. HuonEs ; HENRY M. JACKSON ; WALTER F.
MonpALE; EpMUND S. MUskIE; WILLIAM PROXMIRE; ABRAHAM
Risrcorr; Aprai E. Stevenson III; WinLtam B, Spone, Jr.;
Joun V. TuNNEY; HARRISON A. WILLIAMS, Jr.; Davio H. Gaum-
BRELL; JENNINGS RANDOLPH ; QUENTIN N, BurDick; HowARD W.
CanNoN; Epwarp M. KENNEDY; STUART SYMINGTON; J. W.
FursrieHT ; THOMAS J. MCINTYRE; JosEPH M. MoNTOYA ; JoRHN O.
PastoreE; CLAIBORNE PELL; FrRANK CHURCH.

GrooM SETTLES OVER NEIGUBORS IN NEED
(By Ray Ruppert, religion editor)

Gloom wus the prevailing mood in the office of Neighbors in Need dispelled
only briefiy by an occasional happy note as contributions trickled in.

Mrs. Peggy Maze, director of the volunteer food-bank effort, summed up
Friday : “I don't know how much longer we can go on.”

The once robust ecumenical program which is still providing food for about
48,000 persons a month in the Seattle area appeared to be suffering a terminal
illness in which the only hope for recovery is a miracle.

“We're just going on day to day,” Mrs. Maze said. “The future still depends
upon the community and on whether the people are willing to assume respon-
sibility for the people we are trying to help.”
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Neighbors in Need had “possibly two weeks supply left” of food in its ware-
house at Pier 91, according to Kenneth Baxter who is in charge of warehousing
for the progra,

Mrs. Maze said that after bills were paid Friday. Neighbors in Need had a
bank balance of about $7.500. Because of a sharply reduced distribution, the
money could provide food for another two weeks at most.

The warehonse, serving 20 food banks in the Seattle area. has heen expending
27.000 to £8.000 a week to get food nt wholesale or less. Baxter said spending was
cut back to $5.000 last week and will be down to $3.000 this week.

Some of the food banks in the 24#-bank system are able to supply their own
needs. particularly in the suburbs.

Becanse of the cutback in snpplies, some people have been turned away, in-
cluding 20 families turned away at the Capitol Hill food bank on Wednesday.
Mrs. Maze said.

Baxter said he was concerned becnuse “tension is building up” in some areas
as a result of food-bank cutbacks. He commented, “Frankly. I'm very much
concerned about the outcome in the next few weeks if we have to cut down
further.”

A Skid Road food hank which has heen serving 200 to 2350 persons a day will
be closed Thursday. Mrs. Maze said. Funds from an emergency city Skid Road
program which have paid the rent have now been exhausted.

“There’s no way Neighbors in Need can pay $100 a month rent,” Mrs. Maze said.

There were o few bright spots.

An unoffirial elub of 40 eighth-and ninth-grade girls at Eckstein Junior High
School cont-ibuted $266, the proceeds from n walkathon to benefit Neighbors in
Need.

Two University of Washington students. Roger Parr and Boh Raphael. an-
nounced plans for a basketball marathon at the Lakeside Middle School on June
10 to raise funds for the food banks.

George T, Setters and Raymond A. Weston who will retire on Friday as
electrical engineers for the Seattle District, Corps of Engineers, have asked that
money be given to Neighbors in Need in lieu of farewall gifts.

The program has heen existing for a month and a haif on the mammoth nation-
wide. food collection of the International Associntion of Machinists in cooperation
with United Air Iines, Mrs. Maze said.

Foop-Fuxp DrcistoN LIKELY IN Two WEEKS

The Nixon administration is expected to decide within two weeks whether to
spend n specinl $20 million fund for emergency feeding programs which could

* bail out the troubled Seattle-area Neighbors in Need food banks.

The $20 million amendr-ent to the Second Supplementary Appropriations Act.
| offered by Senator Warren G. Magnuson (D.-Wash.), was sustained last week
| by both the House and Senate.

Magnuson said yesterday the purpose of his amendment was to provide the
Office of Economnie Opportunity with funds for emergency feeding programs in
areas of high unemployment throughout the country.

0. E. O. officinls have indicated to him, Magnuson said, that they are develop- ‘
ing a plan which would include funds for the hungry in the Seattle area. :

The senator said O. E. O. has been “extremely impressed” with the volunteer
structure of Neighbors in Need and is hopeful of using the Seattle program for 1
research in developing programs to be used elsewhere in the country where sini- :
lar circumstances exist.

However, any plan developed by O. E. O. must be cleared through the Office
of Management. and Budget. This has been n stumbling bloek in previous attempts
to free federal funds for special hunger programs.

Senntor Magnuson said he has written “a very strong letter” to George Schultz.
director of the Office of Management and Budget, urging that the Nixon admin-
istration nllow the expenditure of the funds.

If O. E. 0. is allowed to use the $20 million, Magnuson said, it is probable the
federal poverty agency will fund Neighbors in Need directly.
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WEeEK’s CoNTRIBUTIONS To Foop BANK Torar $3,662

Contributions to Neighbors in Need totaled $3,662 last week as the volunteer,
ecumenical program to feed Seattle-area’s rungry families completed its 18th
month.

One giver told Neighbors in Need workers in a letter with a $50 check: “We
have heurd that contributions have been quite low recently. Please don’t be too

¢ discouraged. There still are some concerned People behind you.”

Another contributor wrote: “Almost a year ago we went to a food bank for
food. We were warmly greeted by the people there.

“Now we are in better financial condition. We'd like to express our thanks
with a donation to help others.”

Contributions can be sent to Neighbors in Need, 314 Fairview Ave. N,, Seattle,
Wash. Contributions are tax deductible. The Seattle Times will publish the names
of contributors, except for those who ask that their gifts remain anonymous.
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Mabel Harper

J. Henry

Mr. and Mrs. B. Perkins

Mr. and Mrs. R. R. Jones

Mr. and Mrs, R, Lawson
James McCaulley

Christy Ulleland

Mr. and Mrs. G. Olsborg

Mrs. Helen Vaughan

Mr. and Mrs. 8. Varon

L. C. Stanton

Mr. and Mrs. W, Washbiarn
Mr. and Mrs. P. Matteo

Dr. and Mrs. D. Kaminsky
Mr. and Mrs. I. Tobiason

Mr. and Mrs. R. McCollum
Bing C. Yee

Helen Crowthers

Russell Aldrich

Betty Lee Jackson

Mr. and Mrs. G. Corcoran
Virginia Jeffries

Mr. and Mrs. M. W, Kirkwood
Mr. and Mrs. J. Gregory

Mr. and Mrs. J. Lindsey

Mr. and Mrs. J. L. Coleman
Mr. and Mrs. A. Dittrick
Diana Willis

Paige Stockley

Mrs. Beaulah Dittloff

Mrs. Pauline McMonagle
James Saitis

Clifton Kirk

Mr. and Mrs. Car] Cox

Mr. and Mrs. Phil McEachern
Mr. and Mrs, H. Funk

Mr. and Mrs. Carl Weber

L. W. Edwards

Mr. and Mrs. W. Rodgers, 8rd
Mr. and Mrs. Maurice Sutton
Mr. and Mrs, Stuart Scheingold
Dorothy Young

Mr. and Mrs. L. Slaton

Ernie Englander

Mr. and Mrs. Forrest Coffey
Mr. and Mrs. Lloyd Johuson
Alice Ayers

Mr. and Mrs. Bill Bell

Mr. and Mrs. H. Clair Smith
Elizabeth Mitchell

Hielen Lovgren

Mr. and Mrs. Edmund Nilsen
Mr. and Mrs, James Donovan
Mr. and Mrs. Donald Myers
Mr. and Mrs. Elmer Bolten
Marilyn Jorgenson

Mr. and Mrs, Edward May
Robert Thuboli

Judith Fisher

Mr. and Mrs. Blattner
Phyllis Walmsley

Hazel Lubash

Mr. and Mrs. Burton C. Waldo
Mr. and Mrs. John Broadfoot
Elaine Tarone

Raywmond T. Flory

Mr. and Mrs. David Allison
Mr. and Mrs. Robert J. Cutter
Mr. and Mrs. Sumi Fukel
Grace Jamison

Mr. and Mrs. Robert Campbell
Mr. and Mrs. Malcolm Gorham
Helen Limbert

George Bilo

Mr. and Mrs. Richard Meyer
Dr. and Mrs. Donald Keith
Mrs. Dorothy Blair

Mrs. Robert Dexter

Mr. and Mrs. Harold Scott
Donn B. Fountain

Lillian Squier

Mrs. D. N. Hendricks

Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Phelan
Henry Ahlers

Mr. and Mrs. John Herold
Anne Bauley

g;; Mr.and Mrs, H. R, Oldfield Gladys Lumbom
£ Q‘lr and ars G. (lillass Helen R. Distad
3 erner Lenggenhager Mr. and Mrs. Richard Jones
;gé Mr. and Mrs. David Beste Diann M. Bradley
£ Osvaldo Marrero I . £:
& Dr. and Mrs. Poro Sasal n memory ol:
& Mr. and Mrs. James Nelson Dr. Ken Malan
& Mr. and Mr=. Charles Towne Virgil T. Kelley
l: lillc ¥ Borghilde Olson Olive Waehtsmith
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First Covenant
Prospect Women’s Fellowship
Queen Anne United Presbyterian
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CHURCHES

Beacon Hill Presbyterian
Gethsemane Lutheran
Queen Anne Ecumenical Parish

ORGANIZATIONS AND BUSINESSES

Skid Road Community Council

Overlake Services League

Beta Sigma Phi, Ganuna Beta

Washington State Home Economics
Association

Airline Employees, District 141
Evergreen Washelli Memorial Park
South Snohomish Neighbors in Need
Boeing Propulsion-Noise Lab

Alpha Delta Kappa, Issaquah
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COMMENTS FROM MONTANA, MICHIGAN, AND KENTUCKY ON THE
EFFECT OF NEW FOOD STAMP REGULATION

FroM MONTANA

IHoUSE oF REPRESENTATIVES,
Washington, D.C., Junc 14, 1972,
Hon. GEorGE McGovERN,
Chairman, Sclect Conunittee on Nutrition and Human Nccds, U.S. Scnatc,
Washington, D.C.

Dear Mr. CuamrMaN : I understand that hearings are being held on USDA’s
policy of including certain types of income in calculating Food Stamp benefits
for reciplents.

I appreciate the opportunity to submit information about the effects this regu-
lation is having on Food Stamp pesticipants in Montana. Enclosed are: 1) a
petition signed by participants in the WIN program in Billings, 2) a report by
the State OLEO director regarding t! » operation of the Food Stmmp program in
Montana, and 3) a letter from the Silver Bow County Legal Services office con-
cerning winter housing allowances and Food Stamps.

It is inconceivable to me that allowances provided for specific purposes such
as transportation, day care, and winter housing are regarded as income in cal-
culating Food Stamp benefits, These allowances, which do not increase the
amount of incov.e avajlable for Food Stamps, are meant to be incentives to
assist persons in climbing out of poverty. ‘I'o penalize them by cutting bacek on
Food Stamps works ngainst the intent of Congress in providing incentives in the
first place. For this reason, I strongly urge that USDA be directed to rescind
this regulation. :

Kindest personal regards.

Sincercly,
JouN MELCHER.

Enclosures.
BriraNes, Moxt,, April 25, 1972,
Congressman JOHN MELCHER,

Hounsc of Representatives,

Longwarth Building,

Washington, 1).C.

DeaRr CoNGrRESSMAN MELCHER: We are enrolled in the Work Incentive Program
in Billings, Montana.

While attending school we are given $25 from the Welfare Department and
£30 from the Employment Service. This money is supposed to help us go to school
and give us an incentive to go.

However, when we purchase food stamps the price is raised; so we are not re-
ceiving the full amount of the incentive,

Another problem is the winter allowance to help pay for higher utilities and
additiona} winter clothes.

In Montana, nll Welfare recipicnts receive $10 for the first person in the family
plus an additional $5 for each member. Then again the food stawmp price goes
up.

Can something be done to help us?

Thank you for your co-operation.

Sincerely, L BAUGU
INDA BAUGUS,

(And 39 others).
- (729)



Q

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

o d i 2

730

May 17,1972.

To: The Governor's Office

Montana's Congressional Delegation

Department of Socinl and Rehabilitative Services

United States Departiment of Agriculture

Montana State Low-Income Organization

Montana United Indian Association.
From: Dan Newman, SEOO Director (Governor's representative to the Food

Stainp Hearing held in Billings, April 11 and 12, 1972),
Subjeet : Statewide Food Stamp Hearing.

What follows is a brenkdown of each issne with an indieation of where the
changes must take place, recomuendations for action, and a judgment on the
chances for change in the immediate future. These judgnients are my own and
as things develop we may want to discuss these issues with other major resonrce
persons. '

Needed Change #1: BExtend hours stamps are sold

As I understand the eurrent situation some counties have banks selling fomd
stamps and others have the welfare departments doing it. Both have very
limited hours. The banks are (I am sure) reimbursed for each trahsaction
(sale). The reimbursements run (in other states) between £50 and $1.25 per
transaction.

When the new stamp regulations are fully implemented welfare recipients
will be able to elect a mail out system which will allow them to avoid these
difficulties. They will simply sign for the stamps, the cost will be dedueted
from their check and the stamps will be sent by mail,

Althongh not required in the new stamp program a similar program has heen
introdneed 0 Arizona for nonswelfare recipients. The DA sends ant an AT
(Authorization to Purchase) card, the food stamp participant returns it with
n money order in the amount of the purchase price, and the DPA sends the
food st:umps.

The problems in this system include time-process loss, pnrchase of money order,
and stamp loss by theft,

Another option which is recommended here is that the state broaden its base
of Issning agencies to inchude credit unjons, CAA's, low fncome organizations,
ete. The county conld then contraet with these orgnizations to sell food stanips
and they wonld consequently receive the reimburseinent cost. A nnuber of such
programs are operating In the state of Californin and rvawin open some eve-
nings and Saturday. We recommend the broadening of the eligible groups with
active assistance of the State Welfare Dept. The SEOO v {1l actively assist such
groups throngh the use of their cconomic development staff,

Nced Change #3: Cash for change lcss than 50¢

‘I'he problem of not being able to purchase items such asg toilet paper and soap
with food stamps is one which originates at the congressional level. The only
possible long term avenue for change would be throngh a change in the law
itself (Sennte and House of Representatives). It is this writer’s apinion that
immediate efforts in that directior. would be a misuse of energies,

Needed Change #3: Cash for char.ge lcas than 50¢

The argmuments which eame sut in favor of this action were formidable. These
included the fact that recelits for change less than 50¢ forced the reuse of that
grocery store and the fact that people put cash into the purchase of stamps.
Phere i8. of course, precedent for this system., The change is one of policy and
may be brought about at any time by the Secretary of Agriculture. (State and
local departments have no control.)

The only reason given for the current system was that when USDA requested
fnput a majority of responses were against change for less than 50¢. Unfortu-
nately none of the poor people at the hearings received the request which was
published in the Federal Register.

Reeommendation #1.—That representatives from the hearings join the dele-
gations in the Senate and House to enjoin the Secretary of Agriculture to re-
ceive all the requests from Citizens of Montana in regard to this matter and
reconsider the current policy.

Reenmmendation #2,—That the state co-ordinating committee (for Hill County,
MSLIO and MUIA) consider at its next regular meeting a mechanism by which
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ple be communicated and response given. (Further explanation under change

#5.)

Needed Change 24: Simplify application and make certification cffcctire langer
than onc month

This is really a two part recommendation and hoth parts need further clari-
fication for action. The simplification of the application is proinbly a USDA—
Federal Jevel problem. Some simplitication should take pluce with the dropping
of the relatedness requirement.

The second part dealing with one month certification must be a local prohlem.
The federal and state regulations allow for as Jong as o six month certification
with the participant responsible to report any changes in Income, The only .
cases where one month certification is nsed s when Income is mapldly changing.

Rceommendation #1—~MSLIO gain more specitie data on where thix s a prob-
lem nnd the State Welfare Dept. take action to resolve the difficulties,

Needed Change 25: Total food stamp allotnient raixcd—incrcascd coxt provided
by Federal Gurerament

Thix change will have to come at the federal level, Several responses hy the
USDA st the hearings were wholly Inndequate. The Governor's office presented
the following ar the hearing: USDA's representative sald during the hearing
that if Congress would approprinte more money and there was i need the allot-
L went would go up. USDA's own studies indieate a minbinum need for a family .
l of four of $137.50 plus 5565 food cost increase—$145,00. Congress Ins consistently
r
]
)
|
l

731
entries Into the Federal Register which relate to food programs and poor peo-

appropriated USDA as much or more money thau they have reguested for the
program.

The further testimony by USDA that the studies were not available when the
stamp allotments were set is contradicted hy USDA'S action «n the allotment
subsequent to the hearings. The allotment for n family of four was raised by
oply four dolinrs to $112.00. Even this, heeanse of parallel raise in cost was of

1 . no benedit to those with an income higher than $270.00 per month.
| : Our recommendation at the henring was that representatives be sent to the
approprintions hearings in Washington, D.C. ‘Thix was done. Our recommendn- .
, tion now 1s that a laison be set up between Washingten Sennte offices and the
| MSLIO-MUIA-HIN County co-ordinating committee which would assure that
representatives of low income people in Montaua he heard at all fatnre publie
; hearings related to food issues in Washington, D.C.
: : It should be noted that severnl suits by Ron Pollnck (Center for Sacial Wel-
: fare Policy and Law) are pending which may positively effect this need.

Needed Change #6: Only income recagnized as a stundard for cligibility and con-
solidated houscholds restored to the program
¢ The consolidated households which were eliminated from the program by the
: “relatedness” regnirement shonld now he restored to the program. This is a re-
. cent change. Additionally the legality of the requirement for noninclusion on
, : the parent’s previous income tax return is being chnllenged in the courts,
> l§ Other requirements dire in some way part of the law and will have to be
changed in the future.

Nccded Change #7: Work requircment provision re.acriticn
While this is n recognized proliem in the law itself it is generally agreed that

the regulation is not an area for much liberalization. We can not honestly recom- 1
! wmend any action on this area prior to the next review in Congress.
- : Nceded Change #8: Realistic income standard provided to guidc cligibility
. dctermination
| ' This change would have to come at the USDA level. A broad base of support
: will e uceded to get USDA to be inclined in this direction. The need is closely
i related to #5 and the recommendation under that number could have an effect
" here also,
| . Necded Change #9: Elderly and dixabled able to purchasc mcals in group sctlings
Y . or in restaurants with food stamps
, : It is hafliing to many who have spent time in this field as to wby tbis is not
i currently allowed. Elderly and disabled citizens can purchase prepared food on
. au individual (“Meals On Wheels™) basis but not in groups or in a restaurant.
‘. ‘
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We recommend a letter of fnquiry be sent to USDA and ronted through the
senators” oflices as a beginning point and that whatever the reasons this matter
e given consideration as the food stamp bill comes up for review (future).

Neceded Change £ 10: Emcrgency izsuance of food stampa

While there iz no current federal brogram for emergeney (free) food stamps,
most peaple who would he in need of emergeney stamps are in the very low income
eategory at the thme of need. Therefore the cost of the stamps would he minimal
or nothing. Why then cannot weneral cmergency assistance money (state) be
used as the prrehase price for foad stamps. We recommend that the State Welfare
Department pursue any necded policy changes to dfrect such a change.

Ncecded Change £11: Food stamp participants detclop requlations and procedurea

10 guide the operation of the program

We have already recommended o procedure review (see #5) which would
fnvolve participauts fn the development of the food stamp laws. In addition
we recommend that each food stamp program (local) have a Policy Advisory
Conmmifttee which would develop a deep understanding of the program. know
what kinds of decisions are being made at what level (Jocnl. state, federal) and
have juput In that decision making, We further recommend that the State
Welfare Dept. lead in the establishment of such commiitees.

Needed Change #12: Local organizations provide ouircack and the poor paid to
do this jod
While USDA has not reinforeed the priority of outrench with money to pay
for this service we assnme that the support will he available in the future, Our
understanding is that the state is already working with low Income organizations
to fulfill this recommendat Hn.
Needed Change #13: Winter allowarce disallmeed as tncome torwcards the pur-
chaxe in food stamp cost
We recommend that the State Departimnent of Welfare arhitrasily proclaim
these ns exeess shelter expense and therefore not fnclude then ns income, We
recognize the gray area of such a decision but feel it §s a valid approach.

Sitven Bow CouNty LEGAL SERVICES OFFICE,
Butte, Mont., May 4, 1972.
Mr. Joux Mrourn,
Honxe Ofice Building,
Washington, D.C.

Dran RErpesextaTIvE Mercnex: Recent hearings before the State Welfare
Departiment indiente that the Food Stamp regnlations are diserinsinntory under
the rexnlations fssued Febrnary 1. 1972, Regulation No, 271.3 necessitates in-
cluding fn income, welfare and employment service henefits tended to cover
sone of the econrzes of schooling for mothiers under the WIN progenm. Under
that same regulation the fncote for scholarship educentional expenses are deduet-
ed. However, the monjes provided for edueational expenses in the program are
not deducted. Thus, the regulations are discriminitory in providing these
deductions for college people and not for people who are being vocation-
ally teained, Further than that, since these monies are considered income, the
honuses which are cancelled out on Food Stamps result in the incentive intended
in the WIN program eing taken out by the higher Food Stamp costs, If the
work fncentive programs are to snceeed for working mothers, then these pro-
visions must le reconciled so that there is an actual fncentfve,

Please contaet the Secretary of Agriculture concerning these regulations and
feel free to contact us If we can supply more information.

Thank you for your cooperation.

Very truly yours,
Jaues Doxr Jonxsox,
Stafy Attorney.

S e e s S
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Froxm Micnigax

Uxtien MiGraXxTs For OrrortuNIiTY, INC.,
Mount Plcasant, Mich., June 26, 1972,
M, Naney Asmer,
Seleet Commitiee an Nutrition and Humean 2 ceds,
U.8. Scnate, Washington, D.C.

Drax Ms. AMIDEL: As requested, I herewith provide some information on
the effect of the new food stamp act in Michigan,

Althongh 1 do not yet have the statistical breakdown from the Department,
in some of the comtics which have implemented the new program as high
ax 5% of the P.A. case load hax dixcontinued thelr participation in the food
st program. I will forwar2 e exact figures as they become available,

I'ence and  Justice,
Ricitard M. SkurT,
Dircctor, Migrant Legal Assistance Project.

Althangh the new Food Stamp Program gives a facial appearance of providing
an incerense in henefits and services to participants in the Food Stamp Program, it
has hecome an administmative nightmare greatly increasing the cost of delivery of
rorvices ahd placing nuvierons extra burdens upon the applicant houschold. The
regalations fxsned by the United States Depastment of Agriculture have ereated
an unworkable procedure which for the most part works to the detriment of the
low ineome honsehold.

We have attempted to ontline some of the major program changes which are
necessary ta the operation of the progrn within the congressionnl policy of
providing n nutritionally adequate diet to Jow income famitiex. Ax you will note,
our criticisms are made to two levels: (1) administrative burdens, which in-
crease the cost to the politiend unit which operates the progrnm and deereases the
feaxibility of being ahle to continue to operate a program on already strained
budgets s and, (2) recipient nrdens, which make participation in the Food Stamp
Program by eligible households less Hkely beenuse of the increased cost interims
of thne, money and loss of dignity.

APPLICATION PROCEDURE

P.A. Houscholds: Under the procedure which was in effect in Michigan, DA,
households were certitiod upon the basis of family size, Thus, the caseworkey
hax only to 1 out a fortn indieating name, address, household size, and race and
farewnrd that to the Food Stamp division where the recipient was automatieally
inended in the progrm. Under the new progeam, the enseworker and client have
to complete n fonr page afidavit and numerous other formx to determine the
purchnse price of the recipient household. All of the information inchuded in the
affidavit Ix enrrently included in the public assistance file and the affidavit does
little more than increase the irden of caseworkers who are alrendy “pushing
so nuich paper” that they are nnable to devote any time to referral and other
client problewms,

In addition to the affidavit form the easeworker ig required to make a com-
Metely separate eligibitity determinntion for food stamps from that of the public
assistanee program. The items which are included, excluded and deducted from
income vary greatly from tho~e under entegorienl programs, Thus, the county de-
partments have had to provide extensive training in income determination and
increase staff size to gaecommodate the inerease in paper work,

Non-Assintance Houscholds: In the past a fairly simple fortn was used to de-
termine oligibility and purchase price. Currently, the recipient must fill out a
six page application, which must he gone over by fhe certification worker and
then a determination abont work and tax dependency must be made, If there are
questions abont either ohe, more forms must be completed, and either referred to
MESC ar to the honsehold which clafimed the applicant as a dependent.

Ax an example of the increased hurden upon both the certification worker and
the recipient housshald, let us cite what has ocenrred in the certification of mi-
wrant farm workers in Berrien and Van Buren Countles, On Thursday June 8,
1972 with 9 certiication workers working with migrant applicants, only 25
honseholds had been certified between the hours of §:00 a.m, and 12:00 p.m. Sim-
ilarly, in Berrien County with 5 workers certifying migrants, only 33 households
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were certified between the hours of $:00 am. and 4:30 p.m. While the process
will be speeded up as the workers become more familiar with the forms (or pos-
sibly less thorough) it appears that the certification process will continue to be
tedious.

The result is that Energency Food and Medical Services monies intended
primarily to aid low income migrant families to purchase food stamps are being
utilized to supplant the food stamp progran as the length of time for certifica-
tion takes the farmworker away from his job for too long and the wait negates
much of the benefit of speedy certifiention previously enjoyed in Michigan. On
the Thursday night mentioned above the UMOI office dispensing emergency food
was required to remain open until well heyond 2:00 am. to assist migrant fam-
ilies who were unable to obtain stamps.

Since that time new procedures have been implemented in both offices with
the following results.

vVan Buren County has adopted an appointment system. With five certification
workers they are able to certify 63 families a day plus 5 cmergencies (deter-
mined by the office supervisor). There is a three day lag between application
and interview. as of 1:45 p.m. On Friday June 23, 1972 there were 61 appoint-
ments for Monday, 66 for Tuesday and 32 for Wednesday.

In Berrien County no recertifications were being taken. Thus the 7 day lag
hetween applications and interview had been cut to one day. However, rccerti-
fication begins July 1 and a three to four day lag can be expected at that time.

In both Coiinties the official policy was and is to refer clients to the Enwer-
geney Food and Medical Services Program for interini feeding.

PURCHASE REQUIREMENTS

As the chart below indicates, all public assistance houseliolds in Michigan will
suffer from the new program because of the procedural change in the determina-
tion of purchase price:

EFFECT OF NEW REGULATIONS ON PA HOUSEHOLDS

5 _ Total Stamrps
Famly size income  Adjusted tet income Pay free Totat
184 67 MNew.... nz 20 12 R
Present p ... 16 12 22
216 59 New.. 157 36 2
Present program. ....._...... ... 3 25 5
265 47 New........ 218 53 30 83
Present program. . .. ... ...... 4% 39 st
316 38 New........... . 78 I 31 108
Present program.. ... ......... 60 106
364 22 Newo.......... .- 342 9 38 128
Present program..... ... .... ... 3 53 126
414 10 New........... . 404 14 & 18
Presentprogram._ . ................ 83 144
460 ... . . 460 ns 26 164
Present progra .. S5 66 162
507 .. New.. 507 122 58
. Present program...._............ 106 74 180
- 554 .. New ... 554 130 66 19
Present program. . ... ............ 110 85
(1 RS 601 ........ o-ee New. . ... 601 138 74 22
Present program. .o v.v..vu.. aeeeane 15 97 212

Moreover, smaller liouseholds have not received a corresponding increase in
totnl allotment as have the larger houseliolds. which are non-public assistance.
As the regulations were originally proposed, the smaller households would have
had the maximum income levels reduced from $210 and $250 to $170 and $222
for a one and two person household respectively. However, a policy change has
allowed the smaller households in Michigan and other states which had higher
income levels prior to July 31, 1971 to retain their old purchase levels. As stated
above though these liouseliolds, which studies have shown require a greater ex-
penditure of funds for food, have not heen increased in regard to maximum pur-
chase levels as have the larger households.

This creates a great problem for the aged and infirm who niore frequently
live in the smaller household units and who will more often skiinp on food stuffs

o e e




Q

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

735

to be able to expend funds on other items. Thus making them one of the most
nutritionally deprived classes of people in the United States. It is important that
the coupon levels for these smaller households be changed to refiect the actual
cost figures for the sinaller households.

INCOME DETERMINATION

This issuanee of free coupons under the Act could benefit many families, par-
ticularly migrant families who have not had work during the preceding months,
however. the verification and doenmentation reguired by USDA makes it prac-
tically impossible to issue free coupons. Particularly when the localities ad-
ministering the progran are required to auticipate income. All is well and fine
with projecting income when a family is working at an hourly rate and carrying
over from a previous month. so that a reasonable estimate can be made. In the
ease of a1 migrant who works on a piece rate basis, depending upon the weather,
and who has not worked during the winter months, this system proves highly
inequitable,

First, the funily has no funds with which to purchase the initial ountlay of
stamps. and is thus forced to rely on EFMS or Direct Relief, if available, for the
purchase. Second, there is no certainty that the worker will actually work the
hours projecteil. or earn the wmouey anticipated. Third, as the household usually
picks together, there is no way to exclude the income of students. Fourth, the
migrant, heeause of his transitory nature is unable to take advantage of the
hearing process and recoup the overcharge.

VFRIFICATION

In the case of the migrant farmworker and often in the case of other newly
arrived residents it is almost impossible to contact a collateral source which
satisfies the requirements of GSDA. In many cases there is no person who can
supply the needed information and in the case of farmworkers growers are often
uncooperative or are not in a position to accurately provide the needed informa-
tion which GSDA requires.

OUTREACH

Under the regulations of July 29. 1971 each State Agency participating in the
Food Stamp Program is required to submit an outreach plan, and to use its own
personnel, as well as that of federally funded programs to inform low income
Liouseholds, with due regard to ethuic groups, of the availability and benefits of
the Program and encourage the participation of eligible households [TCFR 271.1
(K)]. In order to insure that states would comply with that requirement, pro-
vision was made for 62% percent of the outreach cost to be borne by the De-
partment. [T CFR271.2 (a) (2)].

However, the Department has refused to allocate any funds for outreach. In
foct. at a meeting of the Migrant EFMS grantees in Washington, D.C. during the
week of March 20. 1972, the department representative. Mr. Galvin stated flatly
that no USDA funds would be used for outreach. The primary reason given was
that the Department had over extended its budget and could not afford to support
outreach activities.

Now we read that the Department is returning over $100,000,000 to the Treas-
ury in unexpended funds. From experience we can see that as high as 50% of
the P.A. case load had discontinued participation; that no outreach materials
are available in Spanish iu Michigan; that no efforts are being made to edu-
cate the potential recipient community of its right to federal food benefits.

Without creating clarifications of the new regulations and shortening some of
the procedures, and in some cases allowing county discretion to waive veri-
fication the program is unworkable. For example the length of the P.A. affi-
davit is totally unnecessary. A statement certifying the information if the P.A.
file is accurate would suffice. Likewise much of the information of the non-
assistance application could be combined and the form simplified, both to cut
down on time and to make the application readable and understandable to the
low income applicant.

To have a far reaching effect USDA should change eligibility and income de-
termination levels to more nearly reflect the net income figi.ves in Categorical
Assistance Programs. Money must be expended on outreach and USDA money
should be freed up to aid in the cutting of administrative costs which have al-
ready cnused many counties to balk. In fact in Michigan the County Boards have
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voted to withdraw from the new Food Stamp Program as of July 1 unless
ehanges are fortheowing. To avert that disaster we sincerely lhope that USDA
will act immediately to correct some of the problems of the new program.
ArAN W. HOUSEMAN,
Dircctor, Michigan Legal Services Assistunce Program.
Ricuarp M. Skurr,
Director, Migrant Legal Assistance Project, United Migrants for Oppor-
tunity, Inc.

Note.—Accompanying this statement were the sworn affidavits of 15 food stamp
recipients for whom food stamp bonuses were reduced as a result of the new
regulations.

IIEADSTARY,
Lansing, Mich., June 2, 1972,
Hon. PurLip HART.
Scnate Ofice Building,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR SENATOR HART: Yesterday, June 1st, was the date that the Department
of Agriculture’s new purchase requirements for food stamps went into effect.
1 work as a volunteer for the Head Start program in Lansing and I would like
to tell you about the hardships for individual families involved with the new
requirenients.

Mrs. Sue Bonds of 2330 Reo Road, Lansing. receives AFDC and has two chil-
dren. Before June 1st Mrs. Bonds paid $22.00 every two weeks for $42.00 worth
of stamps which represented a bonus of $20.00. Now she will pay $32.00 for $34.00
worth of stamps which cuts the bonus to $12.00.

Mrs. Refugia Dominguez of 2444 Reo Road, receives AFDC and has six chil-
dren. Before Juue 1st she paid $45.00 for $81.00 worth of stamps every two
weeks, bonus $33.00. Now Mrs. Dominguez will pay $59.00 for £62.00 in stamps
cutting the bonus to $23.00.

Mrs. Mary Gomez is a working mother who receives some AFDC supple-
ment as her job, nurses’ assistant with Head Start, does not pay enough after
taxes, child care expenses and work related expenses are deducted to meet her
family needs. Mrs. Gomez has four small children, she lives at 1433 Massa-
chusetts Ave., Lansing. Before June 1st she paid $36.00 every two weeks for
$63.00 worthh of food stamps, bonus $27.00. Now she will pay $50.00 for $64.00
worth of stamps, the bonus is cut to $14.00.

Mrs. Jeun Sebolt, 3112 Norwich also works for Head Start and receives AFDC.
She has three minor children and a son, honorably discharged from the Army
aged 19. She was paying $30.00 for $33.00 worth of food stamps and will now
pay $42.00 for $54.00 worth of stamps which represents a drop from $23.00 in
bous to $12.00. The cut is working a particular hardghip in this case as her
veteran son is living at home, cannot find a job. is a big eater especially after

salking around all day looking for work but he camnot be included on the
AFDC budget because of his age.

You can see that the Department of Agriculture is, in each of these cases, re-
quiring a larger cash outlay for the stamps and that in no case does the value of
the stamps go up by more than a couple of dollars. In every case the bonus is
cut. The AFDC budget for families does not have enough money in it to ade-
quately cover utilities in the Michigan climate so there is certainly not enough
money to cover the increased cash outlay needed to participate in the Food Stamp
program. You know what has happened to the cost of living and the price of
food. I do not need to tell you what makes for an adequate balanced diet for
growing children.

1 cannot understand for whose benefit the Department of Agriculture is being
run, I live in a small rural community outside of Lansing, so I know the small
farmer is being forced off the land. Now the Food Stamp program changes dem-
onstrate that the Department of Agriculture has very little interest in ensuring
an adequate diet for American children. It seems to me criminally irresponsible
to condemn poor children to a diet of star~h, with the costly results in terms
of health and suffering in both the medical and dental areas.

Part of the Head Start program is supposed to be edueation in nutrition—we
are supposed to introduce the children to new foods especially fruits and vege-
tables, we are supposed to have classes for parents to educate them in the
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elements of a balanced diet. The irony of this makes me bitterly angry—why
should we introduce children to fruit and vegetables that their parents cannot
buy? Ilow can we have classes on balanced diets and talk about protein and
vitamins when we Lnow our parents cannot possibly afford suech a diet.

This raises some very serious questions about the whole Farm Subsidy pro-
gram and the soil bank, surely farmers could be paid to grov food and our
children fed instead of destroying thie small farmer and having undernourished
children. T hope you can do something to make those responsible for this policy
see what the effects are on real people.

Yours sincerely,
JOANNA SETTLE.

Note.—~Report on situation in Iowa printed in hearing of June 7, p 642,

FroM KENTUCRY
FAYETTE (KENTUCKY) CIRCUIT COURT DIvVISION
Dororiiy Kay HAMBRICK, PETITIONER
v8.
GaIiL SuANNoN HUECKER, COMMISSIONER OF ECONOMIC SECURITY, RESPONDENT
PETITION FOR REVIEW

Comes the petitioner Dorothy Kay Hambrick through counsel, pursuant to
KRS 205.234(1), and respectfully petitions the court to review the decision of
the Department of Economic Security in determining thie child-care expenses
borne by the Work Incentive Program to be income to the petitioner for the
purpose of establishing hier basis of issuance (cost) of food stamps.

The Petitioner, for her Petition for Review, respectfully alleges :

1. That she is currently and was at the time of her initial application for
Publie Assistance and Food Stamps, a resident of Fayette County.

2. That in July of 1970 she began participating in the Food Stamp Program.

3. That in August of 1970 she began receiving Public Assistance benefits under
thie Aid to Families with Dependent Chiildren Program.

4. That she was accepted as an enrollee in the Work Incentive (WIN) Pro-
gram on January 14, 1971. The WIN Program provides a $301 month incentive
stipend plus a remuneration for the cost of child care. She enrolled in the Uni-
versity of Kentucky as a social work major at that time but is presently begin-
ning her Jwiior year.

5. That on Janmuary 5, 1972, she received notice that lier food stamp basis of
issuance was being increased from four dollars ($4) per month to twelve dollars
($12) per month due to the inclusion of her Work Incentive Child Care payment
of seventy-five dollars ($75) as income, according to a verbal directive from the
United States Department of Agriculture in Atlanta, Georgia.

6. That she requested and received, on February 14, 1972, a “fair hearing” as
provided by KRS 205.231(2) on her assertion that such an inclusion was unfair.
The decision from that liearing, dated February 25, 1972 stated that it was fruit-
less to attempt to change the policy of the Food Stamp Prograni, however unrea-
sonable. (See Exhibit A}

7. That on March 1, 1972, four days after the hearing officer’s decision, the
Food Stamp Handbook of the Kentucky Department of Economic Security was
revised, duplicating new regulations set out by the Department of Agriculture’s
Food anc Nutrition Service, Food Stamp Program in the Federal Register, Vol.
36 No. 146, July 29, 1971, page 14107, specifically with Sec. 230(A) (9) of the
Kentucky Food Stamp Handbook. (See Exhibit B). This provision is the one
under whichh WIN child-care payments are included as inconte in computing Food
Stamp basis of issuance.

8. Thut petitioner appealed the hearing officer’s decision to the Appeals Board
which resulted in the hearing officer’s decision being upheld (See Exhibit C).

9. The present interpretation of the new regulation as made official by the
March 1, 1972 revision of the Food Stamp Ilandbook and the prior verbal inter-
pretation directive to Food Stamp Workers are unreasonable, arbitrary and
capricious and as such are violative of the due process clause of the 14th
Amendment,
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a. The procedure of child-care payment for the benefit of WIN enrollees is such
as to guarantee that the enrollee has no access to those benefits for monetary gain
(See Exhibit E—Work Incentive Handbook Sec. 224). '

b. The inclusion of a service which derives no monetary benefit to the recipient
in income received by the household, even though allowing its deduction in deter-
mining net income attributed to the Food Stamp participant results in a funda-
mentally unfair deprivation because of the requirement in the Food Stamp Hand-
book, Sec. 234(B) that the Shelter expense deduction, which is the cost of shelter
in excess of 30¢, of the total income, be deducted second, only to mandatory
deductions. (See Exhibit B). This results in the non-deductible portion of one’s
shelter expense heing an inflated figure, giving one a lower shelter deduction and
therefore, a larger net income, (See Exhibit D-—computation formn),

¢. The form which is used to determine net income of Food Stamp program par-
ticipants has validity only if those items which are included as income to the
household are of genuine monetary henefit to the participant. (See Exhibit D).

d. the classification of child-care payments as income to the household under
See. 280(A) (9) of the Food Stamp Handbook is a capricious interpretation of
that provision.

i. All the provisions in Sec. 230(A) involve actnal receipt of money for the

use of the household or relief of a debt incurred by the household (10). Only the
9th provision has been interpreted otherwise. WIN’s thirty Dollar ($30) Wort
Incentive stipend is the actual “payment” received which would qualify for inclu-
sion under (9).
_ ii, The bearing of child-care expenses by the WIN programs. as set out in alle-
zation (9) (a), constitutes no actual receipt of money for the use of the house-
Lold. In reality it is ree child care. The fact that money changed hands to imple-
ment the prograimn’s policy of providing child-care for its enrollees, is strictly a
matter of administrative convenience; it is more efficient than operating child-
care centers.

iii. The Food Stamp Handbook Sec. 230(B) considers among items to he ex-
¢inded from income “4. Any gain or benciit which is not money” (See Exhibit
B). Free child-care service, which is, in reality, what petitioner’s payment for
child-care constitutes would clearly fall within this category and their value
should be excluded from income.

e. That this interpretation of the Food Stamp Handbook Sec. 230(A) (9) “is
the result of an arbitrary decision by the U.S. Department of Agriculture, the
sole objective of which is to increase the basis of issuance of food stamps and as
such, should not have been upheld by the hearing officer and the Appeals Board.

Because of the foregoing, Petitioner prays that the Court review the complete

record and reverse the decision of the Appeal Board.
LaRrY S. RoBERTS, Attorney at Law.

1 have read the foregoing petition, and I swear that the allegations contained
therein are true to the best of my knowledge.
Petitioner.

day of June, 1972.
Notary Public,

Subsecribed and sworn before me this

My Commission expires

Exnisit A
COMMONWEALTH OF KENXTUCKY
DBEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC SECURITY
BUREAU OF PUBLIC ASSISTANCE
Division of Case Review
DoroTHY Koy HAMBRICK—CLAIMANT
(Case No. CFS 4836; 34—Fayette County)

The following persons were present:
Dorothy Kay Hambrick, Claimant.
Karen Pau), Food Stamp Worker.
Diana Moore, Food Stamp Worker.
Francis Gene Hicks, Hearing Officer.
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HEARING OFFICER'S DECISION

This case is before the Hearing Officer upon a request for a hearing filed by the
claimant, Dorothy Kay Hambrick, who is dissatisfied with the “purchase price
of my Food Stamps.” The appeal arose from a determination by the Food Stamp
Program to consider Miss Hambrick’s child care payments from the Work Incen-
tive Program as income in computing her total monthly income. A hearing was
held on February 14, 1972, in the Fayette County Public Assistance Office, Lex-
ington, Kentucky.

The policy pertaining to the issue under review is outlined in the Food Stamp
Handbook, Section 289, Part C. This Section reads:

289 Treatment of WIN Income

C. Child Carc Expenses of all WIN Enrollees. For all WIN enrollees, wages or
fees paid for care of young children in or out of the home will le deducted when
determining eligibility and basis of issuance; this includes child care resources
such as maids, day care centers, nursery schools, neighbor's home, ete.. when
requi -.d to enable the person to leave home. (Wages paid to relatives who are
normally expected to give such care are not deducted.)

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The Food Stamp Worker testified that she was informed during a staff meet-
ing on December 6, 1971, to include the cost of child care for WIN enrol'ees us
income to the participant, but also this is considered as an allosvable deduetion.
Since Miss Hambrick is a WIN participant, her child care allowance of $75
should be considered as income. On January 10. 1972, Miss Hambrick was recer-
tified as having $171 net monthly income. This included lier $96 Public Assistance

ayment and $75 child care allowance. Her shelter deduction was computed as
£45.70. an excess of thirty percent of her net income. The $75 was deducted. leav-
ing an adjusted net income to be considered of $50.80. She was to pay $10 for $56
in Food Stamps for the month of February. 1972. The Food Stamp Worker stated
Miss Hambrick was notified of this change and the claimant requested a hearing
on January 10, 1972. .

Miss Hambrick testified that she lives with her twenty-one month old daughter
in a rented apartment in Lexington. Kentucky. She pays £85 per month rent, plus
$12 for utilities. Miss Hambrick receives $96 monthiy from Public Assistance for
Aid to Families with Dependent Children benefits based on birth-out-of-wedlnek.
As a WIN participant, she receives $30 incentive pay and $75 child care allow-
ance. The claimant testified that she attends the University of Kentucky and
pays Miss E. Holthouse $75 per month to care for her child.

Miss Hambrick felt that she was limited in the amount of income she has to
spend for Food Stamps, and to consider the child care allowance as income to
her is unfair, as it increased the price of her Food Stamps. She is not benefiting
from this money, since she pays it to her babysitter.

CONOLUSION

The testimony adduced at the hearing and the documented evidence in the
Food Stamp case record has been carefully considered by the Hearing Officer. It
appears the policy pertaining to treatment of WIN income does not clearly specify
that payment for child care is to be counted as income to the participant. The
policy states that the child care allowance a WIN participant receives is to be
considered as & deduction. However, a verbal interpretation from the United
States Department of Agriculture in Atlanta, Georgia, indicates the child care
allowance is to be included as income to the household.

The inclusion of WIN child care allowance in arriving at the net income seems
unreasonable, since the allowable deduction occurs subsequent to computing the
shelter deduction. Counting the child care as income increases the amount in
excess of thirty percent of the net income that directly increases the adjusted net
income, causing an increase in the purchase price of Food Stamps.

The concept of the WIN Program is being forgotten, and consideration should
be given to the actual income available to the participant for purchasing of
food. To include any item as income that the participant does not obtain. any
actual cash value seems arbitrary, The layman opinion of this Hearing Officer
does not change the policies but it is hoped attention will be brought to the in-
Justice that is attributable to the inclusion of an obvious expense as available
income.
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DECISION

_‘The issue under review has been carried out according to apparent policies
and procedures that were in effect at the time that the dissatisfaction occurred.
Since there is no avenue for redress. any favorable decision concerning money
lost with an increase in the purchase price of Food Stamps is fruitless. There-
fore, the Hearing Officer sees no reason to disturb or alter the decision of the
Food Stamp Program.

February 25, 1972,
Francis Gexr Hicks. Hearing Officer.
NoTE—This decision may be appealed to the Appeal Board in the Department
of Economic Security at any time within twenty (20) days from the date
mailed.

Bxamir B

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY: PusLic ASSISTANCE Foop Staump HANDBOOK
230 Definition of Income:

Mazimum allowable monthly income
Household size:

PR T- Y Y Y Y OO
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
\
1
1
1
1
{
]
]

For each additional member add $53.

A. The following will be considered as income for all households.

1. All earnings for services performed as an employee.

2. Net income from self-employment, which will be the total gross income from
such enterprise (including the total gain received from the sale of any capital
goods or equipment related to such enterprise) less the cost of producing that
income. (See Section 242).

3. The total amount of a roomer's payment to the household.

4. The total Dayment received from each boarder. A deduction in the amount
of $32, the coupon allotment for a one-person household for each boarder, will be
subtracted from this amount to arrive at the income to be added to the house-
hold's income. (See Section 203H).

5. The payment to the household by a related member of the household other
than the head of the household or spouse, who has a commitment to contribute
only a portion of his income. However, if such a household member contributes
less than the monthly coupon allotment for a one-person household, the member’s
total income will be counted.

6. The tota]l payment made to a household on behalf of a legally assigned foster
child.

7. Payments received as an annuity; pension, retirement or disability benefit,
veterans, workmen's or unemployment compensation; and old-age, survivors’ or
strike benefits.

8. Payments received from federally aided public assistance programs or
general assistance programs.

9. Payments received from government sponsored programs, such as Work
Incentive Program, Manpower Training Program, Agricultural Stabilization and
Conservation Service Program.

10. Money payments, except those for medical costs, made on behalf of the
household by a person other than & member of the household.

11. If any household member has access to unlimited income as he possesses a
credit card in the name of a person who is not a household member, the house-
hold will be ineligible.

12. Cash gifts or awards for support, maintenance or the expense of education
not included in Section 229, Treatment of non-recurring lump-sum payments.
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13. Scholarships, educational grants (including loans on which repayment is
deferred until completion of the household member’s education). fellowships,
and veterans educational benefits. Such income is prorated over the period it is
intended to cover.

14. Support and alimony payments if they are actually received.

15. Rent, dividends, interest, royalties, and all other payments except loans
(other than loans in Number 13 above).

B. The following 10ill be excluded from income

1. Income received as earnings for services as an employee, or incorme from
self-employment by a child residing in the household, who is under 1R years of
age and who {s attending at least half-time, as defined by the institution n grade
school, high school, vocational school, technical school, training program. college
or university.

2. Payments received under Title IT of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and
Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, which include :

(a) Payments to persons displaced as a result of the acquisition of real
property ;

(b) Relocation payments to a dispinced homeowner toward the purchase
of a replacement dwelling. Such payment may only be to a displaced owner
who purchases and occupies a dwelling within one year following displace
ment ;

(c) Replacement housing payments to displaced persons not eligille for a
homeowner’s payment.

8. Income which is received too irregularly or infrequently to be anticipated
as available during a 3 month period, provided such infrequent or frregular
income of all household members will not exceed $30.00 in a three month perfod.

4. Any gain or benefit which is not in money (e.z. free use of the house).

5. Payments for medical costs made on behalf of the household by a person
other than a member of the household.

6. All loans, except those on which repayment is deferred until completion
of the household member’s education.

7. T'n percent of income received from enrnings for services performed as
an employee or training allowance not to exceed $30.00 per household per month.
This does not fnclude the earning of a child. (See Section 230 B1).

8. Lump sum payments as described in Section 229.

238 Verification of Income for Non-Assistance Houscholds. Gross income from
all sources and mardatory deductions from income must be verified. Verification
of income may be made from documentary sources, such as pay stubs or from
verbal statements from the employer or agency from which the income is re-
ceived or from other persons who have knowledge of the household’s income.
The method of verification must be recorded in the case file,

In some instances, employers may be reluctant to provide information con-
cerning the applicant's earnings. In such eases, verification of the applicant’s
statements concerning his income may be made by contact with other persons
having knowledge of the individual's case or knowledze of similar earning
situations, such as Employment Service, county tax office, etc.

If at recertification, the income i3 consistent with the previous anplication,
verification is not required. If, however, the source of income or the amount
has changed substantially, verification is required.

A. Eztremely low-income households. Certification workers should use pru-
dence in handling households which claim an income so low thot there is a likeli-
hood that & change must occur in order for the household to exist as an economic
unit. If a househonld claims a low income, in comnarison to family size for an
extended period, this may indicate an inconsistency and should he examined
thoroughly. However, 2 household whose income is stahle. hut fow hecause of
fixed expenditure and which could he expected to maintain it8 level of existence
for a period of time, would not necessarily constitute an inconsistency.

When a household reports income deductions which are near to or exceed
income, the certification worker may consider the hourehold’s exwenses incon-
sistent with its reported income and resnurces and renuire verificatinn of income
and deductions. A household whose anplication containg uneleor. ineomplete or
inconsistent information will not be certified until the questionable jtems have
been clarified.

B. Zern-Purchase Requirement Households. Householdr which renort an in-
come 80 low as to put them at a zero purchase level must have factors affecting
eligibility and basis of. {ssuance verified through the point where a firm deter-
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mination can be made, that the household i8 or is not eligible. At least one
collateral contact is mandatory for cases of this type. However, preliminary
certification pending verification, i.e., certification for thirty days without verifi-
cation of eligibility factors, may be applied to these households, if it appears
they will be eligible for participation.

Necessary verification and adjustment in the household’s hasis of issuance will
be made before the second month’'s issuance of coupon is made. In no case will
preliminary certification be extended for more than thirty days.

A home visit or contact must be made every three months, unless past history
of the client indicates little likelihood of change.

234 Determination of Net Income. After making a decision regarding the
amount of income receivad by the household, the following deductions are made
to arrive at the net income;

A. Mandatory deductions from carned income such as local, State and Federal
ifncome taxes: Social Security taxes under FICA, mandatory retirement pay-
ments and union-dves. (Garnishments may be deducted only when they are made
for items which would be deductible if paid when occurred, e.g., medical expenses,
if more than $10.00 a month).

B. Shelter expenace in execear of 30% of the hourchold'# income after manda-
tory deductions and before other deductions are made. Shelter costs include all
utilities including garbage and sewer fees. etc., as well as the hasic rate for one
telephone. In the case of a household which is buying its home, mortgage pay-
ments, interest on mortgage principal, real estate taxes, homeowner's insurance
and special assessments required by State or local law will be considered as
shelter costs. (See Table or Determine Excess Shelter Costs).

Nore—If the household is unable to supply the actual cost of utilities this
may be obtained from the Manual of Operation, Table of Cash Value of Require
ments Supplied.

C. Medical Erpenses, exclusive of special diets when the costs exceed $10.00
per household. When medical costs have exceeded $10.00 the amount to be de-
ducted will be the $10.00 and costs over that. Medical expenses may include actual
pavments for physicians and dental services, hospitalization, nursing care in or
out of the home, prescription drugs. nrescrihed medicnl services, health insurance,
medicare parments and medically related transportation costs.

When necessary due to &8 medical need an unrelated live-in attendant, a house-
keeper or nurse is in the home, the amount to be deducted wi'? he the amount
actually paid to the attendant plus £32.00 the value of the monthly coupon allot-
ment for a one-person household. The live-in-attendant will not he considered
for purposes of eligibility or basis of issuance,

D. Coat of care of & child or other peraons when neceseary for a household
member to accept or continue employment or employment directed training.

If the care giver is an unrelated live-in-attendant or housekeepor necesgary to
provide child care, the amount deducted will he the amount actually paid to the
attendant plus the value of the monthly coupon allotment for a one-person house-
hold. The live-in.attendant is not considered for purposes of elizibility and hasis
of irguance,

E. Educational Erpenses such ar tuition and mandatory fees. including such
expenses which are covered hy scholarships, educational grants, loans, fellow-
shinz, and veteran's educatioal benefits.

F. Expenses due to diraster or casualty losacs which conld nnt he reasonahly
anticipated by the household. {Such losses are of an individual nature and are
not to he applied during a disaster declared by the President or Food and Nutri.
tion Service. The deduction must he anproved by the field office administrator
and only expenres directly related to the houxebold disaster may be deducted.
Unusual expense is determined in accordance with the following criteria:

1. The expense is essential to the continued existence of the household
and is necessary to replace or repair items of property damaged or lost
through vandalism, fire, theft, flood, tropical storms. tornado, etc.

2. The expense allowed is only for that portion of the loss which is not
reimhursahle from insurance or met by a charitable organization.

8. The expense has been or will be met during the period for which certi-
fication is requested.

Deductions under this provision will not he made for costs of repair. replace-
ment of propertv. clothing. etc. which hecomes necessary due to mechanical
faslure, wear and tear, ohsolercence. or any other occurrence not direetly con-
nected with an individual household disaster.
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G. Funcral exrpenses of a former household member which seem reasonable
and are not reimbursable.

240 Trcatment of Farm Employment Income. Farm workers may be classified
for food stamp purposes into three broad catcgories:

A. Regularly employed, full-time farm workers working for onc cmployer.
These are households with regularly employed farm workers receiving a regular
monthly salary, and those houseliolds which recefve income during the work
season and deferred or advanced payments against futurc earnings during the
non-work season. Such payments may be in the form of cash, a line of credit
from the employer, or a guaranteed linc of credit from another source. Eligi-
bility is based on the total annual income averaged over the twelve month period
and the certification period may also be for twelve months. unless a change in
household status or income makes n recertification necessary. Basis of issuance
émaz,é })e determined in accordance with the way income is received. (See ®~ction

42C).

B. Houscholda whosc income iz derived from farm and non-farm employment or
who may work for different employers. This category will include those house-
hiolds whose fncome during the farm season is derived from farm employment,
but who are not regularly employed nt such work or who do not receive deferred
or advance payments during the non-work season. Such households may work
for a varicty of employers and may also engage in non-farm work during the off
season.

Exnmmr C

APPFAL Boarp, CoMMONWEALTE OF KENTUCKY, DEPARTMENT OF FCONOMIC
SECURITY, BUREAU OF PUBLIC ASSISTANCE, FRANXFORT, KY.

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPEAL OF: DoRoTHY K. HAMBRICK
ORDER gl

This case is before the Appenl Board on an uppeal from a referee's decisfon of

February 25, 1972 which reads:

This case is before the Hearing Officer upon a request for a hearing filed
by the claimant, Dorothy Kay Hambrick, who is dissatisfied with the “pur-
chase price of my Food Stamps.” The appeal arose from a determination by
the Food Stamp Program to consider Miss Hambrick’s child care payments
from the Work Incentive Program as income in computing her total monthiy
income. A hearing was held on February 14, 1972, in the Fayette County
Public Assistance Office, Lexington, Kentucky

The policy pertaining to the issue under review 18 outlined in the Food
Stamp Handbook, Section 289, Part C. This Section reads :

239 Treatment of WIN Income

C. Child Care Expenses of all WIN Enrollees. For all WIN enrollees.
wages or fees paid for care of young children in or out of the home will be
deducted when determining eligibility and basis of issuance: this includes
child care resources such as maids. day care centers, nursery schools, neigh-
bors home, etc., when required to enable the person to leave home (Wages
paid to relatives who are normally expected {0 give such care are mnot
deducted.)

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The Food Stamp Worker testified that she was informed during a staff mee!fng
on December 6, 1971, to include the cost of child care for WIN enrollees as
income to the participant, but also this is considered as an allowable deduction.
Since Miss Hambrick isa WIN participant, lier child care allowance of $75 should
be considered as income. On January 10, 1972, Miss Hambrick was recertified as
having $171 net monthly income. This included her $96 Public Assistance pay-
ment and $75 should be considered as income. On January 10, 1972, Miss Ham-
brick was recertified as having $171 net monthly income. This included her $96
Public Assistance paynient and $75 child care allowance. Her shelter deduc-
tion was computed as $45.70, an excess of thirty percent of her net income. The
$75 was deducted, leaving an adfusted net fncome to be considered of $50.80.
She was to pay $10 for $56 in Food Stamps for the month of February, 1972.
The Food Stamp Worker stated Miss Hambrick was notified of this change
and the claimant requested a hearing on January 10, 1972

we
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Miss Hambrick testified that she lives with her twenty-one month old daugh-
ter in a rented apartment in Lexington, Kentucky. She pays $85 per month rent,
plus $12 for utilities. Miss Hambrick receives $96 moathly trom Public Assistance
for Ald to Families with Dependent Children benefits based on histh-out-of-wed-
lock. As a WIN participant, she receives $30 incentive pay and $75 child care
allowance. The claimant testified that she attends the University of Kentucky
and pays Miss E. Holthouse $76 per month to care for her child.

Miss Hambrick felt that she was limited in the amount of income she has to
spend for Food Stamps, and to consider the child care allowance as income to her {s
unfair, as it increased the price of her Food Stamps. She is not benefiting from
this money since she pays it to her babysitter.

The testimony adduced at the hearing and the documented evidence in the
Food Stamp case record has been carefully considered by the Hearing Officer.
It appears the policy pertaining to treatment of WIN income does not clearly
specify that payment for child care is to be counted as {ncome to the parfici-
pant. The policy states that the child care allowance a WIN participant receives
is to be considered as a deduction. However, a verbal interpretation from the
United States Department of Agriculture in Atlanta, Georgia indicates the child
care allowance s to be included as income to the honsehold.

The inclusion of WIN child care allowance in arriving at the net income
seems unreasonable, since the allowable deducidon occurs subsequent to com-
puting the shelter deduction. Counting the child care as income increases the
amount in excess of thirty percent of the net income that directly increnses
éhe adjusted net income, causing an increase in the purchase price of Food

tamps.

The concept of the WIN Program is being forgotten and considGeration should
be given to the actual income available to the participant for purchasing of
food. To include any item as income that the participant does not obtain, any
actual cash value seems arbitrary. The layman opinion of this Hearing Officer
does not change the policies but it is hoped attention will be brought to the
iinjustice that is attributable to the inclusion of an obvious expense as available
ncome.

The issue under review has been carried out according to apparent policies
and procedures that were in effect at the time that the dissatisfaction occurred.
Since there is no avenue for redress, any favorable decision concerning money
lost with an increase in the purchase price of Food Stamps Is fruitless. There-
fore, the Hearing Officer sees no reason to disturb or alter the decision of the
Food Stamp Program.

A careful review and analysis of the entire record falls to reveal any vari-
ance from well established policy promulgated by the Federal Department of
Health, Educntion and Welfare. In this connection, it should be pointed out that
this agency hag written the Federal Agency suggesting a change in this noliey.
In the meantime. this Board has no alternative to afirming the referee’s decision.

The full Board concurs.

Exnmmr B
CoMMONWEALTE oF KENTUCKY, PUBLIO AGSISTANCE: WoRK INCENTIVE HANDROOX

238 Adequaey of Child Care Plans (continued)

B. Care in the Home of a Relative. Netghbor or Child Care Provider. This type
of care may be well suited for infants and after schoo! care.

C. Day Carc Home. The day care home may care for from four to six children
and must be licensed if four or more of the children are unrelated to the care
provider by blood, marriage, or adoption. It is suitable for infants, toddlers,
sibling groups and for children needing after school care. Day care homes offer
family-like care and are especially suited for children who can profit from con-
siderable association with their peers.

D. Day Care Center. The day care center may care for seven or more children
and must be licensed bv the Department of Child Welfare if four or more of the
children are unrelated to the care provider by blood. marriage or adoption. Sim-
ple, clean. safe facilities and furnishings permit freednm for activity. Here the
program is planned to suit the maturity of the child. Through a balanced ¢-ea-
tive program, and positively guided hehavior. the child can develop good human
relationships within grouns, and build a healthy personality. There must be ade-
quate staff to help the child grow physically, socially and intellectually.
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*224 Payment for Child Carc. The method of payment for child care will vary
according to the plan for care but will be DProvided for WIN enrolices from a
special child care fund. When care is provided In a licensed faclliity It is pref-
erabie for the provider to Lill the Department and recelve direct payment, Where
the billing method s impractical, payment will be authorized by Form PA-5050
with the participant required to secure a receipt for payment and to submit such
receipts monthly to the social worker.

A. Amount of Paymcat. The actual coat of child care will be met subject to
maxhmums based on the going charge to low-income working mothers in the
community. It is the responsibility of the WIN worker to determine that the serv-
fces provided by the care giver merit the amount of payment being made by the
agency. In cases where care is provided by a family imember who is not included
in the assistance plan, payment will be made In accordance with the additional re-
sponsibilities necessarily assumed by this member. The additional reaponsibiiities
of this family member must be specifically documented in the case record. In no
instance will payment be made to a second parent. or to another relative in-
cluded In the assistance pian who has poviously rendered the service without
charge. In unusual circumstances, older trothers and sisters may receive pay-
ment for child care and then only when they assume responsibility for their
younger siblings which would not normally be expected and when such respon-
sibility precludes their acceptance of gainful employment, if there iz such avail-
able,

Januvary 5, 1072,
BasysiTress Receier

This Is to certify that I am paid $75 per month in payments of $37.50 twice a
month with a check from the WIN program in Frankfort, made out to Dorothy
Hambrich, for babysitting. I am paid the full amount of the checks.

Eraine Hockuaus.
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StatEMENT OF CoNoRESSMAN Joux F. Sosrauing {D—ONIo0)

Mr. Chairman: T appreciate the opportunity to comment on the Food Stamp
Program, and I commend your efforts to review its operation.

I would like to address myself to a specific problem wilich has been hrought
to my attention by a number of my constituents. I know from my own mail, that
there are many other problems with the new food stamp regulations issued hy
the Dc;pnrtment of Agriculture on March 1, 1972, and with the program in
general.

But I want to draw one particular aspect to your attention lecause it high-
lights the arbitrary manner in which the Department of Agriculture administers
the Food Stamp Program, and the extraordinary {nfiuence on the program of n
few powerful members of Congress whose support of the Food Stamp Program
has been less than enthusiastic,

Included in the new regulations was a provision prohibiting the return of cash
as change in food stam transactions. I ask unanimous censent to fnclude in the
hearing record the notice of this change published in the Federal Register on
December 29, 1971.

Food stamps are issued, as you know, in increments of 50 cents. Until this new
regulation went into effect, change from food stamp transactions was provided
in cash. Under the new reculntion, cash is prohihited. and has been replaced hy
credit slips. These are good only at the store of issuance.

The new system has created some aggravating prohlems for food stamp re-
cipients which I think are well outlined in a leter from Mrs. Rita IHosch. a food
stamp recipient from Akron. Ohlo. I would like to have a copy of Mrs. Hosch's
letter included in the record at this point,

Mrs. Hosch points out:

“Because the credit slips must be redeemed at the place of issuance, it tends to
restrict the ability of recipients to shop around for sale and bargain items, which
is 80 necessary when }ving on a {imited hudget.

“The amount of money in question s 80 small (always less than 50 cents—
often & matter of a few pennies), that recipients often can't find anything to
buy for that amount.

“In the past, reciplents used change cash to huy non-food items such as soap,
which are essential hut can't be purchased with food stampe.”

These nre some of the mechanical inconveniences caused hy this new, and
unnecessary reguletion.

But what is of more concern to me. and I think to the food stamp recinients,
is the added embarrassment and feeling of humilintion caused by this new
procedure,

It is no secret that, whether inadvertently or intentionallv. government wel-
fare programs have been designed so as to set welfare recipients apart from the
rest of us, to make them feel that they are lesser people hecause thev do not
have he financial means to be self-sufiicient. Fortunately, we seem to be maving
away from that with the proposed minimum income in HR 1 as passed by the
House,

But this new regulation, as far as I can determine, is instinet with the
attitude that anyrone on welfare {8 inferior and not to be trusted. Why else
wou'd we he concerned ahout giving food stamp recinfents a nickel, dime or
quarter's worth of change—change which, of course, is Jegally their's becaure
they have paid for the stamps with their own funds?

Mr, Chairman, if the Food Stamp Program were heing terriblv abused. if
significant amounts of money were being used for purposes other than those
stated in the law. then I would fully support a complete investigntion, and
prozram changes to counter that abuse.

But I ean find no evidence. in my correspondence and contacts with the
Denartment of Agriculture. that significant abuse of the nrogram maved any
role in the promutgation of this new regulation. I offer such corresnondence nnd
ask unanimous consent that it be included in the hearings record, Mr. Chairman.

(746) )
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The Department made it very clear to me that their primary motivation was
language contained in the report of the Conference Committee on the 1972
Agricultvre Appropriation bill, which read: *. . . the Food Stamp Act makes
no provision for providing cash for face value of stamps even in making change
. . . such practice should he atopped . . .*

Yet it is equally clear, Mr. Chairman, that the Act makex no prohibition on
issuance of cash as change.

In a letter to me, Richard Lyng. Assistant Secretury of the Department of
Agriculture, gaid:

“Although we recognized that the conference report (language) was not
legistatively binding, a number of considerations has a significant influence on our
decigion to he responsive to the views of the conferees. Priar to the deciaion to
propose a prohibition on cash change, scveral members of Congress had in-
dividually expressed objections to the return ot cash ax change in coupon trans-
actions. Among these were the Chairman and two members of the House Agri-
culture Committee, Congressmen Poage, Abernethy, and Belcher, respectively.
Therefare. when the conference report on the Agriculture appropriations bill
confirmed the views expressed during our earlier nmecting. the Department felt
it was necessary to be responsive to the statements of the conferees.”

From their comments, it appears that the Department of Agricu'ture made ita
decision to change the regulation ag goon as the conference report was isaued.
Hawever, they were required by law to request comments on the proposed change.
and accordingly the new regulation was published in the ¥edera! Register on
Septembier 10, 1971, According to Assistant Secretary Lyng. the Department
solicited opinfons an the matter from a wide variety of interested persons,
“fneluding State Welfare Agencies. the National Association of Food Chains,
the National Association of Retail Grocers of the United States, the State Retail
'l;rnde Associations, a number of citizens groups and interested private organiza-
tions . . .

However, thers ix no specific evidence on what steps the Department took to
seek out the apiniong of the food stamp recipients themselves, who, after all,
are the only people who are affected by the change.

The Department recelved ahout 200 responses, and a member of my staff has

\ reviewed them all. I ask unanimous consent that a hrief summary of the survey
| results be included in the Record at this point.
| The respondents were divided into four groups:
| (1) public officials (including state welfare commissioners, and social
1, workers, achool officialx, and elected officials)
; (2) retailers (food market owners and clerks) and trade associations
(8) private citizens
(4) food stamp recipients.

Opinion was evenly divided. as the Department pointed out in their letter to
| me, with one-half favoring the new regulation and one-half opposing the regula-
, tion. According to Assistant Secretary Lyng.
| “Since the comments which we received did not present any new considerations,
, major opposition, or any other unusual reason for not accepting the views of the
, conferees. we proceeded with the amendments.” (emphasis added)

What the Department failed to consider, however, ik that of those respondents

who had first-hand experience with the program and who have a stake in it, f.e.
the public oficials who administer the program. and the food stamp recipients
; who live with it, a majority were opposed to the change. According to the chart,
1009, of the fuod stamp recipients were opposed. and 58% of the public ofScials.
Yet the change was implemented by the Department with no further hearings
Mr. Chairman, I am opposed to the nevr regulation, and I am particularly op-
. posed to the manner in which it was made.
. It seems clear to me that the Department of Agriculture. in implementing the
. cash change prohibition was responding to the wishes of a few members of Con.
gress whose long-time opposition to the Food Stamp Program ir well-known.

This program was established by a vote of the majority of all members of

; Congress out of a genuine concern for the problems of poor people, and to help
N alleviate the shocking problem of hunger in America.

't : The Department's arbitrary ruling on the return of cash in food atamp trans-
| . actions demonstrates a serjous disregard for the problems. and integrity of peo-
’ N ple participating in the program. It also demonstrates a disregard for the legis-
| by Intive process. I hope there will be an opportunity for full pullic hearinzs and
| debate on this issue in the future.

| Thank you.
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CORRESPONDENCE WITH CONGRESSMAN SEIBERLING ON Foobp StaMp REGULATIONS

AKrox, Onio, March 15, 1972.

Mr. SemerLixe: I attended a meeting at East Akron Community House, where
Fou were the speaker. You pledged your help to the audience and the people of
Akron. We need your help now! The new change in the food stamp program is
a step backward. It has been done that way before. It didn't work then and
won't now. For poor people to be issued due bills only helps the stores profit and
takes even more from poor people. The month is only half over and I already
have 20 due bills from 4 different stores, they range from 1¢ to 7¢ They can only
be used at the stores issuing them, meaning we have to return to that store.
Since we, the poor, follow sales our money is spread out across town.

Some of us are not lucky enough to own a car, so part of those due bills are
never returned. When they are, we stand in line trying desperately to find a food
item for 1¢ to 7¢. This is the most degrading thing that can happen to you.
The clerk is glaring at you, people in line are impatient and looking at you like
you are dirt; So you end up getting gum or a candy bar that you didn’t want or
need. Giving 49¢ change can at least buy a couple of bars of soap, a tube of tooth-
paste, or 4 rolls of toilet paper. These are only the evervday necessities! I am
enclosing some of my due bills (one 1¢, one 7¢ and 13¢) but blease return—after
you have tried to use them ! Also please see who profits from unreturncd due bills,
believe me it's not the poor. I think the public and your supporters should know
where this money goes. Thank you and answer soon.

Your Supporter,
Rita Hosch.

U.S. DEPARTMEXT OF AGRICULTURE,
F00D ANXD NUTRITION SERVICE,
Washington, D.C., March 24, 1972.
Hon. Jorx F. SEIBERLING, .
House of Represéntatives.

DearR MR SemBerLING: Thank you for your recent inquiry concerning the De-
partment’s decision to amend the Food Stamp Program Regulations to prohibit
the return of cash as change in coupon transactions. I would like to take this
opportunity to briefly explain the background of this decision.

In the July 22, 1971, conference report on the Agriculture Appropriations Bill
for 1972, Senate and House conferees stated that, “. . . the Food Stamp Act
makes no provision for providing cash for face value of stamps even in making
change . , . such practice should be stopped . . .” Consequently, in the Federal
Register of September 10, 1971, the Department published a notice of proposed
rulemaking setting forth proposals to amend the Food Stamp Program Regula-
tions to prohibit the return of cash as change in food coupon transactions and to
prohibit the use of food coupons for deposits on returnable containers. Interested
persons were invited to submit their comments within 30 days of the date of
publication. R

The overall response to the proposed amendments was fairly evenly divided in
support of and in opposition to the prohibition of cash change. However, after
reviewing the opinions received, and after giving further consideration to the
changemaking procedures, the Department felt it necessary to adopt the proposed
amendments in response to the views of the conferee;. Thus, the prohibition on
the return of cash as change in coupon transactions hecame effective on March
1, 1972. (I have enclosed 2 copy of the Federal Register notice adopting these
amendments and summarizing the comments received in response to the proposed
amendments.)

You were specifically interested in the reason for not making credit slips issued
by one store redeemable in all stores participating in the Food Stamp Program.
The Treasury Department has advised us that Section 336 of Title 18 of the
United States Code prohibits such a practice. This Section reads, “Whoever
makes, issues, circulates, or pays out any note, check, memorandum, token, or
other obligation for a less sum than $1, intended to circulate as money or to be
received or used in lieu of lawful money of the United States, shall be fined not
more than $500 or imprisoned not more than six months, or both.” The Treasury
Department has farther advised that the redemption of credit slips by different
members of one chain would not violate this Section of the U. S. Code. Even if
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such a restriction did not exist, the problems of accountability for interchange
able credit slips among participating food stores would present a strong argument
against adopting such a system. Please let us know if you would like additional
information.
Sincerely,
MARvVIN M. SANDBTROM,

Assistant Deputy Administrator.

Arpny, 21, 1972.
Hon. Earr Burz,
Secretary of Agriculture,
Department of Agriculture,
Washkington, D.C.

DEAR Mz. SECRETARY : I am writing about the recent decision by the Agriculture
Department to prohibit the return of cash as change in food stamp transactions.

I understand from previous correspondence with your Department that this
change was precipitated by language in the conference report on the Agriculture
Appropriations bill which stated . . . the Food Stamp Act makes no provision
for providing cash for face value of stamps even in making change . . . such
practice should be stopped . . .” As you know, on September 10, 1971, the pro-
posed change was published in<the Federal Register together with a request for
comments within 30 days. In a letter from Mr. Marvin Sandstrom, Assistant
Deputy Administrator of the Food and Nutrition Service, dated March 24, 1972,
it was stated that respondents were fairly evenly divided over the proposed
change. It appears that because of this survey, but mostly because of the lan-
guage in the conference report, the change was effected as of March 1, 1972.

As you know, the language of a conference report is not legislatively binding,
nor does it have the approval which might have been obtained through public
hearings and a direct vote by members of the Congress. I feel that since the
public was fairly evenly divided on this issue it should have been the subject
of public hearings and further study. In this way the public and experts in this
field would have had the opportunity to fully express their ideas and any deci-
sion made thereafter would have been made in a more democratic fashion.

I would greatly appreciate your comments on the procedure followed in enact-
ing the new regulations. In addition, I would appreciate knowing how the pro-
bosed change was publicized other than in the Federal Register to assure that
the public, and especially the participants in the program were made aware of it.

Thank you very much for your attention to this matter. I look forward to
hesring from you at your earliest convenience.

Sincerely,
Joux F. SemBERLING, M. C.
3

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE,

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY,
Washington D.C.. May 15. 1972.

Hon. Jou~ F. SEIBERLING.
House of Representatives.

DEAR Mg. SRIBERLING: Secretary Butz has asked me to thank you for your
April 21, 1972, letter. You requested further information concerning the proce-
dure foilowed by the Department in amending the Food Stamp Program Regula-
tions to prohibit the return of cash as changed in coupon transactions.

In your letter, you pointed out that the language of the July 21, 1971, con-
ference report, which strongly influenced the Department’s decision on cash
change. is not legislatively binding. You also suggested that since the public
was evenly divided on the cash change issue, the amendments should have
been the subject of pubtic hearings and further study.

Although we recognized that the conference report was not legislatively
binding. a number of considerations had a significant influence on our decision
to be responsive to the views of the conferees. Prior to the decision to p
a prohibition on cash change, several members of Congress had individually ex-
pressed objections to the return of cash as change in asupon transactions. Among
these were the Chairman and two members of the House Agriculture Committee,
Congressmen Poage, Abernathy, and Belcher, respectively. Therefore, when the
conference report on the Agriculture appropriations bill confirmed the views
expressed during our earlier meeting, the Department felt it was necessary to
be responsive to the statements of the conferees.

LR S,
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However, to ensure careful consideration of the pros and cons of this issue,
we solicit opinions on the matter from a wide variety of interested persons.
When the proposal was published in the Federal Register. a notice explaining the
proposal and a copy of the proposed amendments were sent to the State Welfare
Agencies, the National Association of Food Chains, the National Association of
Retail Grocers of the United States, the State Retail Trade Associations, a
number of citizens groups and interested private organizations. Senators Ellender
and Talmadge, and Congressmen Poage and Whitten. Since the comments which
we received (and have shown to Miss Amatta of your office) did not present
any new considerations, major opposition, or any other unusal reason for not
accepting the views of the conferees, we proceeded with the amendments.

After the decision was made to adopt the new amendments to the regulations,
the groups and the members of Congress mentioned above were recontacted
regarding the final decision. In addition, we provided the States with a draft of
a notice of the change in the regulations for distribution to recipients, and sup-
ptied certification and issuance offices with posters outlining the changes. (In
February, the-Ohio State Agency sent the sample flyers to the counties and
requested the welfare offices to notify recipients of the cash change prohibition.)
To assist members of the retail trade industry in following the amended regu-
lations, each authorized retailer received an announcement of the changes fol-
lowed by a reminder of their effective date. Also, each barticipating retailer
was given a poster on the changes for display in his store. Finally, we sent letters
concerning the decision to all of the individuals who had commented on the
proposal. s

If we .r . svide you with any further information, please feel free to
contact u .

Sincerely,
RIcEARD LYING, Assistant Secretary.
ftn percent]

Respondents Favored change  Opposed change
Public officisls. 82 58
Retailers. ... 55 45

57 43
0 100
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Appendix 2
ITEMS PERTINENT TO THE HEARING OF J UNE 22

Material Submitted by USDA

Public Law 92-35
92nd Congress, H, J. Res., 744
June 30, 1971

oint Resolution 85 sTAT. o8

Making an appropriation for the fiscal year 1972 for the Department
of Agriculture, and for other purposes.

Resolved by the Senate and House of Representatives of the
United States of America in Congress assembled, That the following Department of
sum is appropriated, out of any money in the Treasury not otherwigse Agrioulture,
appropriated, for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1972, namely: Appropriation,

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Foop AND NUTRITION SERVICE

CHILD NUTRITION PROGRAMS

For the summer pro s of the nonschool feed'mg &rogra.m for
children, as provided for in H.R. 8270, Ninety-second C nqre& (as
the House of Representatives), to be immediately avail-

passed l_}y
able, $17,000,000.
Approved June 30, 1971,

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:

SENATE REPORT No, 92=-241 (Comm, on Appropriations),
CONGRESSIONAL RECORD, Vol, 117,(1971)s

June 24, considered and passed House,

June 28, considered and passed Senate,

.. AT A S
YT ] AR LT WP IR
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Calendar No. 246

920 CoNGRESS SENATE RerorT
13t Session No. 92-253

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE-ENVIRONMENTAL
AND CONSUMER PROTECTION APPROPRIATION BILL,
1972

Jury 14, 1971.—Ordered to be printed

Mr. McGeg, from the Committee on Appropriations,
submitted the following

REPORT
[{To accompany H.R. 9270]

* Xk % * %
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REemovar oF Surprus AGRICULTURAL ComMmopiTiES (SECTION 32)

The basic purposes of section 32 fundsis to encourage the production
stabilizing prices for export and domestic consumption

of food b
Kle agricultural commodities. The extent of use of funds for

of perisha .
the basic purposes of section 32, which has been amended from time
epends upon the condition of markets and the extent to

to time,
which surplus removal programs are initiated to stabilize market

conditions.

It is essential that the Department of Agriculture have on hand at
all times under the permanent appropriation sufficient funds to enter
into the price depressed markets and stabilize them by surplus re-

moval operations.
The following table summarizes the estimated total funds available
for Section 32 activities and the estimated balance carried forward for

Fiscal Years 1970, 1971, and 1972.

item 1970 actual 1971 estimate 1972 sstimate
Appropriation or estimate . ......... . $698, 462,614  $728,759,723 $753, 000, 000
Balance available from prior years 299, 921, 169 300, 000, 000 300, 000, 000
Recovery of prior-year obligations 130,188 ...t e e e s e s
Transfers to:
Child nutrition programs. . ... . =194,266,000 —238 358,000 —232,043, 000
Agncultural Research Service, -15,000,000  -—15,000, 000 -15, 000, 000
Foreign Agnicultural Service.. -3, 117, 000 -3, 117,000 =3, 117,000
Interior Department t. . ........ -7,636, 414 -1,626,289 -7, 800, 000
Total available after transfers. 778, 44, 557 764, 658, 434 795, 040, 000
Obligations.. .. .. P 474, 600,932 464,658,434 495, 040, 000
Unobligated balance R 3,893,625 ... veieeniiireennans Ceweeeas
300, 000,000 300, 006, 000 300, 000, 000

Unobligated balance carried forward to subsequent years. .

1 Department of Commerce in fiscal year 1972 (Reorganization Plan No. 8 of 1970).
The total amount available for 1972 for this program is $495,040,000
after transfers to child nutrition programs, Agricultural Research
Service, Foreign Agricultural Service, and the Department of Com-
ommittee agrees with the House bill to

merce. Of this amount the C
make available not more than $3,374,000 for the formulation and ad-

ministration of marketing agreements and orders and $181,758,000
47
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for child feeding programs and additional direct distribution and other
food programs for needy childrer: and families. Of this amount $11,-
225,00V 1s made available for the summer non-school food programs.
In addition, the amount recommended by the Senate wiH provide
$33,775,000 more than the budget estimate for special feeding pro-
grams for for free and reduced price lunches for needy children.

Foop AND NUTRITION SERVICE

The Food and Nutrition Service was established August 8, 1969, b
the Secretary’s Memorandum No. 1659 and Supplement 1, in acconK
ance with the provisions of Reorganization Plan No. 2 of 1953.

This agency is responsible for the formulation and administration
of programs dealing with the child feeding programs (including ad-
ministration of the school lunch program as amended, and the Special
Milk Program), family feeding programs which include the Food
Stamp Program, as well as the administration of the Direct Distribu-
tion Program to families and to institutions and related specialized
nutritional and feeding programs.

FOOD ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS OF THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
{Program level—In thousands of dollars)

Fiscal year Fiscal year Fiscs! year Fiscal year  Committes
70 {971 1972 budget 1972 House recofm-
Program (actual) (estimsted)  estimate bill  mendation

A. Child nutrition program:
1. Cash lm'ng to States:
School funch

3 unch (sec. 4)........... 168, 023 225,018 225,018 225,018 225,018
b) Free and reduced price funches.. 132, 560 3%, 400 356, 400 390,175 390,175
¢) School breakfast. . ...... 10, 877 15, 000 185, 000 15, 000 15,
Nonfood assistan 16,110 16,110 16, 110 16,110
e) State administrative o 3, 500 y 3, 500 3
onschool f 20, 775 20,775 32,000 32, 000
¢) Nutritional training..... 750 750 750 750
Total, cagh grants. 637, 553 637, 553 682, 553 682, 553
2. Commodities 1o SIles.. . ), 36,35 333,385 333,35
3. Federal operating expenses 7,09 8, 081 8,081 , 081
Tots!, child nutrition program......... 619,568 877,200 1,011,989 1,023,989 1,023,989
8. Special milk program............ - 102,124 104, 000 0 104, 000 104, 000
Total, child feed program. . 721,692 981,200 1,011,989 1,127,989 1,127,989
C. Family feeding program:
1. Food stamp program.......coccveace-.- 518,222 1,670,000 2,001,188 2,001,184 2,001,184
2. Direct distribution to famities:
2) Section 32 commodities._........ 173,180 155,163 167, 766 155, 766 155, 766
gbg Financisl assistance to States. 6, 026 19, 700 19,700 19, 700 19,700
(3 363 3, 566 3, 566 3, 566

Federal ofmtlon y s s ]
Section 416.... 70, 706 91,723 91,723 9,723
16,13% 16, 136 16,136 16,136

6% 266, 068 298, 891 286, 891 286, 891
D. Direct distribution to institution 21,436 19, 418 27,480 27,480 27,480
E. Nutrition education program. ... 29, 876 50,249 50,249 50,249 50,249

Total, food assistance program............ 1,621,912 2,986,935 3,389,793 3,493,793 3,493,793

on
3. Nutntion supplement..
Total, family feeding.

CHILD NUTRITION PROGRAMS

1971 New budget (obligational) authority. ... .ooooo... ~-... 18540, 332, 000
1972 Budget estimate—New (obligational) authority......._.._ 3 582, 919, 000
House bill-—New (obligational) authority....cooeeeeeeercaa - 1 582, 919, 000
Committee recommendation—New (obligational) authority..... 2 582, 919, 000

1 Includes $238,388,000 transfer from Section 32.
* Includes $232,043,000 transfer from Section 3.

48
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The primary objective of the Child Nutrition Programs is to improve
the health and well-being of the Nation’s children b¥‘providing well-
balanced meals in schools and service institutions. Fiscal year 1970
signaled significant gains in the National School Lunch Program, not
only in terms of the actual number of children participating but also
in the innovation and changes made in legislation, regulations, policy
and procedures. As a result of such changes and increased funding, the
program expanded significantly in 1970. Particular improvement took
place in the program of free and reduced price lunches for needy
children.

The authorities for the Child Nutrition Programs are the regular
School Lunch Act, as amended, and the Special Section 32 Feeding
Program. The Federal contribution to the Feeding Programs is aug-

" mented by contributions to the States from commodities acquired

under Section 6 of the School Lunch Act, purchases and donations of
commodities acquired under Section 32, and donations of commodities
acquired as a result of price support activities under Section 416.
Public Law 91-248, enacted in May 1970, authorized program changes
and increased funding. This will enable the Department to provide
more effective administration and more readily reach a much greater
number of eligible children.

The Committee recommends $582,919,000, excluding the special
Section 32 allocated for this purpose. Of the total appropriation,
$232,043,000 of which is to be transferred from Section 32 for child
nutrition programs. This is the same amount as provided in the
House bill and in the budget estimate for 1972. It is $42,587,000 more
than the 1971 appropriation.

The Committee has carefully considered the needs for the non-
school food programs, especially the summer child feeding portion.
The Department has announced that $33.1 million is being made
available for the summer program this year. While this bill carries a
total of $32 million specifically for this overall purpose, the bill makes
}ﬂﬁsible a total nonschool program of approximately $49 million, as
ollows:

Urgent Agriculture Appropriation Act (H.J. Res. 744, approved

UNE 30, 31971) « o oo e o e e e e e e $17, 000, 000
Recommended by committee in accompanying bill:
Direct appropriation. . ... _____.__ $20, 775, 000
Special Sec. 32 funds. - - ceeeoecmceee e 11, 225, 000
—_— 32,000, 000
B 17 SNSRI 49, 000, 000

The total of $49 million would provide nonschool food programs
approximately as follows:

In millions

Summer programs (July-August, 1971) - . ..._.... $33.1
Regular gear long programs and initiation of summer programs in calendar

year 1972 e eacmmecemmmmmmimcemee—e—ae 15. 9

This should meet the needs in view of the fact that in the fiscal year
1971, only $5.8 million was used for the summer child feeding program
and about $15 million was used for the year long activities.

76-300 O - 72 - pt.3B - 10
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SPECIAL MILK PROGRAM

1971 New budget (obligational) authority . . . oo ___... $104, 000, 000
1972 Budget estimate—New (obligational) authority. .. ......... 0
House bill—New (obligational) authority...ceeeeeeeeeocamaae. 104, 000, 000

104, 000, 000
Committee recommendation—New (obligational) authority...... 104, 000, 000

The S{:ecial Milk Program seeks to increase the consumption: of
fluid milk by children. All nonprofit primary and secondary schools,
nonprofit summer camps, and nonprofit child-care institutions de-
voted to the care and training of children, are eligible to partic%mte
in the program. From its inception in fiscal year 1955 through fiscal
year 1962, the program was financed through advances from Com-
modity Credit Corporation funds. The Agricultural Act of 1961
(P.L. 87-128), approved August 8, 1961, autﬁgrized an appropriation
for the program and extended it through June 30, 1967. The Child
Nutrition Act of 1966 incorporated the Special Milk Program and
extended it through fiscal year 1970. Public Law 91-295, enacted
June 30, 1970, autﬁorized appropriation authority beyond fiscal 1970.

An appropriation of $104,000,000 is recommended. This is the
same as tgw ouse bill and the same as the 1971 appropriation. It is
an increase of $104,000,000 above the budget request. g‘his will pro-
vide for the continuation of this program in 1972.

FOOD STAMP PROGRAM

1971 New Budget (obligational suthon’ti’ ................... $1, 670, 000, 000
1972 Budget estimate—New (obligational) authority_.._.__... 2,001, 184, 000
House bill—New (obligational) authority . ... .. ______._._. 2,001, 184, 000
Committee recommendation—New (obligational) authority.... 2,001, 184, 000

The food stamp program was authorized by Public Law 88-525,
approved August 31, 1964. Public Law 90-91, approved September 27,
1967, provided that the act be carried out only with funds appropriated
from the general fund of the Treasury for that specific purpose and in
no event shall be carried out with funds derived from permanent ap-
propriations. Public Law 90-552, approved October 8, 1968, extended
apl{)ropriation authority through December 1970, and provided $340
million authorization for fiscal year 1970.

Public Law 91-116, approved November 13, 1969, increased the
authorizadon for fiscal year 1970 to $610 million. Legislation was
passed on December 31, 1970, which authorizes appropriations up to
$1,750,000,000 in fiscal year 1971, and “such sums as the Congress
may provide” in 1972 and 1973.

The food stamp program is designed to benefit families > individ-
uals receiving some form of welfare assistance, and is also authorized
to help other designated families with incomes as low or lower than
families receiving welfare. The program is conducted in cooperation
with the States with the objective of providing improvements in the
diets of low-income families. Eligible persons or families are able to
increase their ﬁﬁ)urchase of foods by means of food stamps issued in the
form of special Federal assistance. The food stamps are redeemed in
designated retail stores. The results of the program show that food
purchases are increased.

50
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BEAUFORT COUNTY Foop STAMP PAUTICIPATION

TABLE 1-B.—MONTHLY FOOD STAMP PROGRAM PARTICIPATION AS REPORTED ON CFP-256 FORMS: BEAUFIRT
COUNTY,S.C., OCTOBER 1968-SEPTEMBER 1969

Households Persons
Year and month Total PA NPA Total PA NPA
1968;

October. . .. ... 704 122 582 2.740 263 417
November.. 667 121 546 .45 268 2,188
708 134 574 2,1 288 2,49

700 113 587 2,700 216 2,484

235 113 622 2721 2 2,504

873 141 132 3,183 322 2.861

862 151 11 . 059 330 2,719

896 210 686 3,176 570 , 606

840 257 583 2.96€ 810 2,15%

850 275 575 2,984 902 2.082

851 n a4 2,914 1,346 1.623

st 407 a7 , 095 . ,635

TABLE 2-B.—~FREQUENCY OF PARTICIPATION BY SAME HOUSEHOLDS, BEAUFORT COUNTY, S.C., OCTOBER 1968~

SEPTEMBER 1969

Tolal households Total persons

Frequency of participation (months) Number Percent Number Percent
12.... 28 4.8 1,246 5.5
1. 119 9.0 411 8.4
10 58 4.4 202 41
9... 12 5.4 269 5.5
8. 5 4.1 2 4.5
1. %% 9 312 6.4
6. 6.2 278 5.7
S. 2 5.4 266 5.5
4. 85 6.4 a0 6.2
3 100 1.6 399 8.2
2. 10 9,1 457 9.4
l... 142 10.7 518 10.6

........................ 1.323 100.0 4,879 1000

(757
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OEO/USDA/OMB Drcisiox ox Hrap Staxr

In response to the request for & copy of the OEQO/USDA/OMB decision on
Head Start, there is no signed interagency agreement. The agreement was worked
out through meetings—discussions, and the background and specifics of the agree-
ment are asfollows:

Head Start Programs a;e eligible under Special Food Service Program legisla-
tion (Section 13 of the National School Lunch Act), and when this legislation
was enacted in 1968, the inclusion of all Head Start food service was considereqd.
However, the Special Food Service Programs was authorized only on a pilot
basis at a low level of funding, and food service in Head Start was running at a
much higher level. Also, there was some feeling that, since Head Start was de-
signed to provide comprehensive child care, the food service component should
not be split out.

Agreement was subscquently reached with the Office of Economic Oppor-
tunity (then the agency administering Head Start) that Head Start programs
would be treated in the following manner:

1. OEO would continue to finance food service in Head Start programs
then in operation, i.e., before November 1, 1969.

2. Specigl Food Service Program funds would be concentrated in day-care
centers an niher eligible institutions that had no food service and newly
established Head Start programs.

3. Also, the Child Nutrition Act of 1966 authorizes USDA to extend the
benefits of its school feeding programs to preschool programs operated as
part of a sciool program. Therefore, when the Head Start program is an in-
tegral part of a school sysi>m, and the attending children eat in the school's
breakfast or lunch programs, the school claims reimbursement for Head
Start meals under the regular school breakfast and lunch programs.
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Items of Interest

PUBLISHED USDA MATERIALS ATTESTING TO INADEQUACY OF
ECONOMY FOOD PLAN

{Excexrrs From RoowaY, £T at. V. THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, A
CoMPLAINT FILED 1N U.8. Distarct Count rox THE DisTaict of CoLUMBIAJ

5. The new monthly coupon allotments were established by the Agriculture
Department (hereinafter U.S.D.A.) pursuant to its so-catled “Economy Diet
Plan.” {U.8.D.A., Agricuitural Research Service, Consumer and Food Economics
Research Divislon. “Family Economics Review” (September, 1971), at 11 and 15)
The Economy Diet Plan is one of five food plans developed by U.S.D.A.'s Agri-
cultural Research Service; the other four plans are: the liberal plan” (the most
expensive plan), the “moderate-cost plan,” the “basic low-cost food plan,” and
another low-cost food plan designed for the nutritional preferences of familles
in the Southeast. The Economy Diet plan is the least expensive of the five food
plans; the basic low-cost food plan costs 25 percent more than the Economy Diet
Plan. {A copy of the Economy Diet plan and its costs are set forth in Appendices
A and B, attached hereto and incorporated herein.)

6. The new monthly coupon allotments—established pursuant to the Economy
Diet Plan—are violative of the Food Stamp Act since said allotments are con-
slderably lower than the cost of obtaining an adequate nutritional dlet. The allot-
ments are unlawfully low for essentially two reasons. First, as set forth more
fully below [see pages 22 to 25 infra), the cost of the Economy Diet Plan is an
unreasonable measure for the cost of a nutritionally adequate diet, Even U.S.D.A.
admits that the Economy Diet Plan is an unreasonable measure for determining
the cost of a nutcitionally adequate diet:

Studies show that few families spending at the level of the Economy Plan
select foods that provide nutritionally adequate diets. The cost of this plan
2 not a reasonadle measure of basic money needs for a good diet. The public
assistance agency that recognizes the limitations of its clientele and is inter-
ested in their nutritional well being will recommend a money allowance for
food considerably higher than the cost level of the Economy Plan. Many
welfare agencies base their food cost standards on the U.8.D.A. Low-Cost
Focd Plan which costs about 26 percent more than the Economy Plan.
[{U.S.D.A., Agricultural Research Service, Consumer and Food Economics
Research Division, Sample Menus and Food List for One Week based on
U.S.D.A. Economy Family Food Plan,” (CA 62-28, Revised May 1968) at 1.
Attached hereto, and incorporated herein, as Appendix B) (emphasiz added)

It is for this reason that U.8.D.A. has described the plan as one for “emergency
use” and “for temporary use when funds are low.” {U.S.D.A., Agricultural Re- 1
search Service, Consumer and Food Economics Research Division, Family Food
Plans Revised 1964" (1060), at 3) (emphasis added)

7. In its last nationwide Food Consumption Survey (1965-1966), U.S.D.A.
sought to determine the percentage of households—purchasing food at the Econ-
omy Diet Plan cost level—that obtained an adequate nutritional dler. The stand-
ard for nutritional adequacy used in the Survey—and uced by reputable nutri-
tionists throughout the country—was the Recommended Dletary Allowances
(hereinafter R.D.A.) of the National Academy of Sclences-Nationa' Research
Council. The R.D.A. is a list of nutritional component amounts; & househo'd
is assured of an adequate nutritional diet {f it consumes the full R.D.A}® The

1 Recommended Dietary Allowances. Sixth Revised Edition (1964). National Academy
of Sciences, National Research Council Pub. 1146,
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U.S.D.A. Food Oonsumption Survey found that “less than 10 percent of the
families studied in 1965 who spent at the cost of the Economy Diet Man” had
obtained the RD.A. {U.S.D.A.. Agricultural Research Nervice. Consumer and
Food Economics Research Division (0/23/09), pares §-10. Attached hereto,
and incorporated herein, as Appendix C] Even more staxtling, however, was
U.8.D.A's finding that “less than 50 percent” of the famiiies studied—who had
spent at the cost of the Econmy Diet Plan—had obtained even two-thirds (35's)
of the R.D.A. {Ibid.] .

8. In short, but as more fully set forth below [see Duges 22 to 25, infra], the
cost of the Economy Diet Plan is an unreasonable basis for measuring “the cost
of a nutritionally adequate diet.” {7 U.S.C. §2016(a)] The cost level of the
Eccaomy Dict Plan is an unreasonably meager measure of the cost of pro-
viding an adequate nutritional diet.

. . . ‘e . . .

A. THE UNREASONABLENESS OF USINO THE ECONOMY DIET PLAX A8 THE BASIS FOR
DETERMINING THE COST OoF A NUTRITIONALLY ADEQUATE DIET

41. U.S.D.A. has admitted, in numerous publications, that the Economy Diet
Plan is an unreasonable measure for determining the cost of a nutritionally
adequate diet. In fts publication explaining the usage of the Economy Diet Plan
[set forth in full in Appendix B], U.S.D.A. states:

Studies show that few families spending at the level of the Economy
Plan select foods that provide nutritionally adequate diets. The cost of this
plan is not ¢ rcasonadlc mcasurc of basic moncy nceds for ¢ good dict. The
public assistance agency that recognizes the lHmitations of its clientele and
is interested in their nutritional well-being will recommend a money allow-
ance for food considerably higher than the cost level of the Economy Plan.
Many welfnre agencies base their food cost standards on the U.S.D.A.
Low-Cost Food Plan which costs about 25 percent more than the Economy
Plan. {Appendix B, at 1] (emphasis added)
On page 4 of the same publication, U.S.D.A. cautions that the Economy Diet
Plan is “designed for temporary use when funds are limited,” (Appendix B, at 4]
(emphasis added)

42. In another publication prepared hy US.D.A, the defendants reiterate
their warnings about the Economy Diet Plan: *“The econemy plan is the least
expensive of all the plans, It is designed for temporary or emergency usc when
Junds are low....” {U.S.D.A., Agricultural Research Service, Consumer and
Food Economics Research Division, “Family Food Plans Revised 1964 (Oct.
1969), at 8] (emphasis added)

43. In still another publication prepared by the U.S.D.A. {appended in {ts en-
tirety as Appendix C hereto], the defendants indicate that the United States
Department of Labor has determined that the Economy Diet Plan is inadequate:
“As the Labor Department stated, it iz unlikely that families will have good
diets at the Economy Plan cost level.” {Appendix C, at 9] The publication goes
on to admit that U.S.D.A. agrees with the Labor Department's assessment and,
therefore, suggests that the more expensive Low-Cost Food Plan ia more reason-
able: “Nutritionists in the U.S.D.A. have recommended in the past and con-
tinue to recommend that the Low-Cost Food Plan rather than the Economy Food
Plan. be used as a standard of food money allowances by public assistance agen-
cies.” {Appendix C, at 10]

44. One reason for the inadequacy of the Economy Diet Plan is because it was
established for only moderately active persons who occupy essentially sedentary
lite styles. Since most working poor people are not professionals or office work-
ers, the Economy Diet Plan is inadequate for them. Since most teenagers are
very active, the Economy Diet Plan is inadequate for them as well.

45. Another reason for the Economy Diet Plan’s inadequacy is because it fafls
to properly provide for the nutrient needs of adolescents—those youngsters en-
tering their peak growth rate. In particular, the protein needs of such ado-
lescents are not fulfilled by the Economy Diet Plan.

46. The Economy Diet Plan is a wholly unreasonable standard for determin-
ing the cost of an adequate nutritional diet because it §s entirely contrary to the
food consumption habits of American households. Most households in the United
States consume much more milk, meat, poultry, fish, eggs, fruit and vegetables
than is provided—or could be afforded—under the Feonomy Diet Plan. Stmilarly
unreasonable. the Economy Diet Plan totally fails to take into account the nu-
tritional preferences of minority groups, those persons on the lowest rung of the
;conomlc ladder and consequently most dependent upon the Food Stamp

rogram.
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47. That the Economy Diet Plan is an unreasonable measure of nutritional
adequacy is most poignantly indicated by U.S.D.A.'s antionwide Food Consump-
tion Surveys {The last nationwide Food Consumption Survey ix fully described
in Appendix C, attached hereto and incorporated herein] In the last nationwide
Food Consumption Survey. U.S.D.A. sought to determine what hercentage of
tamilics, spending at the Economy Diet Plan cost level, obtained the full RD.A.
(As indicated above [page 5, paragraph 6. supra] the R.D.A—~developed by
the Nntional Academy of Sciences—is the standard used hy nutritionists through-
out the country as the measure of an adequate nutritional diet. A person who
consumes the full R.D.A. has an adequate nutritional diet.)

48, According to U.S.D.A.s natioawide Food Consumption Survey, “les< than
10 percent” of those persons studied who spent at the cost of the Economy Diet
Plan obtained the full R.D.A. [Appendix C, at 8-10) Even more startling, how-
ever, is U.S.D.A'x finding and admission that “less than 50 percent™ of those
persons studied who spent at the cost of the Economy Diet Plan obtained even
two-thirds (34's) of the R.D.A, [Appendix C. at §-10)

49, The Economy Dict Plan s, consequently, completels inadequate and inap-
proprinte as n measure of “the cost of a nutritionaily adequate diet.” By using
the Economy Diet Plan ax the cost of a nutritionally adequate diet, therefore,
the defendants unreasonahly violated the requirements of the Food Stamp Act. (7
U.S.C. § 2016(n) ; snee, also, 7 U.S.C. §§ 2011, 2013(a) and 2014(a))

B. THE FOOD STAMP COUPON ALLOTMENTS ARE SUBSTANTIALLY LESS THAN THE COSTS
OF THE ECONOMY DIET PLAN

50. Asx set forth in parageaphs 41 to 49 [pages 22 to 25, aupral, the Economy
Diet Plan ix an unreasonably low measure of “the cost of a nutritionaliy adequate
diet.” Despite thix, however, the defendants catadlished coupon allotmenta that
a‘r; nhmch lcsa than cten the cost of the Econnmy Dict Plan for all of the plain-
tiffs Rerein,

Gi1. The coats of the Fconomy Diet Plan, as determined by U.8.D.A., are fully
set forth in Appendix A [(attached hereto and incorporated hereini. As described
in Appendix A, the average United States costs of the Economy Diet Plan—based
exclusively on U.S.D.A’s own figurex—for all of the plaintiffs are substantially
higher than the allotments provided said plaintiffs.

52. Mareover, the average Northeast cost of the Economy Diet Plan—bassd
exclusively on U.S.D.A.'x own figures—is thirteen percent (137) higher than
the Economys Diet Plan’s average United States costs. Since the named individual
plaintiffs reside in the northeast Uni: 'd States, their coupon aliotments should
have been adjusted to reflect this 13% increase.

Derosrrioxs TAKEN Frox USDA Wirxesses RE INADREQUACY oF Ecoxomy
Foop PPrLax
» [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] ®

Fallowing are excerpts from deposaitions taken in the case of Miriam Rodway
v8. The Department 6§ Agriculture, cf al., Clvil Action No. 2553-71. The Questions
were put by Mr. Ronald Pollack, Exq. for the Plaintiff. The AnsWers in the fizst
set of excerpts were provided by Dr. Rabert Rizek, Director of Consumer and
Food Economic Research Division, Agricoltural Research, U.8. Department of
Agticulture. The Answers in the second set of excerpts were provided by Richard
Lyng, Assistant Secretary for U.8. Department of Agriculture. The Depositions
were tnken on May 15, 1072,

Questions and Answers with Dr. Rizek testifying to known inadequacies in
the Economy Food Plan, and to the fact that persons relying on the Economy
Food Plan—particiiarly in the North Enstern United States, and in iarge fam-
fliexs—may not obtain a nutritious diet. The deposition fnrther reveal!s that the
Department hnd knowledge that the cost of food had risen by nn amount greater
than the increase in the food stamp allotinent.

[ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ]

‘Q'.‘ Please feel free at any time to consult any of your notex that you brought
with you.

Mr. Thomas indicated in his afidavit th-t the economy diet pinn does not pro-
vide the fulf recommended dietary allowances for four nutrients.

A. That is vitamin B-6, B-12, folic acid and magnesium.
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Q. Now when you determine the nutritional needs of people, what assumption
do you make about the physical activity of the people who would be eating these
diets.

A. We do not do this. This is set by tlie National Academy. The National
Academy determines that.

Q. T am sorry. I improperly phrased niy question.

When you establish your various plans like thie economy diet plan. what as-
sumptions do you make in terms of the physical level of activity of the people
who would be using these plans?

A. They are based on the RDA's requirenients, as set by the National Academy
of Sciences.

Q. Except for these four nutrients.

A. Except for these four nutrients.

Q. Well, isn’t it true that when you established the economy diet plan. that
you established it for moderately active persons as opposed to very active per-
sons or more active persons?

A. No. the economy diet plan was established for leaders to help Deople who
had only a limited amount of money to spend for food.

Q. When you set it for people with a limited amount of food. what was your
assumption about their activity level?

A. They would be average.

Q. Average?

A. As based on the RDA's.

Mr. Porrack. I would ask to be marked for identification a document that states
on the top Family Food Budgeting. It is an article prepared by the Agricultural
Research Service.

(The above referred to document was marked Plaintiff’s Exhibit Number E
for identification.)

By Mr. PoLLAcK:

Q. I place before you Family Food Budget for Good Meals and Good Nutrition
ptepared by the Department of Agriculture, the Consumer and Food Economics
Division of the Department of Agriculture. I would ask for you to describe what
this pamphlet purports to contain.

Mr. WerpiG. If he is familiar with it.

By. Mr. PoLLACK :

Q. If you are familiar with it.

A. This is to assist families in their budgeting of food.

Q. Does this pamphlet at all describe the various food plans that have been
devised by the Agricultural Research Service?

A. Yes. as indicated here it does.

Q. And is one of those plans the economy food plan that we have been referring
to?

A Yes.

Q. I would ask you to turn to page 11. I would ask you read the first full para-
graph on the right side starting with the term “the quantities of food.”

A. “The quantities of food for adults are based on the need of moderately
active persons. Such persons spend about eight hours daily at light industry or
office work. three to four hours at moderate exercise or housework and four to
five hours in sedentary activities such as watching television. sewing or reading.
or such persons may spend eight hours in such activity as gardening, light agri-
cultural jobs, laboratory work. store clerking, teaching or housework. one or
two hours in licht exercise. and sixX to seven hours in sedentary activities?

Q. Now do people who are involved in this and who have more physical activ-
ities. are their nutritional needs greater or are they lesser normally?

A. I could not say.

Q. Well. conld you make any statement about whether nersons normally need
more nntrition or less nutrition when they lead active lives?

Mr. WEern1G. I would object to that characterisation.

Mr. Porrack. I am willing to rephrase that. I am not sure what Your objec-
tion is.though.

Mr. WeRntG. I don’t know what an active life 8.

By Mr. Pot1.ACK:

Q. Well. let's nssume that person X leads an inactive life, He mainly does a
lot of sitting down and doesn't run around very much. And another nerson
moyhe is involved in ricorons phvsiernl acrtivitv. normally which person do you
think would require more nutrition? Would the former or the latter?




763

A. I would, not being a nutritionalist, say probably the latter but here again

I think it would depend on the persons themselves.
Q. Certainly but normally, and I am not saying in every single case, normally

the person who is more physically active would require more nutrition?

|
|
|
\
|
‘ A. Probably.
Q. Wouldn’t that mean that a person who is very active, who is more than
moderately active, would require more nutrition than the so-called moderately

| active person? A
< A. I suppose so.
plan when it is established for the moderately

} Q. So that the economy diet
‘ active person would not quite fulfill the nutritional needs of persons who are
3 more active than the so-called moderately active persons?
’ * * * * * * *
By Mr. Porrack :
Q. Do your food consumption surveys show that less than 10 percent of the
Deople spending at the cost level of the economy diet plan obtain the full RDA?

A. I believe that was published.
Q. Do you know what percentage? Is it under 10 percent?

A.I think it was 10 percent.
Q. It said less than 10 percent in material that we have presented to the Secre-

tary this morning. Would you know how much.

it was around 10 percent. Now, I do

A. I do not know right off hand. I think

not know the exact number. It is published.
Q. Do you know what the percentage of people who obtained less than two-

thirds of the DA, based on food purchases at the cost level of the economy diet

plan was?
A. I do not have those.

Q. It is under 50 percent, is it not?
A.Tdo not know. It is in published materials but I o not have them.
Q. Can we have Plaintiff’s Exhibit No. A?
I place before you Plaintiff’s Exhibit No. A and i would ask you to read page 8
to {on;rselt. It need not be read in the record. Just the top.
A. Yes.
Q. Does it not indicate that less than 50 percent of the persnns spending at the
: cost level of the economy diet plan obtain even two thirds of the recommended
| dietary allowances?
A. Yes.
Q. Do you know what the percentage is? This paper was prepared by your

office.
A. It says less than 50 percent.

Q. You don’t know what that is?

A. I do not know the exact numbers.

Q. You have no reasen to disagree with that statistic?
0.

AN
Q. I would ask for Plaintiff’s Exhibit No. B be placed before the witness.
as just been placed before you, Plain-

Could you describe that document that h

tiff's Exhibit No. B?
A. It is on family food plans.

B

oo

AR R WS

o Q. Prepared by ?

e A. Consumer and Food Economics Research Division, ARS.

2 Q. What does that pamphlet provide in terms of information ?

?} A. It describes the various, the four food plans as developed by the Agricul-
= tural Research Services.

28 ? I would ask you to turn to page 10 of that document, would you?

ti A Yes.

3’ Q. Would you read into the record on the top of the chart on page 10?

S A. Table 5, Economy Food Plan, Economy Family Food Plan, Revised 1964.
£ “Designed for temporary use when funds are limited.”
,2‘ Q. Do you have any reason to doubt the veracity of what it contained in that

pamphlet?
A. No.
Q. Was the economy food plan prepared for temporary use when funds were

2
¥

g
e
AN

limited?
A. Yes, that is what is indicated in the puhlication.
Q. And you agrce that the plan was designed for temporary use?
A,

Yes.
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Q. So it was not designed for permanent use?

A. Well, it was designed for people that were—well, it was designed to help
people budget their plans. It wasn't designed for family people.

Q. Just for a temporary period of time, is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, what would you define as the length of time that is a temporary period
of time?

A. I don't know that any time designation had been established.

* * * * ' * * »

Q. I would ask that the next item be marked for identification. It is also pre-
pared by the Agricultural Research Service and Consumer and Food Economics
Research Division and it is entitled Sample Menues and Food List for One Week
Based on the United States Department of Agriculture Food Program. It is a
four page document and I would ask it be marked for identification.

(The above referred to document was marked Plaintiff’s Exhibit No. F for
identification.)

By Mr. POLLACK:

Q. I would ask each of these documents be made a part of this record.

Doctor Rizek, I would ask you to describe what this pamphlet purports to
contain.

A. This provides a menu plan for the meals of various days of the week, three
meals a day, as to the quantity and types of food.

Q.')Is it fair to say, Dr. Rizek, that this document describes the economy food
plan?

A. Yes.

Q. Dr. Rizek, can you read from the first page the last paragraph and read
that into the record?

A. “Studies show that few families spending at the level of the economy plan
select foods that provide nutritionally adequate diets. The cost of this plan is
not a reasonable measure of basic money needs for a good diet. The public assist-
ance agencies that recognize the limitations of its clientele and is interested in
their nutritional well being will recommend a money allowauce for food consid-
erably higher than the cost of the economy diet plau. Many welfare agencies base
their food costs on the United States Department of Agriculture food plan, which
costs about 25 percent more than the economy plan.”

Q. Is there anything in that paragraph you disagree with?

A. No. this is a statement that has been made and published.

Q. ‘;'nd you agree with that statement as prepared by your agency?

A. Yes.

Q. Well. if only a few persons spending at that level of the econnmy diet plan
receive nutritional adequacy. as that pamphlet states. do you think it is reason-
able to base food stamp coupon allotments that are supposed to provide nutri-
tionnql adequacy or an opportunity for nutritional adequacy on the economy diet
plan?

Mr. WERnIG. If You are able to answer the question.

The WiTNEss. That is outside of my area of expertise. The food stamp pro-
gram is outside of my area.

By Mr. PoLrACK:

Q. Has vour azency advised the Secretary that only a few families spending at
the cost level of the economy diet plan obtain nutritional adequacy?

A. Yes. it is in our publications.

Q. Is the Secretary aware of that? The Secretary indicates that he relies
heavily on your agency and I wanted to know whether the Secretary is aware
of the fact that vou have just stated that only a few families spending at the
cost level of the economy diet plan obtain nutritional adequacy. Has your agency
informed him of this?

A. T believe so.

Q. And despite that he established coupon allotments at the level of the econ-
omy diet plan?

A. Well, T am not sure where they were established.

Q. Well, if the cost of the plan is not a reasonahle measure of basic money
needs for a zood diet. what is a reasonable measure of basic money needs for a
good diet? What plan is there?

A. T am not sure that you ean say anv plan hecause at any cost level plan

the spending for food does not assure an adequate diet.



Q

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

o

o
(AR

o i AT A

Rt eaye A 2 v s 1,

765

Q. There is no question about that. Obviously people can always spend their
money on items that are not the best selection but you have stated and you
have agreed that the cost of the economy food plan is not a reasonable measure
of basic money needs for a good diet. Now, 1 am asking you what is a reasonable
measure of basic money needs for a good diet?

A, I can’t answer that. I don’t think there is an answer to that.

Q. You don’t think there is an answer to the question what is a reasonable
measure of basic money needs for a good diet?

Mr, Wegbie. I believe he answered the question Mr. Pollack.

By Mr. PoLLACK:

Q. So with all of the research that has been done by the Agricultural Research
Service, you cannot come up with a measure for determining what is the reason-
able basic money needs for a good diet?

A. No.

Q. You cannot? But the economy diet plan is not such a reasonable measure
as you have indicated, is that correct?

A. Right.

* * * * » * *

Q. In essence, the definition of the economy diet plan is 80 percent of the
cost level of the low cost plan?

A. Right.

Q. But how would you determine the cost of the economy diet plan for a par-
ticular family?

A, This is based on the age, sex, composition of the family.

Q. Is it fair to say that for each household there would be a different cost of
the economy diet plan if it has a different age, sex composition?

A. Right, that is so stated and so shown in our sheets.

Q. Did you recommend to the Secretary any particular figure to be used as the
cost level of the economy diet plan or did your agency recommend any cost figure
as the cost of the economy diet plan?

A. We pullish the cost of the economy plan as well as the other four plans
quarterly, which indicates the costs for various compositions of families and
individuals.

Q. Did you give the Secretary any particular figure which would denote what
the cost of the economy diet plan is?

A. Well, not to the Secretary directly, to the Food and Nutrition Service.

Q. What was that figure?

A. Which period ?

Q. Well, most recently.

A. In December it was $111.10 for a family of four.

Q. When you say a family of four, what do you mean?

A. A family of four. A man, a woman 20 to 85 years of age and a child 6 to 8
and a boy 9 to 12,

Q. For a different sex-age composition the cost of the economy diet plan could
be higher or could be lower, could it not?

A, Yes.

Q. Now, on what basis did you use this hypothetical family of four? Is this
the average United States family?

A. It is a hypothetical family that was set up. We also show a family of four
with pre-school children. It is a guide.

Q. But it is by no means the average United States family, is it?

A. No, well, I don’t know.

Q. Do you have a person working in your department named Betty Peterkin?

A. Yes,

Q. Who is she?

A. . research home economiist.

Q. Does she have any familiarity with this plan?

A. Yes.

Q. Is she likely to know—and you can’t know for sure whether she does but
is she likely to know_whether this information is based on an average or
hypothetical family ?

A, Well, I really don't know. It is a hypothetical family, I believe.

N
T e Y Ryak. <"
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Q. Now, I wonld ask the next exhibit to be marked No. G.

(The above referred to document was marked Plaintiff’s Exhibit No. G for
identification.) '

By Mr. PoLLACK :

Q. Dr. Rizek, T place before you Plaintift’s Exhibit G. It is a letter addressed
to me, Ronald Pollack, by & home economist nnmed Better Peterkin. The letter
is dated December 1, 1971, prior to initiation of this lawsuit, and it is written
on the stationery of your office. I would ask you to read her response to the first
guestion. Well, in fact read the question into the record as well.

A. “What is the basis for the make up of a family of four with school children
for which the cost of food at home is estimated?”

Answer: “A four person family with two elementary school children is the
only sample family which cost estimates are given on a regular basis. There is
no research basis for this family composition. Cost of food estimates are pro-
vided for individuals in each of 26 essential groups to allow cost estimates for
families of different compositions.”

Q. Do you have any information that would lead you to disagree with her
response to question number one?

A. No.

Q. So then you would agree that the four person family that you just de-
scribed for which the cost of the economy diet plan as of December *vas some-
what o;'er $111, you would agree then that this is not an average United States
family

A. It is a sample family, yes.

Q. You would agree yon have no research showing what s a typical family
composition?

A. No, not so designated.

Q. So that to say that the cost of the economy diet plan is upwards of $111
as of December is really just the cost of the economy diet plan purely for a
hypothetical family?

A. For a sample family.

Q. It is not necessarily related to what is the cost for most families in this
country?

A. I believe it is an estimate.

Q. On what hasis? You Just said there has been no research to determine this.

A. Based on our 63-66 household food consumption survey.

Q. That would show you this is a typical family, Then you would disagree
that——

A. It shows that the economy plan does represent thé average age-sex com-
position and not the hypothetical family of four but when yon plan,out or cost
ont per different sized families—— .

Q. Okay, that is fine. But I am asking you whether that hypothetical family
then at all reflects the average U.S. family?

A. No, it is a sample. It is not an average family. .

* * - * * R * *

Q. Dr. Rizek, we were Zoing over the cost of the economy diet plan inst before
we interrupted for lunch. If T may, I would like to go over what the cost of
the economy diet plan is for several honseholds. Not many. But I place hefore
vou a paner and pencil. I also place before vou what has been wmarked as Plain.
tiff’s Exhibit No. C. Would you please describe what Plaintiff's Exhibit C
purports to represent?

A. This is the cost of food at home estimated for the economy food plan,
September of 1971. US average. -

Q. This would be np to date as for September, 19712

A. As for September of 1971.

Q. This wonld nct reflect the cost of food that has changed since September
of 1071 to the present time?

A. No. this is for September of 1971.

i Q. And who prepared this document ?
. l)iAi" iIt is prepared in my division, the Consnmer and Food Economics Research
vikion.
Q. Are yon familiar with its contents?
A, Yes, Tam.
Q. Are you familiar with how to utilize the plan?
A. Yes.
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Q. I would like to try for several households. I would like to determine what
is the cost of the economy diet plan for various household groups.

A. Okay.

Q. If I may, I would like to start with a household that is actually the House-

hold of one of the plaintiffs in this case, Miriam Rodway. Now, this is a 11
person household and 1 think You are probahly going to need a pencil for this.

Mrs. Rodway is 36 years of age and she has four sons.
A. Okay.
Q. Their ages are 18, 16, 18 and 11. And she has six girls ages 15, 14, 12, 10,

and 9 and 8.
Now, could you please figure out, based on this chart, what the cost of the
economy diet plan would be for this household as of September, 1971.
Mr. WeRbpic. Mr. Pollack, don’t you already have the figure?
Mr. PoLLAcK. We haven't verified jts accuracy.

The WiIrNEss. You have $208.90?
Mr. PoLrack. No, but I am close. I have $291.42.

By Mr. POLLACK :
A, I think you are basing it on March 1972 figures and that is why

A, Yes, that probably raised the children's ages ujp.
Q. Well, I understand now. Your figures are for March of 1972. What is the

cost of the economy diet plan for the Rodway household?

A. $298.90.

Q. What is the cost of the econom) diet plan for the McKnight househotd?
A, $309.20.

Q. What is the cast of the economy diet plan for the Hollis household?
A, §229.20.

Q. sWhatc is the cost of the economy diet plan for the Robinson household?
A. $217.40.

Q. What is the cost of the economy diet plan for the Butler household?
A, $211.30

Q. What is the cost of the economy diet plan for the Walker household?
A, $102.30.

Q. What is the cost of the economy diet plan for the Angilettia household?

A, $211.

Q. What is the cost of the economy diet plan for the James family ?

A, $210.20.

Q. And what. is the cost of the economy diet plan for the McArthur household?

‘ A. $94 60,
Q. What is the most recent publication you have of this?

I note this has the figures for September of 1971. Your figures are for which

period?

A. March.,
Q. You have a similar sheet as this one. right?

A. Correct,

Q. Could ycu provide that as well?

Mr. PoLLAck. I would like this marked as Plaintiff's Exhibit No. H.

(The above referred to document was marked Plaintiff's Exhibit No. H for

identification.)

By Mr. PoLrack »

Q. Now, you indicate in your computation that the cost of the economy diet
plan for the Rndway family as of March 1972 is $208.90.

A. That is right.

Q. Now presently the Rodway household is receiving $228 in food ~tamp cou-

pons. I am not asking you to verify that. You don’t know that as a matter of
fact Now, can the Rodway household purchase the economy diet plan for its

households for $228?

-

- R e ne
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¥
4 A.Ido not know. i
& Q. Well, now you indicated that the cost of the economy diet p'an for them is 5
g $208 and change. Their coupon allotment is $228.70. -
¥ A. There are economies of scale,

& O. Didn't you take the economies of scale into account when you made the

e computation?

3 A. Yes, I did but there are other economies of scale.

& Q. Such as what?

&%—7 A. In the food stamp allotment.

N

o

ERIC

Py
;Z.‘:‘!
A
e
. P o




768

Q. I am not talking about the coupon allotment. I know you are not an expert
on the food stamp program. I am asking you just in terms of your area of ex-
pertise, the economy diet plan.

A. I could not answer that. I do not know.

Q. Would anyone know? You are the oniy departinent who would know this.
You »aid that the economy diet plan costs the Rodways $298.90. Can they pur-
chase the economy diet plan with $22§, forgetting whether it isx food stamps or

whatever.

. I do not know.

Q. Who would know?
2. I don't reaily know.
Q. Isn’t your departient the department that devised the econowmy diet plan?

adjustments to be made on the economy food

A. We have indicated here the
blan. Now, the Rodway family is a large family. It exceeds the information that
we have. They are an a-typical family.
Q. What do you mnean it exceeds the information you have?
A. You don’t have any information about what it costs the household to pur.
chase the economy diet plan. I thought that was what the chart was all about.
A, From our Food Cousumption Surveys of which there wax nation-wide ran-
dom sampling of 14,000 families. As Fou notice, we only show six or more persons,
subtracting the adjustment factor. This is because we do not have data for
larger sized families.
Q. So the most reliable data you use is a 1965 food consumption survey ?

A. Right.

Q. That is what the Department uses?

A. On estimating the economiex of scaie of the larger sized families. But when
you go above six person households the sample of over six or more is not ade.
quate to determine whether there are further economies or diseconomies of scale.
However, based on the food consumy, survey of various sized families, the
economy plan shows there is probably eight to ten percent overage of the actual
cost of the food plan.

Q. So, assuming that, even assuming that there wa
could the Rodway household purchase the economy
11 member household ?
A. The cost is such, there isa difference, yes,
Q. 8o, they could not purchase jt?
A. No, they could not purchase this plan.
Q. The Rodway household cannot purchase the economy diet plan with $228
for their household?
A. Yes, I guess it is so.
Q. Okay. Now, you indica
McKnight household $309.30.
A. That is the cost of the economy plan,
Q. Correct. Could they purchase the economy diet plan with $228?
A. The same answer would apply.
Q. They cannot?

A. They cannot.
the Hollis household is somewhat smaller. It is of nine persons. So it
retty large household. You indicated that it costs $229.20 for them to

ition

s another economy of scale,
diet plan with $228 for its

ted that the McKnight household, that it costs the

Q. Now,
. is still a p
¢ purchase the economy diet plan. Could they get the economy dlet plan with
, $10687?
A. No,
Q. The Rohin<on household is an efght nerson household. Your indication is that
y diet plan. Can they obtain the

it costs them $217.40 to purchase the econom

economy diet plan with $1807?

A. No.

Q. Now. the Rutler household i« similarly an eight persnn honsehold, Your
information ic the eronomv Adje that household $211.830. Could
thev nurchase the economy diet plan for $1807

g A. No.
Q. Now. the Walker household is a smaller househnld Thev nre comnneed nf

t n1an wonld cost

;; three nersnne, Your information is that it would cost them 23102 30 to ohtain the
g’ economv diet plan. Can they obtain the economy diet plan for $88?
¥ No.
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Q. The Angilettia household is composed of eight persons. Your inforination is
that it costs them $211 to obtain the economy diet plan. Can they obtain the
economy diet plan for §1807

A. No.

Q. The James household your information is that it costs them $210.20 to ob-
tain the economy diet plan. Can they obtain the economy diet plan for $164?

A. No.

Q. The McArthur Household. your information is that it would cost them $94.60
to obtain the economy diet plan. Could they obtain the economy diet plan for $88?

A. No.

Q. So that for the coupon allotments these individuals are currently provided
they could not obtain the economy diet plan?

A. No, but these families are not typical of the average food ~tamp family.

* * L ] L ] * * *

Q. Does your survey purport to show what is the average age-sex composition
of 4 household?

Didn’t you just testify before we went to lunch that yYou agreed with Mrs.
Peterkin that there was no data in your agency to come up with the average age-
sex composition of the United States households?

A. Right. I did. But from the ‘65 survey—but based upon that sample, which
was not designed to obtaining an average age-sex composition, it was a food con-
sumption survey.

Q. Okay. But you still stand with the position that you don’t know what the
average-age sex composition of a U.S. family is?

A. No. .

Q. You do not know ? When you say no, do you mean—

A. Idonot.

Q. Now, when you had provided us with this information concerning the cost
of the economy diet plan, were you not telling us what the average U.S. cost of
the lg’conom.v diet plan was for a typical household? For a hypothetical house-
hold?

A. Yes, this is the U.S. average cost.

Q. Now, is it fair to say that in some regions of the United States the cost of
(tihe econo'x,ny diet plan would be higher than the U.S. average cost of the economy

iet plan?

A. There are regional differences in food prices.

Q. And, therefore, is it not so that the cost of the economy diet plan may be
higlier in some areas than the average U.8. cost of the economy diet plan?

A. It could be higher and it could be lower.

Q. So your answer really is there are some places where it is higher?

A. Yes, food prices differ.

Q. Yes, by the definition of average there are some higher and some lower.

Isn't the cost of food more expensive in the Northeast than it is in the United
States as a whole?

A. The Northeast and the West are higher than the South.

Q. Now, I would once again place before you Plaintiff’s Exhibit Number C,
which is the cost of food at home estimated for the economy diet plan, September
1971, U.S. average. Now, I would ask You to read the fignures contained under
Northeast and could you compare what the morthly total is for the U.8, average
cost as opposed to the Northeast monthly cost of the economy diet plan for
households?

A. First of all, these are only estimates. We do not provide——

Q. I don’t think I asked that question. I will get to that question. I will give
you plenty of opportunity to respond to that. Could you just read the figures, the
monthly figures of the U.8. average cost of the economy diet plan for a family of
four school children and what the average Northeast cost of the economy diet
plan is for the Northeast?

A. I would like to question you, sir. Now these were supplied to the McGovern
Committee. They were asked to supply an estimate. What we recommended and
what we suggested was for that, There are no data available and 8o this was our
best estimate using 80 percent of the low cost plan.

Q. 1 just want to clarify it. When you say McGovern Committee-—

A. The Senate committee.

Lam
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Q. The Senate Select Committee on Nutrition and Human Needs?

So yon provided that information to the Senate Select Committee on Nutri-
tion and Human Necds:

A. Yes, we provided’ what they should do but there are no data available in the
Northeast area.

Q. The information provided was provided by the Department of Agriculture
and your agency in particular?

A. Yes.

Q. And they would suggest what you believe to be the best information that
yon have what the cost of the economy diet plan would be in the Northeast for
those various fonr families: the family of two—20 to 85 vear olds: two—5§5 to 75
yei;r olds: family of three preschool children: the family of four school children.

A. Yes.

Q. What is the cost as of September of 1972 of the economy diet plan for the
U.S. average for the family of four school children? .

A. §124,

Mr. WERDIG. September of what?

Mr. PoLLACK. September of 1971 for the average U.S.

The WiTNEss, $109.70.

By Mr. PoLLACK:

Q. .;\n(l what is the average Northeast cost for that same household?

A. §124,

Q. And according to your pest data as von provided the Senate Select Com-
mittee on Nutrition and Human needs there is approximately a 18 percent dif-
ferential between the cost of the economy diet plan in the Northeast as opposed
to the cost of the economy diet plan, U.S, average?

A. There is a 13 percent difference in the low cost plan of which this 80 per-
cent was taken of the low cost plan. So it reflects a 18 percent difference in the
economy plan.

Q. lLet's get more specific. I think I nnderstand what yon are saying. I just
want to make sure that the record refiects it. I think we both agree with what
voun jnst said. You have data concerning the differential between the cost of the
low cost diet plan, U.S. average and Northeast——

A. Yes. we have regional cost estimates for the low cost liberal and moderate
plan. .

Q. Okay. And you agree, ag yon stated previously, that the definition of the
economy diet plan is 80 percent of the low cost plan?

A. Yes, but the 13 percent difference—

Q. Let me pursue this and then you will have plenty of opportunity to respond
in cross examination. Yon determined that the cost differential of the low co<t
food plan. U.S. average. as opposed to the Northeast average was 18 percent?

A. Yes. I believe that is correct.

Q. And since the economy diet plan is 80 percent of the low cost plan. there
wonld be approximately the same differential?

A. Right.
Q. So that according to Your information the differential in the cost of the

economy diet plan for the Northeast as opposed to the United State: average
is 18 percent?

A. Yes.
Q. Now. if one took each of these age-sex grouns. won'd the difference in the

Northeast cost of the economv diet plan be also spproximately 13 rercent 08
onposed to the U.S. cost of the economy diet plan for these variouns age-sex
groupa?

A, Yes.

Q. So that taking only from the fi;ures in Annendix C. thot s Exhibit C
excuse me. for a child under one year of age the monthly cost of the economy
dlet ntan. U.S. average, as of September 1971 was $12.60?

A. Yes.

Q. To determine the cost of the economy diet plan of the Northeast average
as of September 1971 for such child it would be $12.60 plus 13 percent approxi-
mately?

A. I do not believe that would hold on children under one year of age hecanse
the 13 percent difference between the Northeast and the U.8. average is not
price alone. It is on commodities and it is not a price differential in a child
under one who would be primarily drinking milk and eating tereal——
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Q. All right. Let's take some of these. I don’t want to stick to a child under
one year of age but you have agreed that the cost of the economy diet plan is 13
percent higher roughly in the Northeast than it is from the U.S. average.

Let’s take a woman aged 20 to 35 years. You show here that the cost of the
economy diet plan, U.S, average, is $27.40.

Yes.

Q. So that to get the average cost of it for a woman age 20 to 35 years in
the Northeast, you would add roughly 13 percent to $27.40?

Al Yes.

Q. For a man 20 to 35 years of age you show that the cost of the economy
diet pian, U8, average, as of September of 1971 is $31.80. To determine the cost
of a man age 30 to 35 years of age, Iiving in the Northeast as of September of
1971, it would be approximately $31.80 plus 13 percent?

A, Rightt,

Q. Fo'; a boy 9 to 12 years of age you showed here that the cost of the econ-
omy diet plan for September of 1971, US. average, is $27.20. To determine the
cost of the cconomy diet plan for such a boy in the Northeast it would be
827,20 pius 13 percent. Is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. For a girl 9 to 12 years of age you show that the U.S. average cost as of
September 1971 was $26.50. To determine the same cost for a girl in the North-
cast, in September of 1971 it would be $26.50 plus 13 percent. is that correct”

A Yeu,

* & * * 3

(). Have you gotten duta concerning the increase in the cost of food over the
pitst several months and the past year?

A Yes,

Q. Could you tell me based on the latest information thae you have what was
the increase in the cost of food over the past year?

A, Well. T have here from December 1970, this is the Consumer Price Index
for Food at Home, an increase from 1134 in December of 1970 to 118.2 in
Decembier of 1971, A 4.2 increase.

Q. Do you have any thing beyond December of 1971? Do you have anything
that would show from March of 1971 to March of 19727

A. This shows from March 1971 was 115.1. March of 1972 it was 120.8. This
i‘s the Consumer Price Index for Food at Home, which was a 4.8 percent
increase,

Q. §~” that the cost of food increased by 4.8 percent?
ox

. Tllil't is your latest data?
Yes.
. We have no data at this point for April?
. It should be outin a couple of days.
Are you familiar with the fact, and you may not be, but are you familiar

that the Secretary has recently increased the coupon allotments to provide
more for individualg?

A. Yes.

Q. What data did he use? Was it from March to Mareh ? His regulations were
bromulgated in April. Did he use the March figures?

A. I do not know.

Mr. Kocher would know.

. Q. He would know? Well, could you read into the record what the difference
in the cost of food was from February of 1971 to February of 19727
A.Idonothave’- e,
Q. Do you have any for January?
A. No.
Q. You have only tlhie December and March?
A. December and March.

Q. So that your data ghows that from December 1970 to December of 1971

thgre‘)vas a 4.2 percent price differentia} in the cost of food?
. Yes,

Q. And from March, 1971, to
cost?

A. Yes,

Q. Do you have the regional price differences from the Northeast?

A. The regional price difference?

76-300-—=72—pt, 3B ——11
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March, 1972 there was a 4.8 differential in the
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Q. From March to March?

A. No. Ido not,

Q. What ix the latest data you have?

AT have from March of 1972, using the U.S. average—no, I do not have this
regional-——

Q. Do you have anything on the regional price differences? What is the latest
wonth you have for that?

A. Thix ix the market basket concept. Tt shows the Northeast as 3.4 percent
greater than the U.S. average.

Q. No, I am asking the difference in the costs from one month to the following
year in the Northeast. I am not trying to find out anything else right now,

A. No, Tdon’t have that datz available,

Q. OKkay. It would approximate probably somewhere around what the U.S.
Jiup was?

AL Yes, it moves together.

~ & » e - 3 -

Q. What ix that market basket?

AL It providex 2n extimate of the difference in food prices that these people pur-
chased nation-wide with regional price difterences that oceur.

Q. But you don’t know what that food basket precisely is?

AL Yex, we have the quantities and »o forth that—-

Q Well, you indicated that the coxt increase in New York is even higher than
the cost increase for the Northeast as a whole. Ts that correct?

A Yes.

Q. Would that not mean then that the cost differential of the low cost plan
in New York isx mere than 13.1 percent higher than the lost cost plan, U.S.
average?

A. Yes.

Q. You wouldn't have the precise figures?

A, The numbers,

Q. But the figures for New York would obviously he considerably higher thau
they are for the Northeast as a whole?

A, Yes.

Q. It makes seuse because the Northeast ineludes Majne and New ITampshire
aud lesser food cost areas than New York City, T would take it?

A. Correct.

® *® * * * * -

Q. Wait a minute. To determine the cost of the low cost plan you have to have
a precise market hasket?

A. Right.

Q. In other words. if you have one apple and three prunes and two bananas,
that is a market basket. ’

A. Right.

Q. Now. for yYou to determine the cost of the low cost plan in the West you
have to use that same market basket otherwise it is a different pian?

A Ttis.

Q. T an asking you for one plan, the lost cost plan. Is the U.S. plan a single
market basket that covers the entire United States?

When you use that 1.8, market basket, is that one plan?

A. Then your Northeast would be 3.4 percent higher than the U.S. average.

Q. With the low cost plan?

A. Yes.
Q. All right. This is a substantial change in your testinony fromn previonsly.
* * * * * * *

By Mr. ORAVETZ !

Q. Is there a regional low cost food plan?

A Yes.

Q. How can there be a regional low cost food plan and not an economy food
plan since the economy food plan is 80 percent of the low cost food plan?

A. In estimating the costs of the economy food plan, it is estimated as 80
percent of the U.S. average low cost plan and that cost or amount of money will
provide this market basket of food.
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Q. 'The low cost food plan is worked ont Ly region aund that is what is actaally
available in thoxe regiony, is that correct ¥

AThere is o low cost food plan for the U.S. ax well as the four regions,

Q. Now, wouldu't it be a better Indication of what the comparative costs of
foads are (o apply the Dureau of Labor Statistics prices to the low cost food plan
broken down by regions ¥

AL No. this does not refleet drice differences entirely. 1t represents partly plee
diffcrences and the food habits of the people.

By Mr. Poriack:

Q. Mayhe ke didn't anderstand the question.

If you took the UK, low cost food plan——

AL Right.

Q. (Continuing.) and then you have the BLS price that oute—

AL Yes.

Q. (Continuing.) and you took that same food plan and asked the BLS to
price {hat out in the Northeast, wouldn’t that be the best reflection of the coxt
differential?

A.That is the 3.4 percent.

« n x » £ - ®

11, Questions and Auswers with Richard Lyug testifving to the fact that Mr.
Lyug who is respousible for the Food Stamp Program, bases his assumption that
it provides a nntritionally adeguate diet on no current information and on no
personal Knowledge. These excerpts further indicate that one month hefore the
Senate hearing, Mr, Lyng was aware that food prices had risen more than the
inerease in the value of the food stamp allotment. Mr. Lyug also testified that
raising or lowering the mmount of bonus food stamps or the price of the food
stinps was entirely a matter of administrative discretion within the Department
of Agriculture.

A am not familiar with the BL8' s procedur s,

* ¥ *® -~ = & *

Mr. Ly~Na. I was goiug to answer along those lines in saying Congress in the
lnw says that the allotment should be sufficient opportunity for a nutritionally
adequate diet.

By Mr. PoLLacK:

Q. For all representatives?

A Well. I think that is presumed.

® x L] & * & &

By Mr. Pora.ack:

Q. Are you awnre that the economy diet plan was established only for moder-
ateiy active people?

g A.iNo, you would have to get that kind of information from the Research
Service,

Q. Bui you are not aware of it?

A. No, I am not.

Q. Are you aware that the Agricultural Research Service and this is con-
tained in the affidavits in this case from the Department and not from us, that the
economy diet plan does not meet the recommended dietary allowances for various
nutrients including vitamins B.6, B.12, folic acid and magnesium,

A. I'read the affidavit. Idon't recall all of the details of it.

Q. Well, are you aware that the economy dict plan is inadequate in those four
nutrients?

A. No, I am not aware of that.

Q. Now, if a plan was given to you of some diet plan developed by the Depart-
ment in order for yon to consider it a reasonable plan for providing poor neople
with an opportunity to obtain a nutritionally adequate diet, what percentage of
people eating at that cost level would you say should be getting a nutritionnliy
adequate diet.

Mr. WEeRDIG. I object to the question.

Mr. Porrack. On what grounds?

Mr. Wern16. Asking the witness to hypothesize something.

Mr. Porrack. Well, on what basis do you determine whether a pian is a “ea-
sonable plan for providing recipients with a general opportunity to obtain a
nutritionally adequate diet?
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The Wirness. We have within the Department, we think, competent expertise
to evaluate this. The Congress, I think agrecd to this and we depend upon the
recommendittions of those people who have made studies and who we think
competent to make recommendations to us. We depend upon them for informa-
tion to assist us fn making this determination.

By Mr. PoLrLACK:

Q. Now, if they told you to report that plan that you were nhout to hmplement
for establishing coupon nllotments when studied provided less than 10 percent
of the people eating nt that cost level with a nutritionally ndequate diet would

you utilize such a plan?
Mr. WerviG, I objecet to the question. It is a charaeterization by counsel. If
you wiant to proffer the document that says that and let him review it, Mr.

Pollack, I would appreciate that.

Mr. Porrack. 1 would offer a document which is 10 pages long, titled on the
top, “Prepared by the Conswmner and Food Economics Research Division, Agri-
cultural Research Service, June 23, 1069, and I would ask that this e marked

for {dentifieation.
L ] a
Mr. PoLrAck. It probably is, 1f I recall, it is.

By Mr, Porrack :

Q. 1 would turn to page 8 and I would ask Assistnnt Sceretary Lyny to read
from the top, read that into the record nlense,

A. “Graphical pereentage of urban households (Spring 19653) using foods that
provided the recomiended dietary allowances (1983) as a function of the aver-
< money value of food per person for 12 income classes (see attached).
Survey data on the proportion of households that had diets that met the R.D.A.'s
varfous cost levels have not been tabulated. Iercentages of houscholds with
#ood aud with fair diets at the cost levels of ench of the food plans have been
est imated roughly from the attnched graph as follows:

Waell there are three columns,
Q. 1t ix only essentinl for our purposes that you read into the record the line

o L] * ] L]

“for the econowy diet plan.”

A. The three columns are food plan, good diets, good and fair diets and then
it shows under food plan economy with good diets, less than 10 percent and good
and fair diets, less than 50 percent,

Q, Could you read the two footnotes on the hattom of that graph?

A, One footnote relntes to the column “Good diets” and says, “those that
provide RDA (1963) for seven nutrients” and then the other footuote relates
to #ood and fair diets and it says “those that provide two thirds RDA (1963),

for seven nutrients.”

Q. Now, Mr. Secretary, this indicates according to the Department’s own food
consuniption survey that less than 10 percent of the persons eating at the cost
level of the economy diet plan obtain the recommended dietary allowances.

Would you say that such a plan I8 & reasonable basis for providing people

with a zenuine opportunity for nutritionally adequate diet?
Mr. Wegnic. I would object to the question aganin. Your interpretation. Mr.

Pollack. of this tabulation doesn’t support the question that you are asking.
By Mr. PorrACK ¢
Q. 1 would ask does the Secretary disagree with my interpretation of this

wraph
AL Well, I eertainly Qo.
& ] % *
The Wrrxess. I would say the allotment of food stamp coupons in the amount
of cconomy diet does provide people with an opportunity for a nutritionally ade-

quate Jdiet today.

By Mr. PoLLACK :

Q. Do you have any data that would reflect that more than 10 percent of the
per-on spending at the cost level of the economy diet plan obtain the full recom-
mended dietary allowances?

Mr. WERDIG. As of what point in time?

Mr. Porrack. Now, at this point.
The Wirxess, No. To my knowledge, we have conducted no recent |Urveys

Perhaps the Agricultural Research Prozram has.

3 L3 *
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BBy Mr. Porrack:

Q. To Your knowledge was the last study undertaken by the Department un.
dertaken in 1965?

A Ldon't know,

Q. Would you have any data or know of any evidenee that would support an
assertion that more than 10 percent of the people now spending at the cost level
of the economy diet pinn obtain the full reconunended dietary allowances?

A, Lam coutident many do. I don't have any data to support that,

Q. Well, the only data you know of is the data in front of you, is that correct?

A Well, T uecept the reports that I have had from the Agricultural Research
Serviee’s repeated statements that it is adequate to provide a nutritionally ude.
quate diet. I have had them much more recent than this.

Q. Have you aceepted their information that says that less than 10 percent of
the people spending at the cost level of the ceonlomy diet plan obtain the full
recommended dietary allowanees?

Ao 1 have no Information to indicate hat would be true data. This would
dizcard totally the fact that we now have over 8.000 nutrition aides working In
the field aud have bad for o perlod of thme trying to educate people on how hest
to use this and 1 am absolutely convineed, having talked to many of those gutri-
tlon aides, that people are oltaining 2 nutritiomily adequate diet,

Q. But you know of no different pereentaye other than what the Agricultural
Research Service tells you?

A No.

Q. Do you have any evidence that shows at this point more than 50 percent of
the people are even getthug two thirds of the reconumended dietary allowances?

A. There may bhe some question as to over 50 percent of the people in the nation
are getting a untritionally adequate diet regardless of fncome,

Q. Weil, I would ask you specificnlly, do you have any evigence that would
ow shaw more than 50 percent of the people eating at the vost level of the
ceonomy diet plune—-

A. No. I dont.

Q. So that the lnst datn You are aware of shows that less than 50 percent of
the people spending at the cost level of the economy diet obtain even two thirds of
the recommended dietary allowanee?

A. Again I could repent it the snme way I answered your other questions.

Q. 'That s your Intest datn?

i\. I have no data in front of me but that is not to indicate that it may not
exist,

Q. Okay. but this is the only data yau are aware of?

es,

Q. Now. assuning this data is valid, and we don't know whether the Agrieul-
tural Resenrch Service has come up with new studics which would show that
wore than 10 percent are obtaining the full RDA and more than 50 percent are
obtaining two thirds of the RDA, if the Information conalned in this graph
is presently still accurate, what makes you still assume that the economy diet
plan provides poor people with a genuine opportunity to obtain a nutritionally
adequate diet ?

Mr. Weento. T believe the Sceretary has answered that question before and I
will object to it.

Mr. Porrack. So it is based Purely on the word of the Agrieultural I*eseareh
Service? Aud you would not be aware of any other information that let you bé-
Heve that the economy diet plan does in faet provide nutritional adequaey?

The WirNess, Correct.

By Mr, PoLLACK:

Q. So that anything in vour affidavit coneerning the true nutritional adequacy
of the economy diet plan is not based on your own personal knowledge”

A, That is correct.

A. Yes, we would have to assume this hased on the census figures. I suppose
that we are now receiving well over 50 percent of those who would be under the
poverty level. Assuming agnin that people under the poverty level remain fairly
statle,

Q. 8¢ although it is not the Department’s poliey necessarily to receive people
for a long period of time, the Department does receive a substantial number of
people for several years in some instances?

A. It is possible,

T6-300—72—pt, 3B—12
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Q. I would ask you to turn to page 10 in the docuraent I have just placed before
ow.
v And I would ask you to read from the top, you will note that you have to turn
the table a little bit, but could you read from the top what is stated there?

A. “Table Number 5, Economy Family Food Plan Revised 1064, Lesigned
for Temporary Use When Funds Are Limited.”

Q. That is all that is necessary. Now, does that imply to you that the economy
diet plan was designed for temporary use and uot for long-term use?

Mr. Werbie. I would object to that question, I don’t see the zelevancy be-
tween this dietary document and this law suit. .

Mr. Porrack. Do you believe this page purports to describe how one deter-
mines food content of the economy diet plan?

Mr. Werpic. You mean the current?

Mr. Porrack. Correct.

The WITNESS. I can’t determine that from this document, 2°r. Pollack, this
says “As of 1964,” I think.

By Mr. PoLLACK:

Q. It says “Revised 1964.”

A. Yes, but we are talking about *72. I think you should ask the Agricultural
Research people.

Q. Are you aware of any changes in tlie economy diet ,..an?

A. I really haven’t studied in detail the economy diet plan.

Q. If you would turn to page 1 you will note that this was approved for re-
printing October of 1969.

A. Yes, again by the Agricultural Research Service. These are the people—it
still doesn’t indicate anything more than it was reprinted then and verifies the
fact it was accurate in 1964. It may be accurate today. I don’t know.

Q. You are not aware of it?

A. I am not aware of it. I have not seen this before. I don’'t know anything
about what is nutritionally adequate diet.

Q. Are you aware of the content of the economy diet plan?

A. Not at all.

Q. Are you aware of the cost level of the economy diet plan?

A. Yes.

Q. %o you can testify to what the economy diet plan costs?

A. Yes

Q. But you cannot testify to the content of the economy diet plan?
No.

Q. Therefore any statements in your affidavit concerning content of the
economy diet plan is not from you personally?

SeA' It is based upon information provided me by the Agricultural Research
rvice.

Q. But information you do not have as to personal knowledge?

A. Idid not do any research myself on the economy diet.

Q. And you are not aware of any?

A. That is correct.

Q. I think what we will do is we will save these exhibits for some of the later
witnesses.

Now I will provide to you another exhibit, which has one piece of typewriting
that I did on the top, it says “Appendix A.” because it was used for Appendix A.
of the compluint. It was labeled “Cost of Food at Home Estimated for the Econ-
omy Food Plan, September 1071, U.S. Average.” Mr. Werdig, you will find that as
our Attachment A to the complaint.

Now, [ would ask that this first be marked for identification.

(The ahove referred to document was marked for identification as Plaintiff's
Exhibit C.)

By Mr. PoLLACK:

Q. X would ask the Assistant Secretary to describe for the record how one de-
termines the cost of the economy diet plan?

A. I have said before that I don't do this.

Q. No, you said before that you were not aware or you did not have informa-
tion concerning the content of the economy diet plan but you were aware of
the cost level of the economy diet plan.

A. But I am not aware of how it is determined.

* * * * * * *

A, They tell me it will provide the opportunity for an adequate diet for a
family of four.
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Q. It would provide them with the economy diet plan.

AIr. Secretary, I place before you a pencil and sheet of paper and request you to
make the following computation. I ask you to determine what is the cost of the
economy diet plan for a family of four consisting of a mother 40 years of age,
three teenage boys say 19, 17 and 15——

Mr. Weznvie. If you made the computation, you can put it in the record.

The WiTNESS. Yes, I will accept your figures on that.

Mr. PoLLACE. Let's make that computation.

By Mr. PoLLACK :

Q. Would you agree that for a mother age 40 years, the cost of the economy
diet plan on a monthly basis as of September 6, 1971 is $26.30?

Would you agree with that?

A. On this chart, yes. It would indicate that, yes.

Q. Now for a boy 19 years of age as of September of 1971, would you agree that
the m;nthly cost of the economy diet plan is $36.50?

A. Yes.

Q. Would you agree that the cost of the economy diet plan for a boy 17 years of
age, monthly as of September of 1971, is also $36.50?

A. Yes.

Q. Would you also agree that for a boy 15 sears of age the cost of the econ-
om‘{ diet plan as of September of 1971 is $36.80?

Yes,

Q. I would ask you tc check whether my arithmetic is correct. The total I
reach is $136.70.

Mr. Werpic. I agree.

The Wrr~ESs. I think that is about right.

By JIr. PoLLack. Would you say a family consisting of a mother, age 40
years; & boy 19, a boy 17, and a boy 15 can obtain the economy diet plan witk
a $105 coupon allotment ?

A. I would think they would have a good deal more dificulty than if they were
children ranging from 1 to 3 but I take this under consideration, Mr. Pollack,
the fact that those three boss all are of an age when they can be attending
secondary schools and would be eligible for free school lunches and supplementing
this plan we think they would be able to have a nutritionally adequate diet.

+3. In other words, you set your coupon allotments taking into consideration
supplemental benefits provided by the Department of Agriculture?

A. In this type of instance I thought about this yes.

* * % * * * *

Q. Have you been given any data or are Fou aware of any data about the cost
of 2 {04 increase over the past year?

A. Yes.

Q. What has been the increase in the cost vn a nationwide average in the
past year?

A. Well, as of this date I don't have it.

Q. For the latest data that you have.

A. The latest that I have I think it was somewhere in the area of four percent.

Q. Four percent for roughly what time periods?

A. Forover a year’s period ; comparing one year——

Q. From March to March or April to April or February to Febraary.

A. Yes, March to March.

Q. Do you know the precise amount?

A. No, I don’t have that figure. Of course it varies. During the last couple of
months it has been geing down and we anticipate it will continue to go down
over the next couple of months.

Q. Could the increase have been over four percent?

A. Possibly. We predicted this year it would be ahout four percent.

Q. No, but the last data you have, could that last data for the one-year period
of time, could that increase have been over four percent?

A. It seems to me it was less but I suppose it could have been, yes.

Q. Where dn you get your data for that?

A. This comes fronm the Bureau of Labor Statistics.

Q. That does not come from Agricultural Research Service?

% | ] % % L] * %
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Q. Why did you increase the cost of the program to them?

A. O, it was a very simple matter. Our purpose is to see that the total food
stamp allotment is sufficient to buy a nutritionally adequate diet and to do it at
a cost of no more than 30 percent to the family. Those families at the lowest
income level were at no cost, that is free stamps. Those at the upper income levels
were, s the allotment went up, their bonus remained relatively constant. There-
fore, their cost went up.

Q. Wiy did You do that? Why did you increase the prices for persons at the
so-called upper end of the eligibility ladder?

A. Well. the alternative would have been to increase thie bonus and we chose
to do this instead of increasing the bonus. -

Q. Why did you make that decision?

A. Because it was well within the authorities under the law and we felt it was
in the best interest of the program.

Q. When vou say the best interest of the program, what do you mean?

A. We felt we were effectuating the purposes of the Act and that it gave us an
opportunity to maintain the program for those who need it most with that kind
of a scale.

Q. I don’t understand. How do you effectuute the purpose of the program by
increasing the price of the stamps? . .

A. Well. Mr. Pollack, we increased the allotment and the importance of in-
creasing the allotment was greatest for those people who are very poor. Those
people at the upper income levels, well, no one has lost ansthing by what we have
done. They are all receiving the same amount of bonus in terms of food. What
we have tried to do was to effectuate thiis increase and give benefits to those who
need it the most in a responsible wiiy. This is what we have done. I don’t know
how I can explain it more clearly.

Q. Why couldn’t you have increased the bonus for people at the upper end of
the eligibility as well as the people at the bottcm?

A. We could theoretically reduce the bonus or increase the bonns at any time.
We don't do it becanse we think that people at that income level should be paying
that mtch for food stamps based upon the law.

This is an adniinistrative decision.

(3]
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MATERIAL RELATING TO HEAD START FEEDING

MATERIAL SUPPLIED BY OrHER THAN WITNESSES

May 10, 1971,
Mr. HowaARD P, Dav1s,
Deputy Administrator, Food and Nutrition Service, U.S. Depar.ment of Agri-
culture, Washington, D.C.

DEesr Mg. Davis: Through the combined efforts of USDA/FNS and DHEW/
OCD, a number of Head Start programs have received funds for food under
the Special Food Service Program for children. The informal arrangement we
currently have on this program accommodates those Head Start programs with
which USDA made commitments prior to November 1, 1969. This, of course, ex-
cludes a substantial number of children from the SFSP, mainly because of
insufficient funds in the SFSP appropriation.

Since the SFSP, an amendment to the National School Lunch Act of 1946,
expires on June 30, 1971, and is under consideration as permanent legislation,
we would like to discuss the possibility of changing our arrangement to include
all children in Full Year Head Start. [ submit the following propmsal for your
consideration as a working agreement between USDA and DHEW/0OCD.

1. All organizations sponsoring Full Year Head Start programns and serving
food will apply to USDA for reimbursement of food costs.

Full Year Head Start programs include those which operate a part day
program (less than 6 hours) and a full day program (more than 6 hours).
There are %48 such programs covering 50 States (includiug Indian programs),
Puerto Rico, Virgin Islands and the Pacific Trust Territories serving a total
of 290.000 needy children for an average of 240 days peryear.

2. The public or private organizations sponsoring Head Start programs will
request for their programs the maximum rates for each meal as follows:

Breakfast —— $0.15
Lunch -- .30
Two snacks -— .20

Total __ .63

3. We agree to provide funds for labor and non-food assistance connccted
with the nutrition component and to reduce the line item for food to the extent
possible in the budget requests from local programs to OCD.

4. The Office of Child Development ill provide copies of the USDA applira.
tion to potential grantees. A copy of the local application for USDA funds will be
submitted with the local funding requested to OCD.

Such an agreement would provide Head Start programs with the potential
of $45,210,000 in food money. The funds now granted by OCD to local programs
for food purchases would be released to upgrade food related services in our
nutrition component and, quite possibly, give us the opportunity to serve more
children.

The funding level for Head Start has been about the same over the last four
years. Due to rising costs, some local programs have probably comprised quality
in all program components, including the nutrition program, in order to serve
the same number of children. The prospect of a high quality nutrition com-
ponent with the cooperation of our two agencies is anticipated with great
pleasure,

Sincerely,
Enward ZIGLER,
Dircctor, Office of Child Development.
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Mar 21, 1971.

Mr. EpwaRrp ZIGLER,

Director, Office of Child Development, Office of the Secrctary, Department of
Health, Education, and Welfare, Washington, D.C.

DEAR MR. ZIGLER: This will reply to your letter of May 10, 1971, to Howard
P. Davis, Deputy Administrator, concerning the current arrangement between
onr offices on the funding of food service in Head Start programs and their
eligibility for participation in the Special Food Service Program for Children.

We agree that a review of these atters is in order and that it is timely in
view of the expiration of the Special ¥Food Service Program on June 30, 1971
The Secretary has requested Congress for an extension of the Special Food
Service Program for one year, throngh the 1972 fiscal year.

Onr 1972 fiscal year budget reqnest for the Special Food Service Program is
$20,775.000. (Approximately $S million of these funds has been used in summer
recreational programs.) Our request, of conrse, did not contemplate any addi-
tional respousibility to reimburse meals served in Head Start brograms. Yonr
information on the number of these programs and the participation therein is
interesting and will be of value in the discussion of prospective revisions in the
budgets. We will have a representative of the Food and Nutrition Service Budget
and Planning Division at the meeting of May 28 and. possibly, one from the
Department’s Office of Budget and Finance. We understand that Preston Lee
of your Bndget Office will also be available.

We hope that it will be possible to worl: out a mutnally saticfactory agreement
on funding food service in Head Start programs and on their eligibility for
participation in the Special Food Service Program for Children.

Sincerely,
IsABeELLE M. KELLEY,
Actine administrator,

DEPARTMENT OF {IEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE,
OFFICE OF THE SECRUTARY.
Washington, D.C.
Mr. HerBerT D. ROREX, .
Director. Child Nutrition Division, Food and Nutrition Service, U.S. Dcpartment
of Agriculture, Washington, D.C.

DEAR MRr. Rorex: We greatly appreciated the opportnnity to meet with you
on May 28, toward achieving a mnutually satisfactory agrcement for funding of
food costs in Head Start programs. I wonld like to confirm onr understanding of
the essential points discussed which set the conrse for futnre action and, accord-
ingly, I am enclosing our account of the meeting.

1 nuderstand that yon are proceeding to inclnde ¥ead Start in your ¥Y 1973
plans and we would expect to provide you with assistance as you desire.

Sincerely, .
Riczirp E. OrTOYN,
Associate Dircctor, Projcct Head Start.
Enclosure.

MEeETING WIiTR USDA/OCD-—May 28, 1971

Attendanece

USDA/FXS/CND.~ Herbert D. Rivex, Divector Child Nutrition Dirision, ITugh
Gallazher. Deputy Director; George Hall, Acting Director, Community Division,

OCD/Hcad Start—Richard E. Orton, Associate Director for Head Start and
Child Scrvices; James Robinson, Deputy Associate Director; Preston Lee,
Budeet and Accounting Officer ; Mary B. Ryan, Program Management Officer.

The ahove persons convened to discnss the funding of food costs in Head Start
programs by USDA. This meeting was a result of correspondence bhetween Dr.
Edward Zigler, Director, OCD and Heward P. Davis, Deputy Administrator,
ontlining a proposed working agerement for cousideration by USDA.

It was established that Head Start children are cligible for participation in
the Special Food Services Program, but that only a small portion of the cntire
lI)Iead Start population has received USDA services due to limitations of USDA

nidgets.

Head Start legislation speeifies a comprehensive child development. program
whicli includes a nutrition component. No funds are appropriated to Head Start

B 1 in b Wb
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specifically for food. It is an administrative decision to insist that every Head
Start child be provided with no less than a hot Iunch and a snack each class day.
Where Head Start programs are unable to procure a hot lunch through re-
sources such as USDA, Head Start then must agree to utilize its own resources
to assure the implementation of a minimal feeding program.

Mr. Rorex stated that he felt it is the responsibility of USDA to administer

all feeding programs, especially those pertaining to needy children and he en-
dorsed the proposal to feed Head Start children, stating that he believed it was
too late to incorporate these children into the fiseal 1972 program, but that we
should proceed to arrange for the administration and funding by USDA for FY
1973. .
OCD (Preston Lee) agreed to provide USDA with more exact figures on food
costs for Head Start children based on existing expenditures. However, it is un-
realistic to base needs on existing expenditures since some programs do not
have funds even for snacks and hot lunches. Therefore, the figures outlined in
Dr, Zigler's May 10, 1971 letter are more reasonable and accurate to estimate
requirements as opposed to existing expenditures.

Since USDA is now in final negotiation for 1972 appropriations for FNS/CNO
monies, the USDA team suggested it might be too late to negotiate upward for
inclusion of Head Start. We agreed, however, to meet with OCD and USDA rep-
resentatives in OMB and make the attempt to include all Head Start children
in USDA programs this next fiscal year.

ParTICIPATION OF HEAD START PROGRAM IN THE SPECIAL FFoobD SERVICE PROGRAM
FOR CHILDREN
Juxe 8, 1971,
Regional Dircctors:

As you Know, we have encountered difficnlties over the past two years on the
questions of eligibility of Head Start Programs, sponsored by Community Action
Programs, for participation in the Special Food Service Program for Children.

Many of yon have made suggestions for the clarification or modification of
FRS(CN) Instruction 776-2, Rev. 1, which deals with this subject.

In view of the foregoing. we have embarked on a major effort with the Office
of Child Development, HEW, and other interested agencies, to work out a more
satisfactory arrangement.

Accordingly, on May 28, 1971, Department representatives met with the
Head Start Program Director of the Office of Child Development, and
nmembers of his staff to review the current arrangement covering the participa-
tion of Head Start Program the Special Food Service Program for Children.

The purpose of this meeting was to take a new look at the question of the
eligibility of Head Start Programs and to discuss the possibility of eliminating
the joint finding of the food assistance phase of their operations. As you know,
the principal qnestion involved is time of the additional funds that nmst be pro-
vided to us hefore we could assunie any added responsibility for reimbursing
meals served to Ilead Start participants. This constituted the major portion of
our discussions.

We will have additional meetings with the Head Start people and also with
the Office of Management and Budget and will keep yYon apprised of develop-
ments. For the present, the current arrangements should be maintained without
change. Also, please do not Jdiscuss anticipated changes with the state people
or Ilead Start officials of the programs you administer.

In the meantime. however, we need to know the scope of the present partici-
pation of Head Start Programs in the Special Food Service Program and to nave
some idea of the related change upon SFSP funds.

Will you, therefore, please request the State Ageneies to give you a report on
the following for the month of March 1971: (1) the number of Head Start Pro-
grams they had under Special Food Service Program agreements, (2) the aver-
age daily partieipation in all such Prozriums. and (3) the average daily cost
per child (total program reimbursement for Marelh divided by the mumber of
participating c¢hildren).

Please give us the same information for the ¥ead Start Programs your office
has under Special Food Serviec Program agreements and snubmit all reports to
this office as soon as possible—but no later than July 10, 1971,

Hernert D, Rorex,
Director, Child Nutrition Division.
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JuNE 18, 1971.
Hon. LEe METCALF,
U.S. Senate.

Dear SexaTor METCALF: This is in further reference to our letter of May 27, ‘
1971, in which we informed you we were meeting with the Director of the Head |
Start Programs to confirm current arrangements for funding for the food serv- {
ice component of suck programs.

We did meet with Director Orton and his staff on May 23, 1971. At that meet-
ing, it was confirmed that the appropriation requests for the Head Start Program,
and grants made by the Office of Child Development, HEW, do include funds to
finance a basic nutrition component for a Head Start Program. Appropriation
requests for the Special Food Service Program authorized under Section 13 of
the National School Lunch Act, therefore, takes into account the funding under
Head Start appropriations for a basic nutrition component.

It is under this basic funding structure that, under the Special Food Service
Program for Children, this Department provides a supplement to the basic nutri-
tion component of Head Start Programs.

Sincerely,
IsaBELLE M. KELLEY,
Assistant Deputy Administrator.

JuLy 28, 1971,
Mr. HerperT D. Rorex.
Director, Child Nutrition Dirision. Food and XNutrition Service, U.S. Dcpart-
ment of Agriculture, Washington, D.C.

DEear Mg. Rorex : Enclosed are the figures we agreed to provide you for com-
puting the cost of feeding all full year Head Start children. We do not have a
system which gives us discerete data on any specific cost in our programs, <o the
data is based on examining the costs in one quarter of our programs from which
we derived averages,

For instance. rather than compute food costs on enrollment figures. we h:ive
compnted on the basis of average daily attendance. Full year programs run
from 180 days up to 240 days a year. but we average 215 days per child. We have
attempted to refine the data to provide a reasonable and accurate estimate of
our FY 1972 needs and FY 1971 food expenditures for daily consumption.

If you have questions or require information, please call. Mr. Richard Orton
is presently on leave but will return on August 2, when he will contact you con-
cerning further negotiations.

Sincerely,
JaAMES L. RoBixsox.
Acting Associate Director, Project Head Start.
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Aveust 27, 1971.
FRED OLMBTEAD,
Acting Director,
Budget Division.
(Attention George Hall.)

This is to advise you of a meeting at HEW on May 28 with Office of Child
Development officials which covered USDA funding for food served in Head
Start Projects. This meeting was called as a result of a letter from OCD to Mr.
Hekman.

Under the Special Food Service Program for Children, USDA. currently is
providing cash assistance to Head Start Projects in accordance with FNS 776-2.
Approximately 138,200 children at an average daily cost of 34 cents per child
and an average yearly cost of $962,000 (based on 215 days) are being assisted.

The Office of Child Development reports that it is currently meeting the food
costs for approximately 263,000 children at an average daily cost of 52 cents per
child per day (3$29.2 million annualiy). Under their program projections for
fiscal year 1972 they anticipate an approximate 10 percent increase which would
increase the number of children to an esiimated 290,000 and the budget require-
ment to approximately $32 million.

OCD requests that USDA fund their requisite food costs. They maintain that
Head Start is not budgeted for food costs and that the decision to use their
funds for food costs was an administrative decision necessitated by the fact that
USDA was unable to assist their programs. OCD further states that monies
freed as a resuit of USDA assuming their food costs will be used to increase
the number of children participating in their program and to complement the
food component in nonfood areas related to nutrition.

The above summary is provided so that you have the necessary background
information on this subject for future discussions with OMB.

HueH R. GALLAGHER.
Acting Director, Child Nutrition Divigion.

DEPARTMENT oF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE,
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY,
July 10, 1972.
MEMORANDUM .

To : Assistant Regional Directors.

From : James L. Robinson,
Director/Head Start.

Subject: Head Start Eligibility for Food Programs under Legislation Adminis-
. tered by the U.S. Department of Agriculture.

This memorandum applies to Special Food Service Programs for Children of the
U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Services, Child Nutrition
Division for which grantees and delegate agencies operating Head Start programs
are eligible.

BACKGROUND

All Head Start programs became eligible for reimbursement for the costs of
obtaining agricuitural commodities and other foods under Public Law 90-302,
which amended the National School Lunch Act. Effective May 8, 1968, the
amendment established the Special Food Service Program for Children. (SFSPC)
The purpose was to extend the School Lunch Act to (1) public and private non-
profit service institutions providing day-care for children from areas where poor
economic condittons exist and from areas where there is a high concentration of
working mothers’, and to include institutions providing day care for handieapped
children and (2) extend the School Lunch or School Breakfast program into
speefal summer programs providing food service.

The amount of money authorized for appropriation under Section 13 (SFSPC)
for the first year of operation was under $10,000,000 and was meant to cover
children in items (1) and (2) above. Head Start children in Full Year programs
consume $32,000,000 worth of food a year. With a limited supply of funds,
only some of the Head Start programs were approved for reimbursement.

On November 12, 1969, USDA Food and Nutrition Services issued FNS(SI,)
Instruction 776-2 to School Lunch Divisions, WNS Regional Offices and State
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agencies which administer the Special Food Service Programs for Children. This
instruction explained eligibility of service institutions and also listed those in-
eligible to participate in the SFSPC.

Head Start appears in the instruction on Page 3, Section D, under Ineligible
Facilitics.

1. Head Start projects, pre-school classes in demonstration schools; nursery
8chools, ete.; operated as an integral part of a school system.

2. Estcblished Head Start Projects, Parent-Child Centers, etc. whose food
service has been paid for from Head Start funds. (However, any commitment
made prior to November 1, 1969, to a local Head Start program on the basis of
which childrer have been recruited into that program may be honored).

The declaration of Head Start as ineligible was an administrative decision
made jointly between DHEW/OCD and USDA/FNS for two primary reasons:

(1) USDA authorizations are less than Head Start requirements.

(2) Head Start authorizations for operations include money for feeding pro-
grams. (See EOA, ete.).

CLARIFICATIONS OF USDPA NOVEMBER 12, 1969 GUIDELINES

With Head Start now both eligible and ineligible, local programs, States, and
USDA regions required furthier clarification which was issued by the Director
of the Child Nutrition Division as follows:

1. Specifically, if the Head Start projects were established and operating be-
fore November 1, 1969, hut have not received assistance from the Special Food
Service Program for Children, they are not eligible for it now. The exception to
this is if the State of Agencies made a connnitnient to assist sucli projects hefore
Yovember 1, 1969. then suchi conmitments may be lionored and the projects
assisted witll Special Food Service Programs for Children funds.

2, If the 1lead Start projects were established and operating prior to Novem-
ber 1, 1969 and received assistance from SFSPC funds, they cun reniain in the
program and continue to draw support from SFSIP’C funds at the same ratio as
before. For example, if a Head Start received half of its food money from HEW
aud half from SFSPC, the same ratio will obtain. If the project inercuses food
service to include additional meals, the ratio of support should be maintained
at the sam~ level, i.e. half and half.

3. If Heud Start projects are newly established after November 1, 1969, they
are eligible for Special Food Service Program for Children assistance on the same
basis as any other eligible applicant. It is not necessary to have a portion of the
food costs paid nut of HEW funds.

PRESENT STATUS OF SFSPC

Since the enactment of author Congressman Vanik's legislation as a three year
pilot program, SKFSFC hias been made into a continuing program with increased
appropriations. In FY 72, Congress made $184 million available ($135 million
of that is available from Section 32 funds, foods for donation). Of tlie $19 million
specifically alloted to S}Y'SPC, $32 million was bndgeted for sunimer feeding pro-
grams and $17 million for year ronnd feeding programs.

Each year USDA has a carry over balance made possible by restricting tlie
appropriafe distribution of these funds and in June 1972 thie staff of the Select
Committee on Nutrition and Human Needs, United States Senate published a
report, Half a Loef: Food Assistance in Fiscal year 1972, the basis for hearings
on June 21 and 22 chaired by Senator Edward Kennedy. Congressman Vanik's
pertinent testimony follows:

“, . . Finally, and I would like to make a special point of this, a great deal of
Head Start money is being spent on food thus reducing the amount available
for this preschool enrichment program. The 30 million dollars or so of Head
Start money being spent on food could, and should, be picked up by Section 13.

This is where the program belongs.

As I stated at the beginning of my testimony, Section 13, was specifically
designed to use the “expertness” and resources of the Departinent of Agriculture
to help make programs like Head Start a success.

Yet against the direct will of the Congress, on November 12, 1969, the De-
partment of Agriculture issued a ruling declaring that Head Start projects not
funded before November 1, 1969 are ineligible to participate in Section 13.
Thus Head Start, which has had a relatively stable budget in the last two
years, has suffered by being unable to take advantage of the Section 13 program—
and the need for funding of Section 13 has been understated.
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I repeat this was not the intention of the Congress when this hill was passed.
I would like to place in the record the House Report of some of the debate on
the floor of the House which indicates that the Head Start children were to be
aided by the Section 13 program.

It appears then from what we have been able to develop in our own com-
munities, that it is a deliberate administrative effort to sabotage the legislative
purpose of Section 13. .

It is a very unsympathetic administration of the law, and I think under these
conditions it behooves Congress to probably mandate the administration of
these programs and take away some of the discretionary power to erode and
destroy these programs by administrative action.

It certainly misuses the mandate of Congress and the legislative process, “

Testifying for USDA were Richard Lyng, Assistant Secretary for Consumer
and Marketing Services and Herbert D. Rorex, Director, Child Nutrition Divi-
sion. Clearly established was the illegality of the administrative agrecment of
November 1969. USDA was asked to submit additional testimony which will in-
clude the amount of money needed to feed Ilead Start children and was as-
sured of a continuing Committee prod until USDA administers food programs
in concert with legislative intent.

FYX ’73 appropriations for Section 13 have passed the House and expeetations
for Senate action take place around July 23 after the conventions. The Senate
is planning to beef up Section 13 of $100 million. (Congressman Perkins Child
Nutrition bill recomnmends open ended appropriations for Section 13).

RECOMMENDED ACTION FOR OCD

1ead Start programs should be advised of their eligibility to participate in
Section 13 and provided with applications and directions on where to apply
for reimbursement of food costs.

USDA reimburses a ‘tual expenditures for food but does not, like Head Start,
grant funds for a feeu:ng program prior to the start of the program. The sched-
ule of USDA daily marimum reimbursement rates follows.

Breakfast -— e 80.15
Tuneh ool ——— .30
Two snackS._ ... e cmcm—m: cemmme e eem——ee—e—— - —————— 120
Dinner ... — .30

Total -— 9

180.10 cach.

Maximum rates are paid only if they are equal to the expenditures. If ex-
penditures for any meals or snacks are less, that then is the rate of
reimbursement.

USDA has five regions located in New York, Chicago, Atlanta, Dallas, and
San Francisco. The regions in turn delegate supervision of feeding programs
to states. The legislation for SFSPC specified that “Funds paid to a State . ..
shall be disbursed by the State educational agency to service institutions selected
on a nondiscriminatory hasis by the State educational agency.” The term state,
in this paragraph includes Guam, Puerto Rico, the Virgin Islands, American
Samoa, and the Trust Territories of the Pacific Islands. However, there are
10 States who do not disburse funds through the State Educational agency.
Funds to programs in the following states are disbursed through the USDA
regional office: Arkansas, Georgia, Idaho, Town. Missouri, Montana, Nebraska,
Nevada, North Dakota, sOhio, Oregon, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, Vir-
ginia, Washington, Wisconsin.

You will be supplied in the near future with a Directory of Cooperating
Agencies and application forms. Programs that run into difficulties should advise
Head Start Program Management Division. A packet of reporting forms will be
included with the applications so that uniform reporting is assured. You may
wish to instruct your grantees to send a copy to the appropriate person in your
region. Questions on the above and the reporting forms should be addressed to:
Mary Ryan, Program Management Oflicer, Office of Child Development, Box 1182,
‘Washington, DC. 20013 Tel : (202) 755-7480.
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FOOD COSTS—HEAD START, FULL YEAR PROGRAMS, AS OF JULY 1971

(4} @ (&) (€Y (€ (6)
Fiscal A Ave&gg Child Avera Total food
| yea scal year verage ildren verage Total foo
Fisca 1)5')7 '. l 1&72,: dau‘ly food cost reimbursed USDA food pe
Region and State children children attendance per day by USDA cost per day (
f—Boston:
Connecticut._ 3,037 3,362 ..
ame....... 4,887 968
Massachusetts 4,852 5,339
New Hampshire__ 523
Rhode Island _ . 665 11
Vermont . 926 1,034 y .
Total ____.. T 10,890 11,999 9,431 0.47 2,816 0.32

I1—New York:

New Jersey. ... 5,420 5988 ...

tlew York 12,365 13,636 .

Puerto Rico. 6,15 7,4:8
540 59

Virginia_ .. .. .
West Virgimia___

IV—~Atlanta;
Alabama, _
Flonda. _,
Georgia__
Kentucky. .
Mississipm
North Carolina. -
South Carolina. .
Tennessee. ... .. e

..... Cemenemen e ama s 75,241 82,968 70, 200 .80 3,105 i} 42,

See footnotes at end of table,




FOOD COSTS—HEAD START, FULL YEAR PROGRAMS, AS OF JULY 1971

Q) @ (O] 1O ) (6) (0) ® (€4

Averube USDA .
Fiscal year fFiscal year Average 0C| Children Average  Total food cost reimbursed _0CD

197, 1972, daily food cost reimbursed USDA food per day niesls expenditures
10n and State children children attendance per day by USDA cost per day (3X4) (5%6) (7-8)

3,037

3,362 ..
4,887 .
4

5, 420

984

25,040 27,636 22,536 .55 466 .29 12, 395 135 12,260

18, 307 201N 15, 854 .62 2,700 .37 9,830 99 8,831

7,419
10,911
5,21
0, 590
6,675

3,905
- 6,75 - N .
cireeceuns eenme, oo acnne 75, 241 82,968 70, 200 .80 3,105 ) 42,120 936 0,157

re footnotes at ead of table,
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FOOD COSTS--HEAD START, FULL YEAR PROGRAMS, AS OF JULY 1971—Continued

P Ty e

()] 2 (&) ) * (6)
Average
fFiscal year Fiscalyear Average O‘CD Childien Average Total tood
’ 1972 daily food cost reimbursed USDA food ger
Region and State children childgen altendance ger day by USDA cost per day (&
Vv Chicago:
Wois_. ... . oo Lol 10, 646 1,755 ...
4,209 4,641 .
6.213 6,922 .
2.760 3,058 .
9,714 10,715 ..
| 2,838 3,13 ...
36, 440 40, 226 31,557 .50
Vi~Dallas:
Arkansas...... ae .42
touisiana. ... 1,891
New Mexico, 3,038
6,643
13,648
31,707
2,413
. 2,293
8,776
1,68
15,111 16,714 13,137 .57 492 .49 7.(4
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FOOD COSTS-- HEAD START, FULL YEAR PROGRAMS, AS OF JULY 1971—Continued

State

) @)
Fiscal year Viscalyear
. 19723

childron children

attendance

“)

Aven(ce
0oco
food cost

ger day

)

Children
reimbursed
by USDA

)

Average
USDA food
cost per day

m

Tota; food cost
perda
(3X4

10 )

UsSDA
reimbursed D
meals  expenditures
(5X6) (-9
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! Increase in fiscal year 1972 children due to projection for conversion of summer program funds to 2 0CD food ex
full year programs. Cost per day._......
i Number of days. . _.
Annual cost, fiscal y#)
‘ Costperday.... ...

Number of days....

H Annual cost, fiscal ye|
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3 4,363
- 1,611
708
1,388
1,144
510
9,784
5,176
19,057
2,575
370
______ 585
ntones.. 180
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 27,943
2,017
,078
, 21
4,059 .
9,415 10,387 8,153 -6 184 .32 5.626 39 5, 587
................................................................................ O LT T U, 140, 406 4,421 135,985
n fiscal year 1972 children due to projection for ¢ of program funds to 30CD food expendrures: Fiscat year 1971 (based on average™daily attendance)
rams. Cost per day__._ 135,985
Number of days. X215
Annual cost, fiscal year 1971_ 29,236,775
Costper day. 148,173
Number of days X215
AN} COSt, 562} YOAT 1972, ..o eee e oo e e e 31,857,195
J
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ErtciBiLity oF HEAD STarT PROGRAM ror DONATED CoMMODITIES

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE,
Focd AND NUTRITIOX SERVICE, MIDWEST REGIOXN,
Chicago, L., January 11, 1972.
To : Potential Special Food Service Program Sponsors.

We are attempting to contact all agencies who have expressed an interest in
the Special Food Service Program for Children.

Although fund limitations continue to prevent us from providing cash reim-
bursement to new <pecial Food Service Programs, we are now able to approve
programs for participation o2 2 commodity-only basis. In other words, programs
which are determined to be eligible to Participate in the S¥'SP can receive avail-
able USDA donated commodities (Sections 6. 32, and 416), but will not receive
any cash reimbursement for meals served to children.

If you wish to be considered for participation on this basis, please submit the
SFSP Applications, and Policy Statements to this office. Xour program’s eligi-
bility will be determined as soon as possible after receipt of these materials.

If your program is determined to be eligible for the SFSP, you will qualify for
the full range of donated foods available. Those of you who may already be
receiving commodities as a ‘“‘child care institution” can alse benefit by being
approved for the SFSP on a commodity-only basis, since participation in this
program will allow yon a wider choice of commodities than you are now eligible
to receive.

We wish to stress that approval of a SFSP application at this time does not
me:an yon will begin receiving cash reimbursement for nieals served to children.
Approval of an application will allow you to become eligible for the complete
range of commodities.

You may not participate in both the Special Food Service Program and Special
Mitlk Program at the same time.

Horry woop Cuitp DEVELOPMENT CENTER.
Franklin, Ohio.
U.S.D.A., Foop AND NUTRITION SERVICE,
Chicayo, Iil.

Dear Mr H. J. Netsox. In August of 1969 we applied, for the first time, to
receive U.S.D.A. subsidy for the year September 1969 to June 1970. After a fow
months of no reply as to the status of onr application, we inquired ourselves and
were told that there was no such.application and that appropriations were
already distribnted for the year, but we could make a new application which
would be placed in the files for the npcoming year, September 1970 to Jnne 1971.

We Jid not make our second application until April of 1971. Again, not having
received any kind of notification as to the status of our application. we called
the U.S.D.A. Chicago offices in June 1971 and talked to Mr. Krosen. We identified
onr program to Mr. Krosen. Mr. Krosen confirmed our eligibility and told us
that we wonld most lilcly receive funds, but that Washington had mot yet
appropriated U.S.D.A.'s funds for the year 1971/72. Mr. Krosen assured us that
we would be notified as soon as the appropriations came from Washington to
U.S.D.A. Chicago offices.

Again, we didn’t receive any notification whatsoever. We cailed Chicago in
Angust of this year, 1971, and talkéd to Diane Lane from Speecial Food Services.
Diane Lane informed us that appropriations have already been distributed.
U.S.D.A. does not have any niore money to subsidize new programs.

IWhat is even more surprising is that Diane Lane could not locate our 1971
application but did have on file our August 1969 applieation. (If you will recali,
‘this application was mislocated according to the Chicago office in September
of 1969).

Diane Lane was (nite impatient and short during our conversation. Fnrther-
more, Mrs. Lane continued, Hollyiood Child Development Center is not eligible
for U.S.D.A. because our program has been in existence since 1967. Mrs. Lane
went on to say that only programs instituted and running after 1969 were eligi-
ble for U.S.D.A fnnding. .

Reminding Diane Lane of Mr. Krosen’s conversation, I tried to explain that
we were led to believe funding was at least possible if not probable. We had not
made any other alternatives to obtain a food Sonrce because of Mr. Krosen’s
conversation and because other Child Development programs in our 5 county
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Ohio Regional area (Miami, Darke, Greene, Warren, and Preble Counties), in
particnlar, Piqua Child Development Center in Miami County are presently
receiving U.S.D.A. subsidy. (Incidently, Piqua Child Development Center has
been in existence for the same number of years as Hollywood Child Develop-
ment Center), so that rulc of only Child Development programs being eligible
beginning after 1969 is incoherent with Piqua funding.

Repeating herself, Diane Lane ended the telephone conversation, reminding
us that we adsolutely cannot receive U.S.D.A. funds, on the grounds that we
were grossly misinformed and that legally we are eligible and do deserve at
least some consideration. I begged to at least file another application. She re-
minded me again that we can apply but it will be of no use. We are not eligible.

I ask you, Mr. Nelson, to review our case. It is difficult for me to be objective
anymore. I feel as though our program has been slighted because we are.a
small rural community in Southern Ohlo; because we have no strong political
backing. 1 feel as though 1. personally, have been misinformed, tricked., and
finally. ignored. I am trying to be honest and straight abont this with the
people of this community, but it is impossidle for me to do this when I get such
nonsenseable, contradictory. and coufusing answers to simple questions.

Are we working vogether or against ore another?

.. Cassanors Moxks.
Director, Hollywcood Child Derclopment Center.

U.S. DEPARTMEXT OF AGRICULTURE,
Foop AND NUTRITION SERVICE.
Washington, D.C., Decembder 7, 1971.
Mrs. Cassaxpra MoXKS,
Director, Hollyicood Child Dcrclopment Center,
Franklin, Ohkio. -

DeaAR Mgs. MoxKks: Thank you for your correspondence of October 20 in
which you cite the problems you have had in applying for the Special Food
Service Program for Children.

Our Midwest Regional Oflice in Chicago informs us that your 1969 appli~lion
for participation in the year-round progrim was not in fact rejected. It was
their understanding that your Development Center had appointed a2 new Board
of Directors; and, that because of this change in your management, they
requestéd that a new application be submitted. Since this was not done, your
program was not considered for funds. .

Further, our Regional Office still does not have a current application on file.
They said that yonr 1971 application was for our summer feeding program, for
which you were approved and received funds. .

They informed us that your operation is funded in part by the Head Start
Program. As a rule, established Head Start Projects whose food service has
been paid for from Hea. Start finds are not eligible to participate in the
Special Food Service Program. If you believe that you are still eligible, please
subniit a new application *v the Midwest Regional Office.

Unfortunately, due to the statntory limitation of our apportionment formula,
many States, such as Ohio, have all of their available funds already committed
to existing programs. Until that time in which additional funds become avzil-
able. we have been forced to ask our Regional Offices to defer action on any new
applications. While we recognize that many worthy programs will be denied
needed support, funds cannot be taken from one operation to meet the needs
of another. They will let you know when and if funds become available.

We hope this will be useful to you.

Sincerely,
Huoir R. GALLAGHER,
Acting Director, Child Nutrition Division.

SupProrRTING COUNCIL 0N PREVENTIVE EFFORT,
Wright-Patterson AFB, Ohio, Dccember 27, 1971.
Mrs. Cass'E Mo~nFs,
Dircctor, K olbncood Head Start,
Franklin, Ohio.

DeAR Cassik: Enclosed is a eopy of a letter received from USDA in reply to
the submission of your application. You will note that Mr. Kroesen is rather




Q

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

L

791

confused when he talks about the Hollywood Community Center having sub-
mitted a proposal for USDA reimbursement. I have n feeling that Mr. Kroesen
is thinking in terms of the Hollywood Head Start and Hollywood Community
Center programs being one and the same.

On page 2 of the Kroesen letter, please note that there are presently no funds
available to new programs making application. In my previous conversation with
Diane Lane, I was informed that new applications are kept on file; and, if addi-
g::ml money becomes available, new programs will be funded based upon their

I feel that we are in a bind trying to prove that the first Hollywood Head
Start application went in before the freeze in September 1969. We have no trans-
mittal letter indicating that this application ever went in.

There was mention in the letter you wrote to Mr. Nelson which was enclosed
with the last application, a reference to your conversation with Mr. Kroesen and
Miss Lane. Please be advised that programs are not authorized to make direct
calls to offices in Chicago, Washington. or Columbus. 1f programs wish to receive
information or obtain clarification, they should call the SCOPE office and the
calls will be made from there.

Happy New Year!

Sincerely,
Maxy Lovuise Sixs,
Head Start Coordinator.

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULIURE,
FooD AND NUTRITION SERVICE. MIDWEST REGION,
Chicago, Ill, December 20, 1971.
Mr. ArBeRr G. ROSENBERG,

Ezrccutive Director, Supporting Council on Preventive Effort,
Wright-Patterson AFB, Ohio

Deax Mz RosexBerG : This is in regarnd to the Special Food Service Program
application materials v-hich yon recently submitted to this office on behalf of the
Hollywood Child Development Center.

As has been expinined to Mrs. Monks by this office, and by our ‘ashington
office, the only previous application which we have on file for this program was
received June 24, 1969. That particular application has been held in suspense
since September 2, 1969, pending submission of a new application necessitated by
the formation of a new board of directors for the center.

The application which Mrs. Monks mentions as having been submitted to this
office in April of 1971 is apparently one and the same as that submitted by the
Hollywood Community Center, Inc. for a summer program at the Hollywood
Community Center. The application is dated- April 19, 1971. and is signed by
Richord K. Monks, with whom this office had subsequent contacts regarding
approval of the summer program. In a letter dated May 20, 1971. Mr. Monks
stated that the summer program would not involve participation of Head Start
children. The application did not in any way apply to the full-year Head Start
for which Mrs. Monks is seeking funds.

The summer program in question was approved by this office to participate in
the Special Food Service Program, effective July 1-August 13, 1971. On July 27,
Mr. Monks called our office to say that his program would not be claiming
reimbursement after all. due to the Iateness of funding by this office. The Agree-
ment hetween the Department and the Hollywood Community Council was,
therefore, cancelled effective July 1, 1971, in order to prevent any confusion over
the Council’s failure to submit claims for reimbursement.

Due to the complete obligation of available funds for this fiscal year, which
ends June 30, 1972, this office cannot approve new Special Food Service Programs
at this time. We must. therefore. return the application materials whieh you
submitted. In the event that additional funds hecome available, you may bhe
contacted and additional information requested in order to determine whether
or not your program is ecligible. You would be required to furnish copies of
past budgets, since funding of Head Start programs depends upon whether or
not food service has heen paid for from Head Start mohies peviously.

We hope that this information will be helpful to you. Please do not hesitate
to contact this office should you have any further questions.

Sincerely,
o . GERALD C. KROESEN,
Administrative Officer, Child Nutrition Program.
T6-390—~72—~-pt. 3B—e13
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MEeMORANDUM

DEPARTMENT oF HEALTH, J3DUCATION, AND WELFARE,
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY,
April 10, 1972.
To: Assistant Regional Directors, Office of Child Development.

From: Richard E. Orton, Assistant Director for Head Start and Child Services.
Subject: Availability of U.S. Department of Agricuiture foods for donation
{commodities).

- Reference: February 15, 1972, Memorandum to USDA Regional Administrators
from Juan del Castillo, Director, Food Distribution Division, Subject: Child
service institutions.

There has been a great deal of confusion surrounding the variety and kinds
of commodities for which Head Start is eligible and a great dzal of variance
between States. We have often questioned the difference in the variety and kinds
of produets received. The February 15 memo referenced above is meant to clear
up ‘the confusion and to insure that, in the future, disparities should not exist
except Yor logistical reasons.

USDA purehases food for donation under three legislative aathoritics:

1. Agrienltural Aet of 1935—Section 32,

2. Agricultural Act of 1940—Section 416.

3. National School Lunch Aet, as Amended—Section 6.

g Kpods acquired under Section 6 of the National Schoot Lunch Act, as amended,

ﬁgﬁc(cﬂ to schools participating in the National School Luneh Program

<“and institutions participating in the Special Food Service Program for Children
(SFSPC). The majority of our Head Start programs are not eligible for par-
ticipation in SFSPC. A memo further cxplaining the status of Head Start par-
ticipation in SFSPC will be issued separatels. This memomndum deals with the
Touit dowations from * ections 32 and 416 available to Head Start programs.

The USDA thronga the February 15 memo. clearly estabilishes their policy
to make available to child service institutions all Section 32 and 416 food which
are allocated for nse by schools. (This elinunates arbitrary interpretations of
child service progruns as institutions eligible only for foods supplied to institu-
tions.) Al Head Start programs come uunder the definition of child service insti-
tutions. USDA Regional administrators have been asked to “enconrage state
officials to distribute to service institutions the same seetions 32 and 416 foods
which are made available to schools operating non-profit lunch programns.”
Dounated foods ehange fromn time to time due to availability and marketing con-

. ditious consequently affecting the amounts and kinds of commoditics Head Start

{ . and other recipients can get. On the list attached to this memo are all the com-

-~ madities available during FY 1972. Those marked with an “X" are foorls for

which Head Start is eligible. )

USDA is aware of the distribution problems for small, isolated child
servive institutions and is working towards a resolution. GSDA offieinls will be
working direetly with a selected group of IIead Start programs experieneing
problemis in an effort to resolve the diffieulties. At the request of USDA, each
OUD region has Leen contacted for a list of three programs experiencing prob-
lems. We have provided them with the list as well as the names mud telephone

~~ ._nnmbers of the OCD Assistant Regional Directors and suggested coordination
with yon before contaeting a Head Start program.

Please advise Head Start programs in your regions of the above USDA policies
and procedures. One working solution to the distribution problem sugzested by
USDA is for Head Start to work out arrangements with the local school systems
for pick up of commadities and distribution to Head Start. Some schools have
reported problems with Head Start, e.g. Head Start wiil order from the school
Imt will not pick up the delivery, creating a storage problem for the school.
Where this has happened, the school is loath to continue cooperation. Above
all. TTead Start must be enconraged to snpplement food money with commodities
rather than parchase all of the food with searee Hend Start funds.

) Any aunestions yon have concerning USDA food programs shonld be directed
H to OCD Program Management Division, Mary Ryan, 755-7481.
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CoxtopiTY LISTING—HEAD START ELIGIBILITY

Attached list from USDA represents all the foods purchased in FY 1972 for

donation. The coding for the Outlets for each commodity is as follows:

S—Schools

I—Institutions

W—Welfare

C—Summer Camps

K—Supplemental Food Program

X—Service Institutions
Those items coded with an “X” are the foods which are available for Head
Start programs generally. In addition, those Head Starts operated by public
schools as part of the public school system are also eligible for these items under
Section 6.

CHILD SERVICE INSTITUTIONS

FEBRUARY 135, 1072,
Al Regional Administrators:

Food and Nutrition Service administers two types of service institution pro-
grams for children. Those participating in either of the two programs must fit
the same definition for child service institutions. A “Service Institution” as de-
fined in Instruction 706-1, Rev. 1 is a public or private nonprofit program pro-
viding nonresidentinl day care or other chiid care for children from areas in
which poor economic conditions exist or areas in which there are high concen-
trations of working mothers.

1. Special Food Scrvice Program for Children—SFSPC (V:nik), adminis-
tered and operated under authority of the National School Lunch Aet, provides
Sections 6, 32 and 416 foods through normal school outlets. Thus a wide variety
of meats, vegetables aud fruits are available. Child service institutions partic-
ipating in this program are also eligible to receive reimbursement based on the
muber of meals served as well as nonfood assistance.

2. “Service Institutions™ not participating in the SFSPC (non-Vanik) are
eligible by law to receive the full range of Sections 416 and 32 foods. In actuat
practice, these institutions have been receiving only some of those foods nor-
mally distributed to institutions. These foods do not include any fruit, vegetable
or high quality protein foods in the form of meat products.

In order to meet the program objectives and because these “Child Service In-
stitutions” (non-Vanik) are not elizible for reimbursement and nonfood assist-
ance, our policy is to make available all Sections 416 and 32 foods to “Child
Service Institutions” (non-Vanik). Because of a docket restriction, evaporated
milk may not, at present, be made available.

You are encouraged to maximize the effectivencss of Instruetion 706-1 by
encouraging State officials to distribute to these service institutions the same
Sections 32 and 416 foods which are made available to schools operating non-
protit lunch progrums, All future allocation wires will indicate the availability
of these foods for child service institutions. "

We realize logistical problems will be encountered in getting the full range
of foods to small isolated *child servive institutions.” We would appreciate re-
ceiving your suggestions on the resolution of these problems.

Juan per, Castinro,
Director, Food Distribution Division.

COMMODITY STATUS REPORT FOR FISCAL YEAR 1972

[Thousands of pounds]

. Delvery period

Commodity Outletst Avaifable Ordered  Shipped? ends
Seclign 4m:d SWCX 1.102 Aug. 31,1971
03NS, drY.ceceenrcocannas seneeaneron. . ug. 31,1971,
Bulgur...... - SWIGX 2.683 2,682 2,319 Apr. 28.
Butter, buk. SIX 1,926 1,620 1,423 Mar 31.
Butter, print.... _.cooceeeeen .. SWICX 154, N2 126,450 113,919 June 26.
Butter, canned 92/3 pounds).. - Wi 2,318 1,310 1,305 Mar. 30.
Butter, canned (18/2 pounds).. w 11,664 8,172 10,19 Do.
Butter, canned (6/6 pounds)... . SX 554 202 201 Do.
Cheese, bulk, natural cheddar. SX 2,784 2,744 2,282 ASAP.
Cheese, process (15/2 pounds). .- SWX 13,776 13,709 12,383 Mar. 27,
See footnotes st end of table.
- . )
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COMMODITY STATUS REPORT FOR FISCAL YEAR 1972—Continued
[Thousands of pounds]

Delivery period

Commodity Outlets? Available Ordered  Shipped? ends

Sectlon 416—Continued

Peanut butter (6 No. 10),
Seanut butter (2 pounds).

Milk,d [
Milk. infant formula. .
Milk. evaporated (48:125) .
Mllh .evaporated (96 G).. .

’ aY) 9,183 Sept. 14, 1971.
25,888 25413 fov. 12,1971,
O ar 18.

Pears, canned
Pears, fresh.

Peas, dry sph SIwX , 936 3,936 3,308 1, 28.

Peas, canned .. . 9, 542 9,542 9,508 Sept 28, 1971.
Pork, frozen gro . SX 78,078 78,078 60,983 Mar. 25.

Pork, canned W/N3 . SWKX 49,207 42,455 29,350 May 15,
Potatoes, instant. . o 21,880 25,440 2,888 Apr.”S.
Potatoes.mstant( % pou SX 13,680 13.080 3,938 Apr. L.
Potatoes, frozen french fries SX 23.040 23.040 16,850 Mar. 15.
Pouitry, canned boned, SWKX 41,163 May 15.

Prunes. dnied.. pi 28.
306 Qct.17,1971.
Mar. 17.
2 Apr. 28,

July 26.
42,289 42,289 41,818 Sept. 28, 1971.

Tup.
'l'omatoes, 24 No. 303 cans
Tomato Juice. .

Sec Turkeys,frozen 45,150 45,150 45,127 Dec. 17,1971,
tion 6:

S 23,246 24,246 24,122 Cct 6,1971.

S 9 0 17,100 Hov, 2,1971,
Bezf, frozen grov~+. S 41,773 41,773 40,145 Feb. 12.
Beef patties frozen. . S 3,150 3,150 2,625 Do.
Chickens, nozencut-up .. S 50, 616 50, 616 50,450 Feb 18,

.. S s? () 16,374 Nov, 23, 1971,

.S 21, 0. 21,024 20,969 thov, 10, 1971,

S 3 (? 13,389 Oct. 25, 1971.

S 20,71 2,7. 20,661 Oct, 21,1971,

S (¢ (? . 6.702 Dec 10, 1971.
Sweelpotat S 15, 04 15, 04 14,451 Apr. 25.
Tomatoes. . S 30, 500 30, 500 29,811 Jan.18.

! S—Schools. |- Institulions, W—Welfare, C~~Summer camps, and K—Supplemental food program, X—Sevice 1n-
stitutions not partictpating under sec. 13 of the NSt Act,

2 MPCO Commodity Status Repost

3 Completed.

* Delwery penod dates unclear.
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PRoGRAMS FOR CHILDREN,
ALBUQUERQUE, N. MEx., May 17, 1972.
Miss NANCY AMIDEL,
Senate Nutrition Committee,
Senate Anner,
Washington, D.C.

Dear Miss AniIoer: T am writing to you to express my concern about problems
programs in the Office of Child D.velopment (Headstart) are having concerning
U.S.D.A. food commodities. I hope you will bring them to the attention of the
Nutrition Committee.

I have been a grantee nutritionist and a Headstart nutrition consultant since
1965 and have never seen a Headstart food service which received anything more
than a limited variety of U.S.D.A. donated foods (mostly grain products, butter
and dry milk).

It has recently come to my attention that since February, 1967, Headstart Pro-
grams by law should have been receiving the full range of Section 416 and Sec-
tion 32 foods. I have been trying to find out why this has not been so, and 1
would like to tell you some of my experiences with the U.S.D.A. bureaucracy and
my findings.

I personally contacted U.S.D.A. commodity distributors from the local level
on up to the Deputy Regional Administrators in my region (Dallas).

FINDINGS

1. The local distributors had never heard of the regulations making these foods
available to Headstarts and did not do so.

2. The State Directors had only recently (March 1972) received word that “in
the future” some other commodities would be available to Non-Vanick Child
Service Iustitutions (U.S.D.A. designation for Headstart). Some states had-not
received this word yet.

3. The Regional Administrators intended to make these foods available in the
future if they are allocated by the Secretary of U.S.D.A. for Child Service Insti-
tutions. .

4. All levels of administration claimed their hands were tied because they acted
ouly on the direction of someone “higher up”.

Under continued pressure and questioning. the Regional Commodity Adminis-
trators and Deputy Regional Administrators agreed to re-coutact each state in
their region, go over the regulatious, and see if some 1972 commodities could not
be re-allocated to Non-Vanick Child Service Institutions. In the future, the Re-
gional Office has promised to watch-dog the delivery of foods to the Child Service
Institutions. I hope this is true.

My questions :

1. Why have not these programs received thie commodities which they were
eligible for throngh the intent of Congress?

2. What can be done to assure that all eligible programs receive the foods
intended for them?

3. Who allocates certain U.S.D.A. foods at the national level?

4. Who checks to see that the law is correctly implemented?

5. I have prodded this region into action. What is being done in other regions?

6. How cun the U.S.D.A. continue to purchase and distribute commodity foods
to all these programs without adequate funding support?

7. If a new bill is being written. could it include monies for a corps of qualified
nutritionists. dietitians, or food services trainers to be available to all recipient
inst'i’tutions to see that they are trained in the appropriate use of these commodi-
ties?

I am very interested in an adequate, well administered law which shows a
concern for people and good nutrition—not just price support for producers.

Thank you for your time and interest.

Sincerely,
Mrs. NANCY WEAVER,
Nutrition Consultant, Office of Child Development.
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TroY CHILD DEVELOPMENT CENTER,
Troy, Ohio, May 4, 1972.

Hon. GEORGE MCGOVERN,

Chairman, Committee on Hunger and Nutrition,
Senate Office Building,

Washington, D.C.

DEAR SENATOR MCGOVERN : The Ohio Head Start Directors have asked me to
write you concerning the inequities in the distribution of USDA foods to Head
Start Agencies.

It seems that a few agencies which applied several vears ago are receiving
special foods and reimbursements while others have been denied this because
of ineligibility. '

We would like the Senate Committee on Hunger and Nutrition to give this
matter their attention. Since nutrition has been designated as a nationnl priority.
and in light of the fact that poor nutrition seems to be one of the causes of
mental deficiency, it would seem: that Head Start programs would be among
the first to receive this type of assistance.

Most Iead Start budgets are heing ent while services are being increased. and
food supplements would make it possible for many agencies to provide better
services, The only good food available to many children in the Iead Start pro-
grams is what is served in the Centers.

Can you lielp?

Sincerely,
GLADYS S, WILLIAMS,
Ohio Chairman of Head Start Directors.
EcoxoMIC OPPORTUNITY COMMITTEE.
Langing, Mich., June 15, 1972.
Mary RYAN,

0.C.D. Program Management Division.
Department of Health, Education, and Welfare,
Washington, D.C.

DEearR Mgs. Ryan: This is a belated. but deeply concerned. response to Mr.
Richard E. Orton’s meniorandum dated April 10. 1972, regarding “Availability
of U.S.D.A. Foods for Donations,” received in this office May 17, 1972.

The memo is a very important and necescary first step in defining and clarify-
ing Head Start’s elizibility for U.S.D.A. benefits.

We have never reccived the further information promised in respect to the
status of program eligibility in regard to S.F.P.C. (Orton’s memo paragraph
three). This would be greatly appreciated.

It has always been the contention of this program that all Head Start pro-
grams regardless of their status as delegates or grantees, should receive the
maximum reimbursement of .55 per day per child allowable under S.F.S.P. Sect.
2252 (p), Sect. 255.7 (f), Sect. 225.7 (2). Sect. 225.9, and Sect. 225,10 ().

I am sure you will agree that the point is not whether or not this or that partic-
ular program falls within this or that particular guideline before or after this
or that particular date. The point is that the National Scliool Lunch Program
is intended to feed low-income children. Ninety percent of all Head Start Pro-
grams are low-income.

The fact that they are not, can only be changed by direct negotiation between
0.C.D. and U.S.D.A. at a national level.

This is the position that we have consistently held in our now voluminous cor-
respondence with Senator Hart, Senator McGovern, Senator Griffin, U.S.D.A.
Secretary Lyng, U.S.D.A. Acting Administrator Freeman, U.S.DA Assistant
Deputy Isabella Kelly, the Food Research and Action Center. 0.C.D. Director
Zigler, Chief Regional Support Division Clennie Murphy, Assistant Regional Di-
rector Philip Jarmack, and Maurice Gagnon, Supervisor of Community Repre-
sentative, 0.C.D.

Hopefully, Mr. Orton’s assignment of food problems to vour office will result
in positive and constructive action toward the successful resolution of this prob-
1em. Thank you for your concern and support.

R:z.,.cotfully, N
Cuarres T, HASKELL,
Head Start Project Director.
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LETTER FROM SOUTH CAROLINA COUNCIL ON HUMAN RELATIONS
July 20, 1972.

Hon. ErNesT F. HOLLINGS,
U.S. Scnate,
Washington, D.C.

DEear SENator HorLiNGs: Enclosed is a copy of an application for USDA
assistance for a day care feeding program in Pinerville, 8.C., which I have per-
sonally helped the director complete. As you can see from the forms, all of these
preschool children in this center are from poverty level families and the program
has been operating on a shoestring.

Despite this dire need, however, I was told by an offieial in the Atlanta office
of USDA when i called this past Tuesday that USDA has not funded any new
year-round day care feeding programs since last November because they have
not received additional appropriations to allow them to do so.

As I am sure you kuow, this is only a half-truth. As the excerpt from the
June 29, 1972, issue of CNI Weekly Report indicates. USDA has only asked for
the same inadequate amount of money as was used last year, and has in fact
discouraged applications for day care feeding programs so as to avoid spending
$135,000,000 in import duty funds authorized for the program. The exchange
between Senator Kennedy and Richard E. Lyng of USDA points this out very
Iucidly.

The Pineville day care center is only one of many in South Carolina‘that is
suffering because of USDA's lack of concern for hungry children. I know of
several others, including one in Hartsville, about which I wrote to you this past
winter, that have been getting no help and 2 lot of bureaueratic run-around in
their efforts to feed hungry kids.

I urge you to personally look into this matter and do whatever you can to see
to it that day care centers serving the poor in South Carolina get the funds which
they do desperately need.

To allow these children to go hungry and improperly fed when the money is
available is vothing short of eriminal.

Please call on me if I can be of further assistgnce to you cin this jmportant
matter.

Sincerely,

Pavur, W. MATTHIAS,
Ezecutive Director.

(797)
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SELECTED NEWSPAPER ARTICLES ON UNUSED FOOD ASSISTANCE
FUNDS

[From the CNI Weekly Report}
USDA Accusep oF DAY CARE YREEZE

Four witnesses, including Rep. Charles A. Vanik (D-Ohio), chief sponsor of
special food service legislation, told the Senate Nutrition Committee last week
that USDA had discouraged applications for day care feeding programs so ns
to avoid spending $135 million in import duty funds authorized for the
program.

In reply, USDA Assistant Secretary Richard E. Lyng said the Department
lacked authority to spend beyond a $15.9 million budget recommended by the
Senate Appropriations Committee. He blamed local funding difficulties on an
allocation formula that gives too much money to some states and too little to
others.

HEATED EXCHANGE

Lyng's explanation touched off a heated exchange between himself and Senator
Edward M. Kennedy (D-Mass.), who had earlier heard witnesses from his
own state describe inadequacies in Head Start feeding programs due to lack of
special food service funds.

“You say there's a weakness in the statutory formula,” Kennedy said: “Well,
what kind of formula do you want.”

Iy ng =aid he was not prepared to say.

“Give us a formula so that we can work it out.”

Kennedy went on. “You say you were screwed up because of a formula, then
you don’t say how we should fix the formula.”

Lyng said USDA prefers to have the experience of another summer program
before revising special food service allocations.

“Why #”’ Kennedy asked. “Why couldn’t we get an interim formula now?”

NEW FORMULA

Lyng said a new formula would mean an expansion in total funding, and
‘‘we just don't think we know the answers.”

“Well, what about the $135 million (authorized for child feeding under
P 92-32) " Kennedy said. .

Lyng replied that USDA did no! believe it had authority to spend beyond
what the Senate Appropriations Con *nittee had recommended.

“Is it your fear of the Appropria. ‘ons Committee that keeps you from spending
the money ?” Kennedy asked.

No. Lyng reéplied, USDA thought ‘t } ad established ‘‘communication” with
Congress through thie Approprigtions Jeiminittee report.

“Here we pass legislation, then you ~ v you don't have authority to spend
the money,” Kennedy said.

“We disagree with your staff’s interpreta.’on of that legislation.” Lyng
replied.

“Well, our legislative counsel is better t 1an your l¢islative counsel,” Kennedy
countered. amid laughter.

“I find it imbossible to explain these f gures to the ) eople of Maxsachusetts,
and to the American peoplo—those wh, are closer to ‘he programs than we

re,” Kennedy went on. “I find myself ¢/ mpletely unable 10 respond ; the system
nas reached a grinding halt . . . We fir.d the Administr: tion willing to extend
ite interpretation when it wants to, v hen it serves thei," purposes. Iiere, you
have an overwhelming mandate froww Congress. You're haring a tremendous
responsibility. We feel frustrated ; we won’t let up, We'll make it as uncomfort-
able as possible for you. What you are doing is asking a lot «¢ hungry children
to be patient while we figure out a forn ula for feed*~ , them.”
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SURPLUSES CREATED

The previous day, Congressman Vanik, chief author of the legislation, testifled
that the special food service program would require a $100 million budget if all
needs were to be met, yet USDA has only asked for the same amount of mouey
as was used last year.

“Money was saved this Fear by not feeding hungry kids,” Vanik said. “The
‘surpluses’ in 30 states that USDA talks about were created under the orders
of USDA to discourage and deny applications. The unanimous complaint from
the jield is that states are forced to deny worthy programs and children. The
real need is not being met.”

Vanik contended that USDA would rather spend import duty funds to enable
lumbermen to replenish federal timberlands—as has heen proposed in legisiation
introduced in the House—than to feed hungry children.

“The feeding of hungry kids should be made a mandatory obligation of
USDA,” Vanik declared.

BREAKFASTS DENIED

The Comnittee also heard charges from day eare administrators in New York
City and Massachusetts that USDA was depriving thousands of children of
meals in those localities by denying applications,

Elizabeth A. Vernon, asxistant commissioner of New York City's new Agency
for Child Development, elnimed that more than 15,000 children in the eity’s
day care progrmns would go without breakfast in the eoming school year
because of the alleged “freeze.” All children now enrolled receive breakfast and
lunch, she said. but any child enrolled in the future will not. .

“How do you tell a three-year-old child who leaves his home hungry tha
the President has decided that he was born too late to have breakfast,” Ms.

Vernon asked.
[FProm the Raleigh News and Observer, June 21, 19721

Faus: EcoNoMizing Witn Fooh MONEY

U.S. Agriculture Secretary Earl Butz has sowme explaining to do about food
program funds his ageney is turning in to the Treasury. ‘I'he total not spent is
$068S million. aecording to the Senate Select Committee on Nutrition and Human
Needs. An assistant to Butz said $389 mildon was in unused food stamp money.
Presumably the other $209 million was in undistributed food conunodities,

Some may view this as economy in government, but it is a self-defeating kind
and not even Butz was inclined to boast about it. His department did not an-
nounce the fruits of the economizing. The fund reversion was acknowledged
only upon close questioning of Agriculture oflicinls by the Senate panel.

The trouble with this sort of “savings” is that there are about 26 million poor
people in this country and only 13 willion of them are getting help from federal
fond programs. We don’t save anything by not assisting more people. We waste
human resources.

The money going back to the Treasury could have been productively spent in
broadening the stamp and commnodity programs so that they would reach more
needy eitizens. Or it could have been wisely used to increase the benefits for
those already participating, The monotony of foods distributed through the com-
modities program (which is supplied through surplus farm products) is a
familiar story. Commodity recipients could certainly be granted a better variety
of foods, while stamp recipients need more assistance to overcome the effects
of infintion on their sorely limited grocery budgets.

Secretary Buiz wasn't in the celebrated predicament that caught the Navy's
Admiral Zumwalt. Butz did not need to conjure up ways of using appropriated
funds. Genuine needs were there but no one answered them.

This fund reversion indicates once again that food programs for the poor
should be operated by some agency other than the Agrieulture Department. The
welfare «f the poverty-stricken has never been one of its major concerns. Rut
until a transfer is arranged, the White House should sce to it that Secretary
Butz makes these programs fulfill their purpose. They fail miserably when they
mitsrs 11 million pecple as $688 million in unspent funds flow back to federal
coffers.
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[From the Washiogton Star, June 23, 1972)
HuNckr WAR UNDERMINED nY TIGHTWAD AGENCY
(By C:\;l T. Rowan)

It is hard to think of a more heartless scene than a child squirming in a class-
room, unable to stay awake, or foilow the teacher, because that chiid’s stomach
aches from hunger.

But a lot of children faced that plight this year bzcause the Department of
Agrieulture squeezed some chiidren out of eligibility for a free school lunch and
d(lelc‘lli(;md to spend $82 miilion that Congress allocated for food for needy school-
<hildren.

It is hard to think of a longer-lasting cruelty than to deprive DPoor, pregnant
women of the special nutritious foods that make f§t possible for them to produce
healthy habies. The hurt is longlastiug because ill-nourished mothers produce
babies that may be premature, or wenk in some respects, and such infants run
a bhigh risk of carly death or mental retardation.

But a lot of pregnant women and youug children who are especially vulnerable
to malnuntritlon are not getting the supplemental foods that Congress says they
should have. The Agriculture Department decided to spend in fiseal 1972 only §13
million of the $36 milllon Congress allocated for the Supplemenal Foods program.

Of all the programs designed to aid America’s 26 million poor people, the one
hardest to begrudge is the food stamp program, which is the major bulwark
agaiust hunger for 11.5 million Americans. .

But at a time when President Nixon was reiterating his pledge to end hunger
in Ameriea for all time, was the Agriculture Department trying to extend the
food stamp program to the 14.4 miflion poor people not yet aided by it? No, the
departient was pushing policies that limited participation and reduced henefits
to many people already using the program—with the result tha: the department
refused to spend $400 million that Congress allocated for food stamps for the
poor.

These are faets reported by the Senate Seleet Committee on Nutrition and
¥muan Needs, which elahng that of seven food assistance programs, the depart-
ment will turn back to the Treasury some $700 miltion this year.

The administration announced with pride recently that the budget deficit this
year will he several billion doliars less than anticipated. That is supposed to be
good news in an election year. The Agriculture Department obviously was play-
ing the nice politicnl gmne by squeezing almost a biition dollars out of the mouths
of the aged, the poor, the helpless children who are the great vietims of hunger.

It is an ironic coincidence that the select committee is chaired by Sen. George
McGovern, nove the leading candidate to oppose President Nixon for the presi-
dency. McGovern has wasted no time lashing the administration for “pick-pocket-
ing the poor.” But many congressmen have made it clear that this issue tran-
scends partisan politics.

Many Republienn governors and congressmen were part of the nationwide
protests that in January caused Agriculture Secretary Earl Butz to rescind
regulations that would have inereased the cost of food stamps to a level where
many poor would be driven out of the program.

Arthur Schiff, assistant administrator of New York City's Human Resources
Administration, told the Senate comumittee that the people won that January
battle with Butz but they are losing the war. He says that through the “inter-
pretation™ of regulations and the issuance of new food stamp tables the Agril-
culture Department is accomplishing piecemenl what & publie outery prevented
it from doing in one fell swoop.

For example, even when the administraticn emphasizes “workfare” and “job
fncentives” for people on welfare, the Agriculture Department has come up with
an interpretation that has had what McGovern calls “a devastating effect on food
stamp reciplents who participate in werk, training or education programs
intended to make them self-sufficient.”

Previousty, for example, money used by a mother for a babysitter. or for
trausportation to work, was not counted as money available for food. Now the
department counts that money, meaning that some stamp recipients suddenly
are paying £20 to £30 more a month while their ,.acome has not increased.

The hanky-panky in Agriculture is especially dismaying in view of the progress
that was being made against hunger. In 1969 some 21 million children participated
in the school lunch program, with only 3.8 million receiving lunches free or at
substantially reduced prices. There are now 25 million children in the program,
with 8 million receiving free or reduced-price lunches,
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That kind of progress augurs well for a healthy, happy population, which must
forever be our greatest national asset.

But the bureaucratic scrooges in the Agriculture Department have 700 million
unspent dollars as proof that they can produce defeat just when victors seemed
attainable in this grim war against hunger.

{From the Buffalo Couricr Express, June 20, 1972]
MirLioxs For ¥0oop UNUSED: ANSWERS NEEDED

Political angles evidently have considerable bearing on charges by the Senate
Select Committee on Nutrition and Human Needs that $688-miltion in appropri-
ated footl-program money has been withheld from 11 million poor people for whom
it was carmarked. A committee staff study says failure to spend the money is the
direct resnlt of Agricultnre Department policy.

Political angles involved are the fact that Sen. George S. McGovern, leading
eandidate for the Democratic presidential nomination, is chairman of the com-
mittee in question and a charge by Sen. Charles H. Percy, R-Hl.. that the staff-
study report was prepared withont the kuowledge of Republican members of the
conmittee.

Politivs aside. however, there is the admission of Asst. Secretary Richard Lyng
of tle Xgriculture Department that $3SY-million in pnspent food-stam} money
would be returned tc the Treasury. Inasmuch as the staff study says funds have
zone nsed in every fond-assistance program, it would appear that the depart-
went does have quite a bit of explaining to do. Millions of the poor people who
receive no foodl assistance will be listening.

{From the St. Louls Post-Dispatck, June 19. 1972]
Foop Fuxnps WrtHHELD, SENATE UNiT CHARGES

Washinzton. June 19 (UPI)—A Senate committee has aceused the Administra-
tion of withliolding $65S.000,000 in appropriated food program moune¥ that was
earmarked for 11,000,000 poor persons.

A staff study by the Senate Select Committee on Nutrition and Hnman Needs
headed by Senator George S. McGovern (Dem.), South Dakota, said failure to
spend the funds was the direct result of Department of Agriculture policy.

Althoueh assistant Secretary Riehard Lyng denied in committee testimony
June 7 that any desperately needed funds were being withheld, acknowledzed
that $3%0.000,000 in unspent foed stamp program money wonld be retirned to the
Department of the Treasury.

The staff study said : It is now clear that the policies of the GSDA tiironghout
the fiseal yvear just ended have resulted in funds gning unused i every food
assistance program.”

This was done. the report said. in spite of the fact that there are 26.000.000
poor in the cenntry awd only 15.000.000 of them recvive any food assistanee.

Seerotary of Agricuiture Earl R. Butz made publica letter from Senator Charles
H. Percy (Rep.), Hlinois, charging that the report was prepared withont knowl-
edge of the committee Republicans.

Ferey complained the report was one-sided and ignored “the great strides
which have been made under this Administration.”

In addition to the unspent food stamp money, the study said, the department

qiled also to spend $36.000,000 of $333.000,000 appropriated for the donated foods
program, $52,000,000 of the £797.000,000 fanded for the national school lnneh pro-
gram, $5.000,000 of the $31.000.000 for the school breakfast prosram. $2:3.000.000
of the S36.000,000 for the supplemental foods program and $150,000,000 of the
$18£.000.000 for the special food service program for ehildren.

[From the Milwaukee Journal. June 25, 1972]
Is No O~k HuUNGeRY?

1s there no more hunger in Ameriea? Few would elaim this to be so, ret the
Nixon ndministration has failed to explain adequately why it is returning nearly
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£100 milliou in unspent food stamp money to the U.S. Treasury. In fact. a staff
study by a Senate committee iuvestigating the situatiou has revealed that
the administration also failed to spend fully the sums auwpropriated for the
school lunch program, the school breakfast program and apparently every other
federal food program. About the only answers cominyg from the Agriculture De-
partment are that there has been difficulty in estimating funding requirements
and that no “desperately needed” funds are being withheld. But the committee
study poiuts out that only about 15 million of the nation’s 26 million poor are
receiving any food assistance. Something seems wrong somewherc.

. [From the Fresno Bee, June 24, 1932}
FaiLure oF Foop Prooradt Is Discrace

It is a natioual disgmice in a land of plenty that millions of Americans go
hungry or Iack nutritions foods merely beciuse they are poor.

To correct this shameful situation, Congress has approved the food stamp
and other programs under which the unfortunate and their children can have
u decent diet.

Now it has been disclosed that while Congress luis voted funds for these worth-
while humanitarian plans, they have been aborted by the Nixon administmition.

A stay study made by the Select Commiter on Nutrition nrd Human Needs
gf which G.8. Sen. George McGovern of South Dakota is the chairman states

luntly :

“It is clear that the policies of the United States Department of Agriculture
throughout the year have resulted in funds going unused in every food aissistance
program.”

Naturally the adminis. . ion has tried to belittle the findings with Assistant
Secretary of Agriculture Richard Lyng declaring that no “desperately needed”
funds have been withheld.

But he had to concede that £339 million in the food stamp program i< being
reiurned to the Treasury.

And that is not the entire story. -

.The sum of £263 million voted for school lunches and breakfasts. supplemental
food programs and specinl food services for children is unspent.

The record demwonstrates an entire lack of sensitivity by the Nixon adminis-
tration to the problems of the unfortunate. especially the nation’s children.

{From the Washington Post. June 23, 1972]
Luxcit PROGRAM SHORTCHANGED CRITICS CIIARGE
(By Nick Kotz)

The Nixon administration was accused yesterday of failing to spend up to
$140 million of authorized lunch funds for needy children, while turning down
state and loeal requests for additional funds.

The controversy concerns the so-called out-of-school feeding programs. which
provide poor children free lunches at day care centers or suminer recreation
programs.

Richard Lyng, assistant secretary of agricnlture, replied to the crities that
only $4 million will be unused, and that failure to meet all program needs re-
sulted from the present formuln which misallocates funds between the states,
He said some states got more funds than they need and others not cnough.

Senator Edward Kennedy (D-Muss.), chairing hearings of the Senate Select
Committee on Nutrition. pressed Lyng to spend more money now and worry
Inter about a new legislative formula for apporticning the food aid money Lyng
refused.

Lyng said Congress had nutliorized only $49 million for the out-of-sehinol
summer and full-year feeding programs and that $35 million of this would be
spent, including $10 million which will he allocated for this summer’s expended
program.

He said the committee staff was inaccurate in stating that another $1335 million i
was authorized by Congress, since this money was intended primarily for meet-
ing full needs of the national schovl lunch program.
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Kennedy insisted, however, that language in the congressional authoriza-
tion was broad enough to allow spending some of the $133 million if USDA
wanted to.

During the last year about 178,000 poor children received lunches in the full-
year, out-of-school feeding program and about one million in the sumnier
program.

The two-day hearings apened with complaints from Rep. Charles Vanik (D-
Oliio) and child care workers in New York that USDA was depriving hundreds
of thousands of children of lunches by discouraging or turning down requests
for additional funds.

Yanik, author of the 1969 food aid law, said that at least 19 states have writ-
ten him that they must turn down requests to fced children because USDA
won't supply funds.

Commniittee Chairman George McGovern (D-S.D.) agreed to withdriaw tempo-
rarily a comuiittee staff report on the USDA food aid program after USDA
and Republican committee members complained that it contained errors.

Meanwhile, the House Education and Labor Committee approved a bill yes-
terday that would authorize an additional $25 million for summer feeding
programe, increase reimbursement for school lunch programs from ¢ to 8 cents
per meal. permit any school to operate a breakfast program for poor children,
increase funds for school lunch equipment and establish eligibility standards
for free school lunches. O

o



